WEICHAI

et &g Stock code:2338.HK

2017 | vy

Interim Report

B TIRR I B IR A S
WEICHAI WER CO..LTD.

.

":\.




Contents

Corporate Information
Financial Summary
Chairman’s Statement
Management Discussion and Analysis
Auditors’ Review Report
Reviewed Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Income Statement
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Balance Sheet
Income Statement
Statement of Changes in Equity
Cash Flow Statement
Notes to Financial Statements
Supplemental Information on Financial Statements
Schedule of Extraordinary Profit and Loss
Return on Net Assets (“RONA") and Earnings Per Share (“EPS")

Other Information

29 EHIWME
EEMUBHRE
30 AEEREBR
33 B HAMER
35 BHRREREEHER
37 AHRTRER
39 BEBER
41 bERS
42 BRREREFHE
43  HEeRER
45 BIBWmEME
s mRmRER
270 FEEEIEERBAR

271 FEEREEMTRY S

Bl

272 EHibEHR



02  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)

Audit Committee

Wang Gongyong (Chairman)

Loh Yih

Zhang Zhong

Ning Xiangdong

Li Hongwu (appointed on 12 June 2017)
Zhang Zhenhua (resigned on 29 March 2017)

Strategic Development and Investment

Committee

Tan Xuguang (Chairman)

Zhang Quan

Xu Xinyu

Sun Shaojun

Wang Yuepu

Yuan Hongming (appointed on 12 June 2017)
Yan Jianbo (appointed on 12 June 2017)

Li Dakai (resigned on 29 March 2017)

Zhang Zhenhua (resigned on 29 March 2017)

Remuneration Committee
Zhang Zhong (Chairman)

Tan Xuguang

Loh Yih

Nomination Committee
Zhang Zhong (Chairman)

Xu Xinyu

Wang Gongyong

Li Hongwu (appointed on 12 June 2017)
Zhang Zhenhua (resigned on 29 March 2017)

Principal Bankers

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank Corporation
Bank of China

HSBC

HRBORHAERDE

THEHET

IER(EE)

E %

&

FAR
EHR(R-F—+EXA+A HE)
FRE(R-T—tF= B+ ABRE)

B % e e e B R H W

BB (E/E)
R’ R
¥ E
RAE
FHE
REH
B ZE 51
YN
SR IR EE

MMEEE
®R(ER)
K

BB

REZHEE

B B(EE)

BIE

TEE
FHR(R_F—+EXA+2H HE)
FRE(R-E—+F= A=+ ABRE)

FEA KRBT
b B T 7 4R 4T

o B R AT
BB R AT

EBRT

RZZT—tFA+=BLEME)
RZEBE—tFRA+TZALE)
RZZT—+F =A==+ BEHT)
R-_FBE—tF=A=-F+ILBET)

(
(
(
(



Corporate Information (Continued)

Hong Kong H-share Registrar and Transfer
Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Share Information
Number of issued shares as at
30 June 2017:
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(3,027,099,278 A Shares
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Stock Exchange Listings
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H Shares: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
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06  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #%E HIRHDERAT

Financial Summary

Revenue amounted to approximately RMB72,313 million, increased by

approximately 69.9%.

Net Profit Attributable to the Shareholders of the Parent amounted to
approximately RMB2,650 million, increased by approximately 147.4%.

Basic Earnings Per Share was approximately RMBO0.33, increased by

approximately 147.4%.

S 75 1

BEWANABAREKT72313BET LAY
69.9% o

FERTARBREAFAIEHAEARE?2,650
BB EFH147.4% °

BREABANOB/ARKOIIT  LFH
147.4% -



Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the reviewed interim results of

the Company for the six months’ period ended 30 June 2017.

L.

Review of Operations

In the first half of 2017, the Chinese government insisted upon the
general working theme of making progress while maintaining stability,
pioneering amidst the “new norms” in economic development with
new development concepts. Emphasizing structural reforms of the
supply side and focusing on enhancement of quality and efficiency, the
government deepened reforms and innovation and strengthened policy
implementation. The economy operated within a reasonable range
and the trend of positive development of economy amidst stability was
increasingly apparent. In the first half of the year, the gross domestic
product reached RMB38.15 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of
6.9%. On a quarter-to-quarter basis, it grew by 6.9% in the first quarter

and 6.9% in the second quarter.
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08 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT

Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F (AR

During the reporting period, the heavy-duty truck market exhibited
an obvious trend of recovery with substantial growth in sales volume
and delivering sales of 583,700 units in total, representing a year-on-
year increase of 71.5%. This increase in sales volume is a reflection
of the influence of a multitude of favourable factors including the
implementation of the new anti-overloading policies, the fostering of
PPP (Public Private Partnership) projects, and the acceleration of fixed
asset investments. Under such influence during the reporting period, the
Company reported sales of 178,500 units of heavy-duty truck engines,
representing a year-on-year increase of 100.8%, and a market share
of 30.6%, representing an increase of 4.5 percentage points from the
corresponding period of last year, maintaining its leading position in the
industry. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited (BRFE &R /REH
[R /2 7)), a controlling subsidiary of the Company, reported an aggregate
sales of 73,400 units of heavy-duty trucks for the first half of the year,
representing a year-on-year increase of 94.7%, with a market share of
12.6% and ranking No. 4 in the domestic heavy-duty truck industry in the
PRC, further increasing its competitiveness. Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. (B&
AT Em AR EE2AR), a controlling subsidiary of the Company,
has maintained its leading position in the industry with its aggregate sales
of 427,300 units of gear boxes representing a year-on-year increase of
73.8% and its 70.1% market share in the market of gear boxes for use in

heavy-duty trucks.

In the first half of 2017, fixed-asset investments in the PRC (excluding
agricultural households) reached RMB28.06 trillion, representing a year-
on-year growth of 8.6%, and a drop of 0.4 percentage points in growth
rate year-on-year. The total planned investments for newly-commenced
construction projects reached RMB23.73 trillion, representing a year-on-
year fall of 1.2%. Investments in property development reached RMB5.06
trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 8.5%, and an increase of 2.4
percentage points in growth rate year-on-year. As such, the construction
machinery industry continued to recover, delivering sales of 396,000
units in the entire construction machinery industry (including electric
fork-lift trucks), representing a year-on-year increase of 45.6%, among
which the sales volume of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes
was 30,400 units, representing a year-on-year increase of 29.9%. The
Company sold a total of 26,500 units of engines for wheel loaders with a
load capacity of 5 tonnes, representing a year-on-year increase of 70.6%
and accounting for 87.3% market share in the market of wheel loaders
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes, hence maintaining its leading position in

this sector.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the reporting period, under the influence of the state’s
macroeconomic policies, the passenger vehicles market of the PRC
continued to drop, with accumulated sales of 220,400 units, representing
a drop of 14.0% year-on-year. Among such, the market of large-
sized passenger vehicles reported accumulated sales of 27,900 units,
representing a drop of 17.4% year-on-year. The medium-sized passenger
vehicle market suffered a serious drop in sales, with accumulated sales of
26,000 units which represented a year-on-year decrease of 36.4%. The
light passenger vehicle market, which commanded larger market share,
reported accumulated sales of 166,000 units, representing a drop of 8.3%
year-on-year. During the reporting period, with its efforts in adjusting
product structure and marketing promotion, the Company’s cumulative
sales of engines for use in large-sized and medium-sized passenger
vehicles amounted to 14,300 units, representing a year-on-year increase
of 50.8%, and accounted for 26.5% of the market share, representing an
increase of 13.8 percentage points year-on-year.

During the reporting period, the Company adhered to the market-
oriented approach and accelerated structural adjustments of products and
businesses, thereby enhancing its market competitiveness and maintaining
its trend of relatively fast development. In the first half of 2017, the
Company reported a sales figure of 100,800 units of 12L and 13L
engines, representing a 120.9% growth year-on-year, and maintaining
its stable leading position of heavy-duty engine products in the heavy-
duty truck market, the market of wheel loaders with a load capacity of
5 tonnes and the market of passenger vehicles with a span of over 11
metres. Meanwhile, sales of strategic products and in strategic markets
grew substantially. The sales of Yangchai engines below 4L increased by
13.7% year-on-year to 49,000 units, the sales of WP9H/WP10H engines
reached 8,415 units and were quickly launched to the market, the sales
of WP13 engines increased by 2.8 times year-on-year to 20,400 units,
the sales of engines for use in agricultural equipment increased by 95.4%
year-on-year to 16,000 units and the sales of engines for use in forklift
trucks increased by 91.1% year-on-year to 2,157 units. During the
same period, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a controlling
subsidiary of the Company, explored the heavy-duty truck segment
market and executed a value marketing model, going beyond segment
markets such as tractor, dump truck, grout truck, cold-chain transport
truck and cement mixing truck, and achieving strong growth. The world’s
first 9-speed automatic transmission gear box design, self-developed by
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., overcame overseas technological barrier and
was competitive in capturing a leading market position with its superior
performance and reliable quality. Monthly production and sales volume of
gear boxes for use in passenger vehicles achieved new records and helped
drive the continual development of the enterprise.
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10  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.  #ScE) HIRHERA

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Company was committed to expanding
markets externally and focusing on management internally. Through
implementing the three projects of “strengthening its base and
operations”, namely expenses control, loss treatment and management
enhancement, the Company achieved substantial growth of its major
indicators. Results of operation were positive in general. Firstly, the
Company adhered to a market-oriented approach and focused on
overcoming difficulties by concentrating its strengths. Through sales
activities such as “Work hard 100 days to achieve a production and
sales volume of 180,000 units” and “Attain sales volume of 300,000
units in the first half of the year”, the Company strengthened market
expansion and seized and captured market opportunities. Both sales
volume and market share of products grew substantially. Secondly,
the Company adhered to a target-oriented approach and continually
increased accumulation in research and development, enhancing
its innovative capability and delivering a series of high-performance
products. Leveraging on technological strength, WP9H/WP10H products
won recognition from customers and M26.3 products entered North
American markets in mass. The core technological competitiveness of the
Company was continually strengthened. Thirdly, the Company adhered
to the notion of both strategic merger and acquisition and localized
manufacturing. With strategic investments in the U.S.-based PSI Inc, we
managed to possess leading technology in the field of clean energy and
in turn enter the power system market of North America. Leveraging on
“One Belt and One Road” strategy of the PRC, the Company accelerated
localized manufacturing projects in overseas regions, further accelerating
internalization strategy. Fourthly, the Company adhered to the principle of
reducing cost and enhancing efficiency. Through strengthening targeted
cost management, promoting online bidding platform, strengthening
process control of expenses, and tightening budget assessment, the
Company kept expenditures within budget while attaining more revenue
than estimated. The profitability of the Company was substantially

improved.

During the reporting period, the Company’s revenue increased by 69.9%
compared with that in the corresponding period of 2016 to approximately
RMB72,313 million. The net profit attributable to shareholders of the
listed company was approximately RMB2,650 million, representing an
increase of 147.4% compared with that in the corresponding period
of 2016. The basic earnings per share was RMB0.33, representing an
increase of 147.4% compared with that in the corresponding period of
2016.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

II.

I1I.

Dividends and Capitalisation of Reserve

On 8 June 2017, the Company’s 2016 profit distribution proposal was
considered and approved at the Company’s 2016 annual general meeting,
the first class meeting of the holders of A shares in 2017 and the first
class meeting of the holders of H shares in 2017. Based on the total share
capital of 3,998,619,278 shares as at 31 December 2016, the Company
distributed to all shareholders a cash dividend of RMB2.50 (including
tax) and issued 10 bonus shares (including tax), for every 10 shares held,
without any capitalisation of reserve. Distribution of the bonus shares was
completed during the period from the balance sheet date to the date on

which the issue of the financial statements was approved.

On 30 August 2017, under the authority granted by the shareholders
of the Company, the Board considered and approved the distribution
to all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB1.50 (including tax) for
every 10 shares held, based on the total share capital of the Company of
7,997,238,556 shares, without any capitalisation of reserve. Please refer
to the further announcement to be issued by the Company for details on
the closure of registers of members in determining the shareholders who

are eligible for the 2017 interim dividend.

Acquisition and Consolidation

In March 2017, the Company approved the entering into of a share
purchase agreement by Weichai America Corp., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, with the U.S.-based Power Solutions
International, Inc. (hereinafter, “PSI Inc.”), for the purchase of 2,728,752
ordinary shares and 2,385,624 preferred shares (convertible into 4,771,248
ordinary shares in the future) of PSI Inc., with a total investment of
USD60 million. Upon full conversion of the aforesaid preferred shares into
ordinary shares, the Company will, through Weichai America Corp., hold
shares representing 40.71% of the total issued share capital of PSI Inc.
and become its single largest shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, 18
months after the completion of the above transaction, Weichai America
Corp. may exercise a call option to increase its holding in PSI Inc. to 51%.
With PSI Inc’s technology and experience, existing customer base, sales
channels, and service networks in North America, the Company can
quickly enter the North American market. Through positively participating
in the competition of the North American power system market, the
Company can enhance its level of market penetration and brand

influence.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

IV. Outlook and Prospects NGB fﬁ%%

In the second half of 2017, the recovery of the economies of developed
countries is increasingly apparent. Emerging markets are also gradually
improving; in particular, growth is robust in key economies such as the
U.S., Germany, and India. It is expected that the global economic growth
rate of the year will be at around 3.5%, possibly the highest in six years.
Domestically, as the implementation of structural reforms of the supply
side deepens and the innovative development strategies gains speed,
the upward development trend of the Chinese economy will continue to
strengthen and expand. At the same time, international instabilities and
uncertainties were numerous, and the domestic structural conflicts that
have been accumulating remain outstanding. Affected by such factors as
slowing growth in infrastructure investments, stabilized consumer price
levels, and the steady improvement of export trade, it is expected that
the Chinese economy will sustain a stable pace of growth in the second
half of the year, with the annual growth rate estimated to maintain at

approximately 6.8%.

The Company is cautiously optimistic about the development trend of
its related industries. In the second half of 2017, it is expected that the
Chinese heavy-duty truck market will reach a sales volume of 416,000
units, with a cumulative annual sales exceeding one million units,
representing a year-on-year growth of more than 36.4%. The estimated
increase is mainly attributable to the following reasons. Firstly, the
implementation of the new version of Guobiao GB1589 standard and
anti-overloading policies led to an explosive growth in domestic heavy-
duty trucks, especially tractors. Following the release of demand in the
first half of the year, the market will become more rational in the second
half of the year. Secondly, the tightened management over transportation
vehicles by the Ministry of Transport has entered the second stage,
whereby the upgrading of car carriers and hazardous chemicals
transportation vehicles are progressing in an orderly manner. Thirdly,
according to the requirements of the China Air Pollution Prevention
Action Plan, efforts to eliminate yellow-label vehicles have sped up since
2009; and that all the yellow-label vehicles in the country will basically
be eliminated by the end of this year. Fourthly, the commencement of
construction projects across the country, and the increasing investments
in infrastructure, have led to a rapid growth in the sales of engineering

vehicles.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

In the second half of 2017, buoyed by factors such as investments in
infrastructure and the demand for equipment update and improvement
in the industry’s competitive environment, the construction machinery
industry will recover continuously. It is expected that the cumulative
annual sales will exceed 700,000 units, representing a year-on-year
growth of more than 29.9%. In terms of international market conditions,
‘One Belt and One road’ drives interconnection among infrastructure.
Growth of infrastructure construction and China’s foreign engineering
contracts will speed up, and the demand will be substantial. The Trump
administration has implemented proactive fiscal policies and stepped up
infrastructure construction, creating substantial strategic development
opportunities in overseas markets. Domestically, with the implementation
of proactive fiscal policy in the PRC, construction of infrastructure will
speed up, and PPP Projects will be more promptly implemented. With
higher shortcomings in infrastructure and civil aspects in the PRC, the
industry is in urgent need of reform and upgrade, which will drive growth
in the industry. It has been eight to nine years since the last peak of the
construction machinery industry. Having entered an overlaying period of
upgrade and replacement, upgrader demands in the next two to three

years will be significant.

Currently, with increasingly stringent regulations on emission levels,
the upgrade of technologies has also been speeding up. With effect
from 1 January 2018, the China V Emission Standards will apply to
the manufacturing, importing, sale and registration of all diesel-driven
light vehicles in China. As such, some segments of the market will
experience a new round of shuffling and the elimination of backward
production capacities will be accelerated. Leveraging upon the synergy
presented by its globally coordinated R&D, advanced technology in
smart manufacturing, product and service diversity, and its strong base
of loyal customers, the Company has actively responded by starting its
preparation work in advance. Having essentially completed the upgrade
and replacement of engine products, the Company is poised to maintain
its leading position in the market of high-power engines and heavy-duty
gear boxes. The Board has full confidence in the development prospect of

the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

In the second half of 2017, the Company will commit to the main theme
of “strengthening its base and operations, seizing and capturing markets,
speeding up innovation, and striving to excel in its development”, and
work strenuously on the following for the thirteen battles that it must win

this year:

Firstly, the Company will adhere to the customers-oriented approach,
expedite structural adjustments, make good use of product advantages,
lead the industry development, expand our market share, continuously
expand into emerging markets, explore new strengths, and work
diligently towards the goal of 600,000 engines for the year. Secondly,
surrounding ‘the four goals of going high-end’, the Company will
implement technical innovation planning. Through reforms of systems and
mechanisms, the Company will create a fervent eco-system of creativity
by the public, fully commencing the strategy of going high-end. Thirdly,
the Company will deepen the formation of the Group’s coordination
platform and mechanism, speed up the consolidation of overseas business
regions, enhance the profitability of KION, Linde, Baudouin, etc., to
improve the coordinated development of overseas business. Fourthly,
the Company will carry out comprehensive innovation of its talent
recruitment mechanism, explore the possibility of implementing shares
incentive scheme, talent recruitment incentive systems, etc., to create
the most competitive and best eco-system for the aggregation of talents,
incentivize energy for innovation of the entire team and enhance the core
competitiveness of the Company. Fifthly, we will strengthen management
and control of operational risks, with a focus on strengthening the
management of receivables, strictly manage inventory, enhance liquidity,
to boost our overall capability to resist risks. We will work in the heavy-
duty vehicles segment market with care and diligence, strengthen
traditionally advantageous markets, break through strategic markets,
upgrade our products and services, satisfy customer demands for diversity
and personalization, expand our market share, and strive to achieve a
breakthrough sales of 150,000 units. The gearbox companies will aim for
market demands by launching new products that are high-end, smart,
networked, and diversified, focus on developments of China VI stage
matching products, new energy smart products, etc., improve product

quality and performance, and capture leading market position.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F (AR
At the same time, the Company will remain committed to its development B KRR EEBRSik - kB2 Ik
goal of “going high-end and meeting the challenge to become number E—IWBEREER  RRIEBRE—  BY
one in the world”. Under the principle of “Unified Strategy, Independent BE - BRAZ IMEL - MNERARRRE) S
Operation, Resources Sharing”, the Company will accelerate the K REBES  BEREURSEZAESE
coordinated development of the three golden industrial chains, namely ¥RANHRERE  TOBEBANINA AN
powertrains, hydraulic controlling, and intelligent logistics, to fully utilize BRMEES  THREACENERLE S
the synergetic advantage of its resources in both domestic and overseas MR - B AN A BERRES -

companies, to continually enhance the product quality and brand image

of the Company, and to boost the overall capability to resist risks.

V. Appreciation FRES &)
Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to all 5% REABOMIFRDTINE K
our shareholders, the general public and our customers for their care and EEH@E&ERALT BEAEFE  MEFK
support, as well as all of our staff for their hard work and dedication in PMTIENREET - R ROMH

the last six months!

Tan Xuguang EFERFEHENTE
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer E M

Hong Kong, 30 August 2017 &% —FT—+tF/\A=1H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of
the results of operations of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2017

(“the Period") as follows:

I. Industry Analysis
The Company is one of the vehicles and equipment manufacturing
conglomerates in China with the best comprehensive strengths. It is
a leading company in the market of powertrains, complete vehicles
and machines, hydraulic controlling parts and automotive parts and
components. It is equipped with the most comprehensive supply chain
of engines, gear boxes and axles, and offers related after-sales market

services.

1. Heavy-duty Vehicle Industry
In the first half of 2017, the PRC maintained a stable economic
growth. In the first half of the year, the gross domestic product of
the PRC reached RMB38.15 trillion, representing a 6.9% growth
year-on-year. The heavy-duty truck market of the PRC exhibited an
ongoing trend of recovery with substantial growth in sales volume,
delivering sales of approximately 583,700 units in total during the
Period, representing a substantial year-on-year increase of 71.5%.
Such increase in sales volume is a reflection of the influence of a
multitude of favourable factors including the implementation of
the new anti-overloading policies, the fostering of Public Private
Partnership (PPP) projects, and the acceleration of infrastructure

investments.

2. Construction Machinery
During the Period, fixed-asset investments in the PRC (excluding
agricultural households) reached approximately RMB28.06 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 8.6%. Investments in
property development reached approximately RMB5.06 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 8.5%, and an increase of
approximately 2.4 percentage points in growth rate year-on-year.
As such, the construction machinery market in the PRC continued
to recover, delivering sales of approximately 396,000 units in the
entire construction machinery industry (including electric fork-lift
trucks), representing a year-on-year increase of 45.6%, amongst
which, the sales of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes
was approximately 30,400 units, representing a year-on-year

increase of 29.9%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

3. Passenger Vehicle Market
During the Period, the PRC passenger vehicle market exhibited an
ongoing downturn as a result of the influence of China’s national
express rail taking up the share of the transportation market and
the implementation of macroeconomic policies in the country. In
the first half of 2017, China’s passenger vehicle market reported an
aggregate sales figure of 220,400 units, representing a year-on-year

decrease of 14.0%.

4. Forklift Truck and Supply Chain Solutions
Industry
In the first half of 2017, riding on global economic growth, rapid
development of electronic commerce, and the wide application of
industrial 4.0 technology, capital expenditure was on the rise in
many enterprises, including the expansion of warehousing capacity,
forklift truck equipments and the installation of automated
systems. As such, the global order for forklift trucks increased from
approximately 591,000 units in the corresponding period last year
to approximately 694,100 units, representing an increase of 17.4%

year-on-year.

II. The Group’s Business
An analysis of the Group's business segments is set out in Note XIV.2 to
the consolidated financial statements. The following is an overview of the

operating conditions of the major products of the Group:

1. Sale of Diesel Engines

For Use in Heavy-duty Trucks

During the Period, the heavy-duty truck market in the PRC reported
substantial increase in sales volume. The Company sold a total
of approximately 178,500 units of heavy-duty truck engines,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 100.8%
from approximately 88,900 units (as restated) in the corresponding
period last year. The Company maintained its leading position
in the heavy-duty truck auxiliary market with a market share of
30.6%, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 4.5

percentage points.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) BRI o B AT (A

For Use in Construction Machinery

The Group is also the largest supplier of diesel engines to major
manufacturers of construction machinery (mainly wheel loaders)
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes in the PRC. During the Period,
under the continual recovery of the construction machinery market,
the Company’s sales of engines for wheel loader with a load
capacity of 5 tonnes was approximately 26,500 units, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 70.6% from approximately
15,600 units (as restated) in the corresponding period of last
year. The Company’s market share in the market of wheel loader
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes reached 87.3%, maintaining the

Company’s leading position in the market.

For use in Passenger Vehicles

During the Period, the domestic passenger vehicles market
continued to drop, with substantial decrease in the large-sized
and medium-sized passenger vehicles sectors. With the good
quality and high efficiencies of its products, the Company recorded
ongoing increase in market share. During the first half of the year,
the Company’s aggregate sales of engines for use in large-sized
and medium-sized passenger vehicles amounted to approximately
14,300 units, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
50.8%, and accounted for approximately 26.5% of the market
share of the large-sized and medium-sized passenger vehicles,

representing an increase of 13.8 percentage points year-on-year.

Forklift Trucks Production, Warehousing
Technology and Supply Chain Solution
Services

During the Period, KION Group AG (“KION") actively pushed
forward the “2020 Strategy” and expedited the integration of the
Dematic business line for better synergy. In the first half of 2017,
the Group recorded sales orders for forklift trucks of approximately
102,400 units, an increase of approximately 14.9% from
approximately 89,200 units in the corresponding period last year.
Overall sales orders on hand amounted to EUR3,852 million, an
increase from approximately EUR2,724 million in the corresponding
period last year, or an increase of 41.4%. Before elimination of
intra-group sales, the forklift trucks production, warehousing
technology services and supply chain solution services business
contributed approximately RMB28,574 million to the Group's sales

revenue during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Sale of Heavy-duty Trucks

During the Period, the Group reported an aggregate sales of
approximately 73,400 units of heavy-duty trucks, representing an
increase of approximately 94.7% from approximately 37,700 units
sold during the corresponding period of 2016. Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Company Limited, a controlling subsidiary of the Company,
maintained its ranking within the top four in the domestic heavy-
duty truck industry in the PRC. Before elimination of intra-group
sales, the heavy-duty trucks business contributed approximately

RMB22,375 million to the Group's sales revenue during the Period.

Sale of Heavy-duty Gear Boxes

During the Period, the Group sold approximately 427,300 units of
heavy-duty gear boxes, representing an increase of approximately
73.8% compared to approximately 245,900 units sold in the
corresponding period of 2016, and maintained its leading position
in the industry. Before elimination of intra-group sales, the gear
boxes business contributed approximately RMB6,803 million to the

Group's sales revenue during the Period.

Sale of Parts and Components of Engine and
Heavy-duty Trucks and Hydraulics Controlling
Parts

Apart from the production and sales of diesel engines for trucks
and construction machinery, heavy-duty trucks and heavy-duty
gear boxes, the Group is also engaged in the production and
sales of engine parts and components and other truck parts and
components such as: spark plugs, axles, chassis, air-conditioner
compressors, hydraulics controlling parts etc. During the Period, the
Group's sales of parts and components of engines and trucks and
hydraulics controlling parts increased by approximately RMB197
million from approximately RMB1,858 million in the corresponding
period in last year to approximately RMB2,055 million, representing

a year-on-year increase of approximately 10.6%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

III. Financial Review
The Group’s Results of Operations

1.

a.

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately RMB29,752
million or approximately 69.9% from approximately
RMB42,561 million (restated) in the corresponding period
of 2016 to approximately RMB72,313 million for the
Period. This was primarily attributable to the substantial
increase in sales volume in the heavy-duty truck market in
China, and the Group’s strategy to transform to become
an intelligent logistics total solutions provider which in
turn increased contributions towards sales. During the
Period, the revenue from the forklift truck production,
warehousing technology, and supply chain solutions
services segments increased by 53.0%, from approximately
RMB18,672 million in the corresponding period of last year
to approximately RMB28,574 million for the Period. Revenue
from principal operations increased by approximately
69.6% from approximately RMB41,633 million (restated)
in the corresponding period in 2016 to approximately
RMB70,596 million for the Period. Other revenue increased
by approximately 85.1%, from approximately RMB928
million (restated) in the corresponding period of 2016 to

approximately RMB1,718 million for the Period.

Profit from Principal Operations

During the Period, the Group generated profit from principal
operations in the amount of approximately RMB15,145
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB5,486
million or 56.8% as compared to approximately RMB9,659
million (restated) recorded in the corresponding period
of last year. The Group’s focus on product research
and development has given advantages to its products’
competitiveness in terms of cost, core technology and quality.
The Group's profit margin of principal operations remained

stable at approximately 21.5%.

w3
ez
|
Et

5

\
/)

N
<
=
i

= ~HA %5 ol B
REBIIROYEE

1.

a.

EEIRA

AEBMRABHEEERALY
ABARET72313B8 T 0 L
ZE-RNEFREBNHARE
Q561EET(&EIM) LA
MARME29,752B 8T - B
BE#H69.9% - TEXZERE
NERMIGHEARELANE
ERSaEmEBEERTRIR
HEEEEAR NS E R -
RAHE  XBEEE  BEH
i R A FE SE AR R 5 R IR 5 3B
HERABEFRAOARE
18,672 H ST MMEAREAM L
ARM28,574B 8T - 1GIEE
53.0% c FEEBRABR_-E
—~EFERBAMHAREAL1,633
BETEER)ENEALRN
HAR®ET0,596 &L © NIR
EF4969.6% o HAbZEF U A
HEFRBAMNHARKI28E
B (EEm)ENEAHRE A
MARB1,718EE T £
#185.1% -

T EEXBAE
RAHE - AEEEE BT
HHOAREE15,145887T @ &
EFRBANNHARKIE59E
Buo(gsEam) - BmMHARE
5,486 B & 8 56.8% ° A&
BEREMMERA  FE®
FAMAK - RORMMNEER
F o FEEBNBEREF
BHI21.5% °



Interim Report 2017 ks 21

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately
RMB1,534 million or 43.9% to approximately RMB5,027
million in the Period from approximately RMB3,493 million
(restated) in the corresponding period of 2016. The increase
of distribution and selling expenses was primarily attributable
to the increase in after-sales expenses and products return
fee resulting from the increase in sales volume, but the overall
expenses are controlled effectively. As such, the distribution
and selling expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased
from approximately 8.2% in the corresponding period of last

year to approximately 7.0% in the Period.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by
approximately RMB822 million or 21.8% from approximately
RMB3,771 million (restated) in the corresponding period
of 2016 to approximately RMB4,593 million in the Period,
which was mainly due to the increased investment into
research and development by the Group, causing increases
in experiment expenses and development expenses. Further,
with the Group’s consolidation of Dematic’s operations,
both the number of staff and staff costs increased. Under
effective control of expenses by the Group, the general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased
from approximately 8.9% in the corresponding period of last

year to approximately 6.4% in the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) BRI o B AT (A

Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT)

During the Period, the Group’s EBIT increased by
approximately RMB2,130 million or 87.0% to approximately
RMB4,577 million from approximately RMB2,447 million
(restated) in the corresponding period last year. The increase
was primarily attributable to the substantial increase in sales
amount, while the improved EBIT margin from approximately
5.8% in the corresponding period of 2016 to approximately
6.3% this Period was due to a slower rate of increase in

expenses in the Period.

Finance Expenses

Finance expenses increased by approximately 3.2 times
to approximately RMB369 million in the Period from
approximately RMB88 million (restated) in the corresponding
period of 2016. This was mainly attributable to the
increase in foreign exchange losses for the Period and in
the corresponding period last year KION had completed its
refinancing arrangement and repaid the medium-term notes
in the amount of EUR450 million in advance and there was a

one-off amortised income recognized.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expenses increased by 88.4% from
approximately RMB482 million (restated) in the corresponding
period of 2016 to approximately RMB907 million in the
Period. During the Period, the Group’s average effective
tax rate was approximately 20.7%, representing a decrease
of approximately 2.2 percentage points as compared to
approximately 22.9% in the corresponding period of last
year, which was primarily because of the increase in profit
of business in China, where the average effective tax rate is

lower than overseas regions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Group's net profit for the Period increased by
approximately RMB1,855 million or 114.4% from
approximately RMB1,621 million (restated) in the
corresponding period of last year to approximately RMB3,476
million in the Period. Net profit margin for the Period was
approximately 4.8%, an increase of 1 percentage point from
approximately 3.8% in the corresponding period of last year.
This was primarily attributable to the significant increase
in revenue in China, under the recovery of the heavy-duty
truck industry, the strategic transformation of the Group and

synergy between domestic and international businesses.

Liquidity and Cash Flow

During the Period, the Group generated net operating cash
flows of approximately RMB4,766 million and cash inflow
from financing activities of approximately RMB19,544 million.
A portion of such proceeds was applied for the purposes
of acquiring 4,023,275 additional KION shares (at total
consideration of approximately EUR260 million), acquiring
2,728,752 ordinary shares and 2,385,624 preferred shares
of the U.S.-based PSI Inc. (at a consideration of US$60
million), and paying for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment for the expansion of the Group’s business. As of
30 June 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio (Interest-bearing
debts/(Interest-bearing debts + Shareholders’ equity)) was
approximately 44.5% (31 December 2016: approximately
46.9%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B e B AT (%)
2. Financial Position 2. MBARR
a. Assets and Liabilities a. BENARE

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB181,052 million, of which approximately
RMB92,286 million were current assets. As at 30 June 2017,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB29,883 million (as at 31 December 2016: approximately
RMB27,123 million). On the same date, the Group’s total
liabilities amounted to approximately RMB133,081 million,
of which approximately RMB74,057 million were current
liabilities. The current ratio was approximately 1.25 (as at 31
December 2016: 1.30).

Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had total equity of
approximately RMB47,971 million, of which approximately
RMB32,682 million was attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the balance was minority interests. The Group
currently does not rely heavily on borrowings. The borrowings
of the Group as at 30 June 2017 amounted to approximately
RMB38,512 million, which included bonds of approximately
RMB 10,497 million and bank borrowings of approximately
RMB28,015 million. The bank borrowings included
approximately RMB4,057 million of fixed interest rate bank
borrowings and approximately RMB23,958 million of floating
interest rate bank borrowings. Borrowings repayable on
demand or within a period not exceeding one year were
approximately RMB7,637 million, borrowings repayable
within a period of more than one year but not exceeding
two years were approximately RMB4,231 million; borrowings
repayable within a period of more than two years but not
exceeding five years were approximately RMB14,421 million;
and borrowings repayable within a period of more than 5
years were approximately RMB1,726 million. Other than Euro-
denominated borrowings and USD-denominated borrowings
equivalent to approximately RMB24,862 million and

RMB406 million respectively, the borrowings are Renminbi-
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

denominated borrowings. The revenue of the Group is mainly
in Renminbi and Euro. To prevent exchange rate risk arising
from the fluctuation of the USD exchange rate, contracts
have been entered into with financial institutions to swap the
USD-denominated bonds issued in September 2015 to Euro,
and the Group does not consider its currency risk significant.
However, the management will monitor its foreign exchange
risk and consider to hedge against any material foreign
exchange risk as and when necessary. As a policy, the Group
manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to shareholders through the optimization of the debts
and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior years.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2017, bank deposits, notes receivable and
accounts receivable of approximately RMB13,884 million (as
at 31 December 2016: RMB10,788 million) were pledged
to banks to secure the Group’s notes payable and bank
borrowings issued by banks. The pledged bank deposits
carry interest at prevailing bank interest rates. The pledge
will be released upon the settlement of the relevant bank
borrowings. The fair value of the bank deposits at the balance
sheet date was approximately the same as the carrying
amount. Certain other assets were also pledged by the Group

to secure the Group's borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Contingencies
On 30 June 2017, the Group provided certain distributors
and agents bank guarantee amounting to approximately
RMB3,375 million (as at 31 December 2016: approximately
RMB2,457 million) to secure their obtaining and use of
banking facilities.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had provided guarantee
for joint liabilities in respect of failure of the leasee under
finance lease to settle instalment payments plus interest. Risk
exposure in respect of possible guarantee for joint liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB1,359 million (as at 31
December 2016: approximately RMB923 million).

As at 30 June 2017, the Group’s borrowings and other
guarantee amounted to approximately RMB484 million (as at
31 December 2016: approximately RMB662 million).

Commitments

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had approximately RMB1,351
million capital commitments (as at 31 December 2016:
approximately RMB1,892 million), among which contracted
capital commitments amounted to approximately RMB1,351
million, principally for the capital expenditure in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment. The capital
expenditure will be financed by internal resources.

3. Other Financial Information

a.

Employees

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had approximately 71
thousand employees (including approximately 31 thousand
employees of KION). During the Period, the Group had
paid remuneration of approximately RMB11,389 million.
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on the basis of their merits,
qualifications and competence.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

b.  Major Investment

On 22 May 2017 (Central European Time), KION Group AG
issued in aggregate 9,300,000 new KION shares through
the accelerated market bookbuilding offering process. The
Company has, through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding S.a r.l. (“Weichai
Lux"), subscribed for 4,023,275 new KION shares based on
the subscription price of EUR64.83 per KION share at a total
consideration of approximately EUR260 million. The Group's
shareholding in KION remains at 43.26%.

Major Acquisition and Disposal

During the Period, the Company approved the acquisition
by Weichai America Corp., its wholly-owned subsidiary, of
2,728,752 ordinary shares and 2,385,624 preferred shares
of PSI Inc., at a total consideration of US$60 million. Upon
full conversion of the aforesaid preferred shares into ordinary
shares, the Company will hold shares representing 40.71%
of the equity of PSI Inc., and become its single largest
shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, 18 months after the
completion of the above transaction, Weichai America Corp.
may exercise a call option to increase its holding in PSI Inc. to
51%.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other

major acquisition or disposal during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Subsequent Events

On 30 August 2017, under the authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company, the Board considered and
approved the distribution to all shareholders of cash dividend
of RMB1.50 (including tax) for every 10 shares held, based
on the total share capital of the Company of 7,997,238,556

shares, without any capitalisation of reserve.

Estimation of the Results of Operations for the
Period from January to September 2017

In view of the macroeconomic conditions and the heavy-duty
truck industry as a whole, the Company estimates a year-on-
year increase in the sales of the Company’s main products
for the period from January to September 2017, and in turn
an increase in the net profit attributable to the shareholders
of the parent, which is expected to grow from approximately
RMB1,541 million in the corresponding period last year to
the range of approximately RMB3,850 million to RMB4,314
million, or approximately 150% to 180%.
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Auditors” Review Report

EY:

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2017) Zhuan Zi No. 60729920_B04
To the Shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.:

We have reviewed the accompanying interim financial statements of Weichai
Power Co., Ltd. which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 30 June 2017, the consolidated and company income statements, statement
of changes in equity and cash flow statement for January to June 2017 and
notes to the financial statements. The management of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
is responsible for the preparation of these interim financial statements. Our
responsibility is to issue our review report on these interim financial statements

based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Review Standard for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants No. 2101 Review of Financial Statements. The
standard requires us to plan and conduct a review to obtain limited assurance as
to whether the interim financial statements are free from material misstatement.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and performing
analytical procedures on the data. A review provides less assurance than an
audit. We have not performed an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit

opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the interim financial statements are not prepared in accordance
with the requirement in Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32

Interim Financial Reporting.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Beijing, PRC

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Jiang Weimin
Chinese Certified Public Accountant:

You Jin

30 August 2017
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30  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Consolidated Balance Sheet

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

aHEER

Note V 30 June 2017
ASSETS BE MiEtn 20176 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Current assets mEEE
Cash and cash equivalents B¥ES 1 29,882,970,357.70
Financial assets at fair value through UWAREEFEREH
profit or loss BT A HIEEN
TRHEE 2 285,619,257.60
Notes receivable U EE 3 23,437,109,626.26
Accounts receivable FEUWBE X 4 13,729,697,307.22
Prepayments FEfT IR 5 596,410,376.18
Interests receivable B F & 6 42,025,061.49
Dividends receivable 7 UK A% | 7 13,892,547.20
Other receivables H b fE UK 8 1,290,472,535.01
Inventories FE 9 19,139,702,794.29
Non-current assets due within one year —FANEHNIERBEE 10 1,615,171,632.00
Other current assets HEihmEEE 1M 2,253,047,309.10
Total current assets mMBEEST 92,286,118,804.05
Non-current assets FERBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESHEE 12 553,818,178.91
Long-term receivables = B FE WK 13 4,383,197,008.80
Long-term equity investments REIRHERE 14 2,095,281,160.35
Investment property WA EEHE 15 597,307,034.30
Fixed assets BEEEE 16 26,753,067,655.91
Construction in progress EEITR 17 1,191,902,286.19
Materials used in construction TiEME 239,316.24
Disposal of fixed assets EE & EEE 912,492.61
Intangible assets BREE 18 24,857,309,488.28
Development expenditure R H 19 163,557,217.30
Goodwill HES 20 23,141,500,142.70
Long-term prepaid expenses REG#HER 21 337,117,313.69
Deferred tax assets RIEFRGIREE 4,422,667,443.00
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 22 268,272,622.83
Total non-current assets ERBEESFT 88,766,149,361.11
Total assets BELRE 181,052,268,165.16
The financial statements have been signed by: WBMERBATALESE

Legal Representative:

EERERA

Tan Xuguang
s

Principal in charge of accounting:

EFEETIEBRA

Kwong Kwan Tong
BIRE

Li Xia

8

H R

201746 308 (A E#T)

31 December 2016
2016F12A31H
(Audited)

(&%)

27,122,981,855.33

129,296,023.50
16,742,874,274.52
11,336,192,971.74
595,832,151.19
26,284,015.32
9,711,108.40
820,998,530.88
16,090,656,826.07
1,463,427,824.40
2,067,737,279.12

76,405,992,860.47

498,384,350.11
4,029,736,734.00
1,544,970,791.85
608,116,592.82
25,801,560,424.62
1,642,494,423.73
1,018,823.58
25,362,976,371.96
445,774,466.92
23,037,674,856.10
332,659,717.20
4,019,599,412.58
259,720,703.00

87,584,687,668.47

163,990,680,528.94

Head of accounting department:

SREBREA



Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2017 FHEAZRE

A EEAMRE (H)

201746 30 (A E#T)

30 June 2017
2017%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)

Note V
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EENMREER MsER
Current liabilities mEAE
Short-term loans [SE-ER=F N

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss

Notes payable

Accounts payable

Advances from customers

Payroll payable

Taxes payable

Interests payable

Dividends payable

Other payables

Non-current liabilities due within one year

UNAnBEFERR
EEt AE MBS
TRAE

ADE

&SRR AR

R IA

JRE A<F B T 387

e &

e FIE

& A5 P )

H At &S 5K

—FRIHNFERBAE

23 6,014,421,693.20

24 307,262,099.54
25 8,485,425,727.17
26 29,324,250,757.13
27 5,567,136,919.01
28 4,416,366,845.58
29 2,541,376,096.47
30 104,725,530.07
31 1,002,007,228.94
32 7,450,196,820.82
33 5,100,851,722.40
34 3,743,158,421.17

74,057,179,861.50

35 20,377,517,821.05
36 10,497,021,043.56
37 8,423,696,740.00
38 8,676,644,183.68
39 43,000,000.00
40 331,488,448.80
41 2,789,808,564.19
7,745,095,533.03
139,814,641.37

59,024,086,975.68

Other current liabilities HEtn#eE
Total current liabilities RBAEER
Non-current liabilities SEREAE

Long-term borrowings REMER

Bonds payable ERES

Long-term payables REFEF R

Long-term payroll payable = B FE 1<F B T 5 A

Special payables HIAFERRK

Accruals and provisions BB E

Deferred income IR IE Wz

Deferred tax liabilities BEEMSHAE

Other non-current liabilities Hi3EnsaE
Total non-current liabilities EnRBABEEET
Total liabilities A&

133,081,266,837.18

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREKA

Tan Xuguang
BEX

Principal in charge of accounting:
EIEEHIEREA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

MBHMERAATALES :

31 December 2016
201612 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

4,771,648,754.00

168,670,171.20
8,758,864,180.54
21,897,787,394.18
4,627,211,871.86
4,168,792,146.69
2,065,784,483.92
102,059,094.81
3,822,409.44
4,998,956,643.14
4,624,888,126.80
2,791,896,442.25

58,980,381,718.83

30,216,115,691.85
2,756,201,597.01
7,781,235,810.40
8,574,795,194.30
43,000,000.00
311,033,593.20
2,574,230,514.51
8,120,369,699.73
71,646,849.89

60,448,628,950.89

119,429,010,669.72

Head of accounting department:

BEIBBAEEA

Li Xia

31
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Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

AHEEAMER ()
201746 308 (A E#T)

30 June 2017
2017 6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REX)

Note V

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BEMRRESR MR
Shareholders’ equity IR A 2

Share capital & 2

Capital reserve BARRNIE

Other comprehensive income HiiRa e

Special reserve BIEGFE

Surplus reserve BHBAE

Retained earnings

Ao BB

42 3,998,619,278.00
43 64,219,258.85
44 (1,049,107,748.65)
45 112,450,502.16
46 =
a7 29,556,288,836.37

Total equity attributable to the

shareholders of the parent

BEASAAREERA

32,682,470,126.73
15,288,531,201.25

Minority interests DB AR RE RS
Total shareholders” equity B ES A

47,971,001,327.98

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

BEMRREDA

181,052,268,165.16

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EERERA

Tan Xuguang
BB

Principal in charge of accounting:

FTEEHIEERA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

MBImEABATALES

31 December 2016
201612 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

3,998,619,278.00
30,139,859.91

(295,101,754.34)
98,711,320.61

27,905,900,916.04

31,738,269,620.22
12,823,400,239.00

44,561,669,859.22

163,990,680,528.94

Head of accounting department:

BRTEBAREA

Li Xia

=
=3



Consolidated Income Statement

January to June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
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& O HE %

2017F1-6 A(ARE¥T)

January to June

January to June

Note V 2017 2016
IR 2017%1-6 8 20165 1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REEEZR)
(Restated)
(&)
Revenue BEWA 48 72,313,265,590.11 42,561,385,767.87
Less: Cost of sales W B 48 | EEFEEr RS 32,828,282,775.13
Taxes and surcharges i K Mt hn 49 373,189,991.32 144,644,235.74
Distribution and selling expenses HEER 50 5,027,424,399.09 3,493,523,150.15
General and administrative expenses EIEER 51 4,593,093,284.43 3,770,522,575.48
Financial expenses B8 A 52 368,716,470.81 88,157,176.89
Impairment loss of assets BERERX 53 953,074,047.47 348,305,770.72
Add:  Gain or loss on fair value changes AR EEESEZR 54 142,460,083.61 (86,225,051.26)
Investment income E W 55 135,204,722.57 82,977,065.51
Incl: Investment income from associates Hep : $E
and jointly controlled enterprises MEZETEN
wE W 120,804,392.87 68,609,558.56
Other income H bz 56 39,869,770.84 -
Operating profit =N 4,327,890,790.45 1,884,702,098.01
Add: Non-operating income s &g ZEINIRA 57 127,955,983.33 259,992,613.54
Incl: Gain on disposal of He: ERBEE
non-current assets REFE 11,064,724.33 12,756,663.81
Less: Non-operating expenses o BEINT 58 72,550,181.24 41,865,290.89
Incl: Loss on disposal of HEdh o ERBEE
non-current assets R BN 16,097,329.24 7,333,106.34
Total profit K8 42 58 59 4,383,296,592.54 2,102,829,420.66

Less: Income tax expense

B FISHER

60 907,205,448.79

Net profit

2

3,476,091,143.75

Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the

parent

BENE QR RIRAFE R B

2,650,042,739.83

Minority interests

LPHRREBE

826,048,403.92

The financial statements have been signed by:

MIBHMRAAT ALEE

481,655,957.09

1,621,173,463.57

1,071,175,304.71

549,998,158.86
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Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

EERREA ITEGHIEEEA: BEIBBEEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia
BB BRE 25



34 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Consolidated Income Statement (Continued)

January to June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

A BEFE R ()
2017F1-6 A(ARE¥T)

Note V
{ogzaea)

January to June
2017
201751-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

Net other comprehensive income after tax

Net other comprehensive income attributable to

shareholders of the parent after tax

HiiRa WaRn Bk # 8

Em%ﬁl@jﬁxiﬁﬁ

Hipfr & Wa &% 5

(754,005,994.31)

161,064,157.23

1,498,557.20

Incl: Those other comprehensive income not Hep o T eeEHE
to be reclassified into profit or loss in Tgf?&ﬁl’]ﬁﬁﬁ
subsequent periods e s

Changes arising from re-measuring net assets BN EREZ @
or net liabilities of defined benefit plan HEFEE
FEENEH
Share of investee’s other comprehensive Eéf?&?ﬁ—lfft%ﬂi?ﬁﬁﬁ
income not to be reclassified into profit or T EEEDBEE
loss using the equity method mMEH LR A W
FREREMNGNRE
Those other comprehensive income to be IPRE3 =k ¥
reclassified into profit or loss in subsequent TﬁlﬁnE’JHﬁﬁ
periods A=
Share of investee's other comprehensive BmETERIRESE
income to be reclassified into profit or loss i E I EEER
using the equity method B H A & Was
FrEAMMHE
Changes of fair value of available-for-sale HEESREE
financial assets N EEES
Effective portion of cashflow from BEeREEHTARN
hedging instruments BER D
Exchange differences on foreign currency GINEE B 75 R 3R
translation TEES

1,850,567.27
4,556,426.85
46,750,523.02

(969,726,225.88)

Net other comprehensive income attributable to

BENDBRROEMEE

(544,391,705.31)

2,177,693,444.13

minority owners after tax e i1 F 58
Total comprehensive income e LREE
Incl: Hep o

Total comprehensive income attributable to

BENERRRRNES

January to June
2016
2016%F1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgEER)

(Restated)
(fegEut)

(457,546,329.36)

(408,163,272.19)

(28,209.38)

(1,891,425.81)
(27,540,000.00)
(189,002.81)

(19,734,419.17)

(666,490,783.15)

497,136,351.06

the shareholders of the parent Wz 45 1,896,036,745.52 613,628,975.35
Total comprehensive income attributable to BERLERRNEE

minority interests I s 4B FE 281,656,698.61 (116,492,624.29)
Earnings per share st e 61
Basic earnings per share EXRG R 0.33 0.13
Diluted earnings per share WSk 0.33 0.13
The financial statements have been signed by: WBMEBATALESE

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

EFERRA FESHIEAERA BB AEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia

ek Bz =8



Interim Report 2017 FHEAZRE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity A DF A% AP fm 5t ) R

January to June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017%F1-6 H(ARET)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

SRS ATRRER
Other
Share Gapital ~ comprehensive Spedal Surplus Retained Minority Total
(Unauoited) NoteV capital reserve income reserve reserve earnings Subtotal interests equity
i HERE BzRE
(720 [iES] & EA0E Gakha BVl #HRAR it & aif
I, Atbeginning of period - FEETRE 3998,619,278.00 3013985991 (295,101,754.34) 98,71132061 2790590091604 3173826962022 12823400,239.00  44,561,669,859.22
Il Movements n current priod o FEEREgcE
(1) Totel comprehensive income (-) BAhzeE (754,005,994.31) 2650042,73983  1,896,036,745.52 28165669861 2,177,693 444.13
(1) Ijection and reduction (Z) RERANHDER
1. Capita inection from shareholders 1. RERAEK 83 (9,776,74351) (977674351)  2,613,169531.01  2,603392,787.50
2. Amount ofshare-based payment taken 2 Rt fEE
foowners equiy EaneE B 1,188459.82 118845982 1841,63378 303009360
3. Amounttaken to owners equity upon 3. PRV ERENE
captalizaion of capitl resenve of TREBLEY
minorty sharehalders of subsidaries BT ARRE
BHEE 8B 4,667,682.63 42,667,682.63 (42,667,682.63) -
4. Others 4 i - - 44947680 449,476.80
(1) Profit appropizton (=) #lEsR
1. Distrbution to owners 1. HRENOAR 4 (999,654819.50)  (099,65481950)  (394,491,666.16)  (1,394,146,485.66)
(V) Speci resenve (m) ZEB&E
1. Appropriaton during th period 1. K8RR & 2957490593 B54058  1BEEEBM 4343175947
2. Used durig the period ) THER & (15,835,724.38) (15,835,724.38) (868388230)  (24,519,60668)
II. Atend of period = FEERRE 3998,619,278.00 0421925885 (1,049,107,74865)  112450,502.16 29556,28883637 3268247012673  15,288531,201.25  47,971,001,327.98
The financial statements have been signed by: HBMEBHATALESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREA FTEGHIEBEA BIREATA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia

BB BiRx =

35



36  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

January to June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B B B AR £5 s B R (A8
2016F1-6 A(ARE¥T)

Equity attributable to shareolders of the parent

BENEDIRRER
Other
(Unaudited) Share Capital ~ comprehensive Spedial Surplus Retained Minority Total
(Restated) Note V capital reserve income reserve resrve earnings Subtotal interests equity
(xi57) -4 H8 hREE
(251 531 e ER0E Reki EERE BHLE FARAE it ey it
I, Atend of previous year - LEEFBE 3998619.278.00 2788310916 (502,508673.78) 788394375 1207988900.22  26918)633619.95  31,729455671.11 999702791546 4172648358657
Add:Business combination under common m: A-fEHTRERH
control - 199,002,149.07 - - - 1150021546 210502,364.53 - 21050236453
Il At beginning of period o KEERE 399861927800 206,885,583 (502,508,673.78) 788394375  1207988900.22  26,930,133835.41  31,939,958,035.64  9.997,02791546 4193698595110
Il Movements n current period = REEREDLE
() Total comprehensive income (-) BA - - (457546,329.36) - - 10mIT5304m 61362897535 (11649262429)  497,136,351.06
(1) Ijection and reduction (2) RERANELER
1. Capitlinection from shareholders 1. RERAER - - - - - - - 5845418371 584541837
2. Amount ofshare-based payment taken 2. RiRMARES
o owners' equity EansE - 913983.75 - - - - 91398375 14755165 2,389,500.00
3. Business combinaton under common 3 BB REAN
control - 1,365,379.35 - - - - 1,365,379.35 - 1,365,379.35
4, Acquiston of minorty nterests 4 WEOERRER 83 - SN - - - - TSI GI0STRTE) (1947397864)
5. Others 5 Efh - 2924714 - - - - 2924714 - 294114
(1) Profit approprizton (2) HEAR
1. Distrbution to owners 1. HRRNAR aq - - - - - (399861,92780)  (399,86192780)  (356,19,161.46)  (756,058,089.26)
(V) Speci eserve (m) E%fE
1. Agpopiaion duing te percd 1. K8ER 5 - - - MBI . SRR MR BB
2. Used during the period 2. TR 8 - - - (11,298.908.32) - - (11,293908.32) (6,800,264.70) (18,099,173.02)
V. Atend of period L rE5F4E 3998619.278.00 26,74564559 (960,095,003.14) 918035046 1,207988900.22  27,601.447.21232  32,186,549,55345  9,500,051,384.19  41,686,600937.64
The financial statements have been signed by: MBHREAUNTALTES

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
=B

Principal in charge of accounting:
EEEHIEREA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

Head of accounting department:

SRTEBREA

Li Xia

==
=3



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2017 FHEAZRE

& OF B 4B i AR

2017F1-6 A(ARE¥T)

January to June January to June
Note V 2017 2016
Mozt a 20175 1-6 B 2016%1-6 3
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REBERZ)
(Restated)
(g &)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES — RETEHEALRN
Bene
Cash received from sales of goods or rendering HEEM  RESH
of services WEIHH & 56,500,209,608.67 34,144,229,570.80
Refunds of taxes W g B iR E 144,515,582.89 140,680,417.31
Other cash received relating to operating W B E A SRS R B
activities FHNRS 62 496,159,099.51 504,287,332.60
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities EEEENIR & AN 57,140,884,291.07 34,789,197,320.71
Cash paid for goods and services BEND ET4A%
XRER S 32,423,330,883.44 19,052,007,835.94
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees TRHGEBIUEA
BIXNOBRS 12,037,011,635.38 8,024,064,590.36
Cash paid for all types of taxes YRR ERE 3,735,901,725.23 1,934,763,055.11
Other cash paid relating to operating activities ST E A E AR
EBHEENER 62 4,178,852,633.78 3,713,198,046.43
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating RN S H/NET
activities 52,375,096,877.83 32,724,033,527.84
Net cash flows from operating activities LETEBELN
Rene 8 63 4,765,787,413.24 2,065,163,792.87
II. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - BREERYEEH
Hene
Cash received from sale of investments W EEERE MRS 2,276,000,000.00 331,000,403.00
Cash received from return on investments SR E W=
WEIHR & 77,909,801.10 53,423,333.38
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REETEE « BF
intangible assets and other long-term assets EEMEMRBEE
W EH IR & F R 21,558,169.23 366,979,582.66
Other cash received relating to investing activities U B H o B AG E
EEAENES 62 20,020,630.05 63,842,608.75
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities HEEEREEANT 2,395,488,600.38 815,245,927.79
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BRETEE BF
intangible assets and other long-term assets A EME MK
BEXNHNES 1,091,604,785.74 2,134,964,891.82
Cash paid for acquisition of investments REZHNRS 2,707,782,338.86 1,053,023,294.00
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and FRAE REMEE
other business units BUSNHIRE R 63 198,252,189.60
Net cash paid for disposal of subsidiaries BREFAAREMEZE
and other business units BRUYAREEFRE 63 = 37,959,549.54
Other cash paid relating to investing activities T EMEREES
FHENRE 128,257,290.00 11,888,997.23
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities REZHRE TR NGt 3,927,644,414.60 3,436,088,922.19
Net cash flows from investing activities REEEELN
REREFHE (1,532,155,814.22) (2,620,842,994.40)
The financial statements have been signed by: MBERERAATALESE :
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EERKA FEEFIEEEA EEHEBAEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia
W BB IR = B



38  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

January to June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

G H 4R E R (4)
2017F1-6 A(ARE¥T)

January to June

Note V 2017
(o ail 20175 1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(RBEX)
. CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES = EZEHELH
HeneE
Cash received from capital contributions R EWEHIE S 2,658,322,964.98
Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries from capital Hep o 7oA RK D E
contributions of minority owners BRI E U E
HRE 2,658,322,964.98
Cash received from borrowings NEEFKENES 16,854,499,975.50
Other cash received relating to financing activities U B E At B 2 1 ) B
BRNRS 62 30,899,704.50
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities EETHHLTANE 19,543,722,644.98
Cash repayments of borrowings EBEBEHKINNERSE 19,494,866,102.50
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or profits HEBRF - FIEKER
and for interest expenses FMELZHHIRE 933,077,403.27
Incl: Cash paid to minority owners for Heap: FREE 4
distribution of dividends or profits by DEIEER
subsidiaries PR~ FE 393,894,446.62
Other cash paid relating to financing activities TREMEEEEHE
HHNR S 62 504,607,023.13
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing SEFHRLMMB /&t
activities 20,932,550,528.90
Net cash flows from financing activities EERHEED
Rene R (1,388,827,883.92)
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATEON 1 « [ER3h%R o mT L
CASH (64,645,935.26)
V. NETINCREASE IN CASH AND CASH L REKkREEEY
EQUIVALENTS FIENER 1,780,157,779.84
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of m:BHyEs Rk
period ReSEYHE 21,598,831,905.22
VI CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF N HIRBEEBESE
PERIOD BV 63 23,378,989,685.06
The financial statements have been signed by: MEMEREATALTESE

Legal Representative:

EERERA

Tan Xuguang
BB

Principal in charge of accounting:

TEEFIHEREA:

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

January to June
2016

20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RIEER)
(Restated)

(iEqn)

5,845,418.38

5,845,418.38
12,160,939,710.00

99,191,627.95

12,265,976,756.33

9,578,118,858.66

979,551,384.97

359,136,161.46

69,930,112.63

10,627,600,356.26

1,638,376,400.07

62,344,801.22

1,145,041,999.76

21,154,657,664.43

22,299,699,664.19

Head of accounting department:

BREBAREA

Li Xia



Balance Sheet

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2017 F ik 39

B AL

201746 30 (A E#T)

Note XV 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
ASSETS BE iiEaeall 2017564308 BNV E=!
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (E=Z)
Current assets MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents BE¥ES 1 9,896,208,187.58 9,759,458,242.20
Notes receivable JE W S 4 ORI ETAE S 14,623,284,642.83
Accounts receivable JE U BR X 3 3,852,819,660.24 1,084,606,558.31
Prepayments BT RO 46,133,823.64 38,432,215.70
Interests receivable R F B 40,323,843.75 24,849,593.75
Dividends receivable FE WIS A 298,775,803.03 1,530,000.00
Other receivables H A fE R 4 1,001,566,154.38 1,489,063,940.49
Inventories FE 1,339,777,913.78 1,748,577,761.12
Other current assets Hith ey & & 1,962,334.99 -
Total current assets mENBESE 35,573,441,858:85 " WAL RPN LY RN
Non-current assets EMBNEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHfHESRERE 6 258,880,000.00 278,880,000.00
Long-term equity investments REIRERE 7 PEERGTEEE S 11,151,764,459.25
Investment property WA EEHE 8 1,140,460,682.32 1,166,754,025.31
Fixed assets BEBEE 9 3,170,846,466.69 2,985,724,485.68
Construction in progress EEIRE 180,871,004.43 580,767,880.05
Disposal of fixed assets BEBESBE 100,717.28 83,797.30
Intangible assets | EE 10 558,710,523.49 529,111,113.62
Goodwill S 579,145,043.76 579,145,043.76
Long-term prepaid expense REFEER 830,344.00 2,075,842.00
Deferred tax assets BIEFTSREE 655,955,693.43 318,302,058.45
Other non-current assets Hi 3 mE & E 792,908,038.89 368,850,638.89
Total non-current assets ERBEES RV EPIEISER ] 17,961,459,344.31
Total assets BERRT SR e et 46,731,262,298.71
The financial statements have been signed by: MHRERAATALTES !

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
B

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEETIESEA:

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

Head of accounting department:

BRRBREA ¢



40 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. 5 H IR D E R A

Balance Sheet (Continued) BE AR ()
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)

Note XV 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BENMBRRER (il 201756 H30H 2016512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f&#Z)

Current liabilities mEEE
Notes payable FE R I& 5,267,386,968.61 4,660,241,509.23
Accounts payable FERTBR X 8,615,197,566.72 5,379,491,386.62
Advances from customers TR FRIE 35,048,531.66 64,399,135.60
Payroll payable JE < B T S5 B 1M 723,363,799.21 588,459,341.07
Taxes payable JERXT B 12 456,154,452.78 505,716,425.54
Dividend payable JE A< R 7] 999,654,819.50 -
Other payables Hh fE S 3R 2,887,584,299.58 1,788,661,736.46
Other current liabilities HEtns &k 13 1,146,407,589.87 725,109,205.14
Total current liabilities mEAESE 20,130,798,027.93 13,712,078,739.66

Non-current liabilities ERBBEE

Long term payroll payable 5 HA A B T 23,705,017.54 31,887,561.60
Special payables HIFEMNR 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Deferred income BIEW 25 14 450,431,634.45 437,331,723.04
Total non-current liabilities ErnsAaEast 494,136,651.99 489,219,284.64
Total liabilities BfEEs IR PZCEV YLK 14,201,298,024.30

Shareholders’ equity IR R fE e

Share capital A& A

3,998,619,278.00
1,003,313,374.62
28,220,000.00
55,591,338.28
1,520,020,449.71
27,280,063,247.85

3,998,619,278.00
1,003,313,374.62
45,220,000.00
50,137,320.74
1,520,020,449.71
25,912,653,851.34

33,885,827,688.46

32,529,964,274.41

Capital reserve /N
Other comprehensive income Hfhira Mz
Special reserve HIAKE
Surplus reserve BHAE
Retained earnings R B F)E
Total shareholders’ equity R E @A 5T
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEMBKRRES R

SN (O Re{c Rc Il 46,731,262,298.71

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EERRA ITERIAIEEEA

Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong

E B BRE

Principal in charge of accounting:

MBSIHMEBAATALESE

Head of accounting department:

BREBEAREA

Li Xia

ZE
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AINEES

2017F1-6 A(ARE¥T)

Income Statement

January to June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

January to June

January to June

Note XV 2017 2016
M+ R 20175 1-6 B 2016%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RRBEX) (REFEZR)
Revenue ESION 15 18,346,175,915.73 8,835,969,888.54
Less: Cost of sales W AR 15 13,982,037,504.80 6,914,542,810.91
Taxes and surcharges B MBI 159,094,693.60 69,302,705.78
Distribution and selling expenses HEBH 833,454,516.71 399,804,227.00
General and administrative expenses EIEEH 917,548,087.35 657,610,906.55
Finance expenses H%E A (54,287,993.99) (49,833,064.88)
Impairment loss of assets BEREEX 148,452,692.05 42,349,364.45
Add: Investment income me: EERE 16 335,235,641.16 21,575,413.19
Incl:  Share of profit of associates and Heh o S EE
jointly-controlled enterprises ME &b
K18 & W 24,288,840.34 18,250,618.86
Other income H iz 8,419,655.46 -
Operating profit o F Y lbE 2,703,531,711.83 823,768,351.92
Add: Non-operating income oo EEINEA 2,795,490.43 21,515,116.48
Incl:  Gain on disposal of B ERBEERE
non-current assets 5 1,165,698.81 6,771,497.85
Less: Non-operating expenses Vo AEINT 540,950.91 2,638,903.60
Incl:  Loss on disposal of HE ERBEER
non-current assets Bigk 14,242.07 27,023.60
Total profit T 4258 17 2,705,786,251.35 842,644,564.80
Less: Income tax expenses B TSR ER 18 338,722,035.34 112,465,198.33
Net profit FAE 2,367,064,216.01 730,179,366.47

Net other comprehensive income after tax
Those other comprehensive income to be
reclassified into profit or loss change of fair

Hipr e W& IF 8
AR E S SRR
Hipsr e e r] gt &

value of available-for-sale financial assets SRMEEAREEES (17,000,000.00) (27,540,000.00)
Total comprehensive income AW EE 2,350,064,216.01 702,639,366.47

The financial statements have been signed by:

MBEMRAATALES

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

EERKRA TEEHIEREA: EREBREA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia
EIB X BiRx =



42  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Statement of Changes in Equity

January to June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(Unaudited)
(REBEH)
. Atbeginning of period - FHBNGE
I Movementsin current period o KEEEEYLE
() Total comprehensive income (-) GakzlaE
(1) Profit appropriation (2) 7iEAR
1. Distribution to owners 1. BRRMAE
() Special reserve (Z) EEEE
1. Appropriation during the period 1. AERE
2. Used during the period 2. TEFA
Il Atend of period = FHBRGE

Share capital

k&

3,998,619,278.00

3,998,619,278.00

January to June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Capital reserve

EALHE

1,003,313,374.62

1,003,313,374.62

JC BRAE ik 5
2017F1-6 5 (ARMT)

Other
comprehensive

income

Afpsa ki

45,220,000.00

(17,000,000.00)

28,220,000.00

Special reserve

ARG

50,137,320.74

7,421,469.69
(1,967,452.15)

55,591,338.28

Surplus reserve

BHLE

1,520,020,449.71

1,520,020,449.71

2016F1-6 A (AR ¥ T)

EIIES

Retained earnings

RARAE

25,912,653,851.34

2,367,064,216.01

(999,654,819.50)

27,280,063,247.85

Total equity
REBEAT

32,529,964,274.41

2,350,064,216.01

(999,654,819.50)

7,421,469.69
(1,967,452.15)

33,885,827,688.46

Other
comprehensive
(Unaudited) Share capital Capital reserve income Special reserve Surplus reserve  Retained eamings Total equity
(REEH) P LU Efirala EBRA BHAE AHEFE hEERA:
. Atbeginning of period - FYEN%E 3998,619,27800  1,011,431,890.64 50,320,000.00 4377119892 1,221,269,763.04  24,023,621,526.87  30,349,033,657.47
I Movements in current period I REEEELE
() Total comprehensive income (=) sakass - - (27,540,000.00) - - 73017936647 702,639,36647
(1) Injection and reduction (2) BREARROER
1. Others 1. 2 - 29,247.15 - - - - 29,247.15
() Profit appropriation (2) 7EAR
1. Distribution to owners 1. HRENAE = = = - - (399861927.80)  (399,861,927.80)
(V) Specal reserve (m) 2ERE
1. Appropriation during the period 1. AERE - - - 5,646,561.74 - - 5,646,561.74
2. Used during the period 2. KEfFER = = = (2,006,685.38) - - (2,006,685.38)
I Atend of period = FSRRE 3998,619,27800  1,011,461,137.79 22,780,000.00 4741107528 1,221,269,763.04  24,353,938,965.54  30,655,480,219.65
The financial statements have been signed by: WBMERBATALESE

Legal Representative:

EERRKRA FEEHIEEBRA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong
BB IR E

Principal in charge of accounting:

Head of accounting department:

BERIRBAERA :

Li Xia
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Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2017 FHEAZRE

v2s EL
REehsR
2017F1-6 A(ARE¥T)

January to June

Note XV 2017
s+ 5 2017%1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(REEX)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES — KEEHELEN
Reang
Cash received from sales of goods or rendering EEEM - RHEE
of services WEIRR S 12,652,804,553.80
Other cash received relating to operating W B E A B4 R B
activities BRNES 70,003,465.66
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities KETEBIRETANGT 12,722,808,019.46
Cash paid for goods and services EEEL - BXEH
XHMER S 8,910,014,112.42
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees TREBIURAE
BIXNOBEE 643,516,316.91
Cash paid for all types of taxes TRESIERE 1,852,871,467.72
Other cash paid relating to operating activities SR ERE LIRS
BRNES 324,887,883.62
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating KETEBIR ST H /NG
activities 11,731,289,780.67
Net cash flows from operating activities RETEELEM
Rene s 19 991,518,238.79
Il CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Z REEDELEH
Reng

Cash received from sale of investments
Cash received from return on investments

Y ml i B U 2 A3 5
BSHRE W R K E R

January to June
2016

2016 1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(RigER)

5,676,089,959.64

204,642,378.06

5,880,732,337.70

5,099,766,750.71

538,042,533.80
670,327,381.01

293,613,929.76

6,601,750,595.28

(721,018,257.58)

100,000,000.00

3,060,000.00

248.00

30,000,000.00

133,060,248.00

203,292,668.05
420,258,400.00

623,551,068.05

(490,490,820.05)

e 128,333,128.21
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REBTEE B
intangible assets and other long-term assets BEMEMER
BERDINIE ©FHE 678,054.48
Other cash received relating to investing activities U B L fth E245 4 E B
BRNRE 10,000,000.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities BB EFSHRERANET 139,011,182.69
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BRETEE
intangible assets and other long-term assets B AEME MR
BEXNORS 165,810,197.93
Cash paid for acquisition of investments REZNNES 422,558,695.65
Other cash paid relating to investing activities S H)E A B R A
EBHEENTR S 424,057,400.00
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities REEESHREmE /DT 1,012,426,293.58
Net cash flows from investing activities REEEELN
Reme 8 (873,415,110.89)
The financial statements have been signed by: MBERERABAATALESE :
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREA FEEHIEAERA BITREASTA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia
& B BB IR = =B



44 \eichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

January to June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B4 meR (5)
2017F1-6 A(ARE¥T)

Note XV
MaE+R

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES =

Other cash received relating to financing

activities

BERDELRN

A=
BERE

WEEMAEELY
BRMRE

Subtotal of cash inflows from financing

activities

BERHRERANG

Other cash paid relating to financing

activities

XHEMEEEEHE
Eal:obhen

Subtotal of cash outflows from financing

BETDRES MM/

January to June

2017
2017%1-6A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

activities
Net cash flows from financing activities EEEYEED
RenEF8
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE me EXREHHREMTE
ON CASH 14,196.77
V. NET INCREASE/ADECREASE) IN CASH AND - BREeRBELEED
CASH EQUIVALENTS = CR) 118,117,324.67
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of m: ByBEeRES
period EEYHE 9,744,275,681.71
VI.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF N BRBReRESE
PERIOD SEMHE 20 9,862,393,006.38
The financial statements have been signed by: MERREAATALTESE

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
BEX

Principal in charge of accounting:

FESTIEEBRA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BPIRE

January to June
2016

20165 1-6 4
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

29,247.15

29,247.15

29,247.15

17,704.37

(1,211,462,126.11)

12,429,369,847.65

11,217,907,721.54

Head of accounting department:

SRMEBAREA

Li Xia



Notes to Financial Statements

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

L.

Corporate Background

Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a joint stock company limited
by shares incorporated in Shandong, the People’s Republic of China. It
was established on 23 December 2002.

The RMB ordinary A shares and overseas listed foreign H shares issued
by the Company were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, respectively. The registered
address of the Company’s headquarters is 197, Section A, Fu Shou
East Street, High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang,
Shandong Province. The Company operates in the transportation
equipment manufacturing industry. The approved scope of operations
of the Company covers: Design, development, production, sale, repair,
import and export of diesel engines and auxiliary products; automobile,
automobile axle and components, gear boxes and components and other
automobile components, hydraulic pumps, hydraulic motors, hydraulic
valves, gears and gear transmission devices, ancillary casting and casting
products of hydraulic components, internal combustion engines, new-
energy powertrain systems and ancillary products; technical consultation
and technical services; leasing of self-owned houses; sale of steel;
business management service; forklift trucks production, warehousing
technology and supply chain solution services. For the aforesaid business
scopes, operating permit(s) should be held for those operations requiring

administrative permission.

Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, are the parent company and ultimate

parent company of the Group respectively.

These interim financial statements were approved by the board of

directors of the Company on 30 August 2017.

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements is determined

on the basis of control. Please refer to Note VI for changes this year.
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II.

I1I.

Preparation basis of the financial statements
These interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32 Interim Financial

Reporting issued by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF").

These interim financial statements include selected explanatory notes,
which are provided for easy understanding of the Group’s important
events and transactions leading to its financial position and change of
results of operations since the financial statements for the year 2016.
These selected notes do not include all information and disclosures
required under the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises for a
full set of financial statements. As such, these statements shall be read in

conjunction with the financial statements for the year 2016.
The interim financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

Other than certain financial instruments, these financial statements have
been prepared at historical costs. Non-current assets classified as held-
for-sale and assets under disposal group classified as held-to-sale are
carried at the lower of fair value less foreseeable expenses or original
carrying amount upon satisfying conditions for held-for-sale. If the assets
are impaired, corresponding provisions for impairment shall be made

according to relevant provisions.

Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates

Accounting policies and accounting estimates are formulated based
on the actual characteristics of production and operation. These are
reflected in the classification of leases, provision for bad debts in respect
of receivables, classification of fixed assets and depreciation estimation,
classification of intangible assets and long-term pre-paid expenses and

estimation of amortization.

1. Accounting year
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December
of each calendar year. This accounting period is from 1 January to
30 June.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

2.

Functional currency

The functional currency of the Company and the currency used in
preparing the financial statements were Renminbi. The amounts
in the financial statements were denominated in Renminbi, unless

otherwise stated.

The subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates of the
Company may determine their own functional currencies based
on the major economic environment in which they operate the
business. In preparation of financial statements, their functional
currencies shall be translated into Renminbi.

Business combination

A business combination is a transaction or event that brings
together two or more separate entities into one reporting entity.
Business combinations are classified into business combinations
involving entities under common control and business combinations
not involving entities under common control.

Business combinations involving entities under common
control

A business combination involving entities under common control
is a business combination in which all of the combining entities
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the combination, and that control is not transitory. For
a business combination involving entities under common control,
the party that, on the combination date, obtains control of another
entity participating in the combination is the absorbing party, while
that other entity participating in the combination is the party being
absorbed. Combination date is the date on which the absorbing
party effectively obtains control of the party being absorbed.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained by the absorbing party in
a business combination involving entities under common control,
including goodwill arising from the acquisition of the party being
absorbed by the ultimate controller, shall be accounted for on
the basis of the carrying amounts on the financial statements of
the ultimate controller at the combination date. The difference
between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained and the
carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination (or
the aggregate face value of shares issued as consideration) shall
be adjusted to share premium under capital reserve. If the capital
reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be
adjusted against retained earnings.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

3.

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control

A business combination not involving entities under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining
entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
both before and after the combination. For a business combination
not involving entities under common control, the party that, on the
acquisition date, obtains control of another entity participating in
the combination is the acquirer, while that other entity participating
in the combination is the acquiree. Acquisition date refers to
the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the

acquiree.

The acquirer shall measure the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in the business
combination not involving entities under common control at their

fair values on the acquisition date.

The excess of the sum of the consideration paid (or equity securities
issued) for business combination and equity interests in the
acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition over the share of the
attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, measured at fair
value, was recognized as goodwill, which is subsequently measured
at cost less cumulative impairment loss. In case the fair value of the
sum of the consideration paid (or equity securities issued) and equity
interests in the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition is less
than the fair value of the share of the attributable net identifiable
assets of the acquiree, a review of the measurement of the fair
values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities,
the consideration paid for the combination (or equities securities
issued) and the equity interests in the acquiree held prior to the
date of acquisition is conducted. If the review indicates that the fair
value of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities securities
issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior to the date
of acquisition is indeed less than the fair value of the share of the
attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, the difference is

recognized in current profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

3.

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control (Continued)

For a business combination involving enterprises not under common
control and achieved in stages, the Group remeasures its previously-
held equity interest in the acquiree to its fair value at the acquisition
date. The difference between the fair value and the carrying
amount is recognized as investment income for the current period;
the amount recognized in other comprehensive income using the
equity method and relating to the previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree shall be accounted for in accordance with the same
accounting treatment for direct disposal of relevant asset or liability
by investee. Movement of other owners’ equity (excluding net profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution) shall
be transferred to profit or loss for the current period to which the

acquisition date belongs.

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control, including the financial
statements for the half year ended 30 June 2017 of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled
by the Company, including separable parts of an enterprise or

investee and structured entities controlled by the Company, etc.

In preparation of consolidated financial statements, the subsidiaries
use the same accounting period and accounting policies as those
of the Company. When the accounting policies of a subsidiary are
different from those of the Company, the Company shall make
adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based
on its own accounting policies. All intra-group assets, liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows resulting from intra-group

transactions are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Where the amount of losses of a subsidiary attributable to the
minority shareholders in the current period exceeds their share of
the opening balance of owner’s equity of the subsidiary, the excess

shall be allocated against minority interests.
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50  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

4.

Consolidated financial statements (Continued)
For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not
involving entities under common control, the operating results and
cash flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements, from the day on which the Group gains
control, till the Group ceases the control of it. While preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the acquirer shall adjust the
subsidiary’s financial statements, on the basis of the fair values of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized
on the acquisition date.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations involving
entities under common control, the operating results and cash
flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements from the beginning of the period in which
the combination occurs. While preparing the comparative financial
statements, adjustments are made to related items in the financial
statements for the prior period as if the reporting entity established
through combination has been existing since the ultimate controller
begins to exercise control.

The Group’s control over an investee is re-assessed if change in
relevant facts and situations causes changes in one or more of the
control substances.

Where there is no loss of control, the change in minority interests is
accounted for as equity transaction.

Classification of joint arrangements and joint
operation

Joint arrangements are in the form of joint operation or jointly-
controlled enterprise. A joint operation is a joint arrangement under
which the joint venture parties are entitled to assets and undertake
liabilities under the arrangement. A jointly-controlled enterprise is
a joint arrangement under which the joint venture parties are only
entitled to the net assets under such arrangement.

The following items should be recognized by a joint venture party in
relation to its share of profit in the joint operation: solely held assets,
as well as jointly held assets according to its share; solely assumed
liabilities, as well as jointly assumed liabilities according to its share;
income derived from its entitled share of production of the joint
operation; income derived from the sales of production of the joint
operation according to its share; solely incurred expenses, as well as
expenses incurred by the joint operation according to its share.

5 i 2 M 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

=~ Bt BOR K| al A wt

SO B HRR ()

HRNBEBIER — I TR EAR G
BHFLRAE - WEETHEERR

%ﬂfﬁi\/ﬁiﬁ REEBISESIEZ B
MABHPBERE  EEAREY
HT%%”& EREAFHIBRE
B ABERRENSAEATHRE
E BERKBRABNAAEERE
REF AR MBERRETHE -

WFLLH—?%TmmﬁAHH
BWF AR WEHTREERRMER
ﬁwz@éﬂé%%WMAéﬁ%%
WK o MBELREHMBRRE ¥
AIEA IS SRR AR TE B 1T -
REE A HRE A KT
Sl AR ERIER BT -

MRBEEENERNECEHEE
HIRERPH—HKZRBELELHN

AEEEHMTHECERWKES
AERZEFRIBERT  LPEBRFEERS

BB IERERIERS -
ERFIRRAREE

BERED ARHRARENMSERE -
#ﬁ&%'E%A“H;ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ
BAEZLZFHBRENG S
ZEEF° BELE REGENEHR
RHNFEEZARNNEERHE -

&M R A

TN 7 mL

& A2 10 B
H@WTWEE-%%ﬁﬁ%%E%
BE URRENBERAFRFTAEN
BE  WREBAENEE UKk
BENBEERAFRAZNOEE  ER
HEEZANARKEELHBEMRE
ERRA - REMBERARLEH
HEELMEAMEA : BREBH
BHAMER  ARREMBERRBER

REZENER -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

6.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Group'’s cash on hand and deposits that can
be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are short-
term, highly liquid investments held by the Group, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation

The Group translates the amount of foreign currency transactions
occurred into its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition,
in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate prevailing on the transaction dates.
At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are
translated using the spot exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date. All the resulting differences on settlement and monetary
item translation are taken to profit or loss in the current period,
except for those relating to foreign currency borrowings specifically
for construction and acquisition of qualifying assets, which are
capitalized in accordance with the principle of capitalization of
borrowing costs. Non-monetary foreign currency items measured
at historical cost shall still be translated at the spot exchange rate
prevailing on the transaction date, and the amount denominated
in the functional currency is not changed. Non-monetary foreign
currency items measured at fair value are translated at the spot
exchange rate prevailing at the date on which the fair values are
determined. The difference thus resulted are recognized in profit or
loss for the current period or as other comprehensive income based
on the nature of the non-monetary items.

For foreign operations, the Group translates their functional
currency amounts into RMB in preparing the financial statements as
follows: asset and liability items in the balance sheet are translated
using the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date, and
equity items other than “retained earnings” are translated using
the spot exchange rate at the date of transactions; revenue and
expense items in the income statement are translated using the
average exchange rate for the period during which the transactions
occur. The resulting foreign currency exchange differences in the
financial statement are recognized in other comprehensive income.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognized in the profit or loss for the current period. If the disposal
only involves a portion of a particular foreign operation, the amount
is recognized on a pro-rata basis.
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52 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

7.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation (Continued)

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of foreign
subsidiaries are translated using the average exchange rate for the
period during which the cash flows occur. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash is separately presented as an adjustment item

in the cash flow statement.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

another entity.

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial

instrument.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset (or part of a financial
asset, or part of a group of similar financial assets), i.e. writes off
the financial asset from the account and balance sheet, when the

following conditions are met:

(1) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have

expired;

(2) the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of
the financial asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the
financial asset, but has transferred control of the financial

asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
(Continued)

If the underlying obligation of a financial liability has been
discharged or cancelled or has expired, the financial liability is
derecognized. If an existing financial liability is replaced by the
same creditor with a new financial liability that has substantially
different terms, or if the terms of an existing financial liability are
substantially revised, such replacement or revision is accounted for
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the resulting difference is recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized using trade date accounting. Regular way purchase
or sale of financial assets refers to that the financial assets are
delivered to or by the Group under the terms of a contract within a
period as specified by law or general practice. The trade date is the

date on which the Group undertakes to buy or sell a financial asset.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets are, on initial recognition, classified into the
following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and derivatives designated as effective
hedging instruments. A financial asset is recognized initially at fair
value. In the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, relevant transaction costs are directly charged to the profit
and loss of the current period; transaction costs relating to financial
assets of other categories are included in the amount initially

recognized.
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54 \Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

The subsequent measurement of a financial asset is determined by

its category:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and those designated
upon initial recognition as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. A financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
is the financial asset that meets one of the following conditions:
the financial asset is acquired for the purpose of selling it in a
short term; the financial asset is a part of a portfolio of identifiable
financial instruments that are collectively managed, and there is
objective evidence indicating that the enterprise recently manages
this portfolio for the purpose of short-term profits; the financial
asset is a derivative, except for a derivative that is designated as
an effective hedging instrument, or a financial guarantee contract,
or a derivative that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
an unquoted equity investment (without a quoted price from an
active market) whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. For
such kind of financial assets, fair values are adopted for subsequent
measurement. All the realized or unrealized gains or losses on
these financial assets are recognized in profit or loss for the current
period. Dividend income or interest income related to financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is charged to profit or loss for the

current period.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity date
that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains or
losses arising from amortization or impairment and derecognition

are recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains or
losses arising from amortization or impairment are recognized in

profit or loss for the current period.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial
assets that are on initial recognition designated as available for sale
or are not classified as any of the aforesaid categories. Such kind
of financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. The
discount/premium is amortized using effective interest rate method
and recognized as interest income or expense. Changes in the fair
value of an available-for-sale financial asset is recognized as other
comprehensive income in capital reserve, except for impairment
losses and exchange differences resulted from monetary financial
assets, until the financial asset is derecognized or determined to be
impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or loss is transferred
to profit or loss for the current period. Dividends or interest income
relating to an available-for-sale financial asset are recognized in

profit or loss for the current period.

Investments in equity investments, which do not have quoted
prices in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably

measured, are measured at cost.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities are, on initial recognition, classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, other
financial liabilities or derivatives designated as effective hedging
instruments. For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, relevant transaction costs are directly recognized in profit or
loss for the current period, and transaction costs relating to other

financial liabilities are included in the initial recognition amounts.
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56  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

The subsequent measurement of a financial liability is determined

by its category:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated upon initial
recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
A financial liability held for trading is the financial liability that meets
one of the following conditions: the financial liability is assumed for
the purpose of repurchasing it in a short term; the financial liability
is a part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are
collectively managed, and there is objective evidence indicating
that the enterprise recently manages this portfolio for the purpose
of short-term profits; the financial liability is a derivative, except
for a derivative that is designated as effective hedging instrument,
or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity investment
(without a quoted price from an active market) whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured. For such kind of financial liabilities, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All the realized or
unrealized gains or losses on these financial liabilities are recognized

in profit or loss for the current period.

Other financial liabilities
This kind of financial liabilities are measured at amortized costs by

using the effective interest rate method.

Elimination of financial instruments

The net amount after eliminating financial assets and financial
liabilities is presented in the balance sheet if the following
conditions are satisfied: A lawful right exists for eliminating
recognized amounts, and such lawful right is currently enforceable;
it is planned that the financial assets and financial liabilities are to
be netted against each other, or that they are to be realized and

settled simultaneously.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to settle a debt or assume a liability to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are measured, on initial recognition, at fair
value. For financial guarantee contracts that are not designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, they are, after
initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of: the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date; and the amount
initially recognized less the accumulated amortization determined

according to the principles of revenue recognition.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative. A financial derivative that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument (without a
quoted price in an active market) whose fair value cannot be reliably

measured is measured at cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to profit or loss for the current period, except for
the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized in
other comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss

when the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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58  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date the carrying amount
of every financial asset. If there is objective evidence indicating
a financial asset may be impaired, a provision is provided for the
impairment. Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired is
one or more events that occur after the initial recognition of the
asset and have an impact (which can be reliably estimated) on the
expected future cash flows of the financial asset. Where there arises
any of the following objective evidences indicating that financial
assets have been impaired, an impairment provision will be made: a
serious financial difficulty occurs to the debtor; the debtor breaches
any of the contractual stipulations (such as he fails to pay or delays
the payment of interests or the principal); the debtor will probably
go bankrupt or carry out other financial reorganizations; other

objective evidences show that the accounts receivable are impaired.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

If an impairment on a financial asset has incurred, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to the present value of expected
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) and such reduction is taken into profit or loss for the
current period. The present value of expected future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. effective interest rate computed on initial recognition) and
includes the value of any related collateral. Where floating interest
rate is adopted, the discount rate for determining the present value
of future cash flow shall be equal to the prevailing effective rate
which is contractually stipulated. Interest income upon impairment is
recognized at a rate equal to the discount rate used for discounting

future cashflow upon recognition of impairment loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (Continued)

For a financial asset that is individually significant, the asset is
individually assessed for impairment, and the amount of impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss for the current period if there is
objective evidence of impairment. For a financial asset that is not
individually significant, it is included in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for
impairment. If no impairment incurs for an individually assessed
financial asset (whether the financial asset is individually significant
or not individually significant), it is included in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for impairment. Assets for which an impairment loss is individually
recognized is not included in a group of financial assets with similar

credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment.

If, subsequent to the Group's recognition of an impairment loss
on a financial asset carried at amortized cost, there is objective
evidence of a recovery in value of the financial asset and the
recovery can be related to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed and recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
However, the reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have
been had the impairment loss not been recognized at the date the

impairment is reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale asset is
impaired, the accumulated loss arising from decline in fair value
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is removed
and recognized in profit or loss. The accumulated loss that removed
from other comprehensive income is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization)
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on the financial

asset previously recognized in profit or loss.
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60 Waeichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence indicating that available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired include significant or prolonged decline in
fair value. Judgments shall be made in distinguishing “significant”
and “prolonged”. “Significant” is judged by the extent of fair value
below its original cost and “prolonged” is judged by the length of
period where fair value falls below its original cost. Where objective
evidence of impairment exists, the accumulated loss of the transfer
is represented by the balance of acquisition cost after deduction
of the current fair value and impairment loss previously charged to
profit and loss. The impairment loss on an available-for-sale equity
investment is not reversed through profit or loss, and any increase
of fair value that occurs after the impairment is recognized directly

in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” and “prolonged”
requires judgment. The Group takes into account, among other
factors, the extent and duration of the period of the fair value being

lower than its original cost, in such determination.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognized on an available-
for-sale debt instrument, the fair value of the debt instrument
increases in a subsequent period and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the original impairment loss
was recognized, the original impairment loss is reversed with the
amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss for the current

period.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that such a financial asset is impaired,
the difference between its carrying amount and the present
value of expected future cash flows which are discounted at the
current market yield rate of similar financial assets is recognized
as an impairment loss in profit or loss for the current period. Once

impairment losses are recognized, they are not reversed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Transfer of Financial Assets

If the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset to the transferee, the Group
derecognizes the financial asset; if the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group

does not derecognize the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it is accounted for as
follows: if the Group has not retained control, it derecognizes the
financial asset and recognizes any resulting assets or liabilities; if the
Group has retained control, it continues to recognize the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the transferred

financial asset and recognizes the relevant liability.

For ongoing involvement by providing financial guarantee in respect
of the transferred financial assets, the assets arising from such
involvement is recognized as the lower of the carrying amount of
the financial assets and the amount of the financial guarantee.
Amount of financial guarantee refers to the maximum amount to

be repayable on demand among the considerations received.

Receivables

(1) Receivables Which Are Individually Significant and
for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is Recognized
Separately
In judging receivables which are individually significant,
the Group takes into account accounts receivables and
other receivables due from individual customers, risks
specific to particular customers, risks specific to particular
countries, interest on long-term receivables and the extent of
guaranteed portion of receivables etc. Receivables which are
individually significant are tested for impairment individually.
When objective evidence indicates that the receivable has
been impaired, bad debt provision is made based on the
shortfall of the present value of future cash flow as compared
to its carrying amount, and is charged to profit and loss for

the current period.
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62  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Receivables (Continued)

(2)

Receivables for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is
Recognized by Group With Distinctive Credit Risk
Characteristics

Other than receivables for which provision for bad debts
has been recognized individually, provision for bad debt is
recognized by group based on the actual loss rate of identical
or similar group in prior year or with similar distinctive credit

risk characteristics, taking into account the current situation.

Other than business segments located overseas, the
grouping of receivables is based on their ages which are
taken as a distinctive credit risk characteristic. Aging analysis
is conducted to determine the provision for bad debt for

trade receivables and other receivables, at the following
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percentages:

Percentage provided for
Age B FTER 1
Within 1 year 1R 5%
1-2 years 1224 15%
2-3 years 2E3F 30%
3-4 years 3E4F 50%
4-5 years 4ZE5%F 80%
Over 5 years S5F A 100%

For business segments located overseas, grouping of
receivables is based on their overdue ages which are taken as

a distinctive credit risk characteristic.

If objective evidence shows a recovery in value of the
receivables, the original bad debt provision can be reversed

and carried through profit and loss in the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Receivables (Continued)

9.

10.

3)

Receivables Which Are Not Individually Significant
But Provision for Bad Debt Is Recognized Separately

For receivables which are not individually significant but
objective evidence shows that the impairment has occurred,
bad debt provision will be made according to the difference
between the present value of future cash flows and its
carrying amounts and will be carried through profit and loss

for the current period.

If clear evidence indicates that the receivables are indeed
not recoverable, such as in case of cancellation, bankruptcy
or insolvency of the debtor or its serious cash flow problem,
then it is recognized as a bad debt and written off for bad

debt provision already made.

Inventories

Inventories include materials in transit, raw materials, work in

progress, finished goods, materials under entrusted processing, self

made semi-finished goods, turnover materials and second-hand
forklift trucks etc.

Inventories are initially carried at cost. Cost of inventories comprises

all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs. The actual

cost of inventories transferred out is assigned by using weighted

average method, first-in-first-out method or specific identification

method. Low value consumables are amortized by using immediate

write-off method.
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64  \Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
10. Inventories (Continued)

11.

The Groups adopts perpetual inventory system.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower of
cost and net realizable value. If the cost of inventories is higher than
the net realizable value, a provision for impairment of inventories
is recognized in profit or loss for the current period. If factors that
previously resulted in the provision for decline in value of inventories
no longer exist, so that the net realizable value is higher than the
carrying amount, the amount of the write-down is reversed. The
reversal is limited to the amount originally provided for the decline
in value of inventories. The amount of the reversal is recognized in

profit or loss for the current period.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
provision for decline in value of inventories is made on an individual

basis or a category basis.

Long-term equity investments
Long-term equity investments include equity investments in

subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (AR #or)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
11. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 1. RERERE(E)

A long-term equity investment is initially recorded at its initial
investment cost on acquisition. For a long-term equity investment
acquired under business combination involving entities under
common control, the initial investment cost is determined as
the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment is
the carrying value of the absorbing party’s share of the owner’s
equity of the party being absorbed as of the date of business
combination on the consolidated financial statements of the
ultimate controller. The difference between the initial investment
cost and the carrying value of the consideration for combination is
adjusted to capital reserve (or charged against retained earnings if
there is any shortfall). Other comprehensive income held prior to
the acquisition date is accounted for on the same basis as where
the assets or liabilities are directly disposed of by the investee in
disposing of such assets or liabilities. Owners' equity recognized as
a result of changes in other owners' equity of the investee other
than net gains and losses, other comprehensive income and profit
appropriation is taken to profit and loss for the current period upon
the disposal of such investment. In particular, those which remain as
long-term equity investments upon disposal are carried forward in
proportion, and those which are converted to financial instruments
upon disposal are carried forward in full. For a long-term equity
investment acquired through a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the initial investment cost is
the cost of business combination (Business combination involving
entities not under common control which is achieved after multiple
transactions, the initial investment cost is the sum of carrying
value of equity investments of the acquiree held prior to the date
of acquisition and the addition to investment cost on the date of
acquisition). Cost of business combination includes the sum of fair
values of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
securities issued by the acquirer. Other comprehensive income
recognized on equity method held prior to the date of acquisition is
accounted for on the same basis as where the assets or liabilities are
directly disposed of by the investee in disposing of such assets or
liabilities. Accumulated fair value change of equity investments held
prior to the date of acquisition being taken to other comprehensive
income as financial instrument is taken to profit or loss for the
current period under cost method. Long-term equity investments
acquired by means other than business combination, initial
investment cost is determined as follows: for a long-term equity
investment acquired by paying cash, the initial investment cost is
the actual purchase price paid and those costs, taxes and other
necessary expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of
the long-term equity investment; for a long-term equity investment
acquired by the issue of equity securities, the initial investment cost is
the fair value of the equity securities issued. For a long-term equity
investment acquired by the swap of non-monetary assets, initial
investment cost is determined based on Accounting Standard for
Business Enterprises No. 7 — Swap of Non-monetary Assets. For a
long-term equity investment acquired by way of debt restructuring,
initial investment cost is determined based on Accounting Standard
for Business Enterprises No. 12 — Debt Restructuring.
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66 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #%E HIRHERAT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

11.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

For a long-term equity investment where the Company can exercise
control over the investee, the Company uses the cost method in the
Company’s financial statements. Control refers to the power over
an investee, and exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power over

the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

Under the cost method, the long-term equity investment is
measured at its initial investment cost. For addition or reduction of
investments, the cost of long-term equity investments is adjusted
accordingly. Cash dividend or profit distribution declared by an

investee is recognized as profit or loss in the current period.

The equity method is adopted for a long-term equity investment
when the Group holds joint control, or exercises significant
influence on the investee. Joint control refers to the contractually-
agreed shared control over an arrangement and related activities
under such arrangement shall be decided upon with the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but cannot control or jointly control with other

parties over the formulation of those policies.

Under the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a
long-term equity investment exceeds the investing entity’s interest
in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date, the excess is included in the initial investment cost.
Where the initial investment cost is less than the investing entity’s
interest in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at
the acquisition date, the difference is charged to profit or loss for
the current period, and the cost of the long-term equity investment is

adjusted accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

11.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes its share of the
net profits or losses and other comprehensive income made by the
investee as investment income or losses and other comprehensive
income after the acquisition of the long-term equity investments,
and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment accordingly.
The Group recognizes its share of the investee’s net profits or
losses after making appropriate adjustments to the investee’s net
profits based on the fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets
at the acquisition date, using the Group's accounting policies and
periods, and eliminating the portion of the profits or losses arising
from internal transactions with its jointly controlled enterprises
and associates, attributable to the investing entity according to its
share ratio (but impairment losses for assets arising from internal
transactions shall be recognized in full). The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced accordingly based on the Group’s share of
any profit distributions or cash dividends declared by the investee.
The Group's share of net losses of the investee is recognized to the
extent the carrying amount of the investment together with any
long-term interests that in substance form part of its net investment
in the investee is reduced to zero, except that the Group has
incurred obligations to assume additional losses. The Group adjusts
the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment for any
changes in owners’ equity of the investee (other than net profits
or losses, other comprehensive income and profit distribution) and
includes the corresponding adjustments in the shareholders’ equity.

On disposal of the long-term equity investments, the difference
between book value and consideration received is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. For long-term equity
investments under equity method, when the use of the equity
method is discontinued, other comprehensive income previously
accounted for under the equity method shall be dealt with on the
same basis as if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of
directly by the investee. Shareholders’ equity recognized as a result
of changes in shareholders’ equity other than the net-off of profit
and loss, other comprehensive income and profit allocation of the
investee shall be transferred in full to current profit and loss. If
the equity method remains in use, other comprehensive income
previously accounted for under the equity method shall be dealt
with on the same basis as if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of directly by the investee and transferred to current profit
and loss on a pro-rata basis. Shareholders’ equity recognized as a
result of changes in shareholders’ equity other than the net-off of
profit and loss, other comprehensive income and profit allocation of
the investee shall be transferred to current profit and loss on a pro-
rata basis.
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68 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

12.

13.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Investment property includes a land use right

that is leased out and a building that is leased out.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. If the
economic benefits relating to an investment property will probably
flow in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent costs
incurred for the property is included in the cost of the investment
property. Otherwise, subsequent costs are recognized in profit or

loss for the period in which they are incurred.

The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of its
investment property. Depreciation or amortization is calculated on

the straight-line basis over its useful life, as follows:
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Estimated Estimated net Annual

useful lives residual depreciation

(years) value rate (%) rate (%)

BEEA FEEHFERE FHEE

ltem EYS S (F) BEE(%) (%)

Land use rights + b FA A 48.5-50 0 2.00-2.06

Houses and buildings BEEEEY 14.5-30 0-5 3.17-6.90
Fixed assets 13. BEEE

A fixed asset is recognized only when the economic benefits
associated with the asset will probably flow to the Group and the
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure
incurred for a fixed asset that meet the recognition criteria shall
be included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the carrying amount
of the component of the fixed asset that is replaced shall be
derecognized. Otherwise, such expenditure shall be recognized in

profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) F B i R BT (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (AR #or)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (7%
13. Fixed assets (Continued) 13.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of a purchased

fixed asset comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any

directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working

condition for its intended use. Other than fixed assets arising

from the use and appropriation of safety funds, special reserve

offset against the cost of fixed assets, and equivalent amounts of

accumulated depreciation recognized; and certain equipment of

the parent company, and machinery and equipment of certain

subsidiaries namely Weichai America Corp., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co.,

Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. and Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd.,

for which double-declining balance method is used for depreciation,

the straight line method is adopted for the depreciation of other

fixed assets.

The expected useful lives, net residual value rates and annual

depreciation rates of fixed assets are presented as follows:
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Estimated Estimated net Annual

useful lives residual depreciation

(years) value rate (%) rate (%)

R EA TREHEE FIEE

ltem 1H B s (F) BEE(%) (%)

Land ownership T b T A Indefinite

EHAR 0 0

Houses and buildings FEEEEY 10-50 0-5 1.90-10.00

Machinery and equipment W28 1 3-15 0-5 6.33-33.33

Electronic equipment B 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00

Vehicles BRIRE 4-10 0-5 9.50-25.00
Forklift trucks and equipment LA X E RH&E

leased out (long-term) (KH) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
Forklift trucks and equipment AL X E R

leased out (short-term) (%2 50) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00

Others HAb 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

13. Fixed assets (Continued)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (long-term)

If the risks and rewards of the leased assets remains with KION
GROUP AG, a subsidiary of the Company, as the lessor under an
operating lease, the assets are reported as a separate item in the
balance sheet and, being measured at cost and are depreciated.
To fund leases, industrial trucks are generally sold by KION GROUP
AG to leasing companies. The industrial trucks are then leased
back to companies of KION GROUP AG internally (head lease), who
sublease them to external end customers (described below as”sale
and leaseback sub-leases”). These long-term leases generally have
a term of four to five years. If, in the case of sale and leaseback
sub-leases, the risks and rewards incidental to the head lease are
substantially borne by KION GROUP AG and are not transferred to
the end customers, the corresponding assets are reported as forklift
trucks and equipment leased out (long-term) under fixed assets.
However, if substantially the risks and rewards incidental to the
head lease are transferred to the end customers, a corresponding
lease receivable is recognized. In both cases, the long-term finance
leases, which are funded for terms that match those of the leases,
are recognized as lease liabilities.

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term)
Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term) arises from
short-term rental transactions as well as the sale of industrial trucks
in relation to which significant risks and rewards remain with KION
GROUP AG (“sale with risk”).

In the case of short-term rentals, the subsidiaries of KION GROUP
AG, a subsidiary group under the Company rent industrial trucks
to customers directly. Short-term rental agreements usually have
a term within one year. The significant risks and rewards remain
within the aforesaid companies. The industrial trucks are carried at
cost and depreciated over the normal useful life, depending on the
product group.

In an indirect leasing arrangement, industrial trucks are sold to
finance partners who then enter into leases with end customers. If
the subsidiaries of KION GROUP AG provide material residual value
guarantees or a customer default guarantee (”sale with risk”),
the trucks are recognized as assets in the balance sheet at their
cost on the date of the sale and written down to their guaranteed
residual value, or zero, on a straight-line basis over the period until
the customer default guarantee expires. If the Company provides
a residual value guarantee, an amount equivalent to the residual
value obligation is recognized under financial liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

13.

14.

15.

Fixed assets (Continued)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term)
(Continued)

For fixed assets leased in under finance lease, depreciation for
leased assets is provided for using policy similar to that applied to
self-owned fixed assets. When it can be reasonably determined
that the ownership of a leased asset will be obtained at the end of
the lease term, it is depreciated over the period of expected use;
otherwise, the lease asset is depreciated over the shorter period of
the lease term and its useful life.

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value
of a fixed asset and the depreciation method applied at least at
each year-end, and make adjustments if necessary.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure incurred for the construction, including all
necessary construction expenditure incurred during the construction
period, borrowing costs that shall be capitalized before the
construction gets ready for its intended use and other relevant
expenses.

A construction in progress is transferred to fixed asset when the asset
is ready for its intended use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group
in connection with the borrowing of the funds. Borrowing costs
include interest, amortization of discounts or premiums related
to borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings, and exchange differences arising from

foreign currency borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized. The
amounts of other borrowing costs incurred are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Qualifying assets
are assets (fixed assets, investment property and inventories, etc.)
that necessarily take a substantial period of time for acquisition,
construction or production to get ready for their intended use or
sale.
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72  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
15. Borrowing costs (Continued)
The capitalization of borrowing costs commences only when all of
the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) expenditures for the asset are being incurred;
(2)  borrowing costs are being incurred;

(3) activities relating to the acquisition, construction or
production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale have commenced.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready for its
intended use or sale. Any borrowing costs subsequently incurred are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

During the capitalization period, the amount of interest to be
capitalized for each accounting period shall be determined as

follows:

(1) where funds are borrowed for a specific purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized is the actual interest expense
incurred on that borrowing for the period less any bank
interest earned form depositing the borrowed funds before
being used on the asset or any investment income on the
temporary investment of those funds.

(2)  where funds are borrowed for a general purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings is determined
by applying a weighted average interest rate to the weighted
average of the excess amounts of accumulated expenditure
on the asset over and above the amounts of specific-purpose
borrowings.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in
which the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset is interrupted by activities other than those necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, when the interruption
is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs
incurred during these periods are recognized as an expense for the
current period until the acquisition, construction or production is
resumed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

16.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset shall be recognized only when it is probable
that the economic benefit associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. However, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with a fair value that can
be measured reliably are recognized separately as intangible assets

and measured at the fair value.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined according to the
period over which it is expected to generate economic benefits for
the Group. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the

Group.

The original useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
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Land use rights that are acquired by the Group are generally
accounted for as intangible assets. Buildings, such as plants that
are developed and constructed by the Group, and relevant land use
rights and buildings, are accounted for as intangible assets and fixed
assets, respectively. Payments for the land and buildings acquired
are allocated between the land use rights and the buildings; if
they cannot be reasonably allocated, all of the land use rights and

buildings are accounted for as fixed assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

16.

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized using
the straight-line method over its useful life. For an intangible
asset with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful life
and amortization method at least at each year-end and makes

adjustment if necessary.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life are tested for
impairment at least once every year, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that the asset may be impaired. This category of
intangible assets will not be amortized and will be reviewed every
accounting period based on its useful life. If there are evidence
indicates that its useful life is limited, the asset will be accounted for
in accordance to the policy for intangible asset with definite useful

life stated above.

The Group classifies the expenditure on an internal research and
development project into expenditure on the research phase and
expenditure on the development phase. Expenditure on the research
phase is recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on the development phase is capitalized when
the Group can demonstrate all of the following: (i) the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale; (i) the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it; (i) how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits. Among other things, the Group
can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the
intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset; (iv) the availability
of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
and (v) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development. Expenditure in
the development phase that does not meet the above criteria is

recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

17.

Impairment of assets
The Group determines the impairment of assets, other than the
impairment of inventories, deferred income taxes, financial assets

and assets classified as held-for-sale, using the following methods:

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists
that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs test for impairment. Goodwill
arising from a business combination and an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets that have not been ready for

intended use are tested for impairment each year.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flow expected
to be derived from the asset. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount on an individual basis. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines
the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. Identification of an asset group is based on whether major
cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely independent

of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset group is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The reduction in carrying amount is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. A provision for impairment of

the asset is recognized accordingly.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated from the
acquisition date on a reasonable basis, to each of the related asset
groups; if it is impossible to allocate to the related asset groups,
it is allocated to each of the related sets of asset groups. Each of
the related asset groups or sets of asset groups is an asset group
or set of asset group that is able to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination and shall not be larger than a reportable

segment determined by the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

17.

18.

Impairment of assets (Continued)

In testing an asset group or a set of asset groups to which goodwill
has been allocated for impairment, if there is any indication of
impairment, the Group firstly tests the asset group or set of
asset groups excluding the amount of goodwill allocated for
impairment, determines the recoverable amount and recognizes
any impairment loss. After that, the Group tests the asset group or
set of asset groups including goodwill for impairment, whereby the
carrying amount of the related asset group or set of asset groups
is compared to its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of
the asset group or set of asset groups is higher than its recoverable
amount, the amount of the impairment loss firstly reduces the
carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the asset group or
set of asset groups, and then reduce the carrying amount of other
assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset

groups, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset.

Once the above impairment loss is recognized, it cannot be reversed

in subsequent accounting periods.

Long-term prepaid expenses
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized using straight-line

method with amortization period as follows:
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
19. Payroll 19. B T % A

Payroll are all forms of consideration or compensation given
by the Group for obtaining services rendered by employees or
for terminating working relationship. Payroll include short-term
remuneration, post-employment benefits, severance benefits and
other long-term staff benefits. The benefits provided to spouses,
children, persons receiving maintenance, widows or widowers of

deceased staff and other beneficiaries are also included in payroll.

Short-term remuneration

Short-term remuneration actually incurred during the accounting
period in which the staff members provide services are recognized as
liability and taken to the profit and loss for the current period or the

costs of the relevant asset.

Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plan)

The employees of the Group participate in pension insurance and
unemployment insurance administered by local governments, as
well as annuity plan. The relevant expenditure is recognized, when
incurred, in the costs of relevant assets or the profit and loss for the

current period.

Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plan)

Some overseas subsidiaries of the group operate defined benefit
pension plan, under which contributions shall be made to a
separately-administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under
the defined benefit pension plan is determined using the projected

unit credit method.

Any re-measurements arising from the defined benefit pension
plan, including actuarial gains and losses, change to the effect on
maximum assets (net of amounts included under net interest) and
return on assets under the plan (net of amount included under net
interest), are recognized immediately in balance sheet, and included
as incurred in owners’ equity through other comprehensive income.

No reversal to profit or loss will be made in subsequent periods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

19. Payroll (Continued)
Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plan)
(Continued)
Previous service costs are recognized as expenses for the current
period on the earlier of the following dates: when amendments are
made to the defined benefit plan; or when the Group recognizes

the relevant reorganization costs or severance benefits.

Net interest is calculated by multiplying the net liabilities or net assets
under the defined benefit plan with the discount rate. Changes in
the net obligations under the defined benefit plan are recognized
under cost of sales, general and administrative expenses and finance
expenses in the income statement. Costs of services include costs of
services for the current period, costs of services for previous periods,
and gains or losses on settlement. Net interest includes interest
income accrued upon assets under the plan, interest expenses
incurred due to obligations under the plan, and interest under the

effect of maximum assets.

Severance benefits

Where the Group provides severance benefits to its employees,
payroll payable arising from such severance benefits are recognized
on the earlier of the following dates and included in profit or loss
for the current period: when the company is unable to unilaterally
withdraw the severance benefits provided under its plan to
terminate working relationship with employees or redundancy plan;
or when the company recognizes costs or expenses relating to

reorganization involving the payment of severance benefits.

Other long-term staff benefits

For other long-term staff benefits provided to staff members, the
provisions for post-employment benefits apply for recognizing and
measuring the net liabilities or net assets for other long-term staff
benefits, but movements are taken to profit and loss for the current

period or the costs of the relevant assets.
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

20. Accruals and provisions 20. FEETEE

Except for contingent consideration transferred and contingent
liability assumed in business combinations not involving entities
under common control, the Group recognizes an obligation related
to a contingency as a provision when all of the following conditions

are satisfied:

(1)  the obligation is a present obligation of the Group;

(2) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the

Group will be required to settle the obligation;

(3)  the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation,
with comprehensive consideration of factors such as the risks,
uncertainty and time value of money relating to a contingency. The
carrying amount of a provision is reviewed at the balance sheet
date. If there is clear evidence that the carrying amount does not
reflect the current best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted to

the best estimate.

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination from
the acquiree is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognized
in accordance with the general guidance for provisions above; and (ii)
the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortization recognized in accordance with the guidance for

revenue recognition.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

21.

Share-based payments

Share-based payments can be distinguished into equity-settled
share-based payments and cash-settled share-based payments.
Equity-settled share-based payments are transactions of the Group
settled through the payment of shares or other equity instruments

in consideration for receiving services.

Equity-settled share-based payments made in exchange for
services rendered by employees are measured at the fair value
of equity instruments granted to employees. Instruments which
are vested immediately upon the grant are charged to relevant
costs or expenses at the fair value on the date of grant and the
capital reserve is credited accordingly. Instruments of which
vesting is conditional upon completion of services or fulfillment
of performance conditions are measured by recognizing services
rendered during the period in relevant costs or expenses and
crediting the capital reserve accordingly at the fair value on the date
of grant according to the best estimates conducted by the Group
at each balance sheet date during the pending period based on
subsequent information such as latest updates on the change in the
number of entitled employees and whether performance conditions
have been fulfilled, and etc. For the fair value of equity instruments,

see Note XI.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with
a corresponding increase in capital reserve, over the period in which
the performance and service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate

of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or
not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that

all other non-market conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

21.

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based payment are
modified, as a minimum, services obtained are recognized as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognized
for any modification which increases the total fair value of the
instrument granted, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as

measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. Where
employees or other parties are permitted to choose to fulfill non-
vesting conditions but have not fulfilled during the pending period,
equity-settled share-based payments are deemed cancelled.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award.

A cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured in
accordance with the fair value of liability calculated and confirmed
based on the shares or other equity instruments undertaken by the
Group. Initial measurement is based on fair value as at the date of
grant, and reference is made to the terms and conditions attached
to the equity instruments. Refer to Note XI. If the right may be
exercised immediately after the grant, the fair value of the liability
undertaken by the enterprise shall, on the date of the grant, be
included in the relevant costs or expenses, and the liabilities shall
be increased accordingly. If the right may not be exercised until the
vesting period comes to an end or until the specified performance
conditions are met, on each balance sheet date within the vesting
period, the services obtained in the current period shall, based on
the best estimate of the information about the exercisable right,
be included in the relevant costs or expenses at the fair value of
the liability undertaken by the enterprise, and the liabilities shall
be increased accordingly. On each balance sheet date prior to
settlement of the relevant liabilities and on the settlement date, the
fair value of the liability is re-measured and any change of fair value

is taken to profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

22.

Revenue
Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the associated
economic benefits will flow to the Group, its amount can be

measured reliably, and the following conditions are satisfied.

Revenue From the Sales of Goods

Revenue is recognized when the Group has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the
Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold; and the associated costs incurred or to be incurred
can be measured reliably. The amount of revenue arising from the
sale of goods is determined in accordance with the consideration
received or receivable from the buyer under contract or agreement,
except where the consideration received or receivable under
contract or agreement is not fair. Where the consideration
receivable under contract or agreement is deferred, such that the
arrangement is in substance of a financing nature, the amount of
revenue arising on the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of

the consideration receivable under contract or agreement .

Revenue From the Rendering of Services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of
services can be estimated reliably at the balance sheet date, revenue
associated with the transaction is recognized using the percentage
of completion method, or otherwise, the revenue is recognized to
the extent of costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable.
The outcome of a transaction involving rendering of services can be
estimated reliably when all of the following conditions are satisfied:
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; it is probable
that the associated economic benefits will flow to the Group; the
stage of completion of the transaction can be measured reliably;
the costs incurred and to be incurred for the transaction can be
measured reliably. The Group determines the stage of completion
of a transaction involving the rendering of services by using the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total costs.
The total service revenue on a transaction involving rendering of
services is determined in accordance with the consideration received
or receivable from the recipient of services under contract or
agreement, except where the consideration received or receivable

under contract or agreement is not fair.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

22. Revenue (Continued) 22. WA (48)

Revenue From the Rendering of Services (Continued)

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognized during
the accounting period in which the services are rendered. For
the rendering of services across periods, the recognition shall
be in proportion to the percentage of completion, namely the
completion schedule of transaction. Revenue from long-term service
agreements is recognized in stages based on the average terms of

service agreements and accrued costs.

Revenue from financial service transactions is recognized in the
amount of the sale value of the leased asset if classified as a finance
lease and in the amount of the lease payments if classified as an
operating lease. As part of the financial service provided by the
group company, industrial trucks are sold to finance company who
then enter into leases directly with the end customer. If significant
risks and rewards remain with the group company as a result of an
agreed residual value guarantee that accounts for more than 10
per cent of the asset’s value or as a result of an agreed customer
default guarantee, the proceeds from the sale are deferred and

recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term.

Where the contracts or agreements entered into with other entities
cover the sale of goods or provision of services, the portion of sale
of goods and the portion of provision of services are dealt with
separately if the two portions can be distinguished and separately
measured. If the two portions cannot be distinguished, or can be
distinguished but cannot be separately measured, such contract is

fully taken as to relate to sale of goods.
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

22.

23.

Revenue (Continued)

Interest Income

It is determined according to the length of time for which the
Group's cash and cash equivalents is used by others and the

effective interest rate.

Royalty Income
It is determined according to period and method of charging as

stipulated in the relevant contract or agreement.

Lease Income
Lease income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are charged to profit or

loss in the period in which they actually arise.

Government grants

Government grant is recognized when the Group can comply with
the conditions attached to it and it can be received. Government
grant is classified as asset-related government grant and income-
related government grant. Government grant for purchasing,
building or otherwise forming long-term assets is recognized as
one related to assets. Otherwise it is recognized as one related to

income.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of monetary asset,
it is measured at the amount received or receivable. If a government
grant is in the form of a transfer of non-monetary asset, it is
measured at fair value; if fair value is not reliably determinable, it is

measured at a nominal amount.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

23.

24,

Government grants (Continued)

An asset-related government grant is recognized as deferred
income and recognized in profit or loss by stages over the useful life
of the related assets in a reasonable and systematic way. However,
a government grant measured at a nominal amount is recognized
directly in profit or loss for the current period. A government grant
related to income is accounted for as follows: (a) if the grant is a
compensation for related costs expenses or losses to be incurred
in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as deferred income,
and recognized in profit or loss over the periods in which the
related costs are recognized; (b) if the grant is a compensation for
related costs expenses or losses already incurred, it is recognized

immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

Government grant related to daily operations is recognized in
other income. Government grant not related to daily operations is

recognized in non-operating income.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized as income or an expense in profit or loss for the current
period, or recognized directly in shareholders’ equity if it arises from
a business combination or relates to a transaction or event which is

recognized directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group measures a current tax asset or liability arising from
the current and prior period based on the amount of income tax
expected to be paid by the Group or returned by tax authority

calculated by related tax laws.

For temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, and
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of items, the tax bases of which can be determined for
tax purposes, but which have not been recognized as assets and
liabilities according to the tax laws, deferred taxes are provided using
the liability method.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
24. Income tax (Continued)

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

M

where the taxable temporary differences arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction which contains both of the
following characteristics: (i) the transaction is not a business
combination; and (ii) at the time of the transaction, it affects

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or deductible loss.

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, jointly-controlled enterprises and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable

future.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary

differences, carryforward of deductible tax losses from prior years

and tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and deductible tax losses and tax credits can be utilized,

except:

M

where the deductible temporary differences arises from a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or deductible loss is affected.

in respect of the deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly-
controlled enterprises, a deferred tax asset is only recognized
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will be reversed in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilized in the future.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
24. Income tax (Continued)

25.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to the
requirements of tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the balance

sheet date, to recover the assets or settle the liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in future
periods to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the balance sheet date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities presented on a
net basis are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities on a net basis and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. An operating lease is a

lease other than a finance lease.

In the Case of the Lessee of an Operating Lease

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized by a lessee
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, and either included
in the cost of the related asset or charged to profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

25.

26.

Leases (Continued)

In the Case of the Lessor of an Operating Lease

Rent income under an operating lease is recognized by a lessor on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, through profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.

In the Case of the Lessee of a Finance Lease

At the commencement of lease term, for an asset leased in under
finance lease, the difference between the book value of the leased-
in asset, which is determined as the lower of the fair value of such
leased asset as at the commencement of lease term and the present
value of minimum lease payments, and the book value of long-term
payables, which is determined as the minimum lease payments, is
treated as unrecognized finance costs which is apportioned to the
leasing period using effective interest rate method. Contingent
rents are charged to profit or loss in the period in which they

actually arise.

In the Case of the Lessor of a Finance Lease

At the commencement of lease term, for an asset leased out under
finance lease, the book value of finance lease receivable is measured
at the sum of minimum lease receipts and initial direct costs, whilst
risk exposure shall be recorded simultaneously; and unrealized
finance income shall be measured at the difference between the
sum of minimum lease receipt, initial direct costs and risk exposure,
and its present value. These are recognized using effective interest
rate method during the leasing period. Contingent rents are

charged to profit or loss in the period in which they actually arise.

Hedge accounting
For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Group adopts cash flow

hedging against interest rate risks and exchange rate risks.

Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash
flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,

or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognized firm commitment.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
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26. Hedge accounting (Continued) 26. EHEE (&)

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge. The
documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument,
the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being
hedged and how the Group will assess the hedging instrument’s
effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such
hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing
basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were
designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is recognized directly in other comprehensive income, while the
ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income are transferred
to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or
loss, such as when hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognized or when a forecast sale occurs. If the hedged item is the
cost of a non-financial assets or non-financial liability, the amount
that would otherwise be recognized in other comprehensive income
is transferred out in the same period as the profit or loss of that
non-financial assets or non-financial liability, and recognized in
profit or loss in current period.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised
(with the expiry of rollover of the hedging strategic component
or unfulfilled replacement or the termination of processing of the
contract), if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or if the hedge
no longer fulfills the accounting requirement of a hedge, the
amounts previously taken to other comprehensive income remain in
other comprehensive income until the forecast transaction or firm

commitment occurs or is fulfilled in actual terms.

EEHBERMNE  KEEHEHE
BRELAEE  LEETHERENRE
% RAREEASEMNERARKHERN
EEXM - ZXHHBAEEMRTA -
REHHEBIR S - HEHRARNE
B URAEBEHERTABMIER
EIE - EHARN  ZHEEHTIA
MARBEIRSREZDEMIEHE
REMRERSIENEEREEAAE
BEIRSAENEE - WEEHREY
BEAM - WA E AR
EHEEHRARRETN ST HEA
BEEXM -

WRERGF AN BEREN 1%
TN IERETRE

REMEEH

EPTANSRBERTBEREREY
MED  HEBRR/EMES K
BREXRERNI D  FFAEHIE

=z

Y

o

Bk

MRREMIGFEEHERN - W
BRE MM AR B A R
STEMHE R AR - AIEEMEE I
STEANSEEAZHEE - IR
REHHEBR -—HIFCHEENFS
BEEORA  AIREHEMERS K
THANSH  EXFEREESLIF
CHEGEXERRNERBEEL
FTAEHIEE o

i

MREHTACDIH  RHEHE - AR
RIEHEITE(EESEHRBEAK
BOMRPAXBRTERTIHLA
RARIEEE)  HERETHEDRH
BOETE  XEZEHTBREEY
SR IEARMGM - BIPART A AR AR AR
Al RENEETEL  EERHRS
BB A R AGRETT



90 Waeichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

27.

28.

29.

30.

Repurchase of shares

Consideration and transaction costs paid for the repurchase of
the Company’s own equity instruments are charged against
shareholders’ equity. Other than share-based payments, issuance
(including refinancing), repurchase, sale or cancellation of its own

equity instruments is treated as change in equity.

Profit appropriation
Interim and final cash dividends are recognized as liabilities upon

approval by shareholders in general meeting.

Safety funds

Safety funds provided for as required were included in cost of
product or the current profit and loss, and credited in special
reserve. And the funds are treated separately depending on
whether fixed assets are resulted when being used: funds related
to expenditure is offset against special reserve directly while those
forming fixed assets will consolidate expenditure incurred and
recognized as fixed assets when such assets are ready for their
intended use, at the same time offsetting equivalent amounts in the
special reserve and recognizing equivalent amounts of accumulated

depreciation.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and listed
equity investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group
at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest.
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (AR #or)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
30. Fair value measurement (Continued) 30. AREETE(E)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest

and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs only under
the circumstances where such relevant observable inputs cannot be

obtained or practicably obtained.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: Level 1 —
based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date; Level 2 — based on inputs other than inputs within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
Level 3 — based on input for the asset or liability that is not based

on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group re-assess
them at each balance sheet date to determine whether transfers

have occurred between levels in the hierarchy.
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

31.

32.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal
organization structure, managerial requirements and internal
reporting system, identifies reportable segments based on operating

segments and discloses segment information by operating segment.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that meets all

the following conditions:

(1) it engages in business activities from which it may earn

revenues and incur expenses;

(2) its operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s
management to make decisions about resources to be

allocated to the segment and assess its performance;

(3)  the Group is able to obtain relevant accounting information
such as its financial position, operating results and cash flows

of such segment.

If two or more segments have similar economic characteristics and
meet certain conditions, then they can be aggregated into a single

operating segment.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that will affect the
reported amounts and disclosure of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance
sheet date. However, uncertainty about these estimates and
assumptions could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments which have
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. EAEFTHEMMEE (E)

estimates (Continued)

Judgments (Continued)

Confirmation of Functional Currency

Since the Company owns a number of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and branch organizations, when recognizing its
functional currency, multiple factors are taken into consideration
to recognize the major economic environment of their operating
locations. Under circumstances with multiple factors and no obvious
functional currency, the Group uses judgment to confirm its
functional currency. Such judgment is the best to reflect economic
influence of the underlying transactions, events and environment.
Unless there appear material changes in the major economic
environment relating to the recognition of functional currency, once

the functional currency is recognized, it would not change.

Finance lease — in the case of the lessor

Leases where all risks and rewards relating to the ownership of the
assets are substantially transferred are referred to as finance leases.
The Group does not retain all substantial risks and rewards of the
ownership of these leased assets, and thus they are regarded as

finance leases.

Operating lease — in the case of the lessor

The Group has entered into leasing contracts for its investment
properties, certain intangible assets and certain fixed assets. The
Group is of the opinion that, according to the terms of such leasing
contracts, the Group has retained all material risks and returns of
ownership of these investment properties, intangible assets and

fixed assets and therefore they are accounted for as operating lease.

Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the future accounting

periods, are discussed below.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

32. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Defined benefit plans
The management of the Group recognizes defined benefit plans
liabilities based on calculating model of the present value of the
defined benefit liabilities less fair value of the planned assets. The
present value of defined benefit liabilities comprises of various
assumptions, including term of benefits and discount rate.
Inconsistency between the future events and such assumptions may
subject the defined benefit plans liabilities on the balance sheet

date to material adjustment.

Fair value

Fair value of derivatives as at the balance sheet date is calculated by
the management of the Group based on models. Such calculation is
on the basis of some assumptions. Carrying value of derivatives may

differ significantly if future events deviate from such assumptions.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale financial
assets and directly recognizes movements of their fair values
in other comprehensive income. When the fair value declines,
management makes assumptions about the decline in value
to determine whether there is an impairment loss that shall be

recognized in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. EAEFTHEMMEE (E)

estimates (Continued)
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets

(other than goodwill and trademark with uncertain lifetime)

The Group assesses whether there are any indication of impairment
for all non-current assets other than financial assets at the balance
sheet date. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such indication
exists. Other non-current assets other than financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indication that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or asset group is higher than its recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the net of its fair value less costs to sell and the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from it), it
is indicated that such asset or asset group is impaired. The net of
the fair value less costs to sell is determined with reference to the
price in sales agreement or observable market price of similar assets
in arm’s length transaction, adjusted for incremental costs that
would be directly attributable to the disposal of the asset or asset
group. When calculating the present value of expected future cash
flows from an asset or asset group, the management shall estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or asset group and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value of those future cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused deductible
temporary differences and deductible losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and deductible losses can be
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profit together

with future tax planning strategies.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

32. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Net realizable values of inventories
The net realizable values of inventories are based on the saleability
of the evaluated inventory and their net realizable values.
The management’s judgments and estimates are required for
determining inventory impairment on the basis of clear evidence,
purpose of holding the inventories, effect of subsequent events
and other factors. The difference between the actual outcome and
original estimate will affect the carrying amount of inventories and
provision and reversal of decline in value of inventories during the

estimated revision period.

Impairment of receivable

Impairment of receivable is based on the recoverability of assessed
receivable. The management’s judgments and estimates are
required for determining impairment of receivable. The difference
between the actual outcome and original estimate will affect the
carrying amount of receivable and provision and reversal of bad

debts of receivable during the estimated revision period.

Recognition of provision

The Group uses contract terms, existing knowledge and historical
experience, to estimate and recognize the provision for product
quality assurance. On condition that such contingent matters have
formed a present obligation and the discharge of which is probable
to give rise to an outflow of the Group’s economic benefits, the

Group recognizes the best estimate.
Estimated useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of fixed assets and
intangible assets at least once at the end of the year. Estimated
useful lives are determined by the management based on
historical experience of similar assets and expected technological
advancement. Corresponding adjustment to depreciation and
amortization expenses for future periods will be made in case of

substantial changes in previous estimates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

33.

Change of accounting policies

Pursuant to the Notice Regarding the Publication of the Revision
to “Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 16 —
Government Subsidy” (Cai Kuai [2017] No. 15), with effect from 1
January 2017, the Group has included a separate “Other income”
item above the “Operating profit” item to reflect the government
subsidy related to the daily operations of the company. Pursuant to
Cai Kuai [2017] No. 15, the government subsidy already in existence
before 1 January 2017 was accounted for on a prospective basis.
Additional government subsidy granted between 1 January 2017
and the date of enforcement of this accounting standard has been

adjusted according to this accounting standard.

In view of the aforesaid requirements, the government subsidy
related to the daily operations of the company has been included
under “Other income” in the consolidated and company income
statement for the six months ended 30 June 2017. The aforesaid
change of accounting policies has no impact on the consolidated
and company income statement for the years 2014, 2015 and
2016.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Taxation

FR 5 R BT 5T (48)
201746 308 (A E#T)

g Bl

1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. FERERB=E

rates

Value-added tax (VAT)
S {ER;

Business tax

BEM

City maintenance and construction tax

T A SRR A

For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, output VAT is calculated by applying
17%, 11% and 6% to the taxable income for normal taxpayers, but the
Group may pay it after deducting deductible input VAT for the current
period.

REEBATFRE—MARARERBANIT7% 1% * 6%EF=E
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The basis of computation and applicable rate of VAT primarily applicable
to major overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set out below:
REEBIIF R EZFROIEENTTKE BERTEIRNT

Basis of computation Applicable country Tax rate
FBLR B BABEX HE
Amount of taxable added-value Germany 19%
JE M B E R = E

Value-added tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax laws
and regulations in force in the respective countries.
HBEREERNEBBE MR ERERMETE -

It used to be calculated by applying 5% to the taxable income prior to 1
May 2016. With effect from 1 May 2016, the change from business tax
to value-added tax was implemented throughout China according to the
Implementation Rules for the Trial Run of the Change from Business Tax
to Value-added Tax (Cai Shui (2016) No. 36), pursuant to which the levy
of business tax would be changed to the levy of value-added tax.
201655 1B Z AHRET U A RS % HEE %7 - 2016554 1H

B IR ER S AR AR B EIDE M [2016]365R 1R EE
PESEARFEENSUGEN  ABREENBRBRIEEN

It is levied at 7% or 5% on the actual turnover taxes paid.
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (AR oT)
IV. Taxation (Continued) g~ BiIE (4)
1.  Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. FEBERBE(E)

rates (Continued)

Education surcharge — ltis levied at 3% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

A BN BRERBMRRBR3 % -

Local education surcharge It is levied at 2% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

#h 75 2B BT 0 RERBMHRERN2 % -

Corporate income tax It is levied at 15% or 25% on the taxable profit, except that for overseas
DEFTSHR subsidiaries, it is levied at the statutory tax rate of the countries or regions
in which the subsidiaries operate.
BREBINFARIZREMERR - MEAEEBEAHIN - DEMSH
RN PTISEERI15%325% T4 ©
—  The basis of computation and applicable rate of corporate income tax
primarily applicable to major overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set

out below:
REBBIINEEFRAEZEBHANDEMEUA KR ERAM X
IR -
Basis of computation Applicable country January to
LR B BABER June 2017
2017
1-6 B =
Amount of taxable income Germany 30.85%
FE T PIS 3R 1=

Income tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax laws and
regulations in force in the respective countries.
HiBERMENNEEEE MR ERERETE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits

Value-added tax

In accordance with the Notice Concerning Exemption from Value-
added Tax and Consumption Tax applicable to Special-purpose
Military Vehicles ( (AR ERFHEEHEEIZERAEET 1B
4N) ) issued by MOF and State Administration of Taxation, the sale
of special-purpose military vehicles to army and armed police by
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, is

exempted from value-added tax.

Preferential corporate income tax for the Company

The Company was recognized as a high-tech enterprise on 27
November 2008. The Company continued to be recognized as a
high-tech enterprise in 2014 and is therefore entitled to enjoy a
preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016. The Company’s High-tech Enterprise Certificate
((EEEAMMDEEEE) ) expired on 31 December 2016. As at the
approval date of these financial statements, the Company was still
at the review stage for such status where the management had
completed a self-appraisal of the enterprise’s high-tech enterprise
qualifications. It is expected that the possibility of acquiring high-
tech enterprise qualifications is high and the tax rate of 15% is

expected to be still applicable.

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company

Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. was recognized as
a high-tech enterprise again in 2016 and was therefore entitled to
enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2016 to
31 December 2018.

Weichai (Weifang) Medium-duty Diesel Engine Co., Ltd., Shaanxi
Hande Axle Co., Ltd., Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd. and Zhuzhou
Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. were recognized as high-tech enterprises
and are therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of
15% from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017.

FR 5 R BT 5T (48)
201746 308 (A E#T)

M~ BioE ()

2.

BIRER

RER

ARBZFRARABE TEFRRD
BIRBM AL - BREEEB(RERN
FRARFREMREEERTEENDN
BAVHERER  KERBFEAD
FRFEEMEBULEN

RARIHEFEHRESR
RNRATN2008F 11 A27BWRATE A
B EMNE  2014F AR EER
WEFRMERRTE - B2014F1A°
1HZE20165F12HA31HZ%15%H
FIBRERBE - QAR IR
EEFE)EMN20169412A318F|
B BHEMB®RERER - BANDE
SR CEEERE  EEER R
BRETENSREMEEEEBST
TAFT RS R EEE A A sl
BA - HHRDEER15%80THE -

RARIRAFRAIBEMSEIN
BE
MEBH(CY) BREBR AR
0065 EFEFFTRMEEER
% B2016F1H1BZE2018%F12A
31AERI5%EHEBRRE -

HESE (S ) P RV S B BR A A ~ BR
FEEERBARAR ALELRA
BEFHHR A A FMFMAEANE XIEE
ERBEEAAEBBARMEKMEER
F o B2015F1A18BE2017412A
BTBERIS%AIGHERRE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

Shaanxi Automobile Datong Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd.
was recognized as a high-tech enterprise in 2016 and is therefore
entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

Other than the aforesaid companies, the respective High-tech
Enterprise Certificate K& #T IR % E &) of Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Automobile
Huainan Special Vechicles Co., Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd.,
Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing
Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Euro Grace Gear Automotive Transmission Co.,
Ltd., Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. and Shanghai
He Da Auto Accessory Co., Ltd. expired on 31 December 2016. As
at the approval date of these financial statements, these subsidiaries
of the Company were still at the review stage for such status where
the management had completed a self-appraisal of the enterprises’
high-tech enterprise qualifications. It is expected that the possibility
of acquiring high-tech enterprise qualifications is high and the tax

rate of 15% is expected to be still applicable.

Pursuant to the requirement of Cai Shui [2015] No. 34, Shaanxi
Fast Automotive Components Import and Export Company Limited
meets the criteria of a low-margin small-scale industrial enterprise
and is subject to corporate income tax at the reduced rate of 20%
based on its taxable income which is taken as 50% of its income

(equivalent to a 10% tax rate for corporate income tax).
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5 i 2 M 5 (48
201746 H308 (A R#T)

M~ BEIE (%)

2.

HWEE(E)
RAGIEANTFRARIDEMGN
BHE(E)
PARKFRIZERREBRAAN2016
FRARMEMEERTE - B2016
F1A1THE2018F 12 A31B X
15%FTEHEEMRE -

B AmN  RAERTEFRN
A REEERERERETAR
POVEMBERTIEEARAR - BHEZE
THERAREERR  HWNERE
REMERE - NN ERMEES
REFERR - RIMNEAR I EE A
RATE - HEBHHMEHERRE
FRRR EBMEAERGEAR AR
B(RH R EES)EN20164F
12A3MBAH  BHEMBERRUE
B ZEFARBDESHRIME
FHEBRRE  BEECRELEN
SHRMEEXEEAN  RAERG
MM EEELNAREERK - B
TG EB15% = o

RIE B FL[2015]34 5 M IR E + PR
FETRARETHHELOERAAF
ETIEPENEBFNCENRER
o BB R IR50% s A FE AR R AT
R R20% BB EHMDERF
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirement of the Notice Concerning Issues on
Taxation Policies Relating to the Thorough Implementation of
China’s Strategy of Western Development (Cai Shui Fa No. [2011]
58) (CEER R A E ite 75 5B K F 22 BB 75 B A W IK 28 ) 8 ) 38 )
promulgated by MOF, the State Administration of Taxation and
the General Administration of Customs dated 27 July 2011, the
following companies have implemented preferential tax policy of

15% for the Western Development:

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd.,
Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Automobile Xinjiang
Motor Co., Ltd, Xi‘an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast
Gear Co., Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Fast Eaton (Xi’‘an) Power
Transmission System Co., Ltd. and Weichai (Chongging) Automotive
Co., Ltd.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Announcement Concerning the
Cancellation of 22 Matters of Approvals About Non-administrative
Permissions to be Sought for Taxation Issues” numbered 58 of
2015 issued by the State Administration of Taxation on 18 August
2015, for those companies entitled to the preferential tax treatment
at 15% under the western development strategy of China, only
filing is required instead of approval. All the aforesaid companies
have passed the examination of 2016 Taxation Filing, and they are
expected to be entitled again to enjoy a preferential policy for the

Western Development in 2017.

FR 5 R BT 5T (48)
201746 308 (A E#T)

M~ BioE ()

2.

HWEE(E)
RABIRAFRBIEEMEH
BHE(E)

BEVBE  BERREER BHEE
E2011F 7827 B8 §23[2011]58
55 SCCR R R A B e 78 2B K 3 B IS
EERKEREEABAINERTE
THARZEXAIARFAE15%HIH
WERBEE -

i

PRABLAEFRAR - RAERE
BERAR MRALBBEFRA
A BOIHBAEARAT AR
IRHAEEHAEREMERR - REDE
THRHEHAREELNE  BEEALTH
EWAREEAR AL HFE(A
Z)BHNEBHERRBRIER R
R(EE)AEARRA -

BIE2015F8A1SHERMEARA
H2015F E585 XCR A2 BUH
22 B R 5 IETTIRAF AT AL B IHE
NEINRTE  EXAIAHE15%
MBI ERBRORARATEEEH]I
FHEER LARAAHEREB2016F
MM BEEREZ  B2017F 01§

THBAHABEIRROE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~# 0f i B #i 3k 2 BH H 5B
Statements
1. Cash and cash equivalents 1.

ERES

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

2017564308 2016412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (EEz)

Cash at bank EFRe 20,703,906.44 6,416,580.43
Bank deposits RITFR eI 21,589,174,946.34
Other cash and cash equivalents HEE%ER 6,512,458,438.46 5,527,390,328.56

29,882,970,357.70

27,122,981,855.33

As at 30 June 2017, the other cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to RMB6,503,980,672.64 (31 December 2016:
RMB5,524,149,950.11), all of which are used in letter of guarantee
and security monies for special accounts such as bank acceptance
bills and letter of credit and fixed deposits pledged to secure the
bank borrowings.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of RMB1,596,852,966.39 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,902,795,631.23), which were deposited overseas.

Interest income earned on bank current deposits is calculated by
using current deposit interest rate of the bank. The deposit periods
for fixed deposits vary from three months to one year depending
on the cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest income at
respective deposit interest rates of the bank.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Forward contracts EHAER
Cross currency interest rate swap RNEBNEEMRT A
instruments (Note V.64) (M=xH - 64)

M 2017 F#6 A30H8 @ X% @
HtEXXEesPBEBEARE
6,503,980,672.64 7t (2016 F 12 A
318 : AR#5,524,149,950.117T)
AMMRE - PRIRITRNEEE - 5
BEHEPREFORES URARE
AAMBRITERO T RFE -

R2017F6 8308 AEETF
MRRIINEBEESITEARKE
% 1,596,852,966.39 T ( 2016
F12A31H - AEARBE A
1,902,795,631.237C) °

RIT/A BT IR IR IR 1708 3 72 5K R =&
MEHEWA - ERFROFHIAE
BSEAENFAE  KAKENRSE
FRME » LIRIBABEHRITFRA
KMGHBWA e

UAREBEFEEESE
SFAEBHESNEREE

30 June 2017
201766 H30H

31 December 2016
2016412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER)

(RRER)

285,619,257.60 75,559,618.80

53,736,404.70

285,619,257.60 129,296,023.50
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
3. Notes Receivable

RS 3% B G (4
2017464308 (A RET)
1. ~é‘%ﬁ§ﬁa‘i§$ﬁi€igiﬁ S

)

3. EREE

30 June 2017

31 December 2016

2017%6H30H 2016512 831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEFZ) (L ®|HZ)

Bank acceptance bills HRITHGEERE
Commercial acceptance bills [GEZ S

23,434,135,067.76
2,974,558.50

16,738,403,958.52
4,470,316.00

23,437,109,626.26 16,742,874,274.52

Among which, notes receivable which had been pledged are
presented as follows:

Hep DERANEREENOT :

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

2017%6H30H 2016912 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBEXR) (&= %)

Bank acceptance bills RITAH ESR

6,952,246,580.76 5,263,763,893.86

Notes receivable which had been endorsed but not yet expired as at

EEEEHEEERBAAMARIHD

the balance sheet date are presented as follows: EWEENAT :
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6H30H 20165 12A318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Derecognized  Not derecognized Derecognized Not derecognized
BIEER R TR R EHER
Bank acceptance bills RITERIES 14,377,034,812.23 = 3,868,438,322.72 =
Commercial acceptance bills EEELES 3,869,092.00 1,421,000.30 4,345,132.00 4,470,316.00
14,380,903,904.23 1,421,000.30 3,872,783,454.72 4,470,316.00

Notes receivable already discounted but not yet expired as at the
balance sheet date are presented as follows:

30 June 2017
201746 A30AH
(Unaudited)
(REERZ)

Not derecognized

Derecognized

Bank acceptance bills BITRGES 40,700,000.00

As at 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group has not
transferred any notes into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure
in performance.

EMAEEEERBRAARIHN
FEMRIBLAT

31 December 2016
20165 12A31H
(Audited)
(&ER)
Derecognized Not derecognized
REILER BIERR RE IR

= 5,170,000.00 =

7201796 A30H &2016412 A31
A AEEERHZEAENBLOME
ZEEARBERTNZE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

4.

Accounts Receivable

The Group trades with its customers primarily on credit terms,
and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new
customers. Credit period is generally one to six months. Accounts

receivable is non-interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on invoice dates is

presented as follows:
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RS i 2 BT 5 (48

201746 30 (A E#T)

T SO R R R EIEH R
(78)

4. FEWBRR
FEBRESHNE S ERAEER
5ABE  A-—REXFELENZR
REE BN R RET - SRR
B1-618 7 - EUEERIL TS -

BEEEAS - EREROERS I
mF

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
201756 H30H 2016412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREEX) (gE=)

Within 3 months 3MEALARA

3 to 6 months 31E A =618 A
6 months to 1 year JEE S

1 to 2 years 1F 225

2 to 3 years 2FE3F
Over 3 years 3FLAE

11,216,583,298.14 8,252,128,633.29
957,772,374.83 1,448,583,141.59
1,419,224,250.99 997,629,041.10
381,025,198.75 508,279,954.23
350,622,237.34 468,393,039.64
853,018,386.13 805,237,129.91

Less: provision for bad debt in respect & : FEURBR FIZ IR EM

of accounts receivable

15,178,245,746.18 12,480,250,939.76

1,448,548,438.96 1,144,057,968.02

13,729,697,307.22 11,336,192,971.74

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of accounts receivable

are presented as follows:

e BR TR AR E R BB AN T

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6B30H 2016512 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Opening balance 8/ FHE

Provision for the period/year NEFEHR

Decrease during the period/year: NEER A
Reversal o
Write-off HEiH

Adjustment for exchange differences M W 2= R B

1,144,057,968.02 937,306,781.71
299,049,705.76 251,651,180.10

(451,453.17) (45,116,426.01)
(466,132.77) (2,509,812.74)
6,358,351.12 2,726,244.96

Closing balance Hy R

1,448,548,438.96 1,144,057,968.02




106 weichai Power Co., Ltd. 558 H IR HE R A

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (A ET)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Accounts Receivable (Continued) 4. FEWERM(E)
30 June 2017
201746 H30AR
Gross carrying  Proportion Provision for  Percentage
(Unaudited) amount (%) bad debt (%)

TR A
(REERK) ARIE ER 2R EL (%) RRER (%)

Individually significant items for ~ BEIESEE AT
which provision for bad debtis IR IEEE
recognized separately 957,993,636.60 . 503,036,457.65

Items for which provision for bad 1% {2 ALl 41484
debt is recognized by group with  FHEZRERE
distinctive credit risk characteristics 13,839,011,914.27 847,147,017.46

Not individually significant items for BB 4 51 & A {E
which provision for bad debt is BRITRERER
recognized separately 381,240,195.31 2.51 98,364,963.85

15,178,245,746.18 100.00 1,448,548,438.96

31 December 2016
2016%F12A31H

Gross carrying Proportion Provision for Percentage

(Audited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
FHRELAI

(&E%) RHEEE L l(%) ZHRER (%)

Individually significant items for ~ EIB&FE AW EH

which provision for bad debtis ~ F2IZEEEH

recognized separately 1,083,724,304.59 8.69 442,290,597.67 40.81
Items for which provision for bad ~ #Z/5 R AL

debt is recognized by group with ~ FHEER%ERE

distinctive credit risk characteristics 10,941,690,683.36 87.67 605,279,723.50 5.53
Not individually significant items for B4 %81 & A (B

which provision for bad debtis ~ EEFREREH

recognized separately 454,835,951.81 3.64 96,487,646.85 21.21

12,480,250,939.76 100.00 1,144,057,968.02 9.17




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
4. Accounts Receivable (Continued)

S5 R WA R (A

Interim Report 2017 FHEAZRE

2017664308 (A B¥T)

(%)
4. BWRRFR(E)

As at 30 June 2017, individually significant items for which provision

for bad debt is recognized separately are presented as follows:

Gross carrying

(Unaudited) amount

(REER) RE RS

Shanxi Tong Tai Automobile Sales Services 56,927,140.00
Co., Ltd

LIEBRAEHERBERLA

Guangzhou lingi Trading Company Limited 49,159,575.31

ENTEEESERAT

Shaanxi Rong Chang Yuan Trading Co., Ltd 43,173,316.66

RAREEESERAT

Dalian Shaanxi Automobile Sales Co., Ltd 40,516,068.59

RERATEHERRAF

Hubei Space Shuanglong Special Purpose 35,611,768.86

Vehicle Co., Ltd.
BUAMAERERAEERD A

Nanjing Lerong Trading Company Limited 32,989,886.43
HRERESERAF
Fujian Zhongxin Dingxing Automobile Sales 32,623,150.80

Service Company Limited
RETERENEHERKARAHA

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd. 28,255,154.82
AT AERHBBAF
Shandong Liugong Concrete Equipment 26,400,747.00

Company Limited
LR TRRE L ZEEBR A

Datong Yifu Trading Co., Ltd. 24,739,112.36
ARTHEHEEREELT

Jining Shite Heavy-duty Motor Sales Co., Ltd. 23,781,009.73
EEMLEER AEHEERDA

Others 563,816,706.04
ity

957,993,636.60

Provision for
bad debt

RIRER

56,927,140.00

49,159,575.31

43,173,316.66

38,490,265.16

33,831,180.42

31,656,086.43

26,098,520.64

26,246,511.06

25,080,709.65

12,369,556.18

23,781,009.73

136,222,586.41

503,036,457.65

H2017%6H30H @ B4 EEE A
BEFIREREGNEUIRZIBE RN

T

Percentage

R LAl

100%

T~ A O B R £ EIH H RERR

EENIN

TR

Long credit age

R

Bad repayment ability
BEENE

Not full coverage of
preservation

BHR2EE

Bad repayment ability
BEENZE

In bankruptcy proceeding
REFEH

Assets have been preserved
HEEEH
Litigation

EiEA

Long credit age
RERE
Litigation

EiEh

Bad repayment ability
BEENZE

Bad repayment ability
BEENZE

Long credit age etc.

RERE

107
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7~ & 0f & #fEK FEIHH B

Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Accounts Receivable (Continued) 4. FEWERR(E)
As at 31 December 2016, individually significant items for which M2016F 128310 » EIESFEE KX
provision for bad debt is recognized separately are presented as I BB IE R EE NS N
follows: mr
Gross carrying Provision for
(Audited) amount bad debt Percentage Reasons
(E&i) REHE ERER Eigidail SHiRIEM
Shanxi Tong Tai Automobile Sales Services 56,927,140.00 51,234,426.00 90% Long credit age
Co., Ltd RER
IWERZEHERBERLRA
Guangzhou Jingi Trading Company Limited 49,159,575.31 49,122,478.71 100% Bad repayment ability
ENTEEREZERAR EREENZ
Shaanxi Rong Chang Yuan Trading Co., Ltd 43,173,316.66 38,855,985.00 90% Not full coverage of
RAREREHERAR preservation
HA2EE
Anhui Anyu Engineering Machinery Sales 42,763,993.80 8,552,798.76 20% Bad repayment ability
Co., Ltd EEENE
ZHRTIREMHEERAA
Dalian Shaanxi Automobile Sales Co., Ltd 40,516,068.59 32,412,854.87 80% Bad repayment ability
RERAAEHERBRLRA EEENZ
Hubei Space Shuanglong Special Purpose 35,611,768.86 28,489,415.09 80% In bankruptcy proceeding
Vehicle Co., Ltd. RERE
MAMAERERAEERAF
Nanjing Lerong Trading Company Limited 32,989,886.43 31,340,392.11 95% Assets have been preserved
HREREFERAR HEEEH
Fujian Zhongxin Dingxing Automobile Sales 32,641,150.80 13,056,460.32 40% Litigation
Service Company Limited A
BRAGEEAEHERBERDA
Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd. 28,128,335.47 25,328,330.79 90% Long credit age
RABEF R AERNDERAA RER
Shandong Liugong Concrete Equipment 26,400,747.00 10,560,298.80 40% Litigation
Company Limited B
LRI RELTSEERA
Others 695,412,321.67 153,337,157.22 22% Long credit age etc.
HAt RERE

1,083,724,304.59 442,290,597.67
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ HIH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Accounts Receivable (Continued) 4. FEWERM(E)
The Group's accounts receivable for which bad debts are provided AEBERABRRDITEAGTIREREE
for using aging analysis are presented as follows: R EWBR RIS RN -
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017568300 2016%12A318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH) (#&%)
Gross carrying ~ Proportion Provision for  Percentage Gross carrying Proportion Provision for  Percentage
amount (%) bad debt (%) amount (%) bad debt (%)
REA SR
RESE  LA(%) BRER (%) BESE  wh%) ZRER (%)
Within 1 year 1ER 5,746,574,587.30 8730 330,829,424.02 SL  3,454,618,906.80 80.52 17273094534 5.00
1102 years 122% 256,600,693.13 3.90 38,490,103.97 15.00 285,450,040.46 6.65 40,891,768.47 1433
2103 years 153F 224,569,565.13 34 67,370,869.54 30.00 308,401,874.67 719 91,205,310.70 2957
304 years 324F 143,916,233.36 219 71,958,116.54 50.00 88,149,405.72 205 44,074,702.85 50.00

4105 years 4F5F 54,766,131.83 0.83 43,812,905.47 80.00 14,446,863.87 034 11,557491.10 80.00
Qver 5 years SERLE 156,145,998.72 231 156,145,998.72 (WOUDRS  139,550,437.44 325 13955043744 100.00

6,582,573,209.47 100.00  708,607,418.26 (VS 4,290,617,528.96 100.00  500,010,655.90 11.65
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
4. Accounts Receivable (Continued)
The Group’s accounts receivable for which bad debts are provided
for using overdue periods as credit risk profile are presented as

follows:

30 June 2017
2017568308
(Unaudited)
(REEH)

Gross carrying ~ Proportion Provision for

amount (%) bad debt

REGE L%

Neither overdue nor impaired 7 i 23 (& 4,943,918,549.95 68.13
Due and impaired aHERE 836,981,786.37 11.53 138,539,599.20
Due and not impaired RREHE 1,475,538,368.48 2034 -

7,256,438,704.80 100.00  138,539,599.20

As at 30 June 2017, the top five balances in respect of accounts
receivable had a sum of closing balance of RMB1,600,030,536.41
(31 December 2016: RMB1,011,623,448.77), accounting for
10.54% (31 December 2016: 8.11%) of the total of closing balance
of accounts receivable. The closing balance in respect of bad debt
provided for the top five amounted to RMB80,001,526.82 (31
December 2016: RMB29,654,169.13).

As at 30 June 2017, accounts receivable with a gross carrying value
of RMB428,211,098.88 was pledged for securing bank borrowing
of RMB41,215,870.00 (31 December 2016: Nil) from Huaxia Bank
Co., Ltd. Xi'an branch.

RS ik R B 5 (48
2017464308 (A RET)
T A 0P B R R EIH H RERE
(%)
4. FEWERM(E)

Percentage
(%)
A
(%)

KABARKERSERRRIEHGTE
BRRERNEUERBRNT

31 December 2016

2016512318
(Audited)
(&%%)
Gross carrying  Proportion Provision for  Percentage
amount (%) bad debt (%)

SR
RAHE  Lhi(%) SERER (%)

4,694,800,367.08 70.59 = =

764,445,113.78 1149 105,269,067.60 13.77

1,191,827,673.54 1792 = =

6,651,073,154.40 100.00  105,269,067.60 158

M201756 A308 © B AEHN
BURERNBARRBETARARE
1,600,030,536.41 70 (2016 F 12 A
31 H : AR ® 1,011,623,448.77
) MERERARBKRES TR
B £l & 10.54% (2016 4 12 A
318 : 8.11%) + %A1 A & M8 EET
ROZEREEHRBERARE
80,001,526.82 7 (2016 4 12 A 31
B : AR®29,654,169.137L) °

M2017F6 4308 « NEBBEUER
HEHEREAR®428,211,098.88
TER MEERTRODERA
AIEEDITRBRATERARE
41,215,870.00 7T (2016 € 12 A 31
H:&)-
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & 0f B % # 38 3= B IH H 5E B
Statements (Continued) (%)
5. Prepayments 5. EfNRE
An aging analysis of prepayments is presented as follows: T RIBBRRESTAT
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
201756 H30H 201612318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (&&2)
Proportion Proportion
Amount (%) Amount (%)
ot ] EEBl(%) G Ef31l(%)
Within 1 year 1EAR 566,065,261.21 94.91 555,569,294.37 93.24
110 2 years 1226 17,010,803.41 2.85 23,906,886.87 4.01
2 1o 3 years 2E3F 5,000,159.57 0.84 9,362,708.63 1.58
QOver 3 years 3L E 8,334,151.99 1.40 6,993,261.32 1.17
596,410,376.18 100.00 595,832,151.19 100.00
As at 30 June 2017, there was no significant prepayments with an M2017566H308 » ERE—F U L
age of more than one year (31 December 2016: Nil). MEZFEMK(20165F12831H -
/) o
As at 30 June 2017, the closing balances of the top 5 prepayments MR2017F6A308 ' A AEHN
amounted in aggregate to RMB124,681,414.31, representing ENRENBARREETAARE
20.91% of the total closing balances of all prepayments at end. 124,681,414.317C * 158 R IEH
RBBEARTEMNLD520.91% °
As at 31 December 2016, the closing balances of the top 5 M20165F12A31H  #HEHAZN
prepayments amounted in aggregate to RMB254,201,354.71, ENREBNERREESTAARE
representing 42.66% of the total closing balances of all 254,201,354.717C * (B RIEBEF
prepayments as at year end. REABE AT HM L /542.66% °
6. Interests receivable 6. BWHZE

Interests on time deposits EHFHRFE

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017566 H30H 201612 831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&&=

42,025,061.49 26,284,015.32
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
7. Dividends receivable

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.
Proplan Transport
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.

PRFEERET T T BB AR D B IR A A
Proplan Transport
bAEEAERNDERAR

RS ik R B 5 (48
2017464308 (A RET)
Ti - 45 Bt 5 0 2 3 R R
(%)
7. EWER
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
20176 H30H 20165 12A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEXR) (f&F:%)
3,040,000.00 3,040,000.00
8,772,547.20 6,671,108.40
2,080,000.00 -
13,892,547.20 9,711,108.40

8. Other receivables

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:

8. HiEWR
Hib KBRS T T -

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

2017%6H30H 2016912 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&FEZR) (f&#i%)

Within 1 year
1 to 2 years
2 to 3 years
Over 3 years

1F AR
1227
2E3F
3F LA L

1,184,817,273.74
73,574,116.53
12,859,076.77
77,404,012.51

749,893,188.91
41,472,988.52
16,339,720.44
64,918,908.31

Less: Provision for bad debts in respect of J& : £ {th B Ug FUE BR

other receivables

1,348,654,479.55 872,624,806.18

58,181,944.54 51,626,275.30

1,290,472,535.01 820,998,530.88

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables

are as follows:

Hip U SIRRERNESINT ¢

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

2017%6H30H 2016512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f&E%)

51,626,275.30
11,259,049.83

55,338,843.24
1,059,769.02

(14,322.95)
(21,504.00)
(4,667,553.64)

(4,203,285.22)
(562,251.32)
(6,800.42)

Opening balance Hi F R
Provision for the period/year AEFEHR
Decrease during the period/year: NEFER D
Reversal $0]
Write-off =¥
Adjustment for exchange differences M N Z R
Closing balance i F R

58,181,944.54 51,626,275.30
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ HIH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
8. Other receivables (Continued) 8. HMEWRK(E)
30 June 2017
201746 A30R
Percentage
Gross carrying  Proportion Provision for  of provision
(Unaudited) amount (%) bad debt (%)

(REER) SREERER ELHl(%) BIRERE  FHREEHI(%)

Individually significant items for BB EEAL EH
which provision for bad debt is HEEIRERE
recognized separately

Items for which provision for bad  #Z{E BREBRSEHEA
debt is recognized by group FHEEIRER
with distinctive credit risk
characteristics 1,251,491,281.56 36,850,667.86

Not individually significant items ~ EESFEAEAR
for which provision for bad debt BB TIRZERERE
is recognized separately 97,163,197.99 7.20 21,331,276.68

1,348,654,479.55 100.00 58,181,944.54

31 December 2016

2016512 H31H
Percentage
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for of provision
(Audited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
€ &2 R L6 1(%) EHRER SHREEHI(%)
Individually significant items for ~ EIR& B AL &E15
which provision for bad debt is SHIRERER
recognized separately - - - -
Items for which provision for bad 1% {2 A& 418 4
debt is recognized by group TR
with distinctive credit risk
characteristics 791,358,962.41 90.69 34,452,243.59 4.35
Not individually significant items ~ BEIE&FE A& A(E
for which provision for bad debt B H12IZ B
is recognized separately 81,265,843.77 9.31 17,174,031.71 21.13

872,624,806.18 100.00 51,626,275.30 5.92
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

8. Other receivables (Continued)

The Group's other receivables for which bad debts are provided for

using aging analysis are presented as follows:

Within 1 year
1102 years
2103 years
3to4years
4105 years

Over 5 years

1EA
122%
123%
IR4E
425%
SEN L

Amount

£

511,511,026.33
35,961,163.75
11,460,543.16
8,920,239.64
2,186,688.92
14,451,297.36

584,490,959.16

30 June 2017
2017568308

(Unaudited)
(REEH)

Proportion
(%)

(%)

87.51
6.15
1.96
1.53
0.38
)

100.00

Provision for
bad debt

RRER
1,123,866.69
5,379,882.70
3,438,162.95
4,460,119.82
1,749,351.14

14,451,297.36

36,602,680.66

Other receivables calculated based on invoice date, for which bad

debts are provided for using overdue ages as a distinctive credit risk

characteristic, the aging and bad debt provision are presented as

follows:

Within 1 year
1102 years
2103 years
Qver 3 years

1R
152F
183F
3EPE

Amount

&%

602,492,652.00
37,624,308.00
1,387,178.40
25,496,184.00

667,000,322.40

30 June 2017
2017564308

(Unaudited)
(RE27)

Proportion
(%)

(%)

90.33
5.64
0.21
3.82

100.00

Provision for
bad debt

TRER

247,987.20

247,981.20

PR 5 i I R (4)

2017664308 (A B¥T)

T 5B HREEEEE
(74)

Percentage
(%)
Al
(%)

139
14.96
30.00
50.00
80.00

100.00

6.26

Percentage
(%)
R
(%)

8. H W (&)
R BRI W AT A RIEER R
B E M R IER AT -

31 December 2016
20165124318
(Audited)
(B%4)
Amount  Proportion Provision for  Percentage
(%) bad debt (%)
SR
28 %) RRER (%)
220,396,541.53 80.06 4,594,603.67 2.08
13,081,845.13 475 1612.276.77 123
11,889,879.24 432 2,964,724.55 2493
9,732,598.60 354 4,867,299.30 50.01
252,199.04 0.09 201,759.23 80.00
19,948,535.27 1.4 19,948,535.27 100.00
275,301,598.81 100.00 34,189,198.79 1242

RRABMRKERERRRSHGHE
BEREFNEMBIRARZAGE

M AR MR ERIE R ¢

31 December 2016
20165128318
(Audited)
(B%4)
Amount  Proportion Provision for  Percentage
(%) bad debt (%)
AR
28 A% SIRER (%)
461,900,534.69 89.51 263,044.80 0.06
28,373,646.31 5.50 = =
4,449,841.20 0.86 - -
21,333,341.40 413 = =
516,057,363.60 100.00 263,044.80 0.05
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (A ET)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0F b % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)

8. Other receivables (Continued) 8.

Other receivables are categorized by nature as follows:

H B WK ()
b IR S R

30 June 2017

31 December 2016

20176 H30H 201612 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (EE=%)

Transfer of fund BeER 123,023,598.67 5,481,409.71
Compensation claim R 94,510,855.94 -
Commission receivable el H e 93,754,660.80 89,727,504.00

Corporate lending and payment on behalf 1> 2 # & 3k & XA 50
Consideration receivable for asset transfer & Ux & E 52 2N

55,493,614.47
51,751,828.80

38,206,193.71
62,485,999.58

Employee advance ERs 41,627,295.49 48,282,891.96
Deposit btk 38,257,306.74 47,270,403.16
Others Hib 850,235,318.64 581,170,404.06

1,348,654,479.55

As at 30 June 2017, the top 5 other receivables are presented as

872,624,806.18

M2017F6A30H @ EMtERZEEE

follows: BIABAT :
Percentage of Closing balance
total other of bad debt
(Unaudited) Closing balance receivables (%) Nature provision
EE A ERR
BHEATTY BIRER
(REER) HAREAE HLE il (%) g ik HAREAE
First F£-% 94,096,836.18 6.98 Transfer of fund Within 1 year
ELAR (E: 00
Second F£-4 93,754,660.80 6.95 Commission Within 1 year
receivable 15 54R
By
Third E=4 51,751,828.80 Consideration Within 2 years
for asset transfer PEDL
Fourth FMZ 27,449,083.20 Others Within 1 year
Hitr 15 0R
Fifth FRE 23,202,302.40 Others Within 1 year

290,254,711.38

Hito

(E:20
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % #i 38 3= B IH H 5E B
Statements (Continued) (%)
Other receivables (Continued) 8. HMEWFE(E)
As at 31 December 2016, the top 5 other receivables are presented 20164128318 @ EElZR S
as follows: BRIAAZAT
Percentage of
total other Closing balance
receivables of bad debt
(Audited) Closing balance (%) Nature Age provision
15 E o U R
BEAHE ZIRER
(B&%) FRHE (I LE (%) g Bk FRHBE
First £—4% 89,727,504.00 10.28 Commission Within 1 year -
receivable 1ELA
[ iika
Second £-4 21,920,400.00 2.51 Consideration for Over 3 years -
asset transfer 3FNUE
BEEEN
Third B=4 19,063,441.20 2.18 Others Within 1 year =
Hity TELA
Fourth EJUES 16,615,663.20 1.90 Others Within 1 year =
it 1EUR
Fifth ERiE 12,627,423.78 145 Corporate lendingand ~ Within 2 years and 10,101,939.04
payment on behalf 4105 years
PEEREFRAER  2FUAARL-SF
159,954,432.18 18.32 10,101,939.04

As at 30 June 2017, no other receivables was pledged for securing

bank borrowings of the Group (31 December 2016: Nil).

Inventories

Goods n transit g

Raw materials B

Finished goods ERd

OEM materials FHMIIH

Self made semi-finished goods  EE R R K&
and work in progress fER

Tumover materials R

Second-hand vehicles “FE

Gross carrying
amount

RAHE

521,579,567.79
2,322,987,616.21
12,298,648,957.35
313,342,923.62

2,683,363,769.57
1,199,708,804.47
541,641,321.96

19,881,272,960.97

30 June 2017
2017€6A30A
(Unaudited)
(REEH)

Provision for
decline in value

HERR

104,730,260.58
416,107,023.46
960,198.40

68,197,893.87
100,537,395.61
51,037,394.76

741,570,166.68

MN2017FE6 8308 » REBEBHAM
FEU R E AR IS RITERNEBER
(20165128318 : &) -

9. 8
31 December 2016
20165124318
(Audited)
(&2%)
Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carying
O amount decline in value amount
REEE Fasg REER REBE
521,579,567.79 366,189,377.40 - 366,189,377.40
2,218,257,355.63 2,236,284,388.23 89,083,920.56 2,147,200,467.67
11,882,541,933.89  RUMARRSHANI) 399,709,065.68 9,876,179,704.39
312,382,725.22 83,339,736.38 67912435 82,660,612.03
2,615,165,875.70 2,259,007,697.65 64,180,637.89 2,194,827,059.76
1,099,171,408.86 1,064,668,831.23 74,567,106.81 990,101,774.42
490,603,927.20 471,608,920.62 38,111,090.22 433,497,830.40
(EAEER(VALT VIR 16,756,987,771.58 666,330,945.51  16,090,656,826.07
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & £ IH H 5 &

Statements (Continued) (%)

9. Inventories (Continued) 9. FEH(#E)
The changes in provision for decline in value of inventories are as GFEKREEEHEZSHNT :
follows:
January to June 2017 20174 1-6 H

Decrease during the period

rHES
Charge Adjustment
Opening during for exchange Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period Reversal Write-off differences balance
(REER) AR KGR & B ERZERE HARRE
Raw materials ke 89,083,920.56 21,345,224.94 (4,954,792.75) (4,819,365.81) 4,075,273.64 104,730,260.58
Finished goods EfH 399,709,065.68  126,263,073.85 (6,092,509.86)  (105,133,373.32) 1,360,767.11  416,107,023.46
OEM materials ZRMIMH 679,124.35 - (491,621.12) (6,472.59) 719,167.76 960,198.40
Self made semi-finished goods & &5 @ &t
and work in progress EER 64,180,637.89 9,488,302.48 (5,541,248.95) (527,674.96) 597,877.41 68,197,893.87
Turnover materials B 74,567,106.81 31,310,913.00 (10,456,704.23) (304,049.89) 5420,129.92  100,537,395.61
Second-hand vehicles k31 38,111,090.22 15,434,107.44 (5,206,585.18) 2,698,782.28 51,037,394.76
666,330,945.51 203,841,621.71 (32,743,462.09)  (110,790,936.57) 14,931,998.12 741,570,166.68
2016 20164
Decrease during the year
RERD
Adjustment
Opening Charge for exchange Closing
(Audited) balance  during the year Reversal Write-off differences balance
(B&%) ERE KR o) & EXEERE EXBE
Raw materials Fit# 42,474,898.79 64,863,277.48 (7,802,558.31)  (10,901,443.56) 449,746.16 89,083,920.56
Finished goods ERm 295,154,249.44  342,796,317.84  (14,396,855.83)  (225,259,700.72) 1,415,054.95 399,709,065.68
OEM materials ZRMIHH 61,989.08 768,476.16 (224,362.69) (904.07) 73,925.87 679,124.35
Seff made semi-finished goods ~ BE £ AR
and work in progress HER 23,212,973.00 44,351,759.65 (2,939,526.69) (876,279.69) 431,711.62 64,180,637.89
Tumover materials BEiH 26,196,251.33  60,039,319.63  (10,935,953.35) (757,735.82) 2522502 74,567,106.81
Second-hand vehicles “FF 13,643,598.47 29,315,154.44 (5,347,612.90) - 499,950.21 38,111,090.22

400,743,960.11  542,134305.20  (41,646,869.77)  (237,796,063.86) 2,895,613.83 666,330,945.51
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

9.

10.

11.

Inventories (Continued)

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

Provision for decline in value of inventories is determined based on

the excess of cost over net realizable value and shall be reversed

within the original provision for decline in value of inventories when

the factors that give rise to the decline in value of inventories in

prior years are not in effect in current period.

Non-current assets due within one year

Finance lease receivables

BEHEEEUR

Note V.13

MfzE® - 13

As at 30 June 2017, none of the Group’s non-current assets due

within one year was pledged to secure its bank borrowings (31

December 2016: Nil).

Other current assets

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(74)

9. FE(#)
A B R A S T S B E e
WHETEREEE  LEMARE

10.

11.

1,615,171,632.00

FREEEMNTERFBELRE £RC
ARNFEREEFNSEAED -

—FRIBNFERDEE

31 December 2016

30 June 2017

2017%6H30H 2016512 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fE®|HZ)

1,463,427,824.40

MR2017F6A308  KEBEE —F
NEIH R IE R B & =S 1R AR ISR

TEZIMEBER(20165F12 8318 -
£::

HitRBEE

Prepaid expenses

Input tax credit to be deducted

Principal-protected fixed income
investment products

Principal-protected variable income
wealth management products

Prepaid corporate income tax

Input tax credit to be certified
Others

53 -4
FFIRHE AT AR
RAEE RSB E E M

PRANF B W e B 38 B 22

BRI EREH
FREFEIBE

<F o R A

HAth

30 June 2017
201766 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

476,044,795.80
653,649,673.09

139,000,000.00

600,000,000.00
169,067,082.60
159,589,366.06

55,696,391.55

2,253,047,309.10

31 December 2016
201612 831H
(Audited)
(=)

366,777,040.19
623,864,541.99

760,000,000.00
262,293,652.66

54,802,044.28

2,067,737,279.12
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ HIH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
12. Available-for-sale financial assets 12. JtHESREE
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017568308 0165128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE%H) (2R
Gross carrying Provision for Carrying (ross carrying Provsion for Carying
amount impairment amount amount mpaiment amount
FagE HEEE EEEE i HEEE FERE
Available-for-sale equity THYEEATE
Instruments
Atfarvlue B0nEESE 304,161,277.60 30416127760 055382120 - 25055382120
Atcot BiLiE 378,148,831.31 (128,491,930.00) 249,656,901.31 376,322, 458.91 (128,491,930.00) 24783052891
682,310,108.91 (128,491,930.00) 553,818,178.91 626,876,280.11 (128,491,930.00) 498,384 350.11
Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value: UMAREBEEFENTHEESHE
=

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6A30H 201612 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (L #|HZ)
Cost of equity instruments M T ARAR 220,938,445.40 197,422,120.40

Fair value changes accrued to other 2EETAHMARE WK
comprehensive income ANrBEE 81,934,784.00 53,200,000.00
Adjustment for exchange differences PE N ZRRFAE 1,288,048.20 (68,299.20)

Fair value NRfEE 304,161,277.60 250,553,821.20
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (A ET)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i % $it 3¢ £ 2 0H H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)

12. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) 12. AAHESREE (&)
Available-for-sale financial assets at cost: AT ENAHEESmEE
30 June 2017 201796 A30H

Gross carrying amount Provision for impairment

REHE REER

Increase Decrease  Adjustment Increase Decrease Percentage of

Opening during during ~ for exchange Closing Opening during during Closing ~ shareholding ~ Cash dividend

(Unaudited) balance the period theperiod  differences balance balance the period the period balance %) for the period

(REEH) BN8E BNy AR EXZEAR HARE BN6E AN ABED HARE  RRUA%) FEREAA

Foton Heavy-duty Machinery BREVERRD

Co, Ltd. BRAF 38,630,876.88 38,630,876.88  1,408,500.00 1,408,500.00
Xinjie Investment and Guarantee ~ ERREERAR
(o, Ltd. (Note) EfERA(H) 5,135,800.00 5,135,800.00  5,135,800.00 5,135,800.00
Huarong Xiangjiang Bank EREIRA
Corporation Limited 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
China National Machinery and PR ESE
Equipment Hainan Corp., Ltd. BHERAA 879,605.00 87960500  879,605.00 879,605.00
Zhuzhou Gear Company Limited ~~ # &% R (5
BRAF 1,680,000.00 1,680,000.00
Eastern Life Insurance Co,, Ltd. BHASRE
BRAF 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00  60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00
New Century Finance Leasng fteeRag
(o, td ARAE 61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00  61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00
Xiamen Fengtai Bus & Coach EMLRARHER
International Co., Ltd REARAE 24,999,800.00 24,999,800.00
Yangzhou Suken Yinhe Auto BiERRTER
Connecting Rod Co,, Ltd. BRAR 1,563,949.23 - - - 1563,949.3 -
Others Eft 162,364,402.80  12,877,987.50 (20,209,108.50)  9,157,493.40 164,190,775.20 18,394,992.00

376,32245891  12,877,987.50 (20,209,108.50)  9,157,493.40 37814883131 12849193000 128,491,930.00 18,394,992.00
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i~ & 0f & &K FEIHH B

. ==3
Statements (Continued) (%)
12. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) 12. AItHESHEE(E)
Available-for-sale financial assets at cost: (Continued) UK AGFENAHEHESREE
(&) :
2016 20164
Gross carrying amount Provision for impairment
BHAR HEER
Adjustment Percentage of
Opening ~ Increase during  Decrease during ~ for exchange Closing Opening ~ Increase during  Decrease during Closing ~ shareholding ~ Cash dividend
(Audited) balance the year the period differences balance balance the year the period balance (%) for the year
(Bz71%) ERE REEN rER) ERZERE EXBE E5E REEM KERD ERBE O BRILO%) FERLLH
Foton Heavy-duty Machinery RREN#ER R
Co., Ld. BRA 38,630,876.88 - - - 3863087688  1,408,500.00 - - 1,408,500.00 6.14 -
Xinjie Investment and Guarantee ~~ ERREARRERER
Co., Ltd. (Note) R 5,135,800.00 - - - 5135800.00 - 513580000 - 5135800.00 25.00 -
Huarong Xiangjiang Bank ERIRT
Corporation Limited 20,000,000.00 - - - 20,000,000.00 - - - - 032 2,000,000.00
China National Machinery and PEEHREEERG
Equipment Hainan Corp., Ltd. ARAH 879,605.00 - - - 879,605.00 879,605.00 - - 879,605.00 0.66 -
Zhuzhou Gear Company Limited K EEROERAR 1,680,000.00 - - - 1,680,000.00 - - - - 245 -
Eastern Life Insurance Co., Ltd. RHAZRBEBRAR  60,000,00000 - - - 60,000,000.00  60,000,000.00 - - 60,000,000.00 150 -
New Century Finance Leasing HtReREs
Co., Ltd. ERAA 61,068,025.00 - - - 61,068025.00 61,068,025.00 - - 61,068,025.00 12 -
Xiamen Fengtai Bus & Coach ERERARHER
International Co., Ltd AEBRA 24,999,800.00 = = - 24,999,800.00 - - - - 1547 -
Yangzhou Suken Yinhe Auto alERRTRER
Connecting Rod Co., Ltd. ERAR 1,563,949.23 - - - 1,563949.23 - - - - 15.00 -
Others £t 300,864,860.80 549,210.00 (144,742,464.80)  5,692,796.80 162,364,402.80 = - - - 19,379,118.45
514,822,916.91 54921000 (144,742,464.80)  5692,796.80 376,322,45891 123356,130.00  5,135,800.00 - 128,491,930.00 21,379,118.45
Note:  The Group has no board seats in Xinjie Investment and Guarantee Co., 7 AEBECRREERARELERF
Ltd., as such the Group has no significant influence over that investee. BERGRMU  AEBEHZRKERE

f\mBATE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V.

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
13. Long-term receivables

Finance lease receivables  BETRERIE
Otherlong-term receivables ~ E 4% SV 3!
Less: Finance lease R
receivables dlassified —Ef
as due within HEnmE
one year RERUA

@ross carrying

amount

RAHE

5,865,246,012.00
133,122,628.80

5,998,368,640.80

1,615,171,632.00

4,383,197,008.80

30 June 2017
2017468308
(Unaudited)
(RBEH)
Provision for
impairment

RERH

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

Carrying
amount

REEE

5,865,246,012.00
133,122,628.80

5.998,368,640.80

1,615,171,632.00

4,383,197,008.80

The discount rate adopted for finance lease receivables ranged from

0% to 15%.

As at 30 June 2017, among the aforesaid finance lease receivables,
unrealized finance income amounted to RMB583,405,387.20 (31
December 2016: RMB557,698,816.80).

As at 30 June 2017, no long-term receivables was pledged for

securing bank borrowings of the Group (31 December 2016: Nil).

%~ (/E.;ig,ﬁjﬁiﬁiéigiﬁ H il B
13. £ 5 K

31 December 2016

20165124318

(Audited)

(B%#)
Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount impairment amount
Fa%E HEER BEEE
5,345,253,006.00 - 5,345,253,006.00
147,911,552.40 - 147,911,552.40
5,493,164,558.40 - 5493,164,558.40
1463,427,824.40 - 146342782440
4,029,736,734.00 - 4,029736,734.00

BRAEEREFRANNERERS
0%-15% ©

M2017646A308 © LiigEMAE
BURRPRERBRERZRARE
583,405,387.207C (20164 12 A 31
H: AR#557,698,816.807T) °

MW2017F6A308  KEBEE K
JEU R E B AR B RITEZNIER
(20165128318 : &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (A ET)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ HIH H 51 #

. ==3
Statements (Continued) (#)
14. Long-term equity investments 14. RERERE
30 June 2017 20176 H30H
Change during the period
A549
Gains and losses
on investment Transferred Other Closing
Opening Increase in Decrease in under equity outupon  comprehensive Declaration of Closing provision for
(Unaudited) halance investments investments method disposal income cash dividend balance impairment
ERET 73
(%E%H) 48 EnRE AR RERE REEH Epaaus EERERA BRBE AERR
Jointly-controlled enterprises 450 %
Xi'an FC Intellgence AREHEHED
Transmission Co,, Ltd. BRAR(1)
(Note 1) 129,176,924.53 (12,831,616.99) 116,345,307.54
Associates Batz
Shanzhong Finance Leasing ~~ WEBAHE
(o, Ltd. ERAA 407,713,378.98 35,217,391.30 9,347,208.80 452,277,979.08
Shandong Heavy Industry URETEEEE
Group Finance Co,, Ltd. ERAA 267,764,440.23 19,815,639.50 287,580,079.73
Power Solutions Power Solutions
Interational Inc. International Inc.
(Note 2) (#2) 412,296,000.00 (5,832,000.00) 406,464,000.00
Other associates which arenot~ EBAE B E (B
individually significant i 740,316,048.11 4,950,000.00 104,473,161.56 26,729,297.64 (43,854,71331)  832,613,794.00 (4,844,091.33)
1,544,970,791.85 452,463,391.30 120,804,392.87 20,897,297.64 (43,85471331)  2,095,281,160.35 (4,844,091.33)
2016 2016%F
Change during the year
K559
Gains and losses
oninvestment Other Closing
Opening Increase in under equity Transferred out comprehensive Declaration of Closing provision for
(Audited) balnce  other associates method upon disposal income ~ cash dividend balance impaiment
Afpme ERET
(527 58 2N RERS REEE  BbGekE  EERERA ERBE  ERAEER
Jointl-controlled enterprises RERE
Xi'an FC Inteligence Transmission BRERENED
(o, Ltd. (Note 1) BRAR(1) 158,050,798.9 - (2887387443) - - - 129,176,92453 -
Associates ELE
Shanzhong Finance Leasing LEMERERRAA
(o, td. 391,030428.38 - 16,682,950.60 - - - 407,713378.98 -
Shandong Heavy Industry Group LRETEREEE
finance Co,, Ltd. BRA 137,468,864.87 - 30,295,575.36 - - - 267,764,440.23 -
Other associates which are not BEAERMEM
individually significant Bets 660,600,073.97 7692255180 69,146,305.78 (25,793,919.73) 17,013 548.94 (5757251265 740,316,048.11 (4,844,091.33)

1,447,150,166.18 76922,551.80 87,250,957.31 (25,793,919.73) 17,013,548.94 (5757251265 1,544,970,791.85 (4,844,091.33)
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
14. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

i é;ﬁﬁﬁ'%%lﬁ%igiﬁ H iR
(%)
Eﬂﬂﬂﬂgiﬁﬁ(%ﬁ)

14.

Xi‘an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. is held as to 51% by the AEERBREAREREEEIERD
Group, and as to 4% and 45% by Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive RIS1% M - SHONMAKRE BBREAE
Transmission Co., Ltd. (“Transmission Co”) and Caterpillar (China) FETREBHEBBREERA((EEH
Investment Co., Ltd (“Caterpillar”) respectively. Its board of directors S8 DMEHEESH(FE)EEERA
comprises seven directors, three of whom being nominated by the AT REEE])  RIED B A% M
Group, one being nominated by Transmission Co and three being 45% - BEEFEEeHLEBREFHK - Hb
nominated by Caterpillar. According to its articles of association, board ZEBAEEEE  —EHEHEE
resolutions require unanimous approval or approval by substantially all ZE - ZHI=FHFEHEEHEME 1R
directors, and thus Xi‘an FC Intelligence Transmission Co. is a jointly- BARERAE EFEREFEE
controlled enterprise of the Group. FEPRNERAZHRAEZRAB B
AR ESEREDERDABRAR
SEEERE -
In March 2017, the Company approved the entering into of a share 2 2017F3A8 ARRBREZETAA
purchase agreement by Weichai America Corp., a wholly-owned HLF NIt AR AR EEZBEPower
subsidiary of the Company, with the U.S.— based Power Solutions Solutions International Inc.(JA T
International, Inc. (hereinafter, “PSl Inc.”), for the purchase of BIPSIRNA ) HZITRNEEHZE -
2,728,752 ordinary shares and 2,385,624 preferred shares (convertible LA 42 ¥ (B 6000 8 X T B E PSIA A
into 4,771,248 ordinary shares in the future) of PSI Inc., with a total 2,728,752 f% & i@ % % 2,385,624 %
investment of USD60 million. Upon full conversion of the aforesaid BEK(KRKRATEIR AE4,771,248 1%
preferred shares into ordinary shares, the Company will, through LR BEFMEELERENEIRA
Weichai America Corp., hold shares representing 40.71% of the total L@ ARRBEEFBPSIAG
issued share capital of PSI Inc. and become its single largest shareholder. 40.71%MRHE - KARE—RKRE 1]
Pursuant to the agreement, 18 months after the completion of the above B EEAXZRETHKI18MEA
transaction, Weichai America Corp. may exercise a call option to increase % HMEHNILZERABAITER
its holding in PSI Inc. to 51%. BHE E—SERBPSIRARNE
51% °
Further, since the appraisal is yet to be completed, the fair value of the AN - BB E TEMARTTA © PSIA
identifiable net assets of PSI as of the date of investment can only be AINAT AR FEENKREBANAAE
determined provisionally. Adjustments will be made to such provisional BREERHETE  HEREBHERE12
value of the identifiable net assets within 12 months since the date of 1I)51 AN HRFEENLREEBE
investment. EITHE -
Provision for impairment of long-term equity investments is presented as REREREREEEOBR
follows:
January to June 2017 20174 1-6 R
Increase Decrease Adjustment
Opening during the during the  for exchange Closing
(Unaudited) balance period period differences balance
EREHE
(REER) A ERE AR EE A AE HREAHE
Zhuzhou Auto Trading Market kS E R 5% (284,499.56) - - = (284,499.56)
Torque Turbine Torque Turbine
Engine Co. Engine Co. (4,559,591.77) (4,559,591.77)
(4,844,091.33) (4,844,091.33)
2016 20164
Increase Decrease Adjustment
Opening during the during the for exchange Closing
(Audited) balance year year differences balance
(BE=) FUEHRER RE N RER D AR FAREATE
Zhuzhou Auto Trading Market — #kiliTERZ BT 5 (284,499.56) - - - (284,499.56)
Torque Turbine Torque Turbine
Engine Co. Engine Co. (4,559,591.77) = = - (4,559,591.77)

(4,844,091.33)

(4,844,091.33)
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (A ET)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & £ IH H 5 &
Statements (Continued) (%)

15. REMEME

15. Investment property

Subsequent measurement under

January to June 2017

the cost model:

RAKAEAETRETE

20174 1-6 A

Houses and

(Unaudited) buildings Land use rights Total
(REEZ) EEEEY =& b 5 R &%
Gross carrying amount RE

Opening balance EAYIEREE 733,197,517.53 62,341,667.04 795,539,184.57

Transfer from construction in ~ fEZ T2&E A

progress 6,291,781.55 6,291,781.55

Transfer from fixed assets BEEEEEA 256,862.25 256,862.25

Closing balance BARERTE 739,746,161.33 62,341,667.04 802,087,828.37
Accumulated depreciation REHTE R

and amortization

Opening balance HRYIEREE 180,745,184.75 6,677,407.00 187,422,591.75

Provision =g 16,647,417.33 625,197.84 17,272,615.17

Transfer from fixed assets BEEEEEA 85,587.15 - 85,587.15

Closing balance BASREREE 197,478,189.23 7,302,604.84 204,780,794.07
Carrying amount BREEE

At period end AR 542,267,972.10 55,039,062.20 597,307,034.30

At period beginning H37) 552,452,332.78 55,664,260.04 608,116,592.82
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7~ & 0f & #fEK FEIHH B
Statements (Continued) (%)

15. Investment property (Continued)

Subsequent measurement under the cost model (Continued):

15. REMEHE (&)

RAKRARAETRETE(E)

2016 20164
Houses and
(Audited) buildings Land use rights Total
(feE%) FEEREY + b0 A A a&t
Gross carrying amount FRE
Opening balance FAEREE 695,589,346.33 46,257,447 .37 741,846,793.70
Directly acquired HEBA 4,672,434.77 16,084,219.67 20,756,654.44
Transfer from construction FREIEEA
in progress 49,454 537.11 - 49,454, 537.11
Other transfer-out HihgE (16,518,800.68) - (16,518,800.68)
Closing balance FREPTE 733,197,517.53 62,341,667.04 795,539,184.57

Accumulated depreciation and  ZEtiTE N5

amortization

Opening balance FHIRTE 148,483,447.23 4,472,503.95 152,955,951.18

Provision =2 40,715,117.52 2,204,903.05 42,920,020.57

Other transfer-out Hingz (8,453,380.00) - (8,453,380.00)

Closing balance FARBEE 180,745,184.75 6,677,407.00 187,422,591.75
Carrying amount REEE

At year end FR 552,452,332.78 55,664,260.04 608,116,592.82

At year beginning == 547,105,899.10 41,784,943.42 588,890,842.52

As at 30 June 2017, investment properties for which the Group
had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying amount
of RMB16,739,697.75, for which the Group was in the process
of applying for real estate certificates (31 December 2016:
RMB16,874,748.27).

M2017F6 4308 » AL EHKE
BEMEFNKREMENERTERE
A ANR#16,739,697.7570 @ BAEH
EEMEFBEFR (2016512 A31
B : AR%16,874,748.277L) °



Interim Report 2017 FsRsE 127

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (A ET)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0F b % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (48)
16. Fixed assets 16. BIEEE
January to June 2017 2017 1-6 H

Forklift trucks Forklift trucks

and equipment ~ and equipment

Land, houses and Machinery and Electronic leased out leased out

(Unaudited) buildings equipment equipment Vehicles (long-term) (short-term)
BHHXE BHHXE

(%828 THREREEN BERE T3f EaRE RRE(RE) RRE(EH)
(Gross carrying amount RE
Opening balance BN 1197975299282 1689490836376 1,215,45945391 405996,12749 39720911321 576613995246 216392858488  42,398281,588.53
Addtion B2 21,819,636.45 103,831,433.60 6,856,056.67 5804737371 112502845350  1,196,615,133.00 1971383473 2,679,759,285.32
Transfer from construction- AR T#/
in-progress g\ 27966236583 441,855,384.28 43,669,507.82 2,110,985.83 - - 33,886,76086  801,185,004.62
Disposals or refirements REIRE (10,421,617.50) (93,329,921.08) (6,761,439.83) (12,663289.21)  (545,033758.50)  (756,098,374.50) (56,331,491.18)  (1,480,639,897.76)
Other transfer-out HipEl (256,862.25) - - - - - - (256,862.25)
Adustment forexchange B3 £838
diference 178,761,580.29 105,702,277.67 109,791.91 (42,249.9) 250,835,175.70 252,953,315.06 44,756,098.79 833,075,989.48
Closing balance Hru8 12931809564 1745296753227 125933337048 40129631154 480292598391 645961002602  2,405.953768.08  45.231405,107.94

Accumulated deprecatin  Z3i7E
Opening balance BineeE 2,411,881,19560  9,506,867,000.02 916,550,609.71 3IB4274831.8 831,005,08841  1,511,254405.97 941,889,482.10  16,442,875,219.63
Provision iR 282,657,881.54 695,174,141.80 52142383483 12,095,268.44 413,215,425.00 721,589,100.75 23981440882 2,416,688,549.78
Disposals or refirements REHE (4,961,738.10) (81,798,572.73) (6,400,983.57) (10521,39385)  (153,729,576.00)  (449,624,668.50) (50,531,61547)  (757,568,548.22)
Other transfer-out Hip#l (85,587.15) - = - - - (85,587.15)
Adustment forexchange B ZEEE

diferences 447219263 35,954,215.49 115,371.06 (21,965.28) 58,568,392.90 29,707,004.03 10,.293,147.76 139,088,358.59

(Closing balance BR0E 269396394452 10,156,196,784.58 962,407,320.63 324971934713 114905933031 181292584225 114146542321  18,240,997,992.63

Provision for impairment AR

Opening balance B 185054345 151,417,045.50 144,649.06 58,339.59 37536668 153,845,944.28

Provision it 69,768,624.89 1329377583 445730 569340 18396370 83,593,515.12

Disposals or retrements RELRE - (100,000.00) = - (100,000.00)

Closing balance BREE 161916834 164610,821.33 186,106.36 6403299 85933038 23733945940
Camying amount FaEE

At period end R 968373498278 71315992636 296,739,94349 7625293142 365386665360 464668418377 126362903449  26,753,067,65591

At period beginning ) 9,566,021,253.77  7,236,624)318.4 298,764,195.14 82510350.08  3,141,001,02480 425488554649  1,221,663736.10  25801,560424.62
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (74)
16. Fixed assets (Continued) 16. BIEEE(E)
2016 20164

Forklft trucks Forklft trucks
and equipment and equipment

Land, houses and Machinery and Electronic leased out leased out
(Audited) buildings equipment equipment Vehicles (long-term) (short-term) Others Total
AEHNE ALHRE
(E7) 1HREEREN EERE 13k B8k Rith(RE) REfE(EE) ifh At
(Gross carrying amount &
Opening balance ENHE 10,687,124,142.00  15,708,729,835.89 1,033,223335.51 40237061550 2,636,668557.60 469641221280 1,647,730,127.10 36,812,258,826.40
Addition BE 174,386,500.53 248762,208.38 3243661612 917310055 2,094,181,77640  2,122,491,611.60 291,660,556.11 4,973,092,369.69
Tranfer from construction- AR TEEA
n-progress 527,117546.32 829,836,521.83 160,813,230.48 14,482,554.82 - - 88,936,014.70 1,621,185,874.15
Increase arising from RUETAR
acquistion of subsidiaries En 513,665,128.80 311,299,55080 - - 54,518,246.00 44,822,858.80 272,972,015.60 1,197,277,800.00
Transfer for from RERERE
investment properties ) 16,518,800.68 - - - - - - 16,518,800.68

Disposals or retirements RENEE (44,726,132.74) (248,511,585.83) (11,622,22361) (2044861547)  (983,247,13054)  (1,111,903751.86)  (176,472,539.75) (2,596,931,979.80)
Adustmentforexchange B £EHE
differences 105,667,007.23 44,791,832.69 608,489.41 41847209 169,974,663.75 14317,001.12 3910241112 374,879,897.41

(Closing balance FREE 197975299280 1689490836376 121545945391 40599,12749 39720911321 576613995246 2,163928584.88 42,398,281,588.53

Accumulated deprecaion 475

Opening balance EARE 192667285295 8,222,121,887.46 752,193,695.38 302,677976.06 264,083,344.00 682,446,135.84 713,690,245.25 12,923,846,136.94
Provision it 489,063,782.08  1431,469,131.08 174,456,181.38 38613,964.22 68992492480 1,344,548,095.36 301,265,05.03 448934113395
Transter for from RELENE

investment properties &) 8,453,380.00 - - - - - - 8,453,380.00

Disposals or retirements RENHEE (32,376,45361) (163,959,805.68) (10444.83961) (18066,119.26)  (236,160.42894)  (43326326186) (160,027 ,683.89) (1,054,298,592.85)
Adustmentforexchange  E¥ £E8E
differences 20,067,634.18 17,35,781.16 385,572.56 201,616.80 113,157,248.55 (82,476,56337) 6,961,865.71 7553316159

(Closing balance FREE 241188119560 9,506,867,000.02 916,550,600.71 334143182 83100508841 1511,254,405.97 941,889,482.10 16,442,875,219.63

Provision for mpaiment~ H/EER

Opening balance EHE 1,850,543.45 148,965,921.91 144,649.06 58,339.59 - - 375454.83 151,394,908.84

Provision Fig2 - 4,555,003.9 - - - - - 4,555,003.96

Disposals or retirements RENRE - (2,103,880.37) - - - - (88.15) (2,103,968.52)

Closing balance ERGE 1,850,543.45 151,417,045.50 144,649.06 58,339.59 - - 375,366.68 153,845,944.28
Camying amount FaERE

Atyear end X 9,566,021,25377  7,36,624,318.24 298,764,195.14 8251035008 314109102480 425488554649  1,221,663,736.10 25,801,560,424.62

At year beginning £ 8758,600,745.60  7,337,642,026.52 280924991.07 9963429985 237258521360 4,013966,076.9 873,004,427.02 23737,017,780.62
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
16. Fixed assets (Continued)

Fixed assets which are temporarily idle are presented as follows:
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ho AU B R R IE H R
(748)
16. BIEEE (&)
THEENETEENT

30 June 2017 20176 H30H

Gross Accumulated Provision for
(Unaudited) carrying amount depreciation impairment  Carrying amount
(REER) RE E-Sgiik - BEER REEE
Machinery and equipment R 4,730,490.81 2,411,762.15 2,318,728.66
2016 2016%F

Gross Accumulated Provision for
(Audited) carrying amount depreciation impairment Carrying amount
(&=E%) RE ZENE WEER LHEE
Machinery and equipment I T=H 6,019,128.29 5,055,445.40 - 963,682.89
Fixed assets leased in under finance lease are presented as follows: BERABETEENT :
30 June 2017 201756 H30H

Gross
(Unaudited) carrying amount
(REBER) RE
Houses and buildings EEREY 34,617,463.20
Machinery and equipment R B 67,870,996.80
Electronic equipment ERE T 221,731,555.20
Forklift trucks and equipment ~ FHEFE &
leased out (long-term) RE(ES) 3,975,879,958.20
Forklift trucks and equipment  FAH A RE R
leased out (short-term) RiE(EH) 4,981,716,852.75

9,281,816,826.15

Accumulated Provision for
depreciation impairment  Carrying amount

R & HEERE REEE

19,110,513.60 15,506,949.60
18,413,049.60 49,457,947.20
82,734,729.60 138,996,825.60
951,195,579.00 3,024,684,379.20

1,398,146,020.26 3,583,570,832.49

2,469,599,892.06 6,812,216,934.09
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RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - &M BEHRETFTEHH B
Statements (Continued) )
16. Fixed assets (Continued) 16. BEEE (&)
Fixed assets leased in under finance lease are presented as follows: FEEABTEENMT : (8)
(Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

31 December 2016 201612 831H

Gross Accumulated Provision for

(Audited) carrying amount depreciation impairment Carrying amount
(&%) RE ZENE WEER FEEE
Houses and buildings FEEREY 31,536,148.80 16,294,164.00 - 15,241,984.80
Machinery and equipment ] 64,080,636.00 13,254,535.20 - 50,826,100.80
Electronic equipment EFHME 133,729,053.60 58,929,342.00 - 74,799,711.60
Forklift trucks and equipment & FE N

leased out (long-term) HE(RE) 3,395,314,930.12  710,336,281.72 - 2,684,978,648.40
Forklift trucks and equipment  # H & FE N

leased out (short-term) R (REE) 4,367,897,162.42  1,144,787,307.62 - 3,223,109,854.80

7,992,557,930.94

1,943,601,630.54

- 6,048,956,300.40

Carrying amount of fixed assets leased out under operating lease is
presented as follows:

Houses and buildings FEEREEY

Electronic equipment B

Machinery and equipment e R 1

Vehicles By TH

Forklift trucks and equipment leased M XEREE(RE)
out (long-term)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased M XERE#E(EE)

out (short-term)

As at 30 June 2017, fixed assets for which the Group
had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying
amount of RMB1,782,119,176.37 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,931,155,206.13).

As at 30 June 2017, fixed assets with a carrying amount of
RMB525,073,889.88 (31 December 2016: RMB536,076,525.54)
were pledged for securing bank borrowings of the Group, while
fixed assets with a carrying amount of RMB142,050,168.00 (31
December 2016: RMB133,933,644.00) was pledged to guarantee
the obligations under the staff retirement benefit.

REMHHBEEEEREEERDT -

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

2017%6H30H 2016512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REETFZ) (f&#&Z)
10,359,323.22 =
119,023.30 536,355.42
6,959,498.39 16,285,194.54
2,449.49 230,256.58

3,653,866,653.60 3,141,091,024.80

4,646,684,183.77

4,254,885,546.49

R20175F6 5308 » REEHKRERS
EHEENETEEREBEAAR
#1,782,119,176.37 7t (2016 & 12
A318 : AR#%1,931,155,206.13
JT) °

MH2017F6 A30R » A&EE B K
B A AR ® 525,073,889.88
T (2016 F 12 A31H : AR¥
536,076,525.5470) MEE & EBR
BB IRITER - BEREEEEAA
KR #142,050,168.007C (2016 4 12
A318 : AR%133,933,644.007T)
METEEERNRY B TRKERN T
EBREER -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
17. Construction in progress

FAST transmission technology
renovation project

ELREIRIAR

Construction of Yulin new factory area B ERER%
Phase | project of diesel engines of WP9 448 /)WP9Z 5
series of Weichai Power i E
Phase Il of new base of Shaanxi Zhonggi  PRE 752~ 5
Project of global accessories SN 2R
distrbution centre of Weichai Power A4k EE
Weichai Power Testing Centre EENERRL
Huainan new energy special vehicles ~ E@H&EERE
Zhuzhou Gear technology renovation 1A B KRR
project
Project o ransportation of castingand 4481 B
heat processing of Weichai Power HEERERS
Others ify
Prepayment for poject equipments B TREEH

Movement in key construction-in-progress from January to June

2017 is presented as follows:

(Unaudited)
(REEH) RE
FAST transmission technology T &)
renovation project TN 2,383,600,000.00
Weichai Power Testing Centre #2448} /7

ULV 942,310,000.00

@ross
carrying amount

i

41,11291942
15,267,638.12

29,589,673.64
25,117,102

17,153,723.13
15,070,322.20
14918,687.78

14,636,848.12

12,126,036.54
847,326,757.80
143,944,950.21

1,236,264,766.98

Opening
balance

BBE

131,661,689.22

30,610,563.83

30 June 2017
201756A308
(Unaudited)
(REEH)
Provision for
impairment

AEER

(40,842,546.88)

(3,519.933.91)

(44,362,480.79)

Increase
during
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E ?‘éﬁﬁ;ﬁjﬁiﬁ%igiﬁ H iR

Carrying

amount

REEE

4111291942
34,425,001.24

29,589,673.64
25,117,210.02

17,153,723.13
15,070,322.20
14,918,687.78

14,636,848.12

12,126,036.54

843,806,823.89
143,944,950.21

17. ZBIRE
31 December 2016
2016E12831H
(Audited)
(&71)
(Gross Provision for Carrying
carrying amount impairment amount
BERE REER BHERE
131,661,689.2 - 131,661,689.2
75,878,33021 24,000,000.00) 5187833021
70,022,692.70 - 70,022,692.70
25,567,45.43 - 25,567,45.43
154,086,700.50 - 154,086,700.50
30,610,563.83 - 30,610,563.83
11,980,258.42 - 11,980,258.42
15,909,185.38 - 15,909,185.38
19,782,400.09 - 19,782,400.09
1,021,324,672.55 (351993391)  1,017,804,738.64
11321061931 - 11321061931
1,670,014,357.64 (27519,93391) 1,642,494,42373

1,191,902,286.19

Fixed asset

transferred in

the period  during the period

A4

22,269,546.24

AHEA
BERE

(112,251,321.17)

(10,269,555.90)

FEEERZITIR2017F1-6 B M

T

Other

decrease

HfEs

(566,994.87)

(5.270,685.73)

41,112,919.42

15,070,322.20

Closing
balance

BABE

Internal fund
BRES
Internal fund

BHES

Source of
funding

Actual
costsas a
percentage
of budget
(%)
IBRA
HRE
t8l(%)

98.04%

98.46%
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
17. Construction in progress (Continued)

Movement in key construction-in-progress in 2016 is presented as

I 2% BT (4

201746 308 (A E#T)

T SO R R EEIEH R
(74)

17. EEITR(E)

BEEEIE2016FEEHWT :

follows:
Actual
Costs as a
Fixed asset percentage
Opening Increase transferred in Other Closing Source of of budget
(Audited) Budget balance  duringtheyear  during the year decrease balance funding (%)
IRRA
TEEN fFBE
(£27) i ENgg REEM BEdE Hfoy Exug BERE $51(%)
FAST transmission technology £ 1458 Internal fund
renovation project KRR 2,383,600,00000 1284594769 16396327653  (144,63430334)  (16,126,76093) 131,661,689.22 E54% 971.11%
Weichai Power Testing Centre #5480 /) Internal fund
R0 942,310,000.00  289,866,753.20 34,370,484.93  (293,262,674.30) (364,000.000  30,610,563.83 ErRa 98.46%

Project of global accessories ~ MX£E) /125
distibution centre of BH5 ER
Weichai Power ER 419,620,000.00 26,681,204.24  127,385,496.26

The increase in the amount of provision for impairment of
construction-in-progress for the current period was made because,
in view of the cessation of production of Shaanxi Zhonggi Yulin
Dongfang New Energy Special Purpose Vehicles Company Ltd.
for more than one year, the future recoverable amount of the
construction-in-progress of Yulin new factory area will be lower
than carrying amount. Therefore, a provision for impairment of
RMB16,842,546.88 was made during the period.

As at 30 June 2017, construction-in-progress with carrying amount
of RMB49,407,065.54 (31 December 2016: RMB46,802,426.45)

were pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group.

Internal fund
- 154,066,700.50 BE4% 30.36%

ERIRREEELRBeEAE MG
e ZRERRAABERIFERR
—F ERITERMRMREZRZIER
RRAIWEICEEANLREEEE -
IR ARRERIRERREEBAR
#16,842,546.887T °

M2017F6A308 - AEBMBEEE
BEA AR¥49,407,065.547T (2016
F12H318 : AR%46,802,426.45
TT)MAERETREARERRSRTE

2
A °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
18. Intangible assets
January to June 2017

Increase upon Adjustment
Internal acquisition of Disposals or for exchange
(Unaudited) Opening balance Addition R&D subsidiaries retirements differences  Closing balance
(REEH) 58 BE ABHE  WEFAREM REUSE  EjZESE HR&E
(Gross carying amount BERR
Technology know-how R 1,203,947,761.26 - - 3425420434 1,238,201,965.60
Trademark rights EERRE 7,289,113,160.10 = = 195,728630.78  7,484,841,790.88
License itk 888,131,176.70  83,687,70352 (A15550)  208681%23 9894548095
Land use rights THERE 1,787,320511.64 56,422,566.22 - 340,831.63  1,844,083,909.49
Orders on hand HESE 272,399,257.63 - - 16,507,690.27 288,906,947.90
Customer relationship XPERE 10,180,465,570.86 = = = 175,667,345.89  10,356,132,916.75
Software g 337,607,404.33 128,466,938.67 = = 7,949,328.18 474,023,671.18
Others -0 6,992,897,512.81 157,701,540.17 326,249,815.50 - (2,088,403.65)  7474,760,464.83
28,951,882,355.33 426,278,748.58 326,249,815.50 (3,44150550)  449,227.82367  30,150,197,147.58
Adjustment
Disposals or for exchange
Opening balance Provision retirements differences  Closing balance
BIBE it REUSE  EZESE BR&E
Less: Accumulated amortization B BB
Technology know-how EE 615,156,229 41,497,400.17 - 12952653 66957874969
Trademark rights HEEER 22,036,046.54 973,147.08 - (105,044.59) 22,904,149.03
License g 379,844,746.30 97,062,275.00 (2,672,649.00) 18,927,051.81 493,161,424.11
Land use rights THERE 218,164,781.14 20,587,325.97 = - 238,752,107.11
Orders on hand EFiE 95,054,282.74 6,697,701.56 = 6,013,953.30 107,765,937.60
Customer relationship XFBE 1,182,864,411.9 370,001,378.25 = 69,226,216.52  1,622,092,006.73
Software gt 13137240535 13,121,452.06 - 146341045 145957,327.86
Others A 697,961,236.05 636,564,944.50 - 344819066 1,357,974371.21

3,342,454,033.07

1,186,505,624.59

(2,672,649.00)

131,899,064.68

4,658,186,073.34
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (A ET)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0F % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
18. Intangible assets (Continued) 18. ML EE (&)
January to June 2017 (Continued) 2017F1-6 A (&)
Adjustment
Disposals or for exchange
(Unaudited) Opening balance Provision retirements differences  Closing balance
(RE28) BaE it RELHE EiZESE HR4E
Less: Provision for impairment B REEE
Technology know-how ZERI .
Trademark rights EERRE .
License Rtk .
Land use rights THFERR . .
Orders on hand HESE 1817931840 - 1,101,686.40 19,281,004.80
Customer relationship XPERE 159,441,682.80 371,696,846.38 11,435,811.98 542,574 341.16
Software Eif - - - -
Others -0 68,830,949.10 - 4,015,290.90 72,846,240.00
246,451,950.30 371,696,846.38 16,552,789.28 634,701,585.96
Opening balance Closing balance
BaE BRGE
Camying amount FaEE
Technology know-how R 588,791,638.27 568,623,215.91
Trademark rihts EERRE 7,267,077,113.56 7,461,937,641.85
License i 508,286,430.40 496,084,056.84
Land use rights THFRE 1,569,155,730.50 1,605,331,802.38
Orders on hand EFiE 159,165,656.49 161,860,005.50
Customer relationship EPEE 8,838,159,476.10 8,191,466,568.86
Software gt 206,234,998.98 328,066,343.32
Others -0 6,226,105,327.66 6,043,939,853.62

25,362,976,371.9 24,857,309,488.28
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7~ & 0F & &K FEIHH B

. ==3
Statements (Continued) (%)
18. Intangible assets (Continued) 18. ML EE (&)
2016 20164
Increase upon Adjustment
acquisition Disposals for exchange
(Audited) Opening balance Addition Internal R&D of subsidiaries or retirements diferences Closing balance
(&5%) FnE BE METE  WEFREEN REIRE EX 2T ERBE
(Gross carrying amount AERE
Technology know-how Byt 1,315,258,860.32 291220594 8616,156.14 3,090,221.60 (143,199,198.62) 17,269515.88 1,203,947,761.26
Trademark rights BEERE 4,470,292,096.00 - - 258874893300 - BOOTING 728911316010
License et ] 605,481,486.28 143,644,044.80 - 111,328,528.40 - 2677,111.22 888,131,176.70
Land use rights TR 1,526,007,699.09 270,085,480.53 - - (9,609,798.33) 83713035 178732051164
Orders on hand EFiE 269,392,256.45 - - - (278,266.40) 3285,267.58 272,399,257.63
Customer relationship ZPEA 4,898,046,182.49 2196840 - 504729848040 (117314,175.53) 3241311310 10,180,465,570.86
Software af 274,642,919.04 3831912732 - 806,713181 - 23818620.10 33760740433
Others it 1,632,726977.66 385,544,687.72 68,830949.00  4,675410,08440 (11,017,305.03) U1400,118%  6,992,897,512.81

14,991,848 47133 840,527 514.71 144710524 12,426,702,981.87 (281,418,743.91) 896,775,014.09  28,951,882,355.33

Adjustment

Disposals for exchange
(Opening balance Provision or refirements differences Closing balance
20 i RELHE ERZRaE Freg

Less: Accumulated amortization 5 : 23HEH

Technology know-how BV 579,116,751.03 156,807,755.65 (125,352,683.06) 458429937 615,15,122.99
Trademark ihs HEERE 19,594,127.4 227054213 - 17137707 20,036,046.54
License BT 194,207,102.40 174,128861.20 - 11,508,782.70 379,844,746.30
Land use rights iR 173413,753.78 45,85,154.17 (1,105,126.81) - 218,164,781.14
Orders on hand EFiIE 77,231,252.00 20,591,707.14 (278,266.40) (2.490,410.00) 95,054,282.74
Custorner relationship EPHE 755,477,881.60 525,198,538.80 (117,314,175.53) 19,502,167.09 1,182,804411.9%
Software i 89,164,483.68 20,961,812.34 - 21,246,109.33 131,372,405.35
Others -0 236,675,663.260 461,548,761.20 (11,009982.23) 10,746,793.82 £97,961,236.05

2,124,881,01499 (255,060,234.03) (255,060,234.03) £5209,11948  3,342,454033.07
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 i R WA (A

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & ff B % #t 3% 26 H 5 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
18. Intangible assets (Continued) 18. ML & &E (&)
2016 (Continued) 20164 (48)
Increase Decrease Adjustment
during during for exchange
(Audited) Opening balance the year the year differences Closing balance
(&51) EBE RER REFD EREERE X%
Less: Provision for impairment B EEE
Technology know-how ZERI - - _ _ B
Trademark rights BEFRE - - _ _ B
License e - - - - -
Land use rights TiEmRE - - _ _ B
Orders on hand EFiE - 18.219,12640 - (39,808.00) 18,179,318.40
Custorer relationship ZFRRE - 159,790,818.80 - (349,136.00) 159,441,682.80
Software Edi - - - - -
Others i - 68,830,949.10 - - 68,830,949.10
- 246,840,894.30 - (388,944.00 246,451,950.30
Caying amount REAE
Technology know-how Byt 736,142,109.29 588,791,638.27
Trademark rights AEERE 445069796876 7,267,077,113.56
License BT 411,274,383.88 508,286,430.40
Land use rights TiERE 1,352,593,945.31 1,569,155,730.50
Orders on hand EFiE 192,161,004.45 159,165,656.49
Customer relationship RPER 4,142,568,300.89 8838,159,476.10
Software Eils 185,478,435.36 206,234,998.93
Others i 1,396,051,314.40 6,226,105,327.66
12,866,967 462.34 25,362,976,371.96
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) F B i R BT (48

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (AR #or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 1o ~ & /f i % #t 3% - 206 H 5E R
Statements (Continued) (%)
18. Intangible assets (Continued) 18. ML EE (1)

Adjustments have been made to the management strategies and
corresponding organizational structure of the segment of forklift
trucks production, warehousing technology and supply chain
solution services during the period. Accordingly, based on the
Group's estimate, provision in the amount of RMB371,696,846.38
has been made in respect of the impairment of the corresponding

customer relationship.

As at 30 June 2017, intangible assets with carrying amount of
RMB507,086,249.44 (31 December 2016: RMB424,293,347.72)

were pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group.

As at 30 June 2017, the intangible assets for which the Group
had not obtained title certificates had a carrying amount of
RMB136,862,166.27, for which the Group was in the process of
applying (31 December 2016: RMB115,011,683.66).

The trademarks are renewable every 10 years at minimal cost. The
management of the Group are of the opinion that the Group has
both the intention and ability to renew the trademarks continuously.
As a result, the useful life of the trademarks is considered by the
management of the Group as indefinite because the trademarks are
expected to contribute to the Group’s net cash inflows indefinitely.
The trademarks will not be amortized until their useful life is

determined to be finite.

AEBZXRELEE  BBRIMEMH
FE 3 RR T RIRTE 0 BD I A B FH B
T TR BLRK AN AR R e A A IR
HREANEENGET - HHABH
EFBAGRARTHEEBEARE
371,696,846.387T °

7201796 A30RH » AEBEHE
HEEA AR KS507,086,249.44
7L (20165 12 A31H : AR®
424,293,347 720 ) WETREEAR
G RITER -

720176 A308 « AEE AR
ERZFENEVEAEREEEAAR
#136,862,166.27 70 * & 1E #f 1 E
EERBEHR(2016F12A318 ¢
AK#115,011,683.667T) °

BOEBRE+FARKERAEE—
R AEEEEERR  AKEEE
BERNTEEEZSHIE - B
EERRBAXARAREELRESR
ANFE - B AREEEERRZ
ERREBXANERER - BRIFZ
SRHENAERFEFREAESBR
BRI EEITHE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)

19. Expenditure on development 19. B
Capitalization of expenditure on development starts when BT HED R ERANEBERA
the development stage is reached. Capitalized expenditure on BRI REBEANMEOREE T H W0
development of the Group is presented as follows: T
January to June 2017 2017 1-6 H

Decrease during the period

Increase in

internal R&D Recognition of

(Unaudited) Opening balance  during the period intangible assets ~ Other decrease  Closing balance
A
(REEHR) H5RE hPFEE  BREVEE EfpH D HAGE

Improvement project on driver's cabin -~ B ZXEEH 43,415,166.75 65,007,542.56 - - 108,422,709.31
Hydraulics project REER 162,264,750.28 29,513,360.70  (191,778,110.98) - -
Others Hith 240,094,549.89 (134,471,704.52) (50,488,337.38) 55,134,507.99

445,774,466.92 94520,903.26  (326,249,815.50)  (50,488,337.38)  163,557,217.30

2016 20164
Decrease during the year
TERD
Increase in
internal R&D Recognition of
(Audited) Opening balance during the year ~ intangible assets Other decrease Closing balance
AEEM
(&%) EURE Ak lE BARNEAE Eftd EXRHE
HX complete vehicle external flow HXBESN TS
field analysis and optimization project A REER 13,185,634.17 = = (3,513,255.45) 9,672,378.72
Improvement project on driver's cabin ERZHiEER 25,430,342.84 17,984,823.91 - - 43,415,166.75
Hydraulics project REER 235,706,165.08 4337294440 (68,830949.10)  (47,983,410.10)  162,264,750.28
Others Hi 191,746,624.88 72,837,030.10 (8,616,156.14) (25,545,32767)  230,422,171.17

466,068,766.97 134,194,798.41 (77447,105.24)  (77,041,993.22)  445,774,466.92
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~ & Bt % ) 3% 1 B H H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (48)
20. Goodwill 20. &
January to June 2017 20174 1-6 H
Adjustment
Opening Increase during  Decrease during for exchange
(Unaudited) balance the period the period differences  Closing balance
(REEH) BIRR AHEm rHES EXEZERE HARR
Merger with TAGC ErilNE 537,573,736.46 537,573,736.46
Merger with Linde Hydraulics ARMEREABLE
GmbH & Co. KG 774,987,671.35 46,965,092.91 821,952,764.26
Merger with KON GROUPAG & /HfKION GROUP AG 6,284,946,311.89 365,848,084.49  6,650,794,396.38
Merger with Egemin £ #tEgemin Automation
Automation Inc. Inc. 371,835,745.20 22,533,649.20 394,369,394.40
Merger with Retrotech Inc. A HRetrotech Inc. 184,299,416.40 (4,392,452.40) 179,906,964.00
Merger with Dematic Group Af#Dematic Group 14,794,640,583.60 (332,546,302.80)  14,462,094,280.80

Others Eft 89,391,391.20 5417,215.20 94,808,606.40

23,037,674,856.10 103,825,286.60  23,141,500,142.70

2016 20164
Adjustment
Opening Increase during Decrease during for exchange
(Audited) balance the year the year differences Closing balance
(F2%) ENRE RER REFD ERERHR FRBE
Merger with TAGC AHEAE 537,573,736.46 - - - 53757373646
Merger with Linde Hydraulics ARNERESELE
GmbH & Co. KG 752,544,551.07 - - 22,443,120.28 774,987,671.35
Merger with KION GROUP AG ABHKION GROUP AG 6,133,809,720.72 - - 151,136,591.17  6,284,946,311.89
Merger with Egemin A HEgemin Automation
Automation Inc. Inc. 362,323,483.20 - - 9,512,262.00 371,835,745.20
Merger with Retrotech Inc. A Retrotech Inc. - 173,000,003.40 - 11,299,413.00 184,299,416.40
Merger with Dematic Group £ HDematic Group - 14,304,099,600.00 = 490,540,983.60  14,794,640,583.60
Others £ - 95,689,679.20 - (6,298,288.00) 89,391,391.20

7,786,251,491.45  14,572,789,282.60 678,634,082.05  23,037,674,856.10
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

20.

Goodwill (Continued)

Balance as at 30 June 2017 mainly represented goodwill arising
from merger with TAGC, Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG, KION
Group AG, Egemin Inc. and Retrotech Inc. Goodwill arising from
merger would be allocated to material asset group units to test for

impairment on an annual basis.

Further, the trademark with indefinite useful life comprised in the
intangible assets in Note V.18 amounted to RMB7,451,970,017.60

and is included in those asset group units for impairment testing.

Carrying amount of material goodwill and trademarks is allocated

to the following asset group units as follows:

o asset group unit A: manufacture and sale of diesel engines

and related parts

o asset group unit B: major automobile components other than

automotive and diesel engines

o asset group unit C: manufacture of hydraulic pumps,
hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears and other

components

o asset group unit D: forklift trucks production and

warehousing technology services

o asset group unit E: Material handling, automated

warehousing and modernized searching

o asset group unit F: Intelligent supply chains and automation

solutions

5 i 2 M 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)
T SO R R EEIEH R
(74)
20. HE(E)

2017F6 A30EEMEREEEAR
SOFMANE MEREERRE -
KION GROUP AG * Egemin Inc.#
Retrotech Inc.MELMEE - A&
ESFREAZEEHERNEAERR
EREZEAEMAEGETHERENR

Lo - BERWER - 18EFEE
FHROKAAEANEEEERARKE
7,451,970,017.60 7T * TN B & E %
LEEBBEEFETRER -

EZRERAGNRESEIKESR
EENBERMT

e BEHMAESA: EERHEH
N AE R T B

o  EEMAMAAB: TERIMEI
B EERETAM

- AEM@MAC: EERER
RS - RIERIPY - R
HibF i

e HZEMHMAED: XEEERE
[E 2417 BR 75

o AEMEAE: MHRERAR
B MBREBRE

o EBEMMBAF: BheMEEMNA
BLHRT R
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & £ IH H 5 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
20. Goodwill (Continued) 20. BE (&)
The carrying amount of goodwill and trademark are allocated to the BELREENERcEILEEER
asset group units as follows: WIERIAT
Carrying amount of goodwill Carrying amount of trademark
BENEEESHE BENEESE

SlBITREPLEVAS 31 December 2016 Sl A S 31 December 2016
ANESDZENERE 2016512 H31H ANESDEENIERY 20165124310
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEXR) (f&&F”) (RBER) (&%)

Asset group unit A EEHRBEAA - - 116,422,784.00 116,422,784.00
Asset group unit B EEHBEASB 537,573,736.46 537,573,736.46 94,197,000.00 94,197,000.00
Asset group unit C EEHABAC 821,952,764.26 774,987,671.35 - -
Asset group unit D EEMAMBED FELERIER | 6,284,946,311.89  FURTERELCR  4,297,757,464.80
Asset group unit E EEEMAAE 574,276,358.40 556,135,161.60 66,646,560.00 62,838,480.00
Asset group unit F EEEMAAT (LRI 14,794,640,583.60 |22kl 0N 2,685,979,680.00

As at 30 June 2017, the management considers that there was no MR2017F6HA30H - EEERAZE
risk of impairment for these goodwill and trademarks. B EIR AR E AR o

21. Long-term prepaid expenses 21. REIFHEER
January to June 2017 20175 1-6 H

Increase Amortization

Opening during during Other Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period the period decrease balance
(REER) BABE KM RHEE HthH S HREBE
Industrial mould fee IkEAE 253,413,425.54 32,779,457.14  (21,809,192.34) - 264,383,690.34
Industrial equipment fee ThFAE 51,083,535.88  13,369,382.58  (10,933,848.40) (16,980.57)  53,502,089.49
Expenditure on improvement of  RABTEEEXRR T

fixed assets leased in 28,162,755.78 2,089,427.03  (10,962,695.78) (57,953.17)  19,231,533.86

332,659,717.20 4823826675  (43,705,736.52) (74,933.74)  337,117,313.69
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6 A30H(AE¥T)
Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & ff B % #t 3¢ 3 B 6 H 5 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
Long-term prepaid expenses (Continued) 2. REAISEER (&)
2016 20164
Increase Amortization
Opening during during Other Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year decrease balance
(EER) ENnE REEM FEEH AR D FRBE
Industrial mould fee IREAE 216,396,240.19 83,398,524.61 (43,184,827.85) (3,196,511.41)  253,413,425.54
Industrial equipment fee ThHAE 52,481511.01 1813592264  (19,533,897.77) - 51,083,535.88
Expenditure on improvement of BABEEERRAX L
fixed assets leased in 45,504,218.38 8,510,909.93  (24,493,398.18) (1,358,974.35)  28,162,755.78
314,381,969.58  110,045357.18  (87,212,123.80) (4,555,485.76)  332,659,717.20

22.

Other non-current assets

22. EMERBEE

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

2017%6H30H 2016912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBEXR) (&= %)

Scheme assets under defined

benefit scheme
Others

93,638,416.80
174,634,206.03

268,272,622.83

89,880,946.80
169,839,756.20

259,720,703.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
23. Short-term loans

Interim Report 2017 FHEAZRE

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201746 30 (A E#T)

T~ B OF B AR 1 IH H RE R

(%)

23. HHIE R

30 June 2017

31 December 2016

Mortgage loans (Note 1) EAEH(ED)
Pledge loans (Note 2) BRER(E2)
Guaranteed loans (Note 3) ERER(E3)
Credit loans EREBEX

201756 A30H 20164 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fe&E=Z)

9,000,000.00
441,215,870.00
578,820,723.84
4,985,385,099.36

6,014,421,693.20

19,000,000.00

1,857,388,560.00
2,895,260,194.00

4,771,648,754.00

As at 30 June 2017, the above loans carried interest at rates ranging
from 0.60% to 5.22% (31 December 2016: 0.85% to 5.22%) per

annum.

Note 1: Among the short-term loans, RMB9,000,000.00 (31 December 2016:
RMB19,000,000.00) represented the loan provided by Huishang Bank
Corporation Limited to Shaanxi Automobile Huainan Special Vechicles
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, which was secured by the land use
right with carrying amount of RMB42,583,252.39 and will mature on 25

April 2018.

Note 2: Among the short-term loans, RMB400,000,000.00 (31 December 2016:
Nil) represented the loan secured by the pledge of fixed deposit of
RMB421,060,000.00 by Shaanxi Automobile Xinjiang Motor Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Company, to Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co.,
Ltd. Urumqi branch. Among the short-term loans, RMB41,215,870.00
(31 December 2016: Nil) represented the loan secured by the pledge of
accounts receivable with a gross carrying amount of RMB428,211,098.88
by Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Import and Export Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of
the Company, to Huaxia Bank Co., Ltd. Xi'an branch.

Note 3: Among the short-term loans, RMB497,524,320.00 (31 December 2016:
RMB497,524,320.00) represented the guarantee by Weichai Group
Holdings Limited granted for the loan extended by ICBC (Asia) to Weichai
Power (Luxembourg) Holding S.a r.l., a subsidiary of the Company,
which will mature in October and December 2017 respectively. Among
the short-term loans, RMB81,296,403.84 (31 December 2016: Nil)
represented the guarantee by Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance
Co., Ltd. granted for the loan extended by CCB (Asia) to Weichai
Power (Hong Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Company, which will mature in October and December 2017
respectively.

MN2017E6 8308 it & KA E R
R 50.60%~5.22% (2016412 A 31
H :0.85%~5.22%) °

Al

2

w3

52 B f& xR A R ¥ 9,000,000.00
L (2016 F12 A31H « AR¥
19,000,000.00 7T ) A # 7 R 17 A
ARRAZFRAKRAEMERAE
ERARER  UEEEEARK
42,583,252.39 7T #) + 5 A #E A R
TR - ZEFBER2018F4 A 258 2|
g,qo

52 HAf& 5+ A R % 400,000,000.00
JL(20164F12A31H : &) AARRQF
ZFRAIRAFEARBEERAAM
HBERITSEABSTERARKE
421,060,000.007CH) E BiTF B &S -
= HE R AR % 41,215,870.00
(20165128318 : #) BA QA
ZFARIRAERABTHHOBR
ARIMEERITRMBERAAIAL
APITEHREREREEREARY
428,211,098.88 THE S °

= HfE P AR % 497,524,320.00
(2016 F 12 A31H : AR
497,524,320.00 70 ) A # £ =R &
BERARAARRRZFRA A HLE
FN(ERE)ZERERA R MFE
ITrERaT(EMN HEREBIRMEE
R ZEREDBIR2017F 10 B
M1I2A5 8 - RHERBARE
81,296,403.84 7t (2016 £ 12 A 31
B:E)RBLREIEEUBKERA
RIBARRAZFRARIBLES N (BH)
EEBEERATNEPREERRT
(EMBHERREER - ZERED
BIFA2017410 8712 B E|H -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HRBORHAERDE

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
24. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss for the current period

25.

26.

T A ORI B ik ERIEH

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

il B

(%)

24.

Forward contracts RHEH
Cross currency interest rate swap RXEBFEEHRT A
instruments (Note V.64) (Kizxh - 64)
Interest rate swap contract (Note V.64) F|ZEF#A4) (M H - 64)
Total a&t
Notes payable 25.
Bank acceptance bills HRITHEH ER
Commercial acceptance bills BEALER
Total A&F

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had no notes payable which were
due and outstanding (31 December 2016: Nil).

Accounts Payable

Accounts payable are non-interest bearing, and are generally settled

within three to four months.

26.

Accounts payable

FEfTBR K

29,324,250,757.13

7,644,683,699.64

8,485,425,727.17

UAnREBEFEEESS
SFAEHERNERAE

30 June 2017

31 December 2016

2017%6H30H 2016512 831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEFZ) (L ®|HZ)

157,169,637.60 168,670,171.20

147,558,342.74 _
2,534,119.20 -

307,262,099.54 168,670,171.20

BERE
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6H30H 2016912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBEXR) (&= %)

7,896,723,878.02

840,742,027.53 862,140,302.52

8,758,864,180.54

M2017F6 308 - KEBEERHK

TEENZE (201655128318 -
) o

VB 14 BR X
PSR R A 8 0 3B B 7E3-418 A
PIBE -

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

201756 A30H 20164 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEHFER) (&%)

21,897,787,394.18




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
26. Accounts Payable (Continued)

27.

As at 30 June 2017, the aging analysis of accounts payable based

on the invoice date is presented as follows:
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RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201746 30 (A E#T)

LM EHREEEHA R
(%)
26. BEATERFX (&)
M2017%F6 8308 » EMNERZHERE
EAMMERRSITOT

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017466 H30H 201612 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (RER)

24,540,339,042.01 18,774,819,894.45
3,360,725,145.46 1,386,917,840.71
699,096,415.59 951,451,948.60
724,090,154.07 784,597,710.42

Within 3 months 3B AR

3 to 6 months 3=6fEA

6 months to 1 year 6EAZE14
Over 1 year 15 LA L+
Total A&t

29,324,250,757.13 21,897,787,394.18

As at 30 June 2017, there was no material accounts payable which

aged over one year (31 December 2016: nil).

Advances from customers

R2017F6A308 « EERERR—F A L
MEZMEMNKIE(2016F12 A31
B:&E)-

27. AWRE

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017566 H30H 201612 H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

Advances from customers TEUFRIB

5,567,136,919.01 4,627,211,871.86

As at 30 June 2017, there was no material advances from

customers which aged over one year (31 December 2016: nil).

M2017F6 H30H » ERE—F I
MEZMEKRFKIE(2016F 12 A31
H:#|E)-
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

28. Payroll payable
January to June 2017

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

T~ B OF B AR R IH H RE R

(%)
28. FE{TE T H i

20174 1-6 A

Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) BARE A HE i KEHD BARBRE
Short-term remuneration EHEMN 3,360,957,243.87 9,832,014,939.29  (9,594,639,261.47)  3,598,332,921.69
Post-employment benefits (defined BB 14 @ F|
contribution plan) (RERFE) 396,891,852.17  1273,434,643.46  (1,225397,395.10)  444,929,100.53
Severance benefits Portion due BREA
within 1 year —ERZ RO 244,764,498.25 34,780,331.67 (67,352,700.96) 212,192,128.96
Cash-settled share-based —FREENINRS
payment due within 1 year BERRGO SR 147,801,950.40 124,844,591.70 (138,880,696.50) 133,765,845.60
Other long-term payroll due —ENEERH A
within 1 year REBTHH 18,376,602.00 127,177,463.08 (118,407,216.28) 27,146,848.80
4,168,792,146.69  11,392,251,969.20  (11,144,677,270.31)  4,416,366,845.58
2016 20164
Business
combination
not involving
Opening entities under Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) balance common control the year the year Closing balance
FA-
E5ITH
(&%) EMBE tEAH AEEM AERD FRAE
Short-term remuneration R 2,559,256,264.45 519,961,251.58  13,717,899,832.70  (13,436,160,104.86)  3,360,957,243.87
Post-employment benefits BREEN
(defined contribution plan) (REREHE) 260,170,732.23 32,635855.00  2,051807,35041  (1947,722,08547)  396,891,852.17
Severance benefits HREN
Portion due within 1 year —ERZAHHH 240,966,755.55 32,752,116.06 86,393,73634  (115348,10970) 24476449825
Cash-settled share-based —ERIHNNRS
payment due within 1 year EENRGRA 79,735,857.60 - 13580931560 (67,743222.80)  147,801,95040
Other long-term payroll due —ERE| Bt
within 1 year REBTEHM 7,123,580.80 12,869,453.18 238,724,986.43 (240,341,418.41) 18,376,602.00
3,147,253,190.63 598,218,675.82  16,230,635,221.48  (15,807,314,941.24)  4,168,792,146.69
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (AR T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & 0f B % it & £ ZIH H 5 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
28. Payroll payable (Continued) 28. BB ITHM (&)
Short-term remuneration is presented as follows: REAFMMT
January to June 2017 2017 1-6 H

Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) e KEEM AHRD HAREE
Salaries, bonuses, allowances T %% 2
and subsidies e 2,656,161,495.05 8,716,413,806.26  (8,512,711,852.19)  2,859,863,449.12
Staff welfare BIRMNE 24,301,210.24 168,260,596.63 (142,819,046.73) 49,742,760.14
Social security HeRkE 68,950,706.91 557,584,503.07 (571,913,545.61) 54,621,664.37
Incl: Medical insurance A BERRE 58,039,607.35 404,986,775.95  (424,041,082.34) 38,985,300.96
Work injury insurance TERRE 7,306,903.96 122,326,065.06 (118,021,834.99) 11,611,134.03
Maternity insurance EERBE 328,196.16 5,634,839.97 (5,584,136.49) 378,899.64
Supplementary medical insurance BREERR 3,275,999.44 24,636,822.09 (24,266,491.79) 3,646,329.74
Housing funds L\I_%’Nié 14,844,500.60 110,967,102.56 (111,227,196.07) 14,584,407.09
Labor union operating funds and ERENBIHE
employee education costs ZE‘EE 395,756,768.88 77,980,104.00 (29,878,767.83) 443,858,105.05
Other short-term remuneration et skl 200,942,562.19 200,808,826.77  (226,088,853.04) 175,662,535.92
3,360,957,243.87 9,832,014,939.29  (9,594,639,261.47)  3,598,332,921.69
2016 20164
Business
combination
not involving
Opening entities under Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) balance common control the year the year Closing balance
FER—
N
(&E8) ENRE tEAH RER REFD FRBE
Salaries, bonuses, alowancesand T8 « %%  2EAEL
subsidies 1,991,148,237.20 42730400934 11,932,313,65849  (11,694,604,409.98)  2,656,161,495.05
Staff welfare BIRHE 17,953,375.82 - 325,313,194.54 (318,965,360.12) 24,301,210.24
Social security teRks 69,373,616.93 - 861,470,148.78 (861,893,058.80) 68,950,706.91
Incl: Medical insurance Eh: BERRE 52,885,474 44 - 735,696,031.92 (730,541,899.01) 58,039,607.35
Work injury insurance 1151%&’?% 12,431,447.97 - 67,925,392.72 (73,049,936.73) 7,306,903.96
Maternity insurance LERKE 342,476.79 - 11,884,656.60 (11,898,937.23) 328,196.16
Supplementary medical insurance BREERR 3,714217.73 = 45,964,067.54 (46,402,285.83) 3,275,999.44
Housing funds E=UN 14,922,967.40 = 213,139,286.21 (213,217,753.01) 14,844,500.60
Labor union operating fundsand ~ TEREANBTIHELE
employee education costs 341,607,512.29 - 108,289,166.76 (54,139,910.17) 395,756,768.88
Qther short-term remuneration H e 124,250,554.81 92,657,242.24 277,314,377.92 (293,339,612.78) 200,942,562.19
2,559,256,264.45 519961,251.58  13,717,899,832.70  (13,436,160,104.86)  3,360,957,243.87
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)

28. Payroll payable (Continued) 28. BB THM(E)
Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan) is presented as BERREREA (RERTFTE)DT -
follows:

January to June 2017 20174 1-6 H

Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) BAGE R EEED HRGHE
Basic pension insurance EXEZRRB 335,457,306.14  1,058,071,109.92  (1,004,803,178.84) 388,725,237.22
Unemployment insurance KERBE 13,480,163.15 88,680,853.46 (88,675,065.32) 13,485,951.29

Contribution to pension fund rEFRHE 47,954,382.88 126,682,680.08 (131,919,150.94) 42,717,912.02

396,891,852.17 1,273,434,643.46  (1,225,397,395.10) 444,929,100.53

2016 20164
Business
combination
not involving
Opening entities under Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) balance common control the year the year Closing balance
R
5T
(&%) ENRE i =hiid REE RERD EXBE
Basic pension insurance EREERR 202,120,995.64 32,635855.00  1,791,378374.15  (1,690,677,91865 33545730614
Unemployment insurance KERRE 10,826,606.72 - 14920881132 (146,555,254.89) 13,480,163.15
Contribution to pension fund tEFLHE 47,223129.87 - 111,220,164.94  (110,488,911.93) 47,954,382.88

260,170,732.23 32,635855.00  2,051,807,35041  (1,947,722,085.47) 396,891,852.17
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ HIH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (%)

29. EXHE

29. Taxes payable

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

201756 A30H 20164 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&HFER) (fe&E=Z)
Corporate income tax EMEH 1,453,593,467.04 914,418,055.53
Value-added tax 188 {F Ff 703,143,549.47 788,928,033.03
Individual income tax EAFT1S 8 199,235,548.73 169,769,741.18
City construction tax WER 17,324,451.47 26,071,761.13
Stamp duty ENFERT 20,874,812.30 22,527,593.37
Property tax EEM 11,628,044.36 21,398,155.06
Educational surtax HAE BM 12,919,639.49 20,486,595.82
Land use tax T fE A 17,150,707.27 13,804,820.22
Other taxes HipFiE 105,505,876.34 88,379,728.58
2,541,376,096.47 2,065,784,483.92

30. Interests payable 30. ENAIE
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6H30H 20165 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REETFZ) (e #&Z)
Interests on medium-term notes FREAZEE R B 27,945,638.82 28,615,438.17

Interests on borrowings
Others

&R

Hith

76,779,891.25

72,917,567.04
526,089.60

104,725,530.07 1

02,059,094.81
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

31.

32.

Dividends payable

HRBORHAERDE

S5 i R WA (A

201746 308 (A E#T)

T~ B OF B R 2 R IH H RE R

Dividends payable to shareholders
of the parent (Note 1)
Dividends payable to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries

FE B R SRR (R 1)

e F 2 B D B R AR

Note 1: Dividends payable to the shareholders of the parent in the amount of
RMB999,654,819.50 has been distributed during the period from the
balance sheet date to the date on which the issue of these financial
statements was approved. For details, please refer to Note XllII.

Subsequent Events.

Other payables

Sales discount

Guarantees and deposits

After-sales expenses and repair and
maintenance expenses

Payables for purchase of construction
and fixed assets

Land facility fee and land premiums

Advertising and promotion expenses

Transportation expenses

Technology development expenses

Others

HETE
REE RIS
—BREEEEE

e T2 M ElE & E R

TR ER R LK
BEREBE
EATFAEE

HAh

As at 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016, there were no other

payables in significant amount aging over one year.

(%)
31. BEERA

30 June 2017
2017%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

999,654,819.50

2,352,409.44

1,002,007,228.94

31 December 2016
201612 A31H
(Audited)
(§&ER)

3,822,409.44

3,822,409.44

H ENBRAFAEMTARARERIIARKE
999,654,819.50 LN EEBBERHEARNMG
HERAEREBZHEDRETE - F R
+= -EEAEXRBKREHE-

32. HtbEA R

30 June 2017
20174 6H30R
(Unaudited)
(RREEX)

3,216,230,809.93
2,096,996,585.56

447,685,760.82

292,760,680.89
146,406,019.92
59,501,592.47
46,768,101.84
19,329,351.37
1,124,517,918.02

7,450,196,820.82

31 December 2016
2016512 A31H
(Audited)
(gE=)

1,577,228,757.00
1,408,342,760.93

342,745,181.08

508,722,890.68
30,221,289.37
23,163,855.44
52,356,364.30
18,920,537.74
1,037,255,006.60

4,998,956,643.14

7201796 A30H &2016412 A31
B E#ER—FALNEENEME

K -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f I % it & £ IH H 5 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
33. Non-current liabilities due within one year 33. " FREFHHNIRBEE

Long-term payable due within one year
Long-term borrowings due within

one year

—FRIHNRIERNR
—FAZ BN RBER

30 June 2017

31 December 2016

201756 A30H 2016%12831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

3,478,167,722.40

1,622,684,000.00

5,100,851,722.40

3,077,266,126.80

1,547,622,000.00

4,624,888,126.80

Long-term borrowings due within Hep - —F R E
one year include: REIEH -
Credit loans ERER 1,420,684,000.00 1,345,622,000.00
Guaranteed loans ERERIEER ~ 35~ 71)

(Note V. 35 — Note 1)
Mortgage loans
(Note V. 35 — Note 2)

HERER (MR - 35 32)

200,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

200,000,000.00

2,000,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f I % it & 2 HIH H 5 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
34. Other current liabilities 34. HtRB A E

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
20176 B30H 2016912 831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREX) (REZ)
Product quality assurance deposit EnEERES 2,335,556,517.70 1,614,389,932.45

Deferred income RN (—FAEIERES)
(portion due within one year) 559,032,895.20 547,440,069.60
Others HAit 848,569,008.27 630,066,440.20
3,743,158,421.17 2,791,896,442.25

35. Long-term borrowings 35. REAfERK
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
201756 H30H 201612 H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREEX) (BEZ%)
Guaranteed loans ERER 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
Credit loans ERER 21,091,394,069.60 30,854,929,940.40
Mortgage loans ERER 708,807,751.45 708,807,751.45
22,000,201,821.05 31,763,737,691.85
Less: Long-term borrowings classified B PER—FRTE

as due within one year REfER 1,622,684,000.00 1,547,622,000.00

20,377,517,821.05 30,216,115,691.85
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (AR T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i~ & 0f & &K FEIHH B
Statements (Continued) (748)

35. REIERK(E)
REERRIBAIMT -

35. Long-term borrowings (Continued)
Long-term borrowings are classified according to maturity dates as
follows:

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

2017%6H30H 2016912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fe&E=Z)

1 N E E sk Ba R 2R E
1Z2FREE(E 15 F2F)
3E|SFREIE(E3FFSF)

Due within 1 year or on demand
Due within 1 to 2 years (inclusive)

1,622,684,000.00
4,231,207,651.20

1,547,622,000.00
11,630,527,445.20

Due within 3 to 5 years (inclusive)

14,420,401,432.80

17,704,110,495.13

Due over 5 years SELAE 1,725,908,737.05 881,477,751.52
Less: Long-term borrowings classified B DA —FANRIER
as due within one year REMER 1,622,684,000.00 1,547,622,000.00

20,377,517,821.05

As at 30 June 2017, the above loans carried interest at rates ranging
from 1.3% to 5.047% (31 December 2016: 1.3% to 5.305%) per

30,216,115,691.85

MN20175E6 308 i & KA E R
R 51.3%~5.047% (2016412 A 31

annum. H:1.3%~5305%) °
Note 1: The guaranteed loans amounting to RMB200,000,000.00 under 721 —FRIBNERDaEPHERE
non-current liabilities due within one year (31 December 2016: F A ANRBE200,000,000.007T(2016
guaranteed loans amounting to RMB200,000,000.00 under long-term F12A318 : REERPOERER
borrowings) represented the financial guarantee in respect of the loan A AR #200,000,000.007T) A& H a8
business of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the BAT(RBEDARARALRDITRARRA
Company, granted to the Export-Import Bank of China from the Xi‘an Al FRRIRABE FEFRATN
branch of the Bank of East Asia (China) Limited, which will mature on 15 BEREBRIBE R ERG T EEL
September 2017. ORT - Z—FRIINERDAR
#2017 9 R 15 B FH ©
Note 2: The mortgage loans amounting to RMB8,000,000.00 under long-term 2 REIE K P ARKES000,000.007T
borrowings and amounting to RMB2,000,000.00 under non-current E—FRNIBANERDEABRAR
liabilities due within one year (31 December 2016: RMB8,000,000.00 #2,000,000.00 7T (2016 4 12 A 31
under long-term borrowings and RMB2,000,000.00 under non-current B EH{E R ARK%S,000,000.00
liabilities due within one year) were loans provided to Shaanxi Heavy- T —FRIEHNFERDEBEAR
duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, from Rural Credit # 2,000,000.00 7T ) & # # & 7% -
Cooperative of Qishan County, Shaanxi Province, and secured by RPRTE A L &R SR A R AL
machinery and equipment with a carrying amount of RMB21,932,552.91. RADBZ FRAAIRAERRER
The RMB8,000,000.00 under long-term borrowings will mature on 28 BMARER  UEAEBEARK
August 2018 and the RMB2,000,000.00 under non-current liabilities due 21,932,552.91 70 A # 28 3% 18 A R 1R
within one year will mature on 31 December 2017. # - Z AR¥8,000,000.007T &) & £
ERKEN2018F8 A28 HEIH - AR
#2,000,000.00 7T 8 —F A E| By IE
BB ERR2017412 831825 -
Note 3: An amount of RMB698,807,751.45 under long-term borrowings (31 3 REfEFRF ARM698,807,751.45

December 2016: RMB698,807,751.45) was loan provided to Weichai
(Chongging) Automotive Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, from
the Chongging Branch of China Construction Bank Corporation and
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd., and secured by
construction in progress with a carrying amount of RMB49,407,065.54,
fixed assets with a carrying amount of RMB503,141,336.97 and
intangible assets with a carrying amount of RMB364,722,215.42. As at
30 June 2017, the mortgage had not been registered. The long-term
borrowings will mature on 20 September 2024.

L (2016 F 12 A31H : AR
698,807.751.457T) AH BZ R BT
BHERARIEEMHITHRILRET
SEVBERABALRRTZF AR
ML (BE)RBARAAER - LR
H{EE A R#49,407,065.54 T M £
TR AR¥503,141,336.977TH
BEEEERARK364,722,215.427T
HEFEERNER - 815201756
B30 @ MAPIRIKIFER - %2R
HAfE FE 20249 H20 R BIH -
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

36. Bonds payable

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

EI ?ﬁ;ﬁﬁ;ﬁjﬁiﬁ%iglﬁ H il B
36. B

Medium-term notes

FHIRE

As at 30 June 2017, balance of bonds payable are listed as follows:

(Unaudited)
(#EFH)

Medumemnote  #
Medum-tem note R

Sief - Slel

Total At

Face value

B

7,367,344,000.00
2,544,520,000.00

9,911,864,000.00

Issuing
date

01721
2015930

Bond
period
B5HR

Note &0
5 years £

9,867,049,314.03

Atthe beginning
of period

B68

Issued amount

EE ]

7,344,731,360.00 =
2,522,317,954.03

2,756,201,597.01

2,756,201,597.01

Issued
this period
RS

7,344,731,360.00

7,344,731,360.00

Accrued interest
this period
AEHRAE

29,884,396.50
58,984,449.63

88,868,846.13

10,497,021,043.56

30 June 2017

31 December 2016

20176 HA30H 2016912 831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

2,756,201,597.01

MH2017F6A308 @ ENES5%EED
RN

Exchange
Atthe end
of period

BRBE 3

gains and
losses
EjigH

Amortization
gt £

Repaid this period
AHRE

1,440,841.50
2,385,005.10

456,900,038.50 =
(64,637,798.55) -

7,803,072,240.00
2,693,948,803.56
3,825,846.60

392,262,239.95 - 10,497,021,043.56

As at 31 December 2016, balance of bonds payable are listed as R2016F12A831H « Eff{ESF4E
follows: IR ¢
Exchange

Issuing Bond Atthe beginning Isued  Accrued interest gains and Atthe end
(Audited) Face value date period Issued amount of period this period this period Amortzation losses ~ Repaid this period of period  Note
(&z7) BE  E7EE BRER EiliFa i L KRS bt EXRE 15EE BREE 2
Medumtemnote  HFHE 330375529440  2013-2-6 Tyears £ 3,298,672,593.95 3,409,725,656.23 - 137,161,080.00  (223,842,919.64)  116,982,263.41 (3,302,865,000.00) =
Medumtemnote  FHZHE  2,544,520,00000 2015-9-30 Syears £ 2,522317954.03 2,575,803,538.37 - 113,817,658.56 43025191 176,075,539.37 - 2756,201,597.01 (2)
Total At 5,848,275,294.40 5,820,990,547.98  5,985,529,194.60 - 250978,73856  (219,520,400.37)  293,057,802.78 (3,302,865,000.00) 2,756,201,597.01
() KION Group AG, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes (1) RA R ZFAAKON GROUP AG -

in a registered amount of EUR1,010 million on 21 February 2017, which
will mature in May 2022, April 2024 and April 2027, at floating interest

rate based on EURIBOR.

(2) Weichai International Hong Kong Energy Group Co., Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, issued medium-term notes with registered capital of
USD400 million on 30 September 2015, nominal interest rate of 4.125%,
maturity of 5 years and with interest payable every six months.

MR2017F2 21 BB T EEREA
10. 1ERTa P AR & - 5 5IR2022
#£5H 20244 AM2027F4 A5
B - FI=R ALAEURIBOR(BUTTIRTTR 2
FIER R ) BEENZEF X -

RATZ FRRMEER(BH)ER
EBARADA - R2015F9H30H %
TaAMESRIEETHFHRIE
ZEARKE4125%  EHFHRAS
F - NHEEERMEA -
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
37. Long-term payables

38.
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ho AU B R R IE H R
(748)
37. RHAEMNR

Government grants for national Bl (ETH B BUF R
debt projects

Rental payable for sale and leaseback ~ FEIEEMHBMEER

mMERE

Hit & BAE

Finance lease

Other financial liabilities

As at 30 June 2017, the balance of unrecognized finance costs
in finance lease payables amounted to RMB924,682,710.08 (31
December 2016: RMB829,320,316.34).

Long-term payroll payable

Defined benefit obligations BREX=E
Long-term severance benefits RHBRET
Cash-settled share-based payments LAIR & S E R D S A4
Other long-term payroll payable H b = HA B T % o

30 June 2017
201746 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

5,500,000.00
5,667,995,443.20
2,747,783,421.60
2,417,875.20

8,423,696,740.00

31 December 2016
201612 A31H
(Audited)
(RER)

5,500,000.00
5,275,853,019.60
2,496,857,775.60
3,025,015.20

7,781,235,810.40

MW2017F6A30H - e EMAE RN
FPRRBERREERANBRBEAARKE
924,682,710.087T (20164 12 A 31
B : AR%829,320,316.347L) °

30 June 2017
2017566 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

8,183,610,572.24
111,178,695.04
93,599,668.80
288,255,247.60

8,676,644,183.68

38. RN T M

31 December 2016
201612 H31H
(Audited)
(EHE%)

8,062,097,579.58
124,005,321.62
125,669,653.20
263,022,639.90

8,574,795,194.30
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i~ 0f & #fE FEIHH B
Statements (Continued) (%)
38. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 38. REAERBE T H M (&)

Defined benefit obligations

The Group operates defined benefit schemes for its staff in some
overseas subsidiaries who meet conditions. The scheme requires
that contribution be made to an independently administered fund.
Under the scheme, staff are entitled to enjoy retirement benefit

provided for under defined benefit of the plans.

The Group’s defined benefit scheme is one requiring contribution
prior to termination of service. The scheme requires that
contribution be made to an independently administered fund. The
scheme is administered by an independent trustee in the legal form
of a fund. The assets held under the fund is held separately with
assets of the Group. The trustee is responsible for the investment

strategies of the scheme.

The trustee assesses the level of capital of the scheme. The
assessment includes asset-liabilities matching strategies and
investment risk management strategies. The trustee determines the

amount to be deployed based on the result of its annual assessment.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, risk of change of
anticipated age of beneficiaries of the pension, and risks of the

securities market.

The latest actuarial valuation of the assets under the scheme and
the present value of the defined benefit obligations are determined

by using the projected unit credit method.

RERHEY
REERHRINFRERBFEA
BTEEETREX@MATE
ERMBIIEENE S HIT?

&ATEI T EZX

/mﬁ

e
T BIAMEERERMT

M ERRIRAER o

RNEBHRE X 25T 812 5 B AT HK
RIKEEE - ZEtBIZ kB ER
WMESHTFER - ZtalAES AE
BEX  THBIXHEAETER
HEEMNAERASENEESB D
fl o REABEBEZTENIREAR

g o

EHRABZENESKYF - ZEZ
BREE-ABECRERENILERR

EERE - XEARBFEERNE
RRERBIFHE -

% RKE QE)\E’]
EHSaEBEARMEBLRTSERD

ZAtBBEMROBEMENRER
SERBHREERARNRERNEML
TRHETE e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7 - & 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
38. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 38. REAEFRBE T H M (&)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued) REXmEB(E)
TERREEBEXRAMERNEZEZR

at the balance sheet date: HR&

The following table sets out the key actuarial assumptions used as

31 December 2016

30 June 2017

2017%6H30H 2016512 831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fE®|HZ)

FEE(%)
AR TERE BERIERE(%)

Discount rate (%) 1.51%-3.80% 1.35%-4.05%
Expected growth rate of future
1.75%-3.50%

1.87%-4.25%

0.00%-3.50%
0.00%-4.25%

pension expenses (%)

Expected rate of salary increment (%)  FBHAZF €318 K R(%)

BEMBERTTIHEENTEAAR
" 6,066,825,156.38 7T (2016 £ 12
A31H : AR#5,830,951,970.18

JT) e

The actuarial valuation illustrates that the market value of assets
under the scheme is RMB6,066,825,156.38 (31 December 2016:
RMB5,830,951,970.18).

EMBRRTEIANAETENT

Scheme recognized in the income statement is set out below:

January-June 2017 2016

2017%1-6 8 20164

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZR) (&%)

Current cost of service B H RS R A 153,060,413.37 243,959,492.34

Historical cost of service B E RIS AL AR - (1,797,804.40)

Interest expenses FEFEE 80,696,090.07 148,260,862.85

Net amount of the cost of post- BEES 1 18 FI Rk A F 58

employment benefit 233,756,503.44 390,422,550.79

Credited to cost of sales TR 91,004,445.00 153,127,070.80
Credited to distribution and STASHEEA

selling expenses 24,240,478.50 43,167,906.00
Credited to general and STAEEEH

administrative expenses 37,815,489.87 45,866,711.14

Credited to financial expenses SAMBER 80,696,090.07 148,260,862.85

233,756,503.44

390,422,550.79
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

38. Long-term payroll payable (Continued)

Defined benefit obligations (Continued)

S5 i R WA (A

2017664308 (A B¥T)

T~ B OF B R 2 R IH H RE R

(%)
REEAEIHM(E)

REX:HER(E)

38.

The change in defined benefit obligations and the change in fair

value of assets under the scheme are as follows:

January to June 2017

(Unaudited)
(REER)
Defined benefit scheme RER et E
Opening balance RS
Taken to profit or loss in the FAEHER
current period
Cost of services PR A
Net interest MEFE
Taken to other comprehensive income 5t A E {145 & Ui 5
Actuarial gains RERSE
Return on assets under the HEIBER®
scheme (net of amount (GTARI B 558
included in net interest) IR AM)
Adjustment for exchange EHEERE
differences
Benefits paid B X AHERH
Contribution from employers EX&TF
Other changes Hit &g
Closing balance HREAFE

Present value of
defined benefit
scheme
obligations
RES ot El
EBHE

13,803,168,602.96

153,060,413.37
153,798,266.07

(388,557,194.40)

(8,710,550.40)
(180,995,853.21)
(2,417,116.52)
627,450,743.95

14,156,797,311.82

Note: As of 30 June 2017, the assets under the scheme amounted in aggregate
to RMB93,638,416.80 were accounted for under other non-current assets.

REXGBBEHMAZNEELIAB

EEFHMT

20174 1-6 A

Fair value of
assets under

the scheme

FHEEAAEE

(5,830,951,970.18)

(73,102,176.00)

(56,688,324.00)

126,107,226.00
(68,536,047.18)
(163,653,865.02)

(6,066,825,156.38)

Net liabilities/
(Net assets)

R/ (FEE)

1,972,216,632.78

153,060,413.37
80,696,090.07

(388,557,194.40)

(56,688,324.00)

(8,710,550.40)
(54,888,627.21)
(70,953,163.70)
463,796,878.93

8,089,972,155.44Noteiz)

$ R2017F6A30BEIEEFRH H5t
AR #93,638,416.80 T & H b 3E 7
HEERZE -
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 1 -~ & /f o % #t 3% 2 200 H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
38. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 38. Eﬁﬂﬂgﬁﬂﬁﬁlﬁwﬂ(%)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued) REX B (E)
The change in defined benefit obligations and the change in fair REX B SEHMAEEEAALE
value of assets under the scheme are as follows (Continued): BEEESHMT(E)
2016 2016%F
Present value of Fair value of
defined benefit assets under Net liabilities/
(Audited) scheme obligations the scheme (Net assets)
(B&%) RER @A E GEBE
Defined benefit scheme REX et E ABRE AhEE  FRE/CFEE)
Opening balance FHE 10,720,978,074.37 (4,497,117,081.86)  6,223,860,992.51
Business combinations not involving ~ 3ERE—IZHI T E A G
entities under common control 1,810,177,090.40 (1,106,709,296.00) 703,467,794.40
Taken to profit or loss in the SAEHER
current period
Cost of services PR A 242,161,687.94 - 242,161,687.94
Net interest B FE 292,677,134.53 (144,416,271.68) 148,260,862.85
Taken to other comprehensive income ﬁ)\ﬁﬁ’g,,/\uﬁz/\
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEBRL/(FE 1,028,082,666.99 (3,350,518.60) 1,024,732,148.39
Return on assets under the scheme HEIEER R
(net of amount included in net GGEAR BFEH
interest) BROM) - (458,659,008.11) (458,659,008.11)
Adjustment for exchange differences (B 5 Z 5% (52,046,336.40) - (52,046,336.40)
Benefits paid BXAMER (308,887,858.38) 205,458,339.14 (103,429,519.24)
Contribution from employers EX&TF (8,766,251.22) (45,296,837.62) (54,063,088.84)
Other changes Hih g 78,792,394.73 219,138,704.55 297,931,099.28
Closing balance BN 13,803,168,602.96 (5830,951,970.18)  7,972,216,632.78Notei?

Note: As of 31 December 2016, the assets under the scheme amounted in
aggregate to RMB89,880,946.80 were accounted for under other non-

current assets.

T R2016F12A31BEtEIEEFH H
= AR #89,880,946.80 T 7£ H 1ib 3F
MEEERZE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % #i 38 3= % IH H 5i B
Statements (Continued) (%)
39. Special payables 39. EIEHEMR
January to June 2017 20174 1-6 H

Opening Increase during  Decrease during Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period the period balance
(REER) BARE A2 XHHD HRRE
Interest subsidy for liquid fund HHBRERNTNTED
granted by provincial finance office & & BB 8 23,000,000.00 23,000,000.00
National debt special fund - EEZEEES
establishment of key industry - EHEZRERN
revitalization and technological RiTBGEEEBR
renovation projects 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
43,000,000.00 43,000,000.00
2016 20164
Opening Increase during Decrease during Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year balance
(FER) FHE RELEM KERD FRHE
Interest subsidy for liquid fund AN BERN MRS
granted by provincial finance office BREHEE 23,000,000.00 - - 23,000,000.00
National debt special fund - EEEEE
establishment of key industry - BHEZREN
revitalization and technological RATETE B 2R
renovation projects 20,000,000.00 - - 20,000,000.00
43,000,000.00 - - 43,000,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7 - & 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
40. Accruals and provisions 40. FEFTEE
January to June 2017 2017 1-6 H
Increase Decrease Adjustment for
Opening during during exchange Closing
(Unaudited) Balance the period the period differences balance
(RBER) BOEHE REEm KD EXZERE BABE
Product quality assurance ~ EREERES
deposit 132,201,932.40 13,743,985.50 (4,830,178.50) 4,034,268.60 145,150,008.00
Pending litigation RAFFR 50,153,875.20 14,221,777.50 (3,605,836.50) (640,669.80) 60,129,146.40
Guarantee provided to HIMRRER
external parties 20,217,915.60 1,067,566.50 - 1,110,861.90 22,396,344.00
Debt restructuring EBER 5,721,224.40 - (507,654.00) 296,395.20 5,509,965.60
Losses in contract ERAR 14,715,895.20 - (14,595,052.50) (120,842.70) -
Others Hit 88,022,750.40 12,579,367.50 (5,651,383.50) 3,352,250.40 98,302,984.80
311,033,593.20 41,612,697.00 (29,190,105.00) 8,032,263.60 331,488,448.80
2016 20164
Increase Decrease Adjustment for
Opening during during exchange Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year differences balance
(B%%) FNeR REEN RERD EREBRE ERBE
Product quality assurance deposit EmZ EFE 2 166,524,344.00 47,576,231.60 (84,439,206.80) 2,540,563.60 132,201,932.40
Pending litigation RIREFHA 18,759,708.80 35,559,516.80 (7,176,344.00) 3,010,993.60 50,153,875.20
Guarantee provided to HMRERER
external parties 14,452,922 .40 7,073,824.80 (2,145,580.40) 836,748.80 20,217,915.60
Debt restructuring BRER 19,050,612.00 7,322.80 (13,927,965.60) 591,255.20 5,721,224.40
Losses in contract BESA 4,909,878.40 9,548 931.20 (65,905.20) 322,990.80 14,715,895.20
Others Hity 62,480,331.20 41,453,643.20 (13,327,496.00) (2,583,728.00) 88,022,750.40
286,177,796.80 141,219,470.40 (121,082,498.00) 4,718,824.00 311,033,593.20
Deferred income 41. EE W =
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6H30H 2016512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (g&E=)
Government grant BB 1,098,497,112.20 1,092,367,633.72

Deferred income of “sales with risk”

business

Deferred income of sale and

leaseback sub-leases
Deferred income of forklift trucks services X B8 AR 754 & 2 IR iE

Others

TR R 35 & R A% 2 R W as

SR AEBEAER ZRIERS

HAl

Yo zm

256,077,782.40

1,131,170,364.00
275,498,280.00
28,565,025.59

2,789,808,564.19

238,194,373.20

968,333,670.00
253,640,948.40
21,693,889.19

2,574,230,514.51
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f i % it & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
41. Deferred income (Continued) 41. EEW R (&)
As at 30 June 2017, the liability items related to government grant R2017406 A308 » KRBT B
are as follows: WaBEEBENT
Taken to
Opening Increase during other income Related to
(Unaudited) balance the period  during the period Closing balance assets/income
REEA HEE/
(REER) HyLE R Hitlhs HARE W HE
Land-related government ST miEER Related to assets
grant B e 781,178,886.58 12,308,884.00 11,553,384.78 781,934,385.80 HEERH
Special funds forindusty  EZREMAH
revitalization and EHES Related to assets
technological renovation 237,653,157.89 8,594,566.87 2,808,256.21 243,439,468.55 HEENH
Special assistance fund EBRENES Related to assets
12,477,130.71 360,760.86 12,116,369.85 HEERH
National debt special fund ~ EIEZEES Related to assets
9,961,013.99 9,961,013.99 HEERE
Spedial assistance fund for ~ THEIBR 28 Related to income
R&D projects EHERSE 48,585,229.00 48,585,229.00 Lyl
Others Hit Related to assets
2,512,215.55 - 51,570.54 2,460,645.01 HEERE
1,092,367,633.72 20,903,450.87 14,773,972.39 1,098,497,112.20
As at 31 December 2016, the liability items related to government M2016F12A318  HRBFFB
grant are as follows: WBEEBENT :
Taken to non-
Opening Increase during operating income Related to
(Audited) balance the year during the year Closing balance assets/income
REHA HEE/
(EER) ENEE REHE EEIMIA FABE sl
Land-related government H1 iR Related to assets
grant BT 759,725,901.40 45,833,742.00 24,380,756.82 781,178 ,886.58 HEERY
Special funds for industry EXREANHS
revitalization and EEE S Related to assets
technological renovation 148,943,771.85 95,280,000.00 6,570,613.96 237,653,157.89 HEERR
Special assistance fund EREHES Related to assets
11,502,779.49 1,348,000.00 373,648.78 12,477,130.71 HEERS
National debt special fund BAEZEES Related to assets
11,953,216.79 - 1,992,202.80 9,961,013.99 HEEIERA
Special assistance fund for WEIEREIE Related to income
R&D projects HHELSE 29,473,900.00 38,224,161.00 19,112,832.00 48585,229.00 ellhgyiil
Others 2 Related to assets
2,615,356.63 - 103,141.08 2,512,215.55 HEERS

964,214,926.16 180,685,903.00 52,533,195.44 1,092,367,633.72
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (A ET)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7 - & 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
42. Share capital 42. R
January to June 2017 2017 1-6 H

Increase

(decrease) of

shares in
Opening balance current period Closing balance
B8RS TR/ (5 RE HASRE
(Unaudited) No. of shares Proportion No. of shares Proportion
(RBER) e | EE4(%) RE EoA(%)
| Restricted shares - EREREHKRH
State-owned legal person shares BEEAER 821,265,504.00 821,265,504.00
Other domestic shares HERERR 46,378,011.00 . (,434.00) 46,371,577.00
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned HE BRFEEE
legal person shares BN
Domestic natural person IREERIN
shares ER 46,378,011.00 . (,434.00) 46,371,577.00
867,643,515.00 (6,434.000  867,637,081.00
Il Non-restricted shares = EREREHKRA
RMB ordinary Shares AERBE@T 2,159,455,763.00 6,434.00  2,159,462,197.00
Domestic listed foreign shares B ETRINER = = =
Overseas listed foreign shares B ETRANVE IR 971,520,000.00 971,520,000.00

3,130,975,763.00 6,434.00 3,130,982,197.00

lll. Total no. of shares PEEE: 3,998,619,278.00 - 3,998,619,278.00
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
42. Share capital (Continued)

S5 i R WA (A

201746 308 (A E#T)

T~ B OF B R 2 R IH H RE R

(%)
42. A (&)

2016 20164
Increase
(decrease) of
shares in
Opening balance current year Closing balance
rEE/
EN8E (R &E ERBE
(Audited) No. of shares Proportion No. of shares Proportion
(EER) e EL01(%) e ELA1(%)
. Restricted shares - BREKHRS
State-owned legal person shares BENER 821,265,504.00 20.54 - 821,265,504.00 20.54
Other domestic shares HtRERR 113,664,000.00 2.84 (67,285,989.00) 46,378,011.00 1.16
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned i BRFERE
legal person shares EANER - - - - -
Domestic natural person shares BRERA
FiR 113,664,000.00 2.84 (67,285,989.00) 46,378,011.00 1.16
934,929,504.00 23.38 (67,285,989.00)  867,643,515.00 21.70
Il Non-restricted shares = EREEHKRG
RMB ordinary Shares ARBEER 2,092,169,774.00 5232 67,285,989.00  2,159,455,763.00 54.00
Domestic listed foreign shares BRETRINER = = = = =
Overseas listed foreign shares B9 ERNER 971,520,000.00 2430 - 971,520,000.00 2430
3,063,689,774.00 76.62 67,285,989.00  3,130,975,763.00 78.30
Ill. Total no. of shares = kip#z 3,998,619,278.00 100.00 - 3,998,619,278.00 100.00
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

43. Capital reserve
January to June 2017

S BS  R  5E
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(#4)

201746 30 (A E#T)

i~ &R
(%)

Bk R EIHH kR

43. EXRNTE
20174 1-6 A

Opening Increase during  Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) BARE RHE ) BRRE
Share premium BRARE (T 2)
(Notes 1 and 2) 42,667,682.63 (9,776,743.51) 32,890,939.12
Other capital reserve HibEARRE(G3)
(Note 3) 30,139,859.91 1,188,459.82 31,328,319.73
30,139,859.91 43,856,142.45 (9,776,743.51) 64,219,258.85
2016 20164
Adjustments
for business
combination
Opening under common Increase during  Decrease during
(Audited) balance control the year the year Closing balance
A—#8T
(FER) FHHE PEAHAE REEM RERD FRHE
Share premium BRAEE - 199,002,149.07 19,587,504.71  (218,589,653.78) -
Other capital reserve HEARRHE 27,883,109.16 = 2,256,750.75 - 30,139,859.91
27,883,109.16 199,002,149.07 21,844,255.46  (218,589,653.78) 30,139,859.91

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

In 2017, the capitalization of capital reserve of minority shareholders
of Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company, contributed to an increase in the share premium of the Group
of RMB42,667,682.63.

In 2017, the Company acquired the additional 9,300,000 shares of
its subsidiary, KION GROUP AG through Weichai Power (Luxembourg)
Holding S.a r.I. (“Weichai Lux"”). Upon the completion of acquisition of
new shares, the percentage of shareholding remained unchanged at
43.26%. This equity transaction led to a decrease of RMB9,776,743.51
in the share premium.

For other increase in capital reserve arising from equity-settled share-
based payment, please refer to Note XI. Share-based Payment.

$1: 20179 KRB ZFRAHMESH
BN AEERET DRI Z L HBRE
NEZHEMNEARREE LT YL A
MAEMEALNERAZBEARE
42,667,682.637T °

2 20176 ARRBABHESH(E
REVERBEBRAR([HEERE])
2 B T 2 8 KION GROUP AG i %
fi& 5 9,300,000 & + 7Nk 1 AR 3R &
REIFER%E  HRLEOITE - DA
43.26% ' HEEMRFHMERA
TERE A% B A R#9,776,743.517¢ °
H3: ERAZENRMINSIBHERARTE
Hpeyigm - 2RME+— - RiHx
i e
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it 3% £ IH H 5 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
44. Other comprehensive income 44. HihRE W&
Other comprehensive income, on a cumulative basis, attributable to BEABRRITEEBNE AN E ML
parent as shown in balance sheet is as follows: Bl RETeREE -
TJanuary 2016 Increase/(Decrease) 31 December 2016 Increase/(Decrease) 30 June 2017
20165 1A1H BHE 20165124318 VM 2017F6A30H

Changes arising from re- ENHERT YA

measuring net assets or HE L€l

net liabilities of defined FEERY

benefit plan (375,736,013.12) (184,215,626.51) (559,951,639.63) 215,397,751.32 (344,553,888.31)
Share of investee’s other EaiTERRE

comprehensive income BUTHENH

notto bereclassified into ~ ERRMEM

profit or loss using the GelimhzE

equity method ofR:cl (164,648,572.83) (928,656.44) (165,577,229.27) 1,498,557.20 (164,078,672.07)
Share of investee’s other ERiTERRE

comprehensive income BIERE

to be reclassified into PERRN

profit or loss using the bz e g

equity method FENHE 34,155,708.14 518,499.84 34,674,207.98 1,850,567.27 36,524,775.25
Change of fair value of HEESRER

available-for-sale MBEEED

financial assets 59,200,000.00 (6,000,000.00) 53,200,000.00 1,884,969.59 55,084,969.59
Effective portion of cashflow B4 HEEHH

from hedging BREA 6,668,906.75 (66,499,896.80) (59,830,990.05) 57,052,684.72 (2,778,305.33)
Exchange differences on INEBERR

foreign currency translation EE3 ] (146,434,780.43) 426,833,274.64 280,398,494.21 (969,726,225.88) (689,327,731.67)
Relevant income tax effect BENFEHY 2 84,286,077.71 37,699,324.71 121,985,402.42 (61,964,298.53) 60,021,103.89

(502,508,673.78) 207,406,919.44 (295,101,754.34) (754,005,994.31)  IUNUERTORZEN)
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (A ET)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7 - & 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
44, Other comprehensive income (Continued) 44, HibiRE Wz ()
Incurred in current period for other comprehensive income as FERAPEMIGE WSS EA L5

shown in the income statement:

January to June 2017 20174 1-6 F

Less: Amount
recognized in other

comprehensive
income in previous
period and
recognized in Attributable Attributable
profit or loss in to parent to minority
(Unaudited) Incurred pre-tax current period Less: income tax company interests
B A A
AfpiRalE BR
(REEH) RABRER EREARG B FEH BREAH SERRER

Those other comprehensive B ENBRER
income not to be reclassified WEMEANE
into profit or loss

in subsequent periods
Changes arising from BN ERER A

re-measuring net assets or FREXFEEN

net liabilites of defined 29

benefit plan 453,956,068.80 125,597,767.20 161,064,157.23 167,294,144.37
Share of investee’s other BRETERREEL

comprehensive income notto  FEEEBERER
be reclassified into profitor loss ~ Hftiér A Iz
using the equity method ZEMNE 3,464,071.20 1,498,557.20 1,965,514.00

Those other comprehensive LA BED BEBR
income to be reclassified WEpSARE
into profit or loss
in subsequent periods

Share of investee’s other Ewi MERREEN

comprehensive income INEBEHERER

to be reclassified into MEBSA KR

profit or loss using ZENNE

the equity method 4,271,779.20 1,850,567.27 2,427,211.93
Change of fair value of available- 4t E4BAE

for-sale financial assets NEEEY 30,589,388.80 (2,240,539.20) 4,556,426.85 28,273,501.15
Effective portion of cashflow B4 FEEHH

from hedging BREH (144,617,149.19) (240,725,080.75) 23,814,520.80 46,750,523.02 25,542,887.74
Exchange differences on foreign ~ SMEBFFEZE

currency translation (1,739,621,190.38) - - (969,726,225.88) (769,894,964.50)

(1,391,951,031.57) (240,725,080.75) 147,171,748.80 (754,005,994.31) (544,391,705.31)
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S5 i R WA (A

201746 308 (A E#T)

1~ A OF B ok 2 IH H

Statements (Continued) (%)
44. Other comprehensive income (Continued) 4. HittiRE W (&)
January to June 2016 2016 1-6 A
Less: Amount
recognized in other
comprehensive
income in previous
period and
recognized in
(Unaudited) profit or loss in Attributable to Attributable to
(Restated) Incurred pre-tax current period Less: income tax parent company minority interests
A BT
(REER) Btk BE
(E5it) HEREE 2HE B W R BEEAT LERFER
Those other comprehensive DETRER BlER
income not to be reclassified BEMEE Y
into profit or loss
in subsequent periods
Changes arising from ENfERE R A
re-measLring net assets or FREXFEEN
net liabilites of defined 29
benefit plan (1,495,868,300.00) - (429,748,625.00) (408,163,272.19) (657,956,402.81)
Share of investee's other %éiﬂ'&?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ fiz
comprehensive income not to EENBEBEN
be reclassified into profit or loss 1 AliES
using the equity method ?“ﬁ'ﬁ% g (73,750.00) = = (28,209.38) (45,540.62)
Those other comprehensive DERBENBERR
income to be reclassified into MEMSRARE
profit or loss in subsequent periods
Share of investee’s other Bt TERREBN
comprehensive income NERENBERS
to be reclassified into Bt R
profit or loss using ZENME
the equity method 5,051,875.00 - - (1,891,425.81) 6,943,300.81
Change of fair value of available- ~ ATHESREE
for-sale financial assets NhEEEY (32,400,000.00) - (4,860,000.00) (27,540,000.00) -
Exchange portion of cashflow BEREEHN
from hedging BuEs 50,371,250.00 28,541,250.00 22,324,125.00 (189,002.81) (305,122.19)
Exchange differences on foreign NNERRINEER
currency translation (34,861,437 51) - - (19,734,419.17) (15,127,018.34)
(1,507,780,362.51) 28,541,250.00 (412,284,500.00) (457,546,329.36) (666,490,783.15)
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f I % it & £ HIH H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (78)
45. Special reserve 45. EIE#E
January to June 2017 20175 1-6 A
At the Increase Decrease
beginning during during At the end
(Unaudited) of period the period the period of period
(REER) B8E A AERD HAREE
Safety funds ZREEE 98,711,320.61 29,574,905.93 (15,835,724.38) 112,450,502.16
2016 20164
Increase Decrease
At the beginning during during At the end
(Audited) of year the year the year of year
(&%) FNHE REL KERD FRNE
Safety funds ZREEE 78,839,437.56 46,796,631.92 (26,924,748.87) 98,711,320.61
46. Surplus reserve 46. BERATE
January to June 2017 20174 1-6 H
At the Decrease
beginning Increase during during At the end
(Unaudited) of period the period the period of period
(REER) BARE A5 KER D HREAE
Statutory surplus reserve EERBLE
2016 20164
At the Increase Decrease
beginning during during At the end
(Audited) of year the year the year of year
(&ER) FNHE RERM KERD ERBE
Statutory surplus reserve FERBAE 1,207,988,900.22 298,750,686.67  (1,506,739,586.89) -
According to the provisions of Company Law and the articles of RIEATNEMARRERMHAE © A
association, the Company appropriated statutory surplus reserve N EIRFFE A 10% REUE T & &
at 10% of the net profit. Where the accumulated amount of the RES - ATEBHBABRNBALA
statutory surplus reserves reaches 50% or more of the Company’s AFEMEARS0% A LK @ JRFR

registered capital, additional appropriation is not needed. H o
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V.

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

47.

48.

Retained earnings

8/ FNARDEEAE

Retained earnings at the beginning

of period/year
Net profit attributable to shareholders 53BN EA R Y
of the parent = lbE
Less: Appropriation of surplus reserves 3 : IZERB A ATE
Dividend payable on ordinary JER T BRI &
shares in cash el
Distribution to original B —EHl T2
shareholders prior to the date E0F BRTRRARR
of combination involving Enpal i

entities under common control

F—f2H Tk

Business combinations involving

entities under common control i
Addition and reduction of shares #IN AL FRF
of subsidiaries and others f&fn K B

46

2

B ERADEEAE

Retained earnings at the end of

period/year

P

Distribution of the dividend payable on ordinary shares in cash
amounting to RMB999,654,819.50 was completed during the
period from the balance sheet date to the date of approval of
these financial statements. For details, please refer to Note XIII.

Subsequent Events.

Revenue and Cost of Sales

Revenue includes turnover and other revenue that arise in the
course of the Group’s ordinary activities. The Group's turnover,
which arises from the principal activities of the Group, represents
the net invoiced values of goods sold, after allowances for returns,
trade discounts and the value of services rendered; and gross rental

income received and receivable from investment properties.

48.

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)
ho SO R R R EIEH R
(74)
47. R ERE
Note V ERIEIAIV Iy 2016
R 2017%1-68 20164
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fe&:=Z)

7,905,900,916.04 26,930,133,835.41

2,650,042,739.83 2,441,188,631.73
= 298,750,686.67

999,654,819.50

799,723,855.60

7,001,600.00

43,674,598.77

316,270,810.06

9,556,288,836.37

27,905,900,916.04

ERHEBRRESBRIARE
999,654,819.50 TR EERBEXRA
EAMBREERL A 2B IRE
=8 HAWE+T=Z  EEAEXA
BEIE -

ERBARBEA
WABEAREE BB ERBRPES
MEXEREMBA - REBAE
BEBREENEEERFANRE
B - AR - RERE N EEN
EHERMHERFEURRA LS
SOEEE M R AR TR S A R
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RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201746 30 (A E#T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 10 ~ {5 ff ¥ % ¥t 38 Z 2 I H 51 R

Statements (Continued)

48. Revenue and Cost of Sales (Continued)

49,

January-June 2017
2017%1-68
(Unaudited)
(RRER)

Revenue

LON

Principal operations
Other revenue

70,595,730,065.54
1,717,535,524.57

72,313,265,590.11

The revenue is listed as follows:

w

48. EEWAR RA (&)

January-June 2016
2016%F1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RigzER)
(Restated)
(&)
Cost Revenue Cost

A LON A

SRR 41,633,331,774.94  31,974,078,115.45

1,537,021,156.32

56,987,411,183.56

928,053,992.93

854,204,659.68

42,561,385,767.87

32,828,282,775.13

BRBATIRAT

January-June 2017
2017%1-6 B
(Unaudited)

(RRBER)

Revenue from principal operations
Sales of goods and others
Revenue from forklift trucks production,
warehousing technology and supply
chain solutions services

FERBUA
HE R R EA
NELE  RERMK
HRE SRR T SRBRTE WA

42,538,969,266.20

28,056,760,799.34

70,595,730,065.54

1,256,739,834.66
24,321,338.63
60,486,099.04
375,988,252.24

1,717,535,524.57

72,313,265,590.11

49. & KM

January-June 2017
2017%1-6 B
(Unaudited)

(RREX)

Other revenue WES PN
Sales of materials SHEME
Sales of power HEBN
Lease income AEWA
Others HAb

Taxes and Surcharges

Business tax R

City construction tax PR

Educational surtax == 4Pl

Others Eb

125,354,845.27
90,647,330.23
157,187,815.82

373,189,991.32

January-June 2016
20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)
(Restated)
(geEi)

23,478,010,665.26

18,155,321,109.68

41,633,331,774.94

627,337,417.16
19,273,295.55
42,168,902.46
239,274,377.76

928,053,992.93

42,561,385,767.87

January-June 2016
20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REERZ)
(Restated)

(& &Em)

2,850,773.11
69,915,028.44
50,238,848.11
21,639,586.08

144,644,235.74
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

HRBORHAERDE

50. Distribution and selling expenses

51.

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

T~ B OF B R 2 R IH H RE R

(%)
50. SHEEH

January-June 2017

2017%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

1,874,145,723.42
1,138,573,100.05
481,295,363.27
344,236,121.73
245,523,708.44
152,945,419.55
148,536,364.17
52,319,019.46
589,849,579.00

5,027,424,399.09

51. EEEH

January-June 2017
2017%1-6 8
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Staff costs B I A

After-sales and repair fee —BERkERREER

Freight and packaging BERDEE

Marketing expenses Mm% HAHmER

Depreciation of fixed asset ETEENE

Lease expenses HEE

Travel expenses ERE

Office expenses WAEBA

Others Hith

General and administrative expenses

Staff costs B I A

Depreciation of fixed assets TEENE

External support fee INER 15 B

Experiment expenses and AREBLAZRER
development expenses

Office expenses WRE

Fuels and materials ISR

Taxes Tk

Lease expenses HEB

Travel expenses EIRE

Others HAh,

2,480,889,986.03
386,090,762.93
344,442,303.06

318,436,526.68
170,363,990.85
122,163,318.67
82,802,145.12
59,037,850.13
628,866,400.96

4,593,093,284.43

January-June 2016

2016 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgEZ)
(Restated)
(&)

1,395,040,287.91
513,030,767.70
412,052,302.75
440,934,701.16
107,641,545.68
106,854,227.05
132,875,145.12
54,735,345.49
330,358,827.29

3,493,523,150.15

January-June 2016

20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)
(Restated)
(E)

1,761,460,209.77
506,911,363.49
373,221,559.99

213,645,692.61
135,039,534.87
114,189,841.14
113,095,019.61

67,438,511.68

52,561,819.22
432,959,023.10

3,770,522,575.48
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f I % it & £ I H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
52. Finance expenses 52. MK EH

January-June 2017

January-June 2016

2017%1-6 8 2016 1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RREX) (REFEZ)

(Restated)

(&)

Interest expenses FEZ T 664,527,888.68 750,203,437.21
Less: interest income W A B A 470,373,560.53 405,684,996.75
Exchange losses/(gains) M H 185 97,196,505.05 (58,278,604.93)
Handling fees and others FEEREAM 77,365,637.61 (198,082,658.64)
368,716,470.81 88,157,176.89

Interest expenses: MEXH
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts SFERAEEEER

and other borrowings wholly
repayable within 5 years

Interest on financial leases

RITER - B R
H b & H 8
BMEHEENF S

463,996,024.09
192,331,246.83

541,646,432.74
190,233,675.73

Other interest HibF 2 8,200,617.76 18,323,328.74
664,527,888.68 750,203,437.21
53. Impairment loss of assets 53. EERMEERX

January-June 2017 January-June 2016

2017%1-6 8 20165 1-6 8

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REEEZR)

(Restated)

(&)

Loss from bad debt ERE X 309,842,979.47 173,199,071.85

Loss due to decline in value FEKRERK

of inventories 171,098,159.62 175,057,926.88

Impairment loss of fixed assets BB ERMEERK 83,593,515.12 48,771.99
Impairment loss of construction EETRERERX

in progress 16,842,546.88 =

Impairment loss of intangible assets BIZEERBERR 371,696,846.38 =

953,074,047.47

348,305,770.72
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (AR T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f i % it & £ IH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
54. Profit or loss on change of fair value 54. AREEESHESR

Note V ERIEIAIV Iy Jan
Mz h 201745 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REBERK)

uary-June 2016
20164 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgEZ)
(Restated)

(g &E3)

Financial assets at fair value through LA AR BEEEER
profit or loss for the current period HE8h5t AEH
BENESREE 142,460,083.61
Incl: Forward contract Hrh  mEAA D 142,460,083.61

(63,149,038.43)
(63,149,038.43)

Financial liabilities at fair value through A AR BEETE R
profit or loss for the current period HEH:t AEH
BEnemas

(23,076,012.83)

(23,076,012.83)

(86,225,051.26)

Incl: Cross currency interest Heb: XRXEHK 64
rate swap instruments EcE:
TA
142,460,083.61
55. Investment income 55. RE W=

January-June 2017 Jan
2017%1-6 A
(Unaudited)

(RBER)

uary-June 2016
20165 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)
(Restated)
(&)

Gain on long-term equity investments Az B R B AR

under the equity method "B Wz 120,804,392.87
Investment income arising from disposal iz & & B ER & E 4 B

of long-term equity investments ®E W=
Investment income during the period in  AIftHE S RIEEXE

which the available-for-sale FA BEERSH

financial assets were held & W= 12,500,531.87
Others Hh 1,899,797.83

68,609,558.56

6,300,164.01

10,961,466.93
(2,894,123.99)

135,204,722.57

82,977,065.51
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial %~ &M & HE L EZIEH B
Statements (Continued) #H
56. Other income 56. Hibukz=
Government grants charged to profit or loss for the current period HAEBEBZNHBTEB T -
are presented as follows:

Extraordinary
profit and loss

recognised
January - June January - June Related to from January to
2017 2016 assets/income June 2017
BEE/ FHA2017F1-6A
201751-68 20165 1-6 55 4 B8 FEERR
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (RIEER)
(Restated)
(E &)
Income of financial subsidies BB A 21,198,697.20 Related to income 21,198,697.20
eyl
Government support fund BTHES 3,153,244.14 Related to income 3,153,244.14
eyl
Amortization of deferred income BB 14,773,972.39 Related to assets 14,773,972.39
HEERR
Others Hib 743,857.11 Related to income 743,857.11
eyl
39,869,770.84 _ - 39,869,770.84

During the period, the government subsidy received by the AR BRI BB B R T UK S U

Company and amortized via deferred income amounted in total to WO ATHBESZSHEAFTARE

RMB39,869,770.84, including the following: 39,869,770.847C » H :

(1) During the period, the Company and its subsidiaries (1) AEARERFRAERE(R
received the special funding for the projects of Shaanxi AT R E AR R AR R AR
Automotive Holdings and the award of the special funding BHEXL)BBEES20165F
for the research, development and commercialization EHEBAEEREALMHK
of key technologies for the innovative development of RENPTIERIBEEIEER
commercial vehicles pursuant to the project cooperation SUREMABEAFERARE
agreement for year 2016 under the Shaanxi Automotive MAEREEX I EEESE
Holdings Special Funding for the Research, Development and RIR S &£ 15[2016]299 5% L5
Commercialization of Key Technologies for the Innovative SBAEMEREE  HHEE
Development of Commercial Vehicles; received the UEIC NMEEE2016FTEZE
industrial development support and guidance fund for year KBRS URHEME
2016 from Urumgi Economic and Information Commission T8 B B R B A0 4 b A B R
(UEIC) and Urumgi Finance Bureau under Wu Jing Xin BREBIBAHETARE
[2016] No. 299, and other income including financial 25,095,798.457T

subsidies and refund of land use taxes, in a total amount of
RMB25,095,798.45;

(2) During the period, the Company and its subsidiaries (2) AEARRQERFRAAEERZz
amortized, via deferred income, government grants including BB T HRERAREFIR
land refunds and special funds, in a total amount of BESEBMAHETFARE

RMB14,773,972.39. 14,773,972.397C °
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & 0f I % it & 2 IH H 5 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
57. Non-operating income 57. EEIMEA

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

January - June

January - June

Extraordinary profit

and loss recognised
from January to

2017 2016 June 2017
T A2017%F1-6 B
201751-6A 2016%1-6 4 FEEHES

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REBER) (REER)

(Restated)

(=)
Government grants K% B - 81,034,921.61 =
Gain on disposal of non-current assets ~ JERENEER & FE 11,064,724.33 12,756,663.81 11,064,724.33
Incl: Gain on disposal of fixed assets ~ H : AEEEREFIE 10,935,520.49 12,429,558.00 10,935,520.49

Gain on disposal of other HibIFneEE
non-current assets RENG 129,203.84 327,105.81 129,203.84
Reversal of provision for other Htb B EREED

liabilities 5,927,607.00 9,899,820.38 5,927,607.00
Others Hit 110,963,652.00 156,301,207.74 110,963,651.97

127,955,983.33

259,992,613.54

Government grants charged to profit or loss for the current period

are presented as follows:

127,955,983.30

SAAEHESHNBUTMEIIT

January - June January - June Related to
2017 2016 assets/income
20175 1-6 A 2016F1-68 BEE WaiaH

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REBER) (REER)

(Restated)

(feEi)
Income of financial subsidies B A AR A 24,846,113.30 Related to income
B 5 A8 A
Government support fund BN E € 809,800.00 Related to income
izl gy el
Value added tax subject to rebate oA 1% RGBT 38,008,434.09 Related to income
B 5 A8
Amortization of deferred income i AE Ui 25 £ 15,837,468.38  Related to assets
& E AR
Others Hith 1,533,105.84 Related to income
B A8

81,034,921.61
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (AR T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f I % it & £ I H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
58. Non-operating expenses 58. B¥EHZH

Extraordinary profit

and loss recognised

January - June

January - June from January to

2017 2016 June 2017
i A201751-6
201751-6 4 20165 1-6 1 FEEMES

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REER)

(Restated)

(&)
Loss on disposal of non-current assets ~ FERBIEER EIBX 16,097,329.24 7,333,106.34 16,097,329.24
Incl: Loss on disposal of fixed assets Hd ArBERBERE 13,608,061.39 7,191,614.50 13,608,061.39

Loss on disposal of other Hib & E

non-current assets RERK 2,489,267.85 141,491.84 2,489,267.85
Loss from debt restructuring BEHRBAL - 1,688,090.68 =
Donation expenditure HIMEE 3,811,955.98 3,313,000.00 3,811,955.98
Others Hith 52,640,896.02 29,531,093.87 52,640,896.02

72,550,181.24 41,865,290.89

72,550,181.24

59. BERRMESR
AEBEERE  HEBA EOE
FRBIEE S EOBTARNT -

59. Expenses by nature
The supplemental information of the Group’s cost of sales,
distribution and selling expenses, general and administrative
expenses which are categorized by nature is as follows:

January-June 2017 January-June 2016

2017%1-6A 20165 1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RREEX) (REEZR)

(Restated)

(& &)

Materials used FEFR #9M KY RN PRIAOIN 29,229,918,561.25

Movement of inventories of finished EXmEEERS

goods and work in progress FEEE) (VRYPRNCWIEE M  (1,167,736,753.05)
Staff remuneration B, T 35 B 11,389,495,558.73 7,670,051,204.18
Depreciation and amortization expenses  #7 & & K11 §4 & F 3,664,172,526.06 2,857,251,818.64
Rental He 235,747,564.67 174,292,738.73
Others Hith 4,488,300,419.34 1,328,550,931.01

66,607,928,867.08

40,092,328,500.76
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
60. Income Tax Expenses

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

T~ A OF B R 1 R IH H RE R

(%)
60. TBHEH

January-June 2017
2017%1-68
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Current tax expenses
Deferred tax expenses

EHREHER
EXEFREHER

1,198,469,202.97
(291,263,754.18)

907,205,448.79

The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is

listed as follows:

™

January-June 2017
201751-6 R
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Total profit

Tax at statutory tax rate

Effect of different tax rates
applicable to parent company
and some subsidiaries

Adjustments to current tax of
previous periods

Profits and losses attributable to
associates

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax incentives on eligible
expenditures

Utilization of deductible losses
from prior years

Unrecognized deductible losses

Effect of unrecognized deductible
temporary differences

Others

MBEER

BAEMEFAENREA
BRARFLTRA
ERAT R X
TE
HURHAEE RAEHN

HE
FENBELXRN

1B

IR A
TR E A

B A RN HMES
MU B R

M A DA B 4 2 /9 BTN
&8
REER AT EINE R
AERW AT ENE R IEZE
BENPE

Hitp

4,383,296,592.54

Note 51 1,095,824,148.14

Note 72 (280,506,907.75)
(37,886,351.97)
(18,120,658.93)
(28,023,411.89)
80,767,496.83

(44,616,330.47)

(72,685,777.75)
128,419,971.50

13,181,690.23
70,851,580.85

Tax expense at the Group's
effective tax rate

BAREERMEGED
FriSTiE A

907,205,448.79

Note 1:

Note 2:  The PRC income tax of the Group is calculated based on the estimated F2: AEEEFE
taxable income gained in the PRC and applicable tax rate. Tax arising 5T BN 1S
from the taxable income in other regions is calculated at applicable A E fth 3 [ fE
tax rate according to existing laws, interpretations and practices of the SEEETE
country in which the Group operates. RNEMED

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax has been made as the Group

The Company is subject to a statutory tax rate of 25%.

had no taxable profits arising in Hong Kong for the period.

1 AREE

January-June 2016
2016 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REE#EZ)
(Restated)
(&)

597,694,258.86
(116,038,301.77)

481,655,957.09

PrS T8 A B 7 B AR BE 1O B & 51 R 4n

January-June 2016
20161-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)
(Restated)
(&)

2,102,829,420.66

525,707,355.17

(85,125,128.75)
21,359,792.87
(22,048,285.55)
(80,932,093.13)
35,976,465.08
(26,889,450.84)

(16,242,008.00)
105,979,951.32

3,053,304.30
20,816,054.62

481,655,957.09
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f I % it & £ I H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)

61. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 61. BRW =
The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit of the current EXGRKZEBREBRAAR LR
period attribute to the ordinary shareholders of the Company by REAS R B S HFE A - R LA TT RSN
the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares. LA I EETE -
The calculation of basic EPS is detailed as follows: EARGRKmHERBTENT

January-June 2017 January-June 2016

2017%1-6 A 20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
(Restated)
(& &)
Earnings W 25
Net profit of the current period B RAAR]
attribute to ordinary shareholders TR R
of the Company k= EbE=AIbE 2,650,042,739.83 1,071,175,304.71
Shares i 5
Weighted average number R B BTSN
of the ordinary shares outstanding L AR Y hn A
of the Company (Note 1) FHE () 7,997,238,556.00 7,997,238,556.00

Basic EPS (RMB/share) EARG/RWZE T,/ BR) 0.33 0.13

The Company holds no potential shares that are significantly AEEmBEAMBEMELR -

dilutive.

Note 1: The Company’s 2016 profit distribution proposal was considered and 71 ARAAIW0FERRAFRE -
approved at the Company’s 2016 annual general meeting, the first class 2017 % —RABRBKRE G ZEF2017
meeting of the holders of A shares in 2017 and the first class meeting FE-RHRBRRGHEFTHBB2016
of the holders of H shares in 2017, the Company distributed to all FEDAREAR RNE2BRES
shareholders a cash dividend of RMB2.50 (including tax) and 10 bonus 10RERERSAFARE 250 (&
shares (including tax) for every 10 shares. Such distribution was completed ) RRRXAKRIOR(ER) @ ZF
during the period from the balance sheet date to the date of approval ABRRNEEEBRBEAMBREL
of these financial statements. Pursuant to the Accounting Standards for EREAZHBRETE - BRESE
Business Enterprises, the earnings per share was recalculated based on the BEFER - AR R AE R B A B
adjusted number of shares of 7,997,238,556 shares for each reporting 7,997,238,556 i E ¥t H & 7l 7R HA

period. 8RR M
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HRBORHAERDE

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
62. Notes to items in cash flow statement

Other cash received relating to operating activities

S5 i R WA (A

201746 308 (A E#T)

T~ GO B Ak EEIH H RERE

(%)

62. REREREEIRE

Y 21| 1 E b

Be

January-June 2017

20175 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RE&HFER)

Interest income
Government grants
Others

FMEHA
BT 76 B
Hitp

428,727,874.88
45,999,249.35
21,431,975.28

496,159,099.51

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

S E A

Be

January-June 2017
2017%1-6 8
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Marketing and external support fee

Cash settlement of confirmation business

After-sales and repair fee
Freight and packaging
Travel expenses

Office expenses

Others

MERARE RIS E

RABEHREFA
BRERBE

BERE

[
@

i
i
i e

\
4

N
/]

= i
gD R

693,250,386.47
836,057,735.63
432,347,094.55
577,690,189.62
207,574,214.30
222,683,010.31
1,209,250,002.90

4,178,852,633.78

EH 4%

N WL

2R A

January-June 2016

2016 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgEZ)

(Restated)
(g &E3)

365,990,412.26
37,714,919.14
100,582,001.20

504,287,332.60

5 43

mL

LERBABN

January-June 2016

2016 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)
(Restated)
(&)

779,239,153.91
556,383,018.27
442,304,289.04
408,742,768.93
185,414,673.33
178,111,324.49
1,163,002,818.46

3,713,198,046.43
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Other cash received relating to investing activities

Interim Report 2017 FAsks 181

RS i 2 BT 5 (48

201746 30 (A E#T)

T SO MR R EIEH R
(78)

62. RERBRIFBZE(E)

BRI EtEEE RS RRANR S

January-June 2017

January-June 2016

2017%1-6 8 2016 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
(Restated)

(feEam)

B & = AR B8 A0 BT 7 B
Others HAb

Asset-related government grants

/!

18,903,450.87
1,117,179.18

61,710,000.00
2,132,608.75

20,020,630.05 63,842,608.75

Other cash received relating to financing activities

WRIEMREE R ERENT S

January-June 2017 January-June 2016

2017%1-6A 2016 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
(Restated)

(& &Em)

Others Hb

30,899,704.50 99,191,627.95

Other cash paid relating to financing activities

XNEMREEEHEBENRS

January-June 2017 January-June 2016

2017%1-6 A 2016 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REER)
(Restated)

(#& &)

Acquisition of minority interests in BEFARLERE
subsidiaries
Pledge of fixed deposits E BT SR AR

Handling fee for guarantee for borrowings f& Z &R 217 L F & &
Others H At

ft

= 10,358,400.00
421,060,000.00 =
45,143,878.50 45,480,872.40
38,403,144.63 14,090,840.23

504,607,023.13

69,930,112.63
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

63. Supplement to cash flow statement
Supplement to cash flow statement

(1)

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

(%)

(1)

January-June 2017

201751-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEER)

Net profit a2 I B S| 3,476,091,143.75
Add: Loss in impairment of assets hn: BEREBEERX 953,074,047.47
Increase in special reserve EIFFEEHIE 14,089,449.75

Depreciation of fixed assets and
investment properties

Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization of long-term prepaid
expenses

Losses/(gain) on disposal and
retirement of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other
long-term assets

Finance expenses

Investment income

Gain/(losses) from change of
fair value

Increase in deferred tax assets

Increase in deferred tax liabilities

Increase in inventories

Increase in operating receivables

Increase in operating payables

Others

BEEENRENEFME

e 2,433,961,164.95

B EE#H 1,186,505,624.59
REGHERAEH
43,705,736.52

BREMBEETEEE

EREEMEM R

BEMHBKX(YE)

5,032,604.91

W% ER 418,654,082.39
AW (135,204,722.57)

W, (BK) (142,460,083.61)

EEFTSHE EMNE N
EXLFEHA RN
TF & AN
A R B RYE AN
SR IR B B3 0
Hitp

(632,447,874.34)
341,184,120.16

(3,235,076,125.96)

(13,340,718,311.00)
13,374,440,331.27
4,956,224.96

Net cash flow from operating activities

e

EEEANREREFE 4,765,787,413.24

T~ GO B Ak EEIH H RERE

63. REMEBRFBAER
REanERMAER

January-June 2016
20164 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)
(Restated)
(fesEi)

1,621,173,463.57
348,305,770.72
14,714,767.97

2,218,463,499.20
595,443,851.56

43,344,467.88

(5,423,557.47)
154,090,317.29
(82,977,065.51)

86,225,051.26
(10,300,567.44)
63,489,057.35
(1,516,131,992.71)
(6,748,647,369.89)
5,263,529,708.72
19,864,390.37

2,065,163,792.87
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i &M & HE L EIEH B
Statements {(Continued) )
63. Supplement to cash flow statement 63. RERERBAER(E)
(Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(1) Supplement to cash flow statement (Continued) (1) BansxkBrEH(E)
Non-cash payment of material investment and financing THERBEBEHNEARKRENES

activities: SEE

January-June 2017

January-June 2016

2017%1-68 2016%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
(Restated)

(&)

Acquisition of long-term assets from the &/ & « IRES WA
endorsement of bank acceptance bills PRTERHEZEE
received from the sale of goods and EREERPEE

provision of services

ReLReEEBNFEE

Reml/ FRBE
B REnH/ FNRE

Net change in cash and cash equivalents:

The closing balance of cash
Less: The opening balance of cash

ReERREFEWFE IR

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

(2) Information related to acquisition or disposal of
major subsidiaries and other business units
Information relating to acquisition of subsidiaries and other
business units

2,380,554,377.86

1,542,662,527.04

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
201766H30H 2016%F12H31H
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REEER)
(Restated)

(&)

23,378,989,685.06
21,598,831,905.22

1,780,157,779.84

21,598,831,905.22
21,154,657,664.43

444,174,240.79

2) MBXHBEEEFZTRAIR
HibEXREMER
A5 F 2 7] J A i 2 BB A7 )

=
= /on

January-June 2017 January-June 2016
20174 1-6 A 20164 1-6 4
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REER)
(Restated)
(feEit)
Consideration for acquisition of subsidiaries  HR{5F 73 @) &2 H fih & % g {is
and other business units BB 210,589,429.60
Cash and cash equivalents paid for acquisition EU{SF 72 &) J H fir % % 2
of subsidiaries and other business units SRR TR EEY 210,589,429.60
Less: Amount of cash and cash equivalents i - BUSF AR R E A0 L% BT
in subsidiaries and other business BENRENREEEY
units acquired 12,337,240.00

Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries
and other business units ReFs

RS FRRREMEREEN T4

198,252,189.60
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~f ff W B #t % £ % IH H 5l

Statements (Continued)
63. Supplement to cash flow statement

(Continued)

(2) Information related to acquisition or disposal
of major subsidiaries and other business units
(Continued)

Information relating to disposal of major subsidiaries and
other business units

Consideration for disposal of subsidiaries and other B E T/ Al R E b4 £ BT A)BE
business units
Cash and cash equivalents received for

RETARRAMEREMKIINAS

disposal of subsidiaries and other business units MEEEED
Less: Amount of cash and cash equivalents in W RETARRAMEEEN
subsidiaries and other business units disposed of RENBEENBLEEY

Net cash paid for disposal of subsidiaries and EEFARREMEEBUS N
other business units HeF8

(3) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash He
Incl: Cash at bank Hb:ERFES
Bank deposits on demand REEARIZANRTER
Other cash equivalents on demand REEARINHENELES
Other cash equivalents HtRe S B8y

B/ 5RRL R SENHE

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period/year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period/year B/ ERERELHE
Other cash equivalents at the end of period/year H/ EREMRESENHE
Less: Balance of restricted cash and cash equivalents i : FRXHRENEEELHE

B/ ERRERBEEENRE

Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents at
end of period/year

63. BERBEBAEN H)

(2) MBHIRBRETZFRAIN
HiEEBEMER(E)

BRETEFRAINHEMEESE

(VAEYS)

January-June 2017
2017%1-68
(Unaudited)

(REER)

January-June 2016
2016%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RiEE%)
(Restated)
(E&Eit)

37,959,549.54

(37,959,549.54)

(3) EEeMREFEY

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

23,378,989,685.06
20,703,906.44
23,349,808,012.80
8,477,765.82

23,378,989,685.06

30 June 2017
20176 A30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

29,882,970,357.70

6,503,980,672.64

23,378,989,685.06

31 December 2016
2016F12A318
(Audited)
(Z&%)

21,598,831,905.22
6,416,580.43
21,589,174,946.34
3,240,378.45

21,598,831,905.22

31 December 2016
20165 12A31H
(Audited)
(B&R)

27,122,981,855.33

5,524,149,950.11

21,598,831,905.22
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial T ~# 0 B % i 3% 3 2H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (748)
64. Hedges 64 ~EHj

Cash flow hedging

On 1 July 2016, our subsidiary, Weichai International Hong Kong
Energy Group Co., Limited (“Hong Kong Energy”) treated the cross
currency swaps as hedging instrument, of which cash flow hedges
were conducted to the bonds in foreign currencies amounting
to USD400 million against the cash flow fluctuation incurred by
change in exchange rates. The total cash flow of the hedged items
amounted to RMB3,100,981,600.00 (EUR400,147,310.83), of
which the amount due within 1 year was RMB111,777,600.00
(EUR14,423,660.58), the amount due within 1-3 years was
RMB223,555,200.00 (EUR28,847,321.15), and the remaining
portion will become due in 2020. The hedged items would
affect the profit and loss for the period of 2017 to 2020. From
January to June 2017, the loss arising from changes in fair value
of the hedging instrument recognized as other comprehensive
income was RMB200,824,997.99 (EUR26,395,069.66), and
the amount recognized in profit or loss in current period was
RMB228,100,982.35 (EUR29,980,039.23). There was no material

invalid hedge for the current period.

RenEEH

2016 F 7R 1H » FRBIHEERE
EBEEREEARLA(I T ER
B BRXXNEKEBRERERE
HTH ETH4EZTHINE
BEFHREXZHSENR R
ERPHETRESAEESR - HE
HEEMNREESRELTINERA
K ¥ 3,100,981,600.00 jt ( B T
400,147,310.83) » H & 14 K 2| 5
WeBEAARK111,777,600.007T
(BT 14,423,660.58) ' 1£23F R
Bl HE R A A R 223,555,200.00 7T
(Byr28,847,321.15) » FgraEl o #
FR20204F BB - W E BB A TE B
ZIEE W B2017F E 20204 -
2017FF1RZE6 A ZEHTIT A A
Hihime a2 BEZHIBX
A AR #200,824,997.99 7t (B T
26,395,069.66) F EHE I EER
WeiEAsARK228,100,982.357T
(Bt7r29,980,039.23) « AEFEE KX
EREHNEHS -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (74)
64. Hedges (Continued) 64 - EH(E)

Cash flow hedging (Continued)

Our subsidiary, KION GROUP AG has conducted cash flow hedging
on forward currency contracts designated to the exchange rate risk
of forecast sale, forecast purchase and firm commitment. The total
cash flow of the hedged item amounted to RMB9,832,972,473.05
(EUR1,268,836,130.00), of which the amount due within 1 year
was RMB8,037,208,734.91 (EUR1,037,112,720.00), and the
remaining portion will become due in 2019. The hedged items
would affect the profit and loss for the period of 2017 to 2019.
From January to June 2017, the gain arising from changes in fair
value of the hedging instrument recognized as other comprehensive
income was RMB33,510,436.26 (EUR4,324,150.44), the amount
recognized in profit or loss in current period was RMB8,221,159.74
(EUR1,060,849.56). There was no material invalid hedge for the

current period.

Our subsidiary, KION GROUP AG has conducted cash flow hedging
on interest rate swap contracts designated to the interest rate
risk of floating rate borrowings in acquiring Dematic Group, the
subsidiary. The total cash flow of the hedged item amounted
to RMB5,889,696,000.00 (EUR760,000,000.00). The cash flow
of that hedged item will become due in 2022, 2024 and 2027
respectively. The hedged items would affect the profit and loss for
the period from 2017 to 2027. From January to June 2017, the
gain arising from changes in fair value of the hedging instrument
recognized as other comprehensive income was RMB3,285,830.40
(EUR424,000.00). No amount was taken to profit and loss during
the period.

fﬁﬂimu%%%( )

T A EKION GROUP AG #5 i= Hi 5h
fEESRIETEHEMESE - BHKE
ARFEEABHINER R EITIR S
MEEH  WEHBEBERESREL
EiTHE A AR ¥9,832,972,473.05
7t ( B 7T 1,268,836,130.00 )
HP1FRIBEHNERAR
# 8,037,208,734.91 7t ( B It
1,037,112,720.00) » F & & 5 #
F2019F 28 - W EHIIE B B EA %
ZIEE WM AB2017FEE20194F -
2017F1RE6A » ZEBI A
AHMEEREN AR EEEHK
@A AR¥33,510,436.26 7T (BT
4,324,150.44) - EH I ABERZN S
A ANRYS,221,159.74 7t (BT
1,060,849.56) - REAM B R EUE
B E S

T A 7@ KION GROUP AG # #I
EERENETETHWEF LA
Dematic Group 8 /% 8) F| & & &
WAERBRETREREESR -
WEHBERGSRELENER
A R #5,889,696,000.00 5T ( Bt T
760,000,000.00) - # EH 1B B I
SR 20224 ~ 2024 F M 2027
FRE HEHEERALEE
HEERRE A 2017 F 2027 F o
20171 AZE6H - ZEH I A&
AHMEGERE0 2R EBEEHK
@A AR ¥ 3,285,830.40 7t (BT
424,000.00) @ EHMEE ABRD
ik i



Interim Report 2017 FtsRs 187

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) F B i R BT (48

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

VI. The Change in Scope of Consolidation 75 ~ A DF i A )
The Group had no material change in scope of consolidation during the KA EFEBEEXESHBENEE -
period.

VII.Interest in Other Entities L AE H A 3 B8 P R RE 2R
1. Interest in subsidiaries 1. EFLRIHPHER

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are AR BEEFRENEBERAT :

presented as follows:

Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of
operation registration business capital shareholding (%)
TEREH i E3 3031 EMER BREAI(%)
Direct  Indirect
B 54
Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment
BBRUIRESFHAMGHFAT
(1) Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Shandong Shandong  Manufacturing 460,150,000.00 100.00 -
Co., Ltd. L& L& industry
HEHH () ERERA A RE%
() Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology Shanghai Shanghai  Manufacturing 490,000,000.00 100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. 18 i industry
BEHN (L8 RBEERERAT RER
3) Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Jiangsu Jiangsu Manufacturing 793,885,379.17 - 66.78
Engine Co., Ltd. 5 TE industry
BEBHENRREREEL A RER
(@) Weichai Power (Chongging) Western Chongging Chongging  Manufacturing 302,680,000.00 100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. EF £ industry
BEBN(ER)AHERARLA RE%
(59 Weichai Power (Beijing) International Beijing Beijing Project 300,000,000.00 100.00 -
Resources Investment Co., Ltd. R ER Investment
BEBN (LR ERERREERAA HERE
(6) Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Luxembourg Luxembourg Project EUR100,000.00 - 100.00
Holding S.a .. ERE ERE Investment B(7£100,000.00
HEB N (ERB)ERERAT BERE
(7)  Weichai Power (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong Services USD336,242,497.00 100.00 -
International Development Co., Ltd. BE s REE  £7336,242,497.00
HEBN (BB ERERARLA
6 Shandong Heavy Industry India India India  Manufacturing  Rupee823,889,270.00 - 97.68
Private Limited HE IS industry  [£1£823,889,270.00

WRETHEARALRR RiEx
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VIl.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)
1.

I 2% BT (4
201746 308 (A E#T)

G ARl T P AR 2 (AE)

Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. EFRAHPHER(E)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company ARFEZEFRANBRAT - (&)
are presented as follows: (Continued)
Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of
operation registration business capital shareholding (%)
TEREH i $HME EfER R EHI(%)
Direct Indirect
Ef 5t
Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not invalving entities under common control
FR-EHTEEAHRENFRA
(9) Shandong Huadong Casting Co., Ltd. Shandong Shandong  Manufacturing 450,150,000.00 - 100.00
WREHEEERAR Il LR industry
Biex
(10)  Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 3,706,330,000.00 51.00 =
RASHSEERAH bR g industry
Biex
(11 Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 320,000,000.00 3.06 94.00
REEEERERAT PR R industry
(12)  Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 435,360,000.00 - 100.00
RESBEEERAT Ui B industry
(13)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 256,790,000.00 51.00 -
RAEZTHEERERETAA i BRE industry
REX
(1) Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan  Manufacturing 531,314,951.00 87.91 =
HWNERERELAT il il industry
(15)  Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan  Manufacturing 282,480,000.00 100.00 =
BN EAEEREREA AT e il industry
(16)  Weichai (Chongging) Automotive Chongging Chongging  Manufacturing 2,295,410,000.00 84.33 15.67
Co., Ltd. BF BF industry
B (ER)BEERAT RiE%
(17)  Siciété International des Moteurs France France  Manufacturing EUR33,311,180.00 - 100.00
Baudouin HE RE industry B{7T33311.180.00
HEELE R NER AR A RE%
(18)  KION GROUP AG(Note 1) Germany Germany  Manufacturing EUR118,090,000.00 = 43.26
KION GROUP AG(51) &R BH industry B(7.118,090,000.00
(190  Weichai America Corp. USA USA Manufgcturmg UsD17,837,230.00 100.00 -
BEBNHEARAT %8 %8 industry  %£3217,837,230.00

REF
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)
VIl.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) L FEHA TR PR RERR (5])
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. EFRAHPHPELR(E)
Changes in paid-in capital of principal subsidiaries in January-June FTEFRABWREAR2017F1-6 A%
2017 are detailed as follows: FEERFFIBRT

31 December Increase in the Decrease in the 30 June
(Unaudited) 2016 current period current period 2017
(REEK) 2016%12A31H AHE xHES  2017F6A308
Weichai Power (Chongging) HEE N (EE)RHE
Western Development Co., Ltd. BERAF 240,000,000.00 62,680,000.00 302,680,000.00
Weichai (Chongaing) Automotive HE(EE) B
Co., Ltd. BRAE 1,895,410,000.00 400,000,000.00 2,295,410,000.00
KION GROUP AG (EUR) KION GROUP AG
(Br) 108,626,000.00 9,300,000.00 117,926,000.00

Changes in paid-in capital of principal subsidiaries in 2016 are

detailed as follows:

31 December

FTEFRARABWREAR2016FHEE

ERFEBIT :

Increase in the Decrease in the

31 December

(Audited) 2015 current year current year 2016
(BER) 20155124318 REHD RERS 20166124318
Weichai America Corp. HEH NI EFRAF 262,811,997.28 27,526,050.00 - 290,338,047.28
Weichai Power (Shanghai) HEHN(LE)REE
Technology Development Co., Ltd. BEB AR 340,000,000.00 150,000,000.00 - 490,000,000.00

KION GROUP AG (EUR) KION GROUP AG

(BT 98,740,000.00 9,886,000.00 - 108,626,000.00
Hande Axle (Zhuzhou) Gear Co., Ltd. BEBEE(FMES

BRAA 5,000,000.00 128,851,844.00 - 133,851,844.00
Weichai (Chongging) Automotive WY (ER)RE

Co., Ltd.

BRAF

1,295,410,000.00

©600,000,000.00 -

1,895,410,000.00
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VII.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) L A H A R R RERS ()
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. EFR AR ER(E)
Subsidiaries with material interests of minority shareholders are as FEEELVHEREESZHNFAT W
follows: T
January to June 2017 2017 1-6 H
Percentage of Accumulated
shareholding  Attributable to Dividends minority
minority minority  paid to minority interests at
(Unaudited) shareholders MEES shareholders  the end of period
DYBRR RO A DB R AR5
(REER) BREA RREH XRA DEURFRSR
KION GROUP AG KION GROUP AG 56.74% 371,750,605.48 394,491,666.16  7,976,552,721.19
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. REENAEERAT 49.00%  155,663,222.44 - 3,031,625561.68
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co,, Ltd. REETHEBERELAR 49.00%  301,107,705.43 - 4,057,110433.50
January to June 2016 2016 1-6 A
Percentage of Accumulated
shareholding Attributable to Dividends minority
(Unaudited) minority minority paid to minority interests at
(Restated) shareholders interests shareholders  the end of period
(RIEER) PERE REOH AOERE HREG
(B=Eit) R KRR S FRF PERE
KION GROUP AG KION GROUP AG 61.75%  467,009474.10  352,999,193.66  2,620,768,037.02
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. RAEEETZRRAR 4900%  13570573.13 - 2,777,636,866.79

Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. REETHERERELL 49.00% 68,635,933.28 - 3742,936,756.35
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VIl.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) + f HAbFRE PR RERE (5])
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) EFARIRHER (&)
The following table illustrates the summarized financial information TRIWRT ElFRARIFEHT K
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any B gRkZEARERANSLEZH
inter-company eliminations: HEEEAT 25 -

KION GROUP AG
(Note 1)
KION GROUP AG
(&1)
January to June 2017 01751-6R
Current assets MBEE 19,139,272,365.60
Non-current assets ERBEE 59,537,469,751.52
Total assets BEAFH 78,676,742,117.12
Current liabilities mEBAE 21,106,547,073.60
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 43,570,765,032.09
Total liabilities BEAs 64,677,312,105.69
Revenue LN 28,573,711,459.10
Net profit ERE 651,310,789.31
Total comprehensive (loss)/income HEA(ER) /hseE (386,233,525.49)
Net cash flows from BEEBELR
operating activities Renesds 1,498,258,660.50

31 December 2016

0165 12H318

Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Co., Ltd.
REERTE
BRAH

27,470,321,064.55
4,795,263,712.09
32,265,584,776.64
25,217,084,240.62
1,295,537,071.29
26,512,621,311.91
22,374,839,011.62
254,504,193.71
254,486,569.68

2,405,925,506.01

Shaanxi Fast
Gear Co., Ltd.
PR

BEREEAA

9,770,732,187.33
2,669,652,634.62
12,440,384,821.95
4,549,234,823.05
61,360,000.00
4,610,594,823.05
6,802,676,508.26
518,744,750.58
511,462,829.27

(486,158,312.18)

Current assets MENEE 17,204,518,212.00 20,550,101,220.70 8,115,279,304.18
Non-current assets ERBEE 59,172,230,198.57 4,973,998,832.36 2,779,834,958.87
Total assets BEAH 76,376,748,410.57 25,524,100,053.06 10,895,114,263.05
Current liabilities TEAR 19,527,152,648.40 18,741,091,467.90 3,534,302,058.13
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 46,430,929,114.15 1,288,973,227.58 61,360,000.00
Total liabilities BRAG 65,958,081,762.55 20,030,064,695.48 3,595,662,058.13
January to June 2016 016%1-6 7
Revenue EEWA 18,671,556,750.93 10,900,579,789.80 3,619,505,717.45
Net profit SEF 749,058,754.99 70,051,147.86 135,528,544.31
Total comprehensive (loss)/income HA(EB) /hswesE (371,414,331.89) 70,064,142.16 140,784,319.80
Net cash flows from operating BeEBEER

activities B4 e RE 1,389,848,143.60 1,086,069,550.33 451,796,595.82

Note 1:  As the assessment for the acquisition by KION GROUP AG, a subsidiary
of the Company, of subsidiary Dematic Group at a consideration
of approximately EUR2.1 billion on 1 November 2016 was yet to
be completed as of the end of the period, the fair values of all the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired during
the business combination can only be determined on a provisional
basis. Pursuant to the”Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises
No. 20 - Business Combination” ( ({2 r#t#e RISE20%% — A DR ),
recognition and measurement of the business combination have been
based on provisional values. Adjustments will be made to the provisional
values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities within
twelve months from 1 November 2016.

A

AR ARAZFABKON GROUP
AGR2016F 11 1B A B ELHR T
218U EEH T A AlDematic Grouphy
FE TER AR ARTRK + & OF
BEMNSEAHRAEE  ABRKEA
BENARBEAGERETE @ RIE
(EESFTERE205 —ESH) -
AEBUFEENEREESERY
ZEEAMETTHERNGTE @ K8
201611 A1 HE 12188 N A ¢
REE BERIEABENERKEE
BEITHE -
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VIl.Interest in other entities (Continued)

2.

PR 5 i I R (4)
201746 308 (A E#T)

4 At B P R RE A ()

Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and 2. EEELENBELESF
associates By RE &=
Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled enterprise and associates RARREEZAEREMBEPENS
of the Company are presented as follows: I
Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of Accounting
operation registration Business capital shareholding (%) treatment
TEREY it RHNHE B BRUAI%) EHEE
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Jointly-controlled enterprises
aERE
(1) Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Shaanxi Shaanxi Manufacturing 500,000,000.00 - 51.000  Equity method
Co., Ltd. (Note) bR BRE industry ik
AREEEREIERAA(E) HiEx
Associates
i1 3
(1) Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. Beijing Beijing  Finance lease 1,100,000,000.00 19.565 19565  Equity method
WEREHERRA IR IR B3l &%
Q) Shandong Zhonggong Group Finance Shandong Shandong Finance 1,000,000,000.00 20.000 - Equity method
Co., Ltd. M4 M4 company Bk
WREIEEHBERAA BBAE

Note : Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. is held as to 51% by the Group,
and as to 4% and 45% by Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission
Co., Ltd. (“Transmission Co”) and Caterpillar (China) Investment Co., Ltd
("Caterpillar”) respectively. Its board of directors comprises seven directors,
three of whom being nominated by the Group, one being nominated by
Transmission Co and three being nominated by Caterpillar. According to
its articles of association, board resolutions require unanimous approval
or approval by substantially all directors, and thus Xi'an FC Intelligence
Transmission Co. is a jointly-controlled enterprise of the Group.

g AEERAARERTEREHARA
AI51% AR - BINMRALAR R A BR A A
THEHEEERETAR([EHE
BDMREEH(HERERRDA
(TRE®®]) - HREOD B A4%
Mas5% - EESHLZESHK - H
FoEZHAKEET —LHEDHE
BT SI=FBERERIET -
BEARERATE  EFFREF
EEQXRUERAZHAEZBRA
ALAZERBEEHFRAABR
AEESGERE-
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Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and

associates (Continued)

The Group holds 51% equity interest of Xi‘an FC Intelligence

Transmission Co., Ltd. (“FC Intelligence Transmission”), which is

principally engaged in the production of automatic gear boxes. It is

a key jointly-controlled enterprise of the Group and is accounted for

using equity method in the Group’s accounts.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information

of Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. The amounts

disclosed are adjusted for differences in accounting policies and

reconciled to the carrying accounts in this financial statement:

+ fﬁ%fﬁﬂqﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ(%ﬁ)

HEELENBELED
By R 55 (4]
AEBRKERREREEEHERD

A(TEHEEH])51%0E - BH5E
BIBEEADERM  AFEEE
BRAELE FEEURAELE
RS AL E

TRINTTAZEREHREHARAD
AMMBES  ELEMBEEHRT
ESERRERELFNERLBR
REESHE

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

2017%6A30H 2016512 HA31H

Current assets
including: cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets

MEBEE
Hep : e MRS EEY
FRBEE

Total assets BEAR
Current liabilities nEBE
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Total liabilities BfEEF
Minority interests LEHRRER

Shareholders’ equity attributable
to the Parent

BENES QAR RER

Shares of net assets based on
percentage of shareholding

BERRLIZENFEENE

Carrying value of investment HERREEE
Revenue A
Income tax expenses Fris#i & A

Net loss FEE

Other comprehensive income Hith#r & Wa
Total comprehensive income RE R a5

(Unaudited)
(REER)

303,695,292.17
37,541,200.00
278,638,839.20

582,334,131.37

337,013,385.89

337,013,385.89

245,320,745.48

125,113,580.19
116,345,307.50

January to June
2017
2017%1-68
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

84,242,406.60

(11,449,349.05)

(11,449,349.05)

(Audited)
(&%)

259,055,738.02
26,578,025.61
282,363,834.03

541,419,572.05

288,143,590.15

288,143,590.15

253,275,981.90

129,170,750.77
129,176,924.53

January to June
2016

2016 1-6H
(Unaudited)
(REER)
(Restated)
(&)

38,129,629.83

(28,084,389.48)

(28,084,389.48)
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Vll.Interest in other entities (Continued)
2. Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and

associates (Continued)

The Group holds 20% equity interest of Shandong Zhonggong
Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Zhonggong Finance Co."),

which provides the Group with services of deposits, credit lending,

settlement and other financial services. It is a key associate of the
Group and is accounted for using equity method in the Group's

accounts.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information

of Shandong Zhonggong Finance Co.. The amounts disclosed are

adjusted for differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

t %Eﬁﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬂﬂ%%ﬁ(%ﬁ)

EEELENBELEF
S (48)
AEFEBEELREETEERBKEAR
NEI([WWEEIHBRE])20% K
# - LREIHMBARANEE RS
FH 8 HEREMSERY
E$%@§Emyéﬁ¥v$%@ﬁ
ZEMECERAERERE

TRIR T IWREIS B R R
B8 GUMBEERABTAAS
BRERAFHEAPBHREIEE S

carrying accounts in this financial statement: LN

30 June 2017

201756 A30H

(Unaudited)

(REEER)

Current assets RENEE 14,550,160,142.73

Incl: cash and cash equivalents HE :\BEaNBeFED 6,048,582,810.91

Non-current assets IEmEEE 2,765,670,608.72

Total assets BEAE 17,315,830,751.45

Current liabilities REAE 15,878,163,078.32

Non-current liabilities FERBEE =

Total liabilities aEast 15,878,163,078.32
Minority interests LEHRRER

Shareholders’ equity attributable
to the Parent

ISP LI
1,437,667,673.13

Shares of net assets based on
percentage of shareholding

BRBREAIZEHFEENE
287,533,534.63

Carrying value of investment KENEmEER 287,580,079.73
January to June

2017

2017%1-6 B

(Unaudited)

(REEZK)

Revenue EEWA 185,579,787.86
Income tax expenses FriS i & F (33,026,065.84)
Net profit b= RalbE 99,078,197.50
Other comprehensive income Hipgmals -
Total comprehensive income ‘m/\ﬂﬁlm 48 %8 99,078,197.50

31 December 2016
2016912 A831H
(Audited)
(&%)

13,061,825,783.59
3,991,548,827.44
3,185,962,195.47

16,247,787,979.06

14,909,198,503.43

14,909,198,503.43

1,338,589,475.63

267,717,895.13
267,764,440.23

January to June
2016

20164 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)
(Restated)
(fesEa)

154,023,897.62
(24,567,978.41)
73,703,935.22

73,703,935.22
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Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and

associates (Continued)

The Group holds 39.13% equity interests of Shanzhong Finance

Leasing Co., Ltd. (“Shanzhong Finance Leasing”), which provides

the Group and its distributors with finance leasing services. It is

a key associate of the Group and is accounted for using equity

method in the Group’s accounts.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information

of Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.. The amounts disclosed are

adjusted for differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the

carrying accounts in this financial statement:

{:fﬁ@£%¢%%ﬁ%®

HEELENBELED
Ky fE s ()
AEERELEREAEERAT
(MLERARE])39.13%R4E - 1L
BRAME AL EERA RO
ARUBABELBRY - 2AEM
BEENBELCE  FEEHZBEDL
ESAGE

TRIRTWWEMEHEBRQAN
MBERE  ELMBEEAETME
SRR ER BRASMHEARM B RKRER

Current assets
Incl: cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets

RHEE
Hih e MBS ZEY
ARBEE

Total assets BEEAR
Current liabilities mnEBE
Non-current liabilities FETBEE
Total liabilities BfEAaE
Minority interests LEIRRE R

Shareholders’ equity attributable
to the Parent

)= SSYNSE T 5

Shares of net assets based on
percentage of shareholding

BRERLAIZENFEENE

Carrying value of investment HAERREEE
Revenue EEWA
Income tax expenses s & A

Net profit & A

Other comprehensive income H b gR & W
Total comprehensive income %ﬁéﬂkmﬁ%ﬁﬁ

[l

30 June 2017
2017 6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREEX)

3,846,476,147.97
314,827,663.20
1,065,135,335.09

4,911,611,483.06

3,032,002,862.69
721,332,231.02

3,753,335,093.71

1,158,276,389.35

453,233,551.16
452,277,979.08

January to June
2017
201751-68
(Unaudited)
(REER)

133,729,330.20
(8,725,816.42)
26,155,794.58

26,155,794.58

31 December 2016
2016%12A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

3,694,191,024.27
378,284,773.24
1,027,039,058.28

4,721,230,082.55

2,659,160,427.05
1,019,928,727.35

3,679,089,154.40

1,042,140,928.15

407,789,745.19
407,713,378.98

January to June
2016

2016 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)
(Restated)
(&)

110,833,610.16
(7,097,475.40)
21,344,952.37

21,344,952.37
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VIl.Interest in other entities (Continued)
2. Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and
associates (Continued)
The following illustrates the combined financial information of the

associates which, individually, are not significant to the Group:

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

+ Eﬁ%i%ﬁqﬂﬂﬁ’%ﬁé(%ﬁ)

EEECRNBELET
MR ()

TRIR T HALBERTEZ N
BOEMAHHBES -

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6H30H 201612 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (§&ER)

Associate B b2
Total carrying value of investments KEREEESR

1,239,077,794.00 740,316,048.11

The total amount of the following calculation based on the

percentage of shareholding:

Net profit A
Other comprehensive income H b iR A W
Total comprehensive income RE RS R

VIIL.Transfers of Financial Assets

Transferred financial assets that had not been
derecognised in their entirety

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had endorsed to its suppliers commercial
acceptance bills for settling account payables with a carrying amount of
RMB1,421,000.30 (31 December 2016: RMB4,470,316.00). The Group
considered that it retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
including the related default risk. Accordingly, its and all related settled
account payables continued to be fully recognized. After endorsement,
the Group no longer retained its right of use, including the right to sell,
transfer or pledge to other third parties. As at 30 June 2017, the Group's
settled account payables had a total carrying amount of RMB1,421,000.30
(31 December 2016: RMB4,470,316.00).

TOIBRRF LG ERNAFTE

January-June 2017 January-June 2016

2017%1-6 8 2016%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REER)
(Restated)

(&)

104,473,161.56 68,609,558.56
20,897,297.64 15,331,279.38
125,370,459.20 83,940,837.94

I\~ R

CEEBERAEBRILIBERNS
b & &=

MR2017F6A308 + "EBEEEHLEE
P2 PR A A B FE R SRR 7 SR L PE AV AR
EEEAARY1,421,000.307T (20164
128318 : AR#%4,470,316.007T) ° A&
SERA - zﬁ%@&%TE%ﬁ%&Fﬁﬁs’m
AR - BEEEAENENRR
B %ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ&éﬁ%zmﬁamam
FEREER - BE% AEBTHRBFER
HEESN 2EBEDE  HEIERE
HME=F0EF - K2017F6A308 -
REENEAENENRREDEBR
A ANER#1,421,000.307T (2016412 A31
B : AR¥4,470,316.007T) °
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VIIL.Transfers of Financial Assets (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that had been
derecognised in their entirety but continuously
involved

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had endorsed to its suppliers bank
acceptance bills, which remained outstanding, for settling account
payables with a carrying amount of RMB14,377,034,812.23 (31
December 2016: RMB3,868,438,322.72); the Group had endorsed to its
suppliers commercial acceptance bills, which remained outstanding, for
settling account payables with a carrying amount of RMB3,869,092.00 (31
December 2016: RMB4,345,132.00); and the Group had discounted bank
acceptance bills, which remained outstanding, with a carrying amount
of RMB40,700,000.00 (31 December 2016: RMB5,170,000.00). As at
30 June 2017, they were due in 1 to 12 months. If acceptance banks
dishonor the bills, endorsees shall have the right to turn to the Group for
recourse (“Continuing Involvement”) according to the Law of Negotiable

Instruments.

The Group considered substantially all risk and reward of the bills had
been transferred. Therefore, the Group derecognized the book value
of the related accounts payable that have been settled by the bills. The
undiscounted cash flow and maximum loss of continuing involvement and
repurchase were equal to the book value of the bills. The Group considers

the fair value of continuing involvement is not significant.

From January to June 2017, the Group did not recognize any significant
profit or loss at the date of transfer. The Group had no current or
accumulated gain or expense arising from the continuing involvement
in financial assets which had been derecognized. The endorsement and

discount were incurred evenly throughout the period.

Interim Report 2017 FHEAZRE

5 i 2 M 5 (48
201746 H308 (A R#T)

I\~ R AL (A1)

CERARLIBRITEEEIADN
CEBEMERE

20176 308 » A& E X H
WMEEELHEESRRNEEENER
METERLEENEEEEARARYE
14,377,034,812.23 7t (2016 % 12 A 31
B : AR#3,868438,322.727L) ¢ &
IMMESELRHEERIRARNEEENE
HOBEALEZENRAEEAARE
3,869,092.00x(2016¢12ﬂ31 H: A
R #4,345,132.0070) : ANEEKRBAAE
EMRRTEALEZNEAEEAARE
40,700,000.007C (2016412 A318 A
E#5,170,000.007T) ° 201746 A30
B HEHBEAIZ12EAR  BEERE
EMVBRRE - BEAGRITEBN RS - K
BEABRALASEBR([BESA] -

AEERS $§%E%@§%§TE%§%&%
BRERABH - Hit - RIEEBER
ZHEANEEERNERY E’Jﬁﬁﬁf B %
BEARBBNRRKERMANRREDR
ESNEREEERE AKERR #EY
AR BEILFERK -

20175 1-6 7 - AEEREER AHERY
FBRBRITEKX - AEBEREEY
AERILEREREERS BN RGTHERN
W B -  EEMMBEEAHABEE
B o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (A ET)
IX. Disclosure of Fair Value Ju -~ SR AEAE W B B
1. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value 1. ULAREEFENEEMN
aE
January to June 2017 20175 1-6 F

Inputs used in the measurement of fair value

MABESEERNBAR

Quoted prices in Key observable Key unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
EZAHE EZFRTER
ERMERE BWAE BAE
(Unaudited) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(REER) (B—FER) (€=-)/9 (B=EN)
Financial assets at fair value NDnEEGER
through profit or loss HEHHAZH
BHmMERmEE 285,619,257.60 285,619,257.60
Available-for-sale financial assets AtEESRERE
available-for-sale listed equity AEHERN ET
instruments BuIA 304,161,277.60 304,161,277.60
304,161,277.60 285,619,257.60 589,780,535.20
Financial liabilities at fair value UAREEFER
through profit or loss HEHHAR
BEmemEE 307,262,099.54 307,262,099.54
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)
1. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(Continued) BE(E)
2016 20164
Inputs used in the measurement of fair value
AREEAEEANBAE
Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
BEAHE BENIEER
BRI RE EN | BAE
(Audited) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(BER) (B—BR) (5=BR) (E=BR) CE
Continuously measured at fairvalue ~ HBEH AR EEE
Financial assets at fair value through W24 BEFEE
profit or loss HEBHARH
BamemEE - 129,296,023.50 - 129,296,023.50
Available-for-sale financial assets ARLESREE
available-for-sale listed equity rmA#ELE
instruments TR 250,553,821.20 - - 250,553,821.20
250,553,821.20 129,296,023.50 - 379,849,844.70
Financial liabilities at fair value NAnEESER
through profit or loss HEHHAE

168,670,171.20

168,670,171.20
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IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)
Assets and liabilities disclosed at fair value

2.

30 June 2017

PR 5 i I R (4)
2017664308 (A B¥T)

Ju -~ SRR 9 2 ()

2. M

NREERK

=i
201796 A30H

BENEEM

Inputs used in the measurement of fair value

AAEERBERNGAE
Quoted prices in Key observable Key unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
EZTHE EETARE
AR SHRE BAE WAE
(Unaudited) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(REER) (B—FER) (€=-)/9 (B=EN) =L
Long-term receivables REEWH 5,928,583,492.80 5,928,583,492.80
Long-term borrowings REBER 20,662,006,953.01 - 20,662,006,953.01
Bonds payable e EH 10,618,645,732.97 10,618,645,732.97
Long-term payables REERT - 8458231,173.60 - 8458,231,173.60
31 December 2016 201612 H31H
Inputs used in the measurement of fair value
ARBEREEANEAE
Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
ERNHR EZTAEE
BRI RE BAE AANE
(Audited) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(FER) (B—ER) (F=ER) (5=ER) Ch
Long-term receivables REEUGR - 5412,607,088.40 - 5412,607,088.40
Long-term borrowings REEX - 30,094,539,229.34 - 30,094,539,229.34
Bonds payable EfES 2,786,834,264.62 - - 2,786,834,264.62
Long-term payables REEMAR - 10,963,181,174.40 - 10,963,181,174.40




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

3.

Estimation of fair value

Fair value of financial assets/liabilities

The management has assessed the cash and cash equivalents,
notes receivable, accounts receivable, financial products under
other current assets, non-current assets due within one year, short-
term borrowings, notes payable, accounts payable and long-term
liabilities due within one year and long-term payables due within
one year. In each case, the fair value and carrying value are similar

due to short remaining period.

The finance team of the Group is led by the head of finance
department. It is responsible for formulating policies and procedures
applicable to the measurement of the fair value of financial
instruments. The finance team directly reports to the Chief Financial
Officer and the Audit Committee. On each balance sheet date, the
finance team analyzes the change in value of financial instruments
and ascertain the key inputs which apply to the valuation. The
process and result of valuation is subject to approval by the Chief

Financial Officer.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined as the
amount at which well-informed parties undergo exchange of assets
or settlement of debts out of free will and in a fair transaction. The
following methods and assumptions are used in estimating fair

values.

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
the forward contracts of subsidiaries. The Group believes that the
fair value estimated using valuation techniques is reasonable and

the most appropriate value as of the balance sheet date.

The fair values of listed equity instruments are determined according

to quote prices on the market.

Interim Report 2017 FHEAZRE

5 i 2 M 5 (48
201746 H308 (A R#T)

Ju -

2 SR AE R B B (4)
3.

NAEBEME

TREE/ ¢RBEANEER

EREEDKITHTERE: BRE
B EWER - Rt B EEF AR
BEm- - —FANENERBHEE -
REER - ENER - ENERHRA—
FAIHNRBABE - —FA2 K
REENAHE  BHEBHREIAR - A
A EBEELEREREERE

AEENPEEGHMEHMFIBEA
L BEVESRIAEAAEER
ENBERMNEF  MBEBREERRAE

FUBENEAZEERS - BEE
ERERA  UBEBEITERTA
EEZY BEHER ﬁHE’J?EzzEa
B -HERENERKERFNBE
ZHUE ©

CHMEEMSBBEENAREE N
EAFRGF  ABBERORZEH
BREETEERBRIEBHEENS
BHE - LT AEMBRBARGE A
AR1EE -

AABEFELEZEHFTAZNER
MEMEE SREEERETEFL
AIMEMAR - AEERE - UHE
RiffsstmanBEREGEN XA

NENEERBERARAENER -
FAHERTA  AWSREEER
REE-
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

3.

Estimation of fair value (Continued)
Fair value of financial assets/liabilities (Continued)

Fair values of long-term borrowings are determined using
discounted cash flows, at rates equal to market yield of other
financial instruments with similar contract terms, credit risks and
remaining term. As at 30 June 2017, non-performance risks

underlying long-term borrowings were appraised as insignificant.

Fair values of long-term receivables/ long-term payables are
determined using the present value of net leasing receipts/ net
leasing payments, at rates equal to the market yield of other finance

leases with similar contract terms, credit risks and remaining term.

The fair values of bonds payable are determined as quoted prices

on the market.

The level change in the fair value
From January to June 2017, there were neither transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 for the measurement of fair value of financial

assets and liabilities, nor transfer into or out of Level 3.

I 2% BT (4
201746 308 (A E#T)

Ju -~ SRR 9 2 ()

3.

AREEMEEGE)
TREE /SRAEBEAAEE
(&)
REERRARRAS R B BUER
EAREE  UARLARER - &
FIELIR A EI 4 HIR M E A £ B T AL
ISR R AR RE - 2017567
308 HYRBERSEFTRY
BB ATEX -

EfE S BN SN 4 EE
PR E RS, FRENRENR
B UBRENARER - ERARM
55164 AR ) L A0 R B A OB M2
REAFRRERE -

BRNES  UMSHREBEQIAE
o

AREBEEEXER
MR2017F1-6H  TEeREENS
BMEBEARBEFAEEE "ERNE
ZERZENER  TESANED
EZERANBER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) F B i R BT (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions - ~B 5 5 B & K H=RZ 5

The related parties defined in these financial statements included the R EHERPATHOBEE H B FEetE
related parties under accounting standards and related parties under the Bl RENEBS  LEEREENRS
information disclosure requirements of SFC and Stock Exchange. FMEEERBERTT R E@EEH -
1. Parent 1. BT
Proportion of Proportion of
ownership voting
Registered Nature of Registered interest in power in
address business capital the Company the Company
HALR BARRR
itfht BHE EREA RRLA RELHI
(%) (%)
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Weifang City, External investment financial quarantee, RMB1,200,000,000.00 16.83 16.83
HEEREEERLE Shandong Province investment consuling, planning and AK1,200,000,000.00
WE4 organization/ coordination and
#Em management of production and operating

activities of corporates under the Group
PMREEEERREHIRAER/
hRERSENECELERERT

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. is the ultimate controller RABHBRBEGSARLURETRE
of the Company. BRAR] -

2. Subsidiaries 2. FR7E
Details of subsidiaries are set out in Note VII.1. FRAMGEEFREMEL 10

3. Associates 3. BEhtHE

Details of associates are set out in Note VII.2. B PEFRMFE 2



204  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT

I 2% BT (4
201746 308 (A E#T)

+ B B 5 B AR B e A2 B (A1)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4. Particulars of other related parties which 4. BEEAEBREEARZN
entered into material transactions with the HuBEEEER
Group

Related party relationships
A T BE 1%

Referred to as

i

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd
LWRETEBEERDA
Weichai Group Holdings Limited
EEREERARD

Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
IR AELE L AFR AR
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.

M ERBRMNBRAA

Yangzhou Yaxing Coach Co., Ltd.
BHNEERERHARAF

Yangzhou Shengda Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
HNEEREEER LA

Weichai Electric Equipment Co., Ltd
HEBNREARDA

Chongging Weichai Diesel Engine Limited
ERRREYIRARD

Weichai Electric Equment Taizhou Co., Ltd.
HEENRBEMNBRR

Shandong Weichai Real Estate Co., Ltd.
RS MEBEERAD

Yangzhou Yaxing Commercial Vehicles Co., Ltd.

BNEEBREARAR

Chutian Engineering Machinery Company Limited
IR R TR AR A A

Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd.

I TR AR (D B RR A A

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.
WRETIEBRTBERADA

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co.,Ltd.

LWERMEHEERA
Shanzhong Jianji Co., Ltd.

LWERHERRAR

Ultimate controller
RN

Parent

SR

Common control by parent
RA—S A TS
Common control by parent

A8 AR

Common control by parent
A— 8 AT
Common control by parent
[l — & 1 "
Common control by parent
A— S A7 S
Common control by parent
A—8 AT
Common control by parent
[l — & 1 Al
Common control by parent
A— S AR EH
Common control by parent

A—8ARRs

Same ultimate controller

Al — B AR E A

Same ultimate controller
BARIEHIA

Same ultimate controller

[/ — SRR AR A

Same ultimate controller

R — S A2 A

Same ultimate controller
—RAPERIA

Shandong Heavy Industry

HWRET

Weichai Group Holdings
s ik

Weichai Import and Export

e s 1

Weichai Heavy-duty
Machinery

R ER

Yangzhou Yaxing

BMEE

Shengda Special Vehicles

BERNER

Weichai Electic

BT

Chongging Weichai

E) £

Weichai Electric Taizhou

HERENRM

Weichai Real Estate

St B

Yaxing Commercial
Vehicles

DEFAE

Chutian Engineering

IR R

Shantui Engineering

T2

Shandong Heavy Industry
Finance Company

IWHRETHHA A

Shanzhong Finance Leasing

ILWERERE

Shanzhong Jianji

WEEH
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)
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Related party relationships

+ B B 5 B AR B A2 5 (A1)

BAEEBLEEARIHN
HibBAME 5B R ()

Referred to as

B TR [5F
Shantui Road Machinery Co., Ltd Same ultimate controller Shantui Road
LB R AR A E Al — SEEHIA 1L 3 3 B
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. Same key management personnel Beigi Foton
EAERAERNDERA A F—BREREAE bAEE
Shaanxi Automobile Industry Co., Ltd. Associate of substantial shareholder(s) Shaanxi Industry
BRAEXERAR of subsidiary(ies) BOTE S

Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd.

RETEEEEREMEATA

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission
Co., Ltd.
REZEZLHAEFEHEEERAT
Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd.
PREEZEHAFER AR

Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and

Trading Services Co.,Ltd.
RAERTERBER LA
Shaanxi Tongli Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd.
RABNERAERREEIAR

Shaanxi Lantong Transmission Axle Co., Ltd.

REERESHHERLDF]

Baoji Huashan Engineering Vehicles Co., Ltd.

BEREELNTRERAEREMEAF

Xi"an Lande New Energy Automotive Technology
Development Co., Ltd.
AR R TERMFREER A

Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and Components Co. Ltd.

REES TETHREARAF

Shaanxi Fangyuan Automobile Standard
Components Co. Ltd.

BRE S BT EREMHBR AR

Shaanxi Automobile Group Xunyang Baotong
Special Purpose Vehicles Co., Ltd.

RESEEEASERERAEARAAF

FRAAIEEMRRZBMEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FREEERR2HEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRAIEZ/RRZBEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FREIEERRZBEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRARIEERRZBMEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FTRRAIEERRZBHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FREIEERREZHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRAEZRRZHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRAAIEZEMRRZBMEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FREEERRZHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FREAEERREZHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRABERRZHEA

Shaanxi Automotive
prAsE

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive

BOEED

Huazhen Parts

EBREM

Huazhen Services

EBRRY

Tongli Special Purpose
BOEMH

Lantong Transmission

EEEDEH

Baoji Vehicle

EHER

Lande New Energy
HEF R

Shaanxi Wanfang
REES

Fangyuan Automobile

T ERE

Xunyang Baotong
AGER
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
4. Particulars of other related parties which 4.

BAEEBLEEARSH

entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

Related party relationships
B S B R

HibBAM 5 BR ()

Referred to as

L

Shaanxi Automobile Group Yan'an Special
Purpose Vehicles Co., Ltd.

RAAEEETLZERERRRA

Shaanxi Dongming Automobile System Co., Ltd

RAREEHRGERODBERAR

Shaanxi Zhongfu IDT Techology Co., Ltd
RAREDHHNEREER AR

Shaanxi Shaangi Auto City Hotel Co., Ltd.
PRARTEFEERR DA

Shanghai Yuanxing Supply Chain
Management (Group) Limited
FEETHERERERAF
Shaanxi Zhongjiao Tianjian Vehicle Net Information
Technology Co., Ltd.
AR R RRERBELRMERAR
Shaanxi Deyin Logistic Services Co., Ltd.

REERDRREERAA

Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd
ERHMEEERRAA

Shaanxi Dongfeng Axle And Transmission
System Co., Ltd

REREEREDHZARNDER QA

Shaanxi Tongchuang Huaheng Vehicle Radiator Co. Ltd.

RERAIEZ TEHAERAEAF

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAOABEMRFRZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAREERR ZBMEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRARIEZMR ZBEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRABEMRFRZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRARIEERREZBMEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRARIZEZEMR ZBEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAOEEMRFRZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRARIEERFR ZBMEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
IARNEBREIHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FREEEMRFRZHEA

Yan'an Special Purpose
Vehicles

ERERE

Dongming Automobile

REGEHH

Shaanxi Zhongfu
RAETE

Shaangi Auto City
BT E

Yuanxing Supply Chain
BITHER

Zhongjiao Tianjian
PN

Deyin Logistic
=RYm

Deyin Leasing
EREE

Dongfeng Axle
REER

Tongchuang Huaheng
REIET
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)
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Related party relationships
B S EE

+ B B 5 B AR B A2 5 (A1)

BASEBLEEARIH
HibBAME 5B R ()

Referred to as

lCE:]

Shaanxi Automobile Group Changsha Huantong
Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
RAAEEERDREAEHEFRAF
Shaanxi Automobile Group Wenzhou Yunding
Automobile Co., Ltd.
BRETESEERMNETEABERAT
Shaanxi Wanfang Tianyun Vehicle
Equipment Co. Ltd.
RAEEHREABERAR AT
Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Component Parts Co., Ltd.

REEZAETHEARAA

Shaanxi Sanzhen Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd.
RE=%RETHHERAA

Shaanxi Automobile Group Properties
Development Co., Ltd.

BRI RESEEFEHEREFR AR

Eaton Industries Private Limited

FEIXLABRAR

Inner Mongolia Yuanxing Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd.
AEHERITHEREEERDA

Shaanxi Huazhen Automobile Filtration System Co., Ltd.

REFERIERBRGERDA

Baoji Tongli Auto Frame Company Limited

BERBNESARAMEAF

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FREABEMRFRZHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRARIEEMR ZBEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRARIEEMR ZBEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

IARNEEREIHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FREABERFRZHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FARIEEMR ZBMEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FREABERFZHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FARIEZMR ZBMEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FARIEEMR ZBMEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRARIZEZEMR ZBEA

Changsha Huantong
RORB

Wenzhou Yunding

BMETE

Wanfang Tianyun
BhHRE

Huazhen Component
EHE B

Sanzhen Vehicles

ZBRAE

Shangi Properties
PR E

Eaton Private

FIETLA

Inner Mongolia Yuanxing
NEHETT

Huazhen Filtration

Tongli Auto Frame

BHES
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
4. Particulars of other related parties which 4.
entered into material transactions with the
Group (Continued)

BAEEBLEEARIH
HibBAME S B ()

Related party relationships
B S B R

Referred to as

L

Zhuzhou Gear Company Limited

wMERRHBRAF

Zhuzhou Automobile Gear Factory

VDR =

Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd.

Same key management personnel
as subsidiary(ies)

BETARRRA—BREREAR

Same key management personnel as
subsidiary(ies)

BEARIRRA—BREREAR

Jointly-controlled enterprise of
subsidiary(ies)

Zhuzhou Company
=Dl

Zhuzhou Gear Factory

TRE R

FC Intelligence Transmission

ALEREHEEHERLA FRARZAEDRE SR EE

Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd. Associate of subsidiary(ies) Tonghui Transportation
PREEESEMRER DA FREZEERE BEMR

CIMC - SHAC (Xi'an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. Associate of subsidiary(ies) CIMC = SHAC
FEPRTER(AR) ERAEFRAR FRARIZHEERE REER

Xi'an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd. Associate of subsidiary(ies) Xi'an Cummics
FALRAMEESRER DA FARIZHERE A% R A

Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile Co., Ltd Associate of subsidiary(ies) Shangi Tianma
REBAREAEFRAA FREIZEERE BRIARE

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd. Associate of subsidiary(ies) Eurostar

PREGERET 45 A= R B R 2 A) FARIZHERE BT

Shaanxi Automobile Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. Associate of subsidiary(ies) Shaanxi Wuhai
BASEERAEARAA FREAZBERE RASE

Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd. Associate of parent Westport New Energy
HLETEE R NERA A BRBZHERE FEETRLIR



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

5.

Major transactions between the Group and its

related parties

(1)

Transaction of goods and services with related

parties

Purchase of goods from related parties

Interim Report 2017 FAsks 209

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201746 30 (A E#T)

-+~ Bk Oy B AR e AR 5 ()
5. AKEEERBELINEER

2

(1) BEIARNSEHERS

A B 7 8 B B

January-June

2017
201751-6 B
(Unaudited)

(RREEX)

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
Westport New Energy
Baoji Vehicle

Shaanxi Wuhai

Shaanxi Wanfang
Wanfang Tianyun

Xi‘an Cummics

Tongli Special Purpose
Huazhen Components
Weichai Import and Export
CIMC-SHAC

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery

Lantong Transmission
Tongchuang Huaheng
Zhongjiao Tianjian
Fangyuan Automobile
Dongming Automobile
Huazhen Parts

FC Intelligence Transmission
Others

PO EE

FB IR
HHER

PSS

pREaE

BHRE

78 % FR AR H
BHEH

ERTEM
HESGEL O
PEREFR

HESEE

EREgwm
[Fl &Il 2= =

hRRRE

HERE

REFAEW

EREMT

E5Ey

Hitp

2,108,622,597.95
2,052,490,999.52
963,850,521.68
687,155,453.21
632,166,686.46
410,908,805.80
401,835,651.90
308,630,214.42
289,384,900.05
220,513,049.96
161,078,741.88
149,983,485.78
99,341,493.12
92,444,159.45
79,587,987.47
49,031,036.88
42,053,556.35
25,940,511.96
10,908,284.21
463,760,289.78

9,249,688,427.83

January-June
2016

20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(CREEEZ)
(Restated)
(geaEm)

1,161,653,857.08
263,238,866.14
224,049,056.99
167,527,419.35
326,244,520.81
161,442,495.02
121,812,867.18
122,549,756.11
112,589,786.65
175,945,171.38
31,620,031.53
120,513,798.25
54,435,651.08
28,394,185.97
38,694,764.19
24,640,943.62
22,509,212.47
32,394,993.81
19,592,647.23
396,880,354.05

3,606,730,378.91
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

parties (Continued)
Sales of goods to related parties

5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)
Transaction of goods and services with related

S5 i R WA (A

201746 308 (A E#T)

+ B B 5 B AR e R 5 ()
5. AEBRABINEER

2 (&)
1) BB ITEaNERERS
(%&)
1] B 77 85 & B dm
January-June January-June
2017 2016
201751-6 B 2016%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
(Restated)
(fesEa)

1,039,877,932.67
1,010,713,397.43
558,211,661.56
324,318,261.27
294,497,741.68
256,788,282.27

224,658,763.16
151,860,386.64
117,828,812.11
112,968,030.64
108,527,298.02
82,294,519.48
73,159,975.00
58,220,181.08
42,369,401.71
39,937,907.77
993,915,937.68

5,490,148,490.17

669,954,412.44
141,721,403.89
108,759,200.94
60,369,297.22
217,175,414.69
301,459,177.54
31,132,114.48
69,087,969.53
138,401,203.68
43,443,576.74
50,361,876.14
95,525,022.34
44,678,727.70
538,376.07
77,588,252.13
927,691,103.82

2,977,887,129.35

BRI E XS

January-June
2017
201751-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REERK)

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive BE{EE)
Westport New Energy AR
Shaanxi Wuhai BRASE
Baoji Vehicle BEH B
Weichai Import and Export HEGEE O
Beigi Foton bafEH
Shaanxi Zhongfu i
Wanfang Tianyun B KRE
Shaanxi Wanfang BREEH
Weichai Electric LT T
Shantui Engineering L T2
Huazhen Component EZT M
Yangzhou Yaxing B2
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery HEGE B
Shengda Special Vehicles RERRER
Tongli Special Purpose BOEA
Others Hh
Receiving services from related parties

Weichai Group Holdings HESETERR
Tonghui Transportation BEDR Note 71
Shaanxi Industry pRAE
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive BRE{EE)
Others HAth

171,682,474.60
119,488,162.92
27,142,561.64
24,400,362.49
62,701,640.97

405,415,202.62

January-June
2016

20164 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)
(Restated)
(g &)

145,609,913.44
40,605,029.55
32,930,618.01
16,723,625.54
129,278,583.62

365,147,770.16
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBABINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (&)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BETERMEBRS
parties (Continued) (&)

5] B B 7 B2 (7 55

Rendering services to related parties

January-June

2017
201751-6 B
(Unaudited)

(RBER)

Others Hb

39,032,253.86

39,032,253.86

Note 1:From January to June 2017, Tonghui Transportation provided
comprehensive services including agency procurement,
warehousing, logistics distribution and receipt and payment
services to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd, a subsidiary
of the Company. Agency services provided by Tonghui
Transportation to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. amounted to
RMB119,488,162.92 (January — June 2016: RMB40,605,029.55),
and no goods were purchased by Tonghui Transportation on behalf
of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. (January — June 2016:
RMB731,021,601.46) during this period.

During the period, the prices for the Group’s sale of goods
and rendering services to related parties as well as purchase
of goods and receiving services from related parties were

determined with reference to market rates.

January-June
2016

20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(CREEEZ)
(Restated)
(geaEm)

36,985,023.47

36,985,023.47

GIR

R2017F1-68 - BEMRA
KRR ZFRAKAEE S
BHRAREHENRERE -
B MREERR B
FSHREMB - AHRAEAE
FMEBRRAREZBEYR
WRERBESBEBAARE
119,488,162.92 jt ( 2016 4
1-6 A :+ AR%40,605,029.55
L)  ERERENEY
(2016 F1-6 A : AR ¥
731,021,601.467T) °

AE - REBRBBTHER

AR

K&

o REESHER  REBA®

REB2EMHBRRE
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its

related parties (Continued)

(2) Leasing with related parties
As lessor

Type of leased property
HEZERA

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

+ B B 5 B AR e R 5 ()
5. AKEEERBELINEER

5 (&)

(2) EBABHHE
TERHEA

January-June

2017
2017%1-6 8
Lease revenue
HEWA
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

FC Intelligence Transmission
ERHEE)

Shanzhong Finance Leasing
LWERERE

Tonghui Transportation
BEDR

Xi'an Cummics

% BRAA T

Westport New Energy
mEAFRE R

Weichai Electric

BN

Huazhen Parts

ERE

Weichai Import and Export
HESE L D

Shaanxi Wanfang
OFiR=]

Shaanxi Industry
BOTE X

Shaangi Auto City
BT I

Buildings and equipment
FE®ZRE

Buildings

BE

Buildings and equipment

FEHRE

Buildings, equipment & land

FERE LT
Buildings

BE
Buildings

FE
Buildings and equipment
FE®RE
Buildings

BE
Buildings

FE
Buildings

BE

Hotel buildings
BIEEE

7,910,120.40

4,583,364.67

4,222,683.01

4,200,000.00

3,908,257.32

2,252,254.08

1,666,369.38

992,966.47

182,150.86

171,690.00

148,272.00

January-June
2016

20164 1-6 A
Lease revenue
HEWA
(Unaudited)
(REgER)
(Restated)
(&)

8,111,621.70

3,014,353.04

3,337,493.75

2,743,334.56

4,032,118.82

2,400,902.71

1,022,708.76

1,701,103.92

156,142.40

120,183.00

122,220.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi % 5 B8 X HAZ 5 (5)
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (1&)
(2) Leasing with related parties (Continued) (2) B THEEE)
As lessee tERATA
January-June January-June
2017 2016
2017%1-6 8 2016 1-6 A
Type of leased property Lease fee Lease fee
HEEERE HES HE?
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RREX) (REER)
(Restated)
(g s&E3)
Shaanxi Industry Buildings
[ = EE 8,638,153.16 9,310,867.32
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Buildings
POEEE E=E 6,263,926.82 6,250,554.31
Weichai Group Holdings Buildings
e S PRI E=E 2,852,214.40 3,183,187.58
Chongging Weichai Buildings
BEME FE 1,999,998.00 1,999,998.00
Shaanxi Automotive Buildings
VIR E=E 1,554,517.30 1,306,087.32
Zhuzhou Company Buildings
=g FE 3,029,500.00
During the period, the prices for the Group's leasing with ARH > REEERBE HHEEKER
related parties were determined with reference to market ZETIBBIRIRE °

rates.



214  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)
(3) Transfer of assets with related parties

S5 i R WA (A

201746 308 (A E#T)

+ B B 05 B AR B A2 B (B
5. AKEEERBELINEER

5 (&)

(3) BB AEEE

January-June

Particulars of transaction 2017

REAR

201751-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEER)

Weichai Group Holdings
MR I

Weichai Group Holdings
MR I

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
HESRE

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
HESRE K

Chongging Weichai

Weichai Import and Export
HESGE T O

Weichai Import and Export
HESE T O

Weichai Electric

HEE )

Purchase of fixed assets
BEETEE

Sale of fixed assets
HEEEEE
Purchase of fixed assets
BEETEE

Sale of fixed assets
HEEEEE
Purchase of fixed assets
BEETEE
Purchase of fixed assets
BEETEEE

Sale of fixed assets

& EE & E

Sale of fixed assets

HEBREEE

177.78

3,898.76

53,297.19

96,237.22

2,164.10

1,111.11

During the period, the price for the Group’s purchase

and sale of fixed assets from and to related parties were

determined with reference to market rates.

Except for the transactions with associates, all the above

transactions of goods and services with related parties,

leasing with related parties and transfer of assets with related

parties also constitute connected transactions or continuing

connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the

Hong Kong Listing Rules.

January-June
2016

20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
CREEEZ)
(Restated)
(geE)

174,040.16

36,244.80

2,687.85

209,689.48

47,578.19

5,623.94

AE - AKE R REMHEE
EEEBRBEMGERRE

BREBENRETIRSIN

B L

AR T AmMEH RS - BT H
ENBBM T EEERRAKBEXC(EE
EHRADFEVMATH EERNFER

FERFERERD -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)
(4)  Other related party transactions

(a)

(b)

Deyin Leasing provides Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary in the Group, with services of
financial leasing. It was agreed among Deyin Leasing
and third-party distributors that for the vehicle monies
of related business to be receivable by the Group from
distributors, Deyin Leasing may take up the payment
obligation on behalf of the distributors. In January —
June 2017, the amount of vehicle sales through this
business mode amounted to RMB2,070,960,972.00
(January — June 2016: RMB1,289,164,100.00).

Shanzhong Finance Leasing provides Shaanxi Heavy-
duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary in the Group, with
services of financial leasing. In January — June 2017,
the amount of vehicle sales through this business
mode amounted to RMB1,467,633,538.00 (January —
June 2016: RMB280,723,717.68). Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Co., Ltd. provided guarantee for joint liabilities
in respect of failure of the lessee under finance lease to
settle instalment payments plus interest. Risk exposure
in respect of possible guarantee for joint liabilities as at
30 June 2017 amounted to RMB1,359,180,000.00 (31
December 2016: RMB922,960,000.00). For details, see
Note XII.3.
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5. AEEHEBEBEINEER

2 (&)
(4)
(a)

H@EB T X5

EREEAAEBZTA
AIRRAENAEAERA
AR EmEEL
BRAEME = K H
ERE R A S EE R
KEm A EBNE
X ATEREREE R
AN RER 2017
F1-6 AMBZEEBIE
AHENEWMESHERAR
# 2,070,960,972.00 7T
(2016%F1-6 A : AR
1,289,164,100.007T) °

LWEREREARANEME
ZFRAIBRAERNS
BEERARIRHBER
EEW 2017516 A
BBZEEBEXHEES
mEmBEARAARE
1,467,633,538.00 T
(20164F1-6 7 : AR
280,723,717.687T) ° Bk
B AEFRAA R
BREMA A REL R
BB & AR & o B 3R R
BRHETRERM B
201746 A30H 1HREIE
HEERBRRK D HA
R # 1,359,180,000.00
L(2016412 A31 8 :
A R # 922,960,000.00
L) AEBER2 R
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

(4)
()

Other related party transactions (Continued)

On 30 March 2016, the Group entered into the
Financial Services Agreement with Shandong Heavy
Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Shandong
Heavy Industry Finance Company”). Pursuant to
the agreement, Shandong Heavy Industry Finance
Company provided deposit, credit, accounting and
clearing services as well as other financial services
to the Company and its controlling subsidiaries. The
interest rates for credit relating to financial services
as well as fee rates are determined according to the
Financial Services Agreement and based upon the
relevant requirements of the People’s Bank of China’s
under which the lending rate shall not exceed the
minimum level permitted under the interest rates
and fee rates for money lending of similar types and
categories available to the Group from other major
commercial banks in the PRC.

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.
provides distributors of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary in the Group, with credit line
to apply for establishing bank acceptance bills for
the purchase of products from Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Co., Ltd.. In 2017, the credit line amounted to
RMB1,000,000,000.00 (2016: RMB1,000,000,000.00).
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. assumes security
obligation in favour of the distributors for the
difference between amount of notes and guarantee
money. As at 30 June 2017, open position of
outstanding acceptance bill was RMB931,384,460.00
(31 December 2016: RMB761,079,080.00). For details,
see Note XII.2.
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AEFHRIRETEH
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T RARARR RIER
FREEBEER  EE -
HEERHEMSBRES -
EE R EE R X
EXRB(ERRBHHR)
MEFEARRITERE
MM EBERERER L
TERAEE L E i+ E
Bl A EmERITIER
AEREBEAEEMNERE
KRR REKEREE o

IWRETHB AR ARE
Bz FAapRfmER g8
B IR A B R L S IR %
ZREE - BRI RITA
HREZAREBERAESE
RMABEERAAER -
2017 FEMBEEEEARA
R ¥ 1,000,000,000.00
(2016 F : AR
1,000,000,000.007T ) °
PREEER REHRA A
AEHERNREHRERSSE
HRFS2EEHFNE
HREBEEME - HE2017
F6H308 ¢ HAEH
mASEZ®RAEARA
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its

related parties (Continued)

(4)  Other related party transactions (Continued)

Amounts of transactions with Shandong Heavy Industry

Finance Company are as follows:
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5. AEBEERBBAINEER
7 (&)
(4) HAbERRE 55 (%)
AEBRURETHEAAE

EMRIAZZEMT
January-June January-June
2017 2016
2017%1-68 20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
(Restated)
(geaEm)

vefs A avs R 37,235,269,974.40

59,263,957.57 59,025,179.19

9,066,172.06 9,926,615.52

190,000,000.00

Bank deposit placed TFERERITIF R
Interest income MEWA
Interest expenses FEZH
Acquisition of short-term borrowings ~ BU{S 42 #ifE 3k
Acquisition of long-term borrowings IS RAER

200,000,000.00

Establishment of bank acceptance bills

FAERTTAGESRE

1,067,914,863.38 909,270,067.61

Balances of accounts with Shandong Heavy Industry Finance

Company are as follows:

REBERLIREIMBERAH
FIEERBEAT ¢

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6H30H 2016512 A831H

Cash and cash equivalents placed

with related parties

Interest receivable

Short-term borrowings

Long-term borrowings

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REFER) (& #&%Z)

GFHEBITNEYES
WIEFACERIPIN PN 10,745,194,399.87
& ULF B, 40,323,843.75 24,849,593.75
S HfE X 230,000,000.00 280,000,000.00
RHIER 320,807,751.45 320,807,751.45

Balance of bank acceptance bills
established

B AL RO SRIT AL FE SR AR R

1,060,402,595.58 1,415,148,726.14
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Amounts due from/to related parties

6.

(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

HRBORHAERDE

Accounts receivable

FE e AR %

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
MBI

Beigi Foton

it M

Weichai Electric

HERED

FC Intelligence Transmission
SEEY)

Yangzhou Yaxing
BN 2

Weichai Import and Export
HESGEH O

Shengda Special Vehicles
BERRS

Baoji Vehicle

BEUEH

Changsha Huantong
RORM

Shaanxi Zhonghu

BREaH "

Eurostar

BLAT A

Westport New Energy

P AR

Shaanxi Wuhai

RS HE

Yan'an Special Purpose Vehicles
ELERE

Others

Hith

PR 5 i I R (4)
2017664308 (A B¥T)

+ B B 5 B AR e R 5 ()
6. BAMETS BB FIRERE

30 June 2017
2017%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Gross carrying

amount

RRE ERE

210,858,634.03

127,211,231.52

106,768,214.27

106,445,232.07

89,409,304.58

86,396,407.37

70,081,671.37

68,735,050.05

66,364,433.92

42,548,650.00

34,933,054.81

29,783,583.89

28,636,692.85

24,076,684.00

358,055,178.33

1,450,304,023.06

Provision for
bad debt
BRERE

(13,545,817.44)

(5,785,977.18)

(4,310,765.45)

(85,156,185.66)

(4,470,465.23)

(2,670,453.70)

(3,547,019.21)

(3,469,847.15)

(30,157,976.02)

(2,127,432.50)

(26,428,352.56)

(54,409.13)

(1,431,834.64)

(3,593,192.60)

(8,070,229.11)

(194,819,957.58)

31 December 2016
201612 A318°

(Audited)

(fe&Z)
Gross carrying Provision for
amount bad debt
SRR SRR

324,413,275.44

28,527,662.61

5,371,562.49

82,271,320.25

3,520,810.62

38,564,169.59

36,272,171.37

12,969,323.45

66,364,433.92

7,601,615.00

34,826,235.46

16,032,703.29

30,470,948.92

24,287,584.00

270,416,418.79

(17,347,653.46)

(1,280,369.94)

(184,784.19)

(65,817,056.20)

(179,770.53)

(1,145,968.25)

(455,443.36)

(1,173,505.55)

(10,142,527.80)

(380,080.75)

(31,109,172.29)

(1,241,436.84)

(3,643,137.60)

(9,395,253.31)

981,910,235.20

(143,496,160.07)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BHAEWENNRERE

(Continued) (48)

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

2017%6H30H 2016F12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (REZ)
Gross carrying Provision for Gross carrying Provision for

(Unaudited) amount bad debt amount bad debt
(Rig#ERZ) AR BR 0 RERER R EERAER
Other receivables
H A FE WK
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
BREE B 94,096,836.18 - -
Shangi Tianma
pOARE 13,778,740.01 (13,778,740.01) 13,778,740.01 (10,101,939.02)
Shaanxi Industry
B s g 43,230.30 24,318,160.88 (1,215,908.04)
Shanqi Properties
BRI HE 42,893,614.55 (2,144,680.73)
Others
Hib 196,977,111.86 (FEORe[0  123,764,005.07 (77,320.13)

304,895,918.35

(13,780,240.01)

204,754,520.51

(13,539,847.92)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

6.

Amounts due from/to related parties

(Continued)

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

+ B B 5 B AR e R 5 ()

6. BETEWENREKRE

(%)

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6H30H 201612 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (BEZ)

Notes receivable (Bank acceptance bills)
BURRB(RITERAZER)
Yangzhou Yaxing

HNEE

Deyin Leasing

mRAE

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
ML E

Weichai Import and Export
SR N

Shengda Special Vehicles
RERES

Baoji Vehicle

BHEH

Others

i

925,850,480.00

318,000,000.00

80,306,420.00 214,452.64

40,000,000.00

6,370,000.00 26,252,400.00

1,000,000.00

23,175,424.40 4,514,685.61

988,141,666.27

120,000,000.00

1,394,702,324.40 1,139,123,204.52

Prepayments
FEARIE

Huazhen Services
FEERD

Tongli Special Purpose
BMAOHEMA

Others

HAtb

20,290,675.31

20,000.00 99,359,542.70

3,841,787.80 11,761,987.40

12,330,833.09

24,152,463.11

Dividends receivable

FE W AR R

Eurostar

BRAT 45

123,452,363.19

3,040,000.00 3,040,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions + ~Bi ¥ J7 B & R R 5 (5)
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAB T EEWENRIBESRE
(Continued) (%)

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

201756 H30H 201612 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (f&E'EZ)
Accounts payable
B R
Westport New Energy
AR 485,302,358.48 2,371,333.77
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
T 449,516,388.00 527,121,336.98
Shaanxi Wanfang
iR a] 400,761,315.54 381,730,772.38
Baoji Vehicle
BB 328,285,467.88 273,058,319.43
Xi'an Cummics
A% BREAHT 162,850,668.89 142,733,834.53
Weichai Import and Export
L O 148,621,108.41 121,327,050.32
Wanfang Tianyun
B KiE 108,058,780.71 57,670,422.89
Huazhen Parts
EEE 106,198,077.36 102,087,231.25
Tongli Special Purpose
BOER 79,694,846.86 79,724,135.24
Lantong Transmission
EmEEE 71,006,840.87 46,976,722.03
Zhongjiao Tianjian
RN 70,008,593.50 51,767,055.50
Tongchuang Huaheng
FgIZE= 66,390,479.97 44,422,501.69
Tonghui Transportation
E YR 51,051,263.29 151,296,304.97
CIMC-SHAC
PEER 37,744,032.43 11,473,816.06
Fangyuan Automobile
HEAE 32,380,998.60 33,526,942.88
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
L B 26,554,804.97 18,654,144.68
FC Intelligence Transmission
SR EE) 11,469,474.58 45,286,337.85
Others
HAh 149,256,631.95 116,837,167.34

2,785,152,132.29

2,208,065,429.79
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

6.

Amounts due from/to related parties

(Continued)

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

+ B Bk 5 B AR e A2 5 ()
6. BAME T MEWE N RIHRE

(&)

30 June 2017
20176 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RRBEX)

Notes payable (Bank acceptance bills)
EREB(RITEALIESR)
Shaanxi Wanfang
PREEE T

Xi'an Cummics

78 %2 FE B8R iy

Tonghui Transportation
BEDR

Lantong Transmission
EmEH

Westport New Energy
BT AR

Baoji Vehicle

BHER

Tongli Special Purpose
BHOEA

Others

HAth

161,908,979.78

35,000,000.00

5,982,340.00

2,879,596.42

3,898,314.15

209,669,230.35

Advances from customers
A

Shaanxi Wuhai

pRASE

FC Intelligence Transmission
LEFEE)

Tongli Special Purpose
BOER

Huazhen Parts

BRI

Baoji Vehicle

BHER

Others

E

78,858,390.41

20,000,000.00

666,099.94

200.00

15,829,039.23

115,353,729.58

31 December 2016
2016412 A31H
(Audited)
(HE&#iz)

256,845,963.08

57,500,000.00

280,541,759.68

7,178,911.11

281,385,612.56

209,275,000.00

3,221,214.76

38,092,742.88

1,134,041,204.07

88,137,318.67

904,788.96

2,949,128.00

1,242,509.00

6,597,142.73

99,830,887.36
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

6.

Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)
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6. BT EWENREKRE
(%)

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6H30H 201612 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREX) (REZ)

Other payables

H AR

Shaanxi Industry
prAE %

Shaanxi Automotive
pri9&E =

Others

Hitb

35,102,433.09 61,247,157.09

32,293,905.00 36,015,492.90

101,995,022.07 80,335,967.09

169,391,360.16 177,598,617.08

Dividends payable
& A3 iR R
Shaanxi Automotive

BOTRE

21,070,000.00

Long-term payables
REEMNR
Other immaterial associates

H 3B AR & b

257,743,946.40 244,543,982.40

Non-current liabilities due within one year
—FRIPNFERBAE

Other immaterial associates

Hth 3F B R B & (b 2

120,963,506.40 119,882,667.60

Other than long-term payables and non-current liabilities due within
one year, amounts due from/to related parties were non-interest
bearing and unsecured. Of which the terms of repayment for
amounts of trading nature will follow the requirement of terms of
trading, while amounts of non-trading nature have no fixed terms

of repayment.

BRBENK —FRIHNERD
BENSN - U B B 5 SRS
TEAE - |EW - Hep > EHEXR
MEFRMBRESEIRTE  FES
EREE EERE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Share-based Payment

Share-based Payment Project Applicable to Staff
Members of KION

On 1 October 2014, KION GROUP AG introduced a share-based
payment project applicable to KION’s staff members in Germany
(Project 2014). Since 1 October 2015, KION GROUP AG introduced
its share-based payment projects applicable to its staff members in
Germany, China, United Kingdom, France and ltaly (Project 2015).
On 4 October 2016, KION GROUP AG introduced its share-based
payment project applicable to its staff members in Belgium, Czech,
New Zealand, Poland, Portugal, Spain and the staff members
included in the previous years (Project 2016). Under Project 2016, a
staff member may participate in the project by giving a declaration of
acceptance during the period from 5 to 31 October 2016. Only those
who have, before the commencement of the agreement, signed
permanent employment contract with KION GROUP AG and been
working for KION GROUP AG for at least one year are qualified to
participate in the project. Currently, KION GROUP AG, 14 German
subsidiaries (2015: 12) and 53 overseas subsidiaries (2015: 34)
have participated in Project 2016. KION GROUP AG will consider
extending the coverage of project to more countries in the years to

come.

Under the share-based payment project for staff members, a
participating staff member will, through a share placement plan, be
entitled to one bonus share, free of charge, to match with every three
shares in KION GROUP AG that have been held for three years.
KION GROUP AG is entitled to provide cash payments in lieu of the
grant of bonus shares. To motivate staff’s participation in this project,
KION GROUP AG will grant a first-time participant, on a free-of-
charge basis, one share to correspond with every 18 shares initially
purchased by him/her/it. If the participant has sold the shares of
KION GROUP AG or no longer works for KION GROUP AG, he/she/it
will no longer be eligible for such right to receive such free-of-charge
shares.

KIONEIR#®BX{SEE

2014%F10A1H - KION GROUP AGS|#
—EEMAER AR E TKIONE I K®H
ZHIEE (20147H ) * KION GROUP AG
B2015F 10 S 1HREMAEE -« A& - I
CEBEMBARAMAGMNBEIERE IR
¥ F1EE (20151 ) - 2016510 H 4
B ' KION GROUP AGTE H L FIRF « 5T
P R BET > AT AUREF
ERREZAEANBERNETIERE—BE
IRHZHEE (20167E ) » 201678 B
FEEBTAILLE20169410A5HE31HRE
BER—(AEXEALEKRIER REXE
=B ATE EKION GROUP AGEF T
KARBER  B2BIEL—FHE
IABERMARIEE - HRI2 8201618
B #EKION GROUP AG M 14{E (20154 :
1218) A TR RIAMS3ME (20154 : 341@)
EBIASN T AT © KION GROUP AGE &
ELAEFEREEBEE ARIIEZMHER o

BIRMNINEBEARBRREEHLHES
TH AT =RKION GROUP AGIREim =
FRERERS —REBEMNIERAR - KION
GROUP AGHEREBBIR X NERKTA
% © KION GROUP AG & B B T 28 AR1H
B HEaXR2EABEENEI&TEED
FISRBREEERE—KRRE - IRAKIE
B £ 8% HE TKION GROUP AGHI I Z 5%
EHRER  BERESEERE -
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (AR #or)
XI. Share-based Payment (Continued) +- By AT ()

Share-based Payment Project Applicable to Staff
Members of KION (Continued)

As at 30 June 2017, 66,406 (31 December 2016: 67,106) bonus
shares were granted by KION GROUP AG, among which 700
(2016: 1,302) shares have lapsed in the first half of the year. From
January to June 2017, total costs recognized in respect of equity-
settled share-based payments in relation to the project was
EURB394,000.00, equivalent to RMB3,030,093.60 (January to June
2016: EUR257,000.00, equivalent to RMB1,995,730.00).

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Managers

In 2017, a Share Incentive Scheme implemented by KION GROUP
AG became applicable to managers from 1 January 2017, for a term
of three years (KION 2017 Senior Management Long-term Incentive
Scheme). At the beginning of the period subject to appraisal, on 1
January 2017, 171,573 (2016: 180,963) virtual shares with specific
fair value were granted to managers. Such virtual shares were
apportioned in proportion to the total annual remuneration of the

respective managers who were granted such shares.

KIONEIR#®BX{JEE (&)

#FZE201766A30H » KION GROUP AG
% F66,406 R 4L (2016412 A318 -
67,106 %) + EH 700Kk 2 K (2016
F:1,3020%) ° 20174 1-6 A - AR
ERBANNUEZEAENRND I NERY
B 8% A EIT394,000.00 F TA AR
#3,030,093.607C (2016 1-6 A : BT
257,000.00 + #r& A R ¥ 1,995,730.00

7T e
KIONZ 12 % fE B B 5+ 21

20174 - KION GROUP AGHZIEE i
TE2017F 1A 18R A= FHRELE
FTEI(KION2017F = B REIZEIEH &) -
E2017F 1 AVBEBEZ DA - LEEE
FT171573 M EBREA R BEHE R
% (20164 : 180,96315 ) * ZEHIAR (7 1%
BEMLEHEETROEEALFTHOIA
FELL BT EE ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Share-based Payment (Continued)

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Managers (Continued)

The cash-settled share-based payment granted in 2014 is subject
to appraisal for business performance during a period ending 31
December 2016, and was settled in April 2017.

As at 30 June 2017, accumulated liabilities incurred from the
cash-settled share-based payments amounted to EUR16,800,000.00,
equivalent to RMB130,193,280.00 (31 December 2016:
EUR9,700,000.00, equivalent to RMB70,875,960.00). In
particular, EUR9,400,000.00 belonged to the 2015 tranche,
which was equivalent to RMB72,846,240.00 (31 December
2016: EUR7,100,000.00, equivalent to RMB51,878,280.00),
and EUR5,600,000.00 belonged to the 2016 tranche, which
was equivalent to RMB43,397,760.00 (31 December 2016:
EUR2,600,000.00, equivalent to RMB18,997,680.00).
EUR1,800,000.00 belonged to the 2017 tranche, which was
equivalent to RMB13,949,280.00.

KIONKE R EBBE (&)

2014 R FHUNBE S EENRMN I E
BEEZHE2016F12A4318&R 2
R2017F4 BT -

HE2017F6H308  LLBEsEH
WO EXNEEANRAEBEESER
B 7T 16,800,000.00 & #T & A R #
130,193,280.00 7t ( 2016 & 12 A 31
B : B Jt 9,700,000.00 @ T & A R
# 70,875,960.00 ;L ) © E A - BT
9,400,000.00 8 M 2015 F W& F 15 -
e ANR#T72,846,240.007C (2016412
A318 : Biyc7,100,000.00 * A AR
51,878,280.00 7L ) * BX JT 5,600,000.00
BR20M6FHRRTHE  TEAR
¥ 43,397,760.00 st ( 2016 4 12 A 31
H : BUJT2,600,000.00 @ #ré ARE
18,997,680.00 7t ) * Bt 7T 1,800,000.00
BR201I7TEFHRTHE  EARE
13,949,280.007T °
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (AR #or)
XI. Share-based Payment (Continued) +- By AT ()

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Executive Board

As part of the Share Incentive Scheme of KION GROUP AG,
members of the Executive Board were granted virtual shares over a
fixed period of time (3 years). The remuneration component measured
over the long term of members of the Executive Board is on the
same basis of the share incentive scheme applicable to managers.
On 1 January 2017, i.e. the beginning of the period subject to
appraisal, 82,265 virtual shares (2016: 104,438 shares) with specified
fair value were granted to members of the Executive Committee
and apportioned in ways stipulated in the service contract of each
member of the Executive Committee.

The cash-settled share-based payment granted in 2014 is subject
to appraisal for business performance during a period ending 31
December 2016, and was settled in March 2017.

As at 30 June 2017, accumulated liabilities incurred from
the cash-settled share-based payments amounted to
EUR12,500,000.00, equivalent to RMB96,870,000.00 (31 December
2016: EUR7,600,000.00, equivalent to RMB55,531,680.00).
EURS8,000,000.00 belonged to the 2015 tranche, which was equivalent
to RMB61,996,800.00 (31 December 2016: EUR6,000,000.00,
equivalent to RMB43,840,800.00), and EUR3,600,000.00 belonged
to the 2016 tranche, which was equivalent to RMB27,898,560.00 (31
December 2016: EUR1,600,000.00, equivalent to RMB11,690,880.00).
EUR 1,000,000.00 belonged to the 2017 tranche, which was
equivalent to RMB7,749,600.00.

KION# 1T Z E SR E R B &

EBKION GROUP AGHEHE S Bt 8l 80 —
By TEZEGKEE—EEEREE
NOEF)HEETERRKRSD - MITEEEK
BRI 28 Fl B RENE
FHEITE—B - 201791 A1 BERERR
ERNE - MITEE KB R 782,265
MABREARBENERRKRG (20164 :
104,438(%) ' ZEBRBOHERBEUNTE
BEgXENREERTEENTRAE

2014F R FHNRSEENRD I HHE
BEEZEAP2016F12A31BEER - T2
R2017F3 AEMEN »

HE2017F6HA30R  LLBE2EEHE
RO ENEENBRAEBEESEAR
B 7T 12,500,000.00 @ #T & A R ¥
96,870,000.00 7t ( 2016 % 12 A 31
H : BUJTC7,600,000.00 @ 1A AR
55,531,680.00 7t ) ° [ 7T 8,000,000.00
BR2015F0E TMHHE 6 AR
# 61,996,800.00 7T ( 2016 & 12 A 31
H : BUJT6,000,000.00 @ 1A AR
43,840,800.00 7t ) - B 7T 3,600,000.00
BR2016EFHRTHE  TEARKE
27,898,560.00 7t ' (2016 4 12 A 31
H : BUJT 1,600,000.00 @ 1 & AR ¥
11,690,880.00 7z ) - EX 7£ 1,000,000.00
BR2017TEHRTHE e ARE
7,749,600.007T °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XII. Commitments and Contingencies
1. Significant commitments

Capital commitments contracted but B % 4718 & #4&
not provided for AN

2. Exposure to confirmation risks
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tri-party cooperation agreement with distributors and
endorsing bank. Distributors will deposit guarantee money of no
lower than 30% to the bank and apply for establishment of bank
acceptance bill for the purchase of products of Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Co., Ltd. according to the amount of credit facility provided
by the bank. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. assumes security
obligation in favour of the distributors for the difference between
amount of notes and guarantee money. As at 30 June 2017, open
position of outstanding acceptance bills was RMB3,374,751,170.00
(31 December 2016: RMB2,456,896,778.00). Further, pursuant
to the tri-party indemnity agreement entered into among Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., the distributors and the guarantors
of the distributors, the distributors shall indemnify Shaanxi Heavy-
duty Motor Co., Ltd. in respect of the aforesaid security obligation
for the said difference in amount or losses suffered, and their
guarantors shall be jointly liable for the same.

3. Business related to finance lease company

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a cooperation agreement with Shanzhong Finance
Leasing Co., Ltd.. It is agreed by and between the two parties that
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. shall provide finance lease
service to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. or its distributors.
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. shall guarantee repurchase of
physical assets upon presentation in respect of the leasee’s failure to
pay the instalment payments and interests under the finance lease.
As at 30 June 2017, risk exposure in respect of possible guarantee
for joint liabilities was RMB1,359,180,000.00 (31 December 2016:
RMB922,960,000.00).

PR 5 i I R (4)
201746 308 (A E#T)

T2 A& e R BR FIH

ERAHREER

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
201756 A30H 201612 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (g&EZ)

1,351,423,714.60 1,891,983,933.89

R 52O =R

RABZ FABIRAELTEHRA
RIELHE  ARBIT =A% =
FEERZ - SHEAMRITEATNR
MN30%MREFES - BIBERITHTH
—EEA%EE  PHERAMRITALE
ZHRBERRERTEERARE
o REBRRBARD R ALHE
REZRSERRBFSZEAEZBOR
IRFEMT - HZE2017F6A308 -
HMARIAHNEAREZHMOEAAR
#3,374,751,170.00 7t (2016 F 12
A318 : AR%2,456,896,778.00
To) o BN REBRREERAEHR
NE] > EHEBREHEANREANS
FREER - SHAEERAER R
BERARRENEZEERETNE
THEK  ERBARESEEREER
F e

HpEHEARABEMNE
%

RABZFRARRBER TEFHRA
RIERLEREAMAEARAAE]E
Bt EANTEILERERESR
RRIRRASATEHR R A SEL
HERERMEAERY RAERR
BEERARABMEMRENAMR G K
T EE RS S AR R A R
RYBEEE - BE20175F6 A30
B @%ETREBEKRMOBARE
1,359,180,000.00 7t (2016 & 12 A
318 : ARK#922,960,000.007T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XII. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 2= A& KA FIE ()

4. Guarantee

4., EREHE

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
201756 H30H 201612 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (gE=)

Loan guarantee B RER
Other guarantee E MR

484,303,502.40
= 31,755,352.80

629,824,239.60

484,303,502.40 661,579,592.40

XIII. Subsequent Events

Distribution of dividend for year 2016 and
capitalisation of reserve

On 8 June 2017, the Company’s 2016 profit distribution proposal was
considered and approved at the Company’s 2016 annual general meeting,
the first class meeting of the holders of A shares in 2017 and the first
class meeting of the holders of H shares in 2017. Based on the total share
capital of 3,998,619,278 shares as at 31 December 2016, the Company
distributed to all shareholders a cash dividend of RMB2.50 (including
tax) and issued 10 bonus shares (including tax), for every 10 shares held,
without any capitalisation of reserve. Distribution of the bonus shares was
completed during the period from the balance sheet date to the date on

which the issue of the financial statements was approved.

Distribution of interim dividend for year 2017

On 30 August 2017, under the authority granted by the shareholders
of the Company, the Board considered and approved the distribution
to all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB1.50 (including tax) for
every 10 shares held, based on the total share capital of the Company of

7,997,238,556 shares, without any capitalisation of reserve.

= EEARERHRFIHE

k32016 F EALF REERAE

201796 A8H + AAF2016F ERE
AFERE  2017FF—RARBREEH
2017F FE—RHBRBR RS HFZBIB2016
FEFBESBESER - ARFILA2016512A4
31THAREEHMERZA3,998,619,278/%
BEZ  NEERESI0ORRERSAF
2507 ( &) - RIRFXARKI0KR(ER) -
TEBAESEIERA ZFARNREE
BRERBEAMBREMLAEREB ZHED
IREETTE o

TKEE2017FE R HIATR
M2017F8HA30H - ARRIEZECRIE
REAGEE FERBBARAERKRSK
7,997,238 556 R AEH - MEERES
10RERBERSAFARKE1.50T(E/) -
TEHAESEIEIRA o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events

1.

Leases

As the lessor

Finance leases: As at 30 June 2017, the balance of unrealized
finance income is RMB583,405,387.20 (31 December 2016:
RMB557,698,816.80) and is apportioned to the leasing period using
effective interest rate method. Pursuant to the leasing contract
signed with the lessee, the minimum lease receivables under

non-cancellable leases are as follows:

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

T Ay T 2

1.

MEHESEREEA

Finance lease, as lessor

For fixed assets leased out under operating lease, refer to Note V.16.

As the lessee

Finance leases: As at 30 June 2017, the balance of unrecognised
finance costs is RMB924,682,710.08 (31 December 2016:
RMB829,320,316.34) and is apportioned to the leasing period using
effective interest rate method. Pursuant to the leasing contract
signed with the lessor, the minimum lease payables under non-

cancellable leases are as follows:

BMEMREFEREEA

Finance lease, as lessee

For fixed assets leased in under finance lease, refer to Note V.16.

6,448,651,399.20

12,818,629,297.28

HE

YEREME A

FhEME - R2017F 68308
AEAMEWNZNHERARARKE
583,405,387.207t (20164 12 A 31
A : AR%557,698,816.8070) ' %
AERMEREERAEHANS AR S
IO BIBEHEARAZITNEES
R - AR EN KA E KRS
N

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

20176 A30H 2016512 831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) &)

5,902,951,822.80

KEMEBEEEE 28M&ER -
16 °

YERAFME A

FEME - R2017F6 8308
AERAMEEANBREARARYE
924,682,710.087T (20164 12 A 31
H: AR#%829,320,316.347T) * ¥
FAE B A R AR & B & (8 B 3
To% - BEEEBAZITINHEES
A FOREEENSERENRE
R

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

20176 H30H 2016512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f&Ez)

11,679,297,238.34

REMABEEE  28MER -
16 °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

1.

Leases (Continued)

As the lessee (Continued)

Material operating lease: Pursuant to the leasing contract signed
with the lessor, the minimum lease payables under non-cancellable

leases are as follows:

Interim Report 2017 FHEAZRE
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T A PR B 0 ()
1. HE(E)
ERAEMEAE)
EAMERE : RBELEABITH
REAR  TAHHAEHRERE
T :

Minimum lease payments
REHEENRE
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
201766 H30H 20165128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (E&E%)

Operating lease, as lessee mEHEERAEA

2,683,269,765.35 2,747,051,769.72

Segment reporting

Operating segments

The Group organizes and manages its operating business in
accordance with the nature of business and provision of products
and services. Each operating segment of the Group is one operating
group, providing products and services with risks and rewards

different from those of other operating segments.

The details of operating segments are as follows:

(@  manufacturing and sale of diesel engines and related parts

(“Diesel engines”);

(b)  manufacturing and sale of automobiles and major automobile
components other than diesel engines (“Automobiles and

other major automobile components”);

(0 manufacturing and sale of other automobile components

("Other components”);

(d)  provision of import and export services (“Import & export

services”);

(e)  forklift trucks production, warehousing technology and
supply chain solution services (“Forklift trucks and supply

chain solution”).

2. “%ﬁ%

£«< AN _ng

AEENRERBREXFOHMEEL A
KPR e 2 qa M AR 75 9 AR A1 E

B REEMEEZLED MBI —EE
HEE  REHEEETANEMGLEZED

550 LB 3 RS 7 O 3 B A4 2 5926
) =R B A9 2 G FD AR TS ©

AT 8 & &0 B AE BB eE

(a) HENMHESHERABZTRN
(M5l

by E£EAHEERBEREBAREZ
(R EEEmE) ([TER
HihEB)FEZEMH])

(0 £EREEHEMIEZTAM
([EAMZEM])

(d) REEDBARB(ME L DR
%1

() XELEE AEBERMRHtEE
ORI RIRTS ([ XN R e g2
fRIRTTZER]) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

Management monitors the results of operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted total
profits. The adjusted total profits are measured consistently with
the Group’s total profits, except that finance expenses, investment
income, dividend income, gains from changes in fair value of
financial instruments as well as head office expenses are excluded

from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss for the current period, derivative instruments,
dividends receivable, interests receivable, available-for-sale financial
assets, long-term equity investments, goodwill, deferred tax
assets and other unallocated head office assets as these assets are

managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative instruments, borrowings,
income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
head office liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

Inter-segment transfers are transacted with reference to the prices

used in the transactions carried out with third parties.

I 2% BT (4
201746 308 (A E#T)

T At BT
2.

(%)

7 EHE (F])

BE D)
EREHREEERNTELENR
WAW  HELBETHEERRS
PIRITEIR - HHMER - UBENH
A ARUETIE - ZIFERY
MERELTREENEE  BTE
WEE B - RAWE - RFIMA -
SBMIARRMERHYSEUARSS
BRZI  ZiEERARENEEHE
— B -

DHEETBEALAABEAEZELE
& H

P AZHESNEEMRE -
PTET R - WA - BEFE - 7T
{ﬁ\ﬁﬂjﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁ RHRERE &

B ORTEMBHEEMEM RSB
BBEE RACREEEEHAALR
SEHE—FIE -

DHABIBENTELR AR &

RFEH - BEMBHABEAKREM
ADEMAINEE REERELR
BEAAEESR—FRE -

DERENEBEE  2RAE=T7E
IR SZARAHERGE °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued)
Operating segments (Continued)

2.

(Unaudited)

(FEER)

January to June 2017 20175168

Seqment revenue: APUA -

Sale to extemal customers NozPEE
Inter-segment sale AHHEE

Tota it

Adustment: g

Elimination of inter-segment sale BEADEEE
Revenue WA

Seqment results pEES

Adustment g

Eimination of inter-segment results BEsHMEE
Interest income HEMA

Dividend income and unallocated income &M A RA S B
Corporate and other unallocated expenses £ RE LA RREL
Finance expenses BB

Profit before tax HATE

Diesel engines

3L

14,043,483,588.68
6,410,150,667.23

20,453,634,255.91

2,877,280,998.80

Automobiles

and other major

automobile
components
RERAM
TEREEHH

28,440,049,250.93
531,039.20

28,440,580,290.13

764,763,274.91
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B 5 2 I R (48)
2017664308 (A B¥T)

1 At B B0 ()
2. DE®wE(E)
rEyE(8)

Forklift
trucks and
Other Import & supply chain
components export services solution
XERfHER

B ELARE BAnE

1,187,866,585.93
625,155,077.86

68,154,705.47  28,573,711,459.10  72,313,265,590.11
11,015,386.80 - T,046,852,171.09

1,813,021,663.79 79,170,092.27  28,573,711,459.10  79,360,117,761.20

(7,046,852,171.09)
12,313,265,590.11

74915,166.52 (14201302.29)  1,166,791,446.87  43869,549,584.81
(308,147,046.12)
470,373,560.53
263,160,705.90
(72,550,181.24)

(839,090,031.34)

4,383,296,592.54
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (A ET)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) 0 H Al B S (4)
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. DEHE (&)
Operating segments (Continued) LEDEB(EE)

Automobiles Forklift
and other major trucks and
automobile Other Import & supply chain
(Unaudited) Diesel engines components components export services solution Total
REREM NER{ESE
(FEER) e TEREEMM Hfy2He £ 0% BAER A
30 June 2017 2017564308
Segment assets AHEE 36,547,103,561.73  30,057,855,383.79  18,336,033916.45 854478057072  74,272,81492838 167,758,588,361.07
Adjustment: Fi
Elimination of inter-segment assets BENIHEE (21,585,608,791.97)
Comorate and other unallocated assets ~ PEREMANTEE 34,879,288,596.06
Total assets 4%E 181,052,268,165.16
Seqment liabilities HHEE 8351745932394 2785501732335 9478, 774517.14  1,094275800.73  33,784,603,777.20  95,730,130,742.36
Adjustment; AR
Elmination of inter-segment iabiities ~ AHATHEE (13,298,189,773.94)
Corporate and other unallocated liabiities A EREMAPFERE 50,649,325,868.76
Total liabilties ek 133,081,266,837.18
January o June 2017 2017%1-67
Other seqment information: EAPEH:
Share of profit and los from: EETIRAHEREE
Gain/loss) from ssociates and BElREhs
jointly controlled enterprises W&/ (B%) 24,288,840.34 545,131.82 - 7358970 9589683100 120,804,39287
Reversalioss)of impairment of inventories 7 & BE R /(18%) (14516873.61)  (114,668,354.07) 2,695,184.63 - (64608,11657)  (171,098,15962)
Reversal/loss) of impairment of accounts  FEVRBR 3K R £ o e B 2t
receivable and other receivables HEER /(BX) (115,520,10450)  (159,547,806.87) (2,808,532.59) 39,420.09 (32,005,955.60)  (309,842,979.47)
Reversallloss) of impairment of FRBDEERE
non-current assets #0/(1B%) (9,810,355.64) (90,625,706.36) - (371,69,846.38)  (472,132,908.38)
Depreciation and amortization EREE (399.993,844.56)  (472,378,641.86)  (115920,796.17) (12,864471.22)  (2,663,014,772.25)  (3,664,172,526.00)
Gainfloss)from disposal of foed assets ~ EFBEREFIE/(BX) 1,243542.14 (868,579.01)  (4450,864.70) 1,403,360.67 (2,672,540.90)
Gain from disposal of intangbleassets B EEREFE - - - - -
Investment n assodiates and REERAERENEE
jointly controlled enterprises 659,350,842.13 48384321983 - 483169597 50925534282 2,095,281,160.35

Capital expenditure B (20094233132)  (297495771.98)  (148,299,509.14) (259.914.11)  (3,071,329,096.50)  (3,718,326,623.05)
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) 0 At H 22 R (4H)
2. Segment Reporting (Continued) 2. DEHmE(E)
Operating segments (Continued) rEnE(8E)
Automobiles Forklit
and other major trucks and
(Unaudited) automobile Other Import & supply chain
(Restated) Diesel engines components components export senvices solution Total
(7&5%) REREM NER{EE
(#E]) Yhw TERERIE EfSHE EHORE AR CH)
January to June 2016 201651-68
Seqment revenue: APUA
Sale to exernal customers heEPHE 836776764755 1445730939417 100842228114 5631969408 1867155675093 42,561,385,767.87
Inter-segment sale HHREE 2,657,096,485.71 5213.68 554,480,616.37 16,109,740.08 - 322769205584
Total At 1102486413326 1445731460785 1,562,902,897 51 7243943416 18,671556,75093  45,789,077,823.11
Adjustment: Fi
Elimination of inter-segment sale BEpdmEE (3,227,692,055.84)
Revenue 0N 4),561,385,767.87
Seqment results A%k 120637654055 (103392,33131) 23,169,22052 (37.1323%.69 88788144533 1976,902,478.40
Adjustment: F
Elimination of nter-segment results BEABREE (87,020,269.01)
Interest income HleA 405,684,996.75
Dividend income and unallocated income R EMARK AR MR 342,969,679.05
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ~ PERAHAAEFR (41,865,290.89)
Finance expenses B1TEE A (493,842,173.64)

Profit before tax RatE 2,102,829,420.66
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)
Segment Reporting (Continued)
Operating segments (Continued)

2.

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
2017464308 (A RET)
T~ At B 2 0 ()

2. 7EEHE (&)

rEDE(E)

Automobiles Forklif
and other major trucks and
automobile Other Import & supply chain
(Audited) Diesel engines components components export services solution Total
AEREf NE Rt
(57 Ehg FEREREE EfSHE EHORR LYES i
31 December 2016 2016E12731A
Segment assets HEE 28992,337,16854 2485988199244 15,104,527870.09 614797862490  71,201,290,82297  146,306,016,478.94
Adjustment: HE
Elimination of inter-segmen assets EEPUREE (13,956,301,568.13)
Corporate and other unallocated assets PERERANREE 31,640,965,618.13
Total assets BLE 163,990,680,528.94
Seqment liabilties AHaE 16,111,956.900.41  21,787,738,673.45  7,355,196,028.18 48729807706 31,295857,375.20  77,038,047,06030
Adjustment: gE:
Elimination of inter-segment liabliies EErUmEaR (9,012,678 315.46)
Corporate and other unallocated liabiliies A EREHASESE 51,403,641,924.88
Total liabilties Bak 119,429,010,669.72
(Unaudited)
(Restated)
(R&2H)
(=i
January to June 2016 201651-68
Other segment information: HpirEs
Share of proft and loss from: EETSIRAMERER :
Gain/{oss) from associates and ey A“ﬁ%
jointly controlled enterprises Wi/ (% 18,250,618.86 (20,486,009.11) - 50,905.80 70,794,133.01 68,609,558.50
Loss of impairment of inventories &Y Hgﬁ% (10575,980.53)  (106,237,432.60) (1,129,620.05) = (57,114,893.70) (175,057,926.89)
Reversal(loss) of impairment of accounts e ZN R A o e 2y
receivable and other receivables EEE/(EX) (47,385,512.40) (80,159,807.71) (2992,360.38) 78,042.07 (42,739433.43) (173,199,071.85)
Depreciation and amortization TEREH (430561,49793)  (501,807,126.33) (95,935,507.75) (12636,21991)  (1,816311,466.72)  (2,857,251,818.64)
(ain/oss) from disposal of fieed assets BrEERENS/(BX) TAT701.41 1492,401.69 (205,225.81) - (3226373) 5,237,943.50
(ain from disposal of intangible assets BYRERENG = - - - - -
Investment in associates and REERALLEN
jointly controlled enterprises & 544,729,370.86 474716,865.91 - 35,555,554.92 43116361576 1,486,165,407.45
Capital expenditure BARR (285457,79292)  (359,940,231.83)  (183,202,799.87) (2,039,780.78)  (2,710,908,115.60)  (3,541,548,722.00)




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment Reporting (Continued)
Group information
Information about products and services

Revenue from external transactions
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4 ﬁﬂﬁi%%ﬁ(%ﬁ)
DEBERE (4&)
SEBER
EmmME 15
HINZHWA

January-June 2017

January-June 2016

2017%1-6 8 2016 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
(Restated)

(g s&E3)

Complete vehicles and key components 28 [ B8 Z 2 31,374,075,026.15 16,779,571,782.47
Non-automobile engines IR A B 5,610,440,235.25 2,571,493,820.05
Other non-major automobile components £ 3F & 2 /58 F 2 14+ 4,941,517,806.37 3,309,396,064.50
Forklift trucks and supply chain solution X E8 K {H f& §# % R 75 = 28,056,760,799.34 18,155,321,109.68
Others Hi 2,330,471,723.00 1,745,602,991.17
72,313,265,590.11 42,561,385,767.87
Geographic information I 5 B

Revenue from external transactions HINZ HHA
January-June 2017 January-June 2016
2017%1-6 8 20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&ER) (REFEZ)
(Restated)
(ge&E)
Mainland China A B KB P PR GEE EE | 22,399,249,998.88
Other countries and regions H b B R A4 [@ S0k CESvER | 20,162,135,768.99

72,313,265,590.11

42,561,385,767.87

Revenue from external transactions is attributable to the areas

where customers are located.

HIRXZGBARBREF GRS -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)
2. Segment Reporting (Continued)
Group information (Continued)
Geographic information (Continued)

Total non-current assets

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

T ﬁf@ig$lﬁ(%ﬁ)
D EBERE (4])
SEER(E)
W= 8 (&)
ERBEELTE

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6H30H 201612 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (§&ER)

Mainland China B KB
Other countries and regions H B R

17,196,175,663.87 17,835,356,526.53
62,176,913,604.13 61,168,233,182.85

79,373,089,268.00 79,003,589,709.38

Non-current assets are attributable to the areas where the assets

are located, excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue of RMB2,811,205,577.70 (January to June 2016:
RMB1,412,115,993.95) was derived from sales by Diesel engines
segment and Automobiles and other major automobile components
segment to a single customer, including sales to a group of entities

which is known to be under common control by that customer.

#‘};ﬁbﬁ?gﬂ% REEBEEMER -
BREBEENREMSHEE

FEEFFE
EEWAARY2811,205,577.70
gt (2016 F 16 A : AR
1,412,115,993.95 7T ) 2R & 1A 4 m 1
DEMTBEREMEZTEZE G S
HHE-—BEAFF(AEEARZE
PESTHMAEE)BKA -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

3.

Comparative Figures

On 26 September 2016, the Company entered into an agreement
with Weichai Group Holdings Limited to acquire the 100%
equity interest in Weichai (Weifang) Medium-duty Diesel Engine
Co., Ltd.for a cash consideration of RMB252.86 million. Weichai
(Weifang) Medium-duty Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of
Weichai Group Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. As the combining parties are under common control of
Weichai Group Holdings Limited before and after the transaction
and such control is not temporary, the combination is considered a
business combination under common control. The consideration of
RMB252.86 million was paid on 18 October 2016 and the control
was transferred to the Company. Accordingly, since 1 November
2016, the Company included Weichai (Weifang) Medium-duty
Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. into the consolidated financial statements
of the Company. Pursuant to the requirements regarding business
combination under common control under “Accounting Standard
for Business Enterprises No. 20 — Business Combination” ({1
¥ e ERIZE205 — ¥ AHGE)), it has been accounted for as
if it had been consolidated as at the beginning of the period
with retrospective adjustment for opening financial statements

informations.
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3.

t B B

20169 H26H « AN A B e iR
SEERARETHBBEARSARE
25,286 8 JT W g (D ) B AU &
AR A AI100% A% HE - 4 L6 (O
P) R AL B R AR RAR AR
PR R SR ERBR AN TF
DA AREHAIBREHETHTHS
Loy R E AR A ARG Bz
WIEE M - RS OB R — 1 &l
THEESH - AARZUBEBAR
#25,2868 TN 2016F10818A %
R TR RERERAR - Bt
RARA2016F11 A1 B EGHL
G ) P RIS ER QA RIMAAE B
HEEE URB(REGHEE
2055 —REAS TR ERE—ZHT
TESHNERBRBIEHAS G
EEEIT TRIE - BEEH T BV
7% o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements

1.

Cash and cash equivalents

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

IEAVAEES JUp, £ SIS

1. E¥ES

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
201756 H30H 201612 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (§&ER)

Cash at bank EFRE
Bank deposits RITIF R
Other cash equivalents HthEH¥ES

169,839.72 260,232.34
9,862,223,166.66 9,744,015,449.37
33,815,181.20 15,182,560.49

9,896,208,187.58 9,759,458,242.20

As at 30 June 2017, the other cash and cash equivalents of the
Company included an amount of RMB33,815,181.20 (31 December
2016: RMB15,182,560.49), which is used in letter of guarantee and
security monies for special accounts such as bank acceptance bills

and letter of credit.

Notes receivable

MW2017F6A30H » ARAIEME
&P BEEARM33,815,181.20
(2016 F 12 A31H : AR
15,182,560.49 7T ) FA AR B A K2 9%
BIRTARLEE ERAESEELMEH#
FHRZED °

2. EREE

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
201756 HA30H 2016512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

Bank acceptance bills RITAGER

19,095,874,137.46 14,623,284,642.83

Among which, notes receivable that were pledged are as follows:

Hep DERWEREENT :

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
201756 H30H 201612 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (R&ER)

Bank acceptance bills HRITHH (SR

5,850,353,497.26 5,683,731,002.77
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 3= 2 B % it % 6 H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (78)
2. Notes receivable (Continued) 2. EWEE(E)

Notes receivable that were endorsed but no yet expired as at the
balance sheet date are as follows:

Bank acceptance bills RITERNES

As at 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group had not
transferred any notes into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure
in performance.

Accounts receivable

The Company trades with its customers primarily on credit terms
and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new
customers. Credit period is generally one to six months. Accounts
receivable is non-interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on the invoice date is
presented as follows:

EEERTEEEAERAMAIEN
FEREENT -

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017566 H30H 201612 HA31H
Derecognition Derecognition
RILTER AR
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&EZ)

292,447,623.14 560,230,360.23

201796 A30B M2016412 A31
B ARRIERHEZEAENBHME
ZgEAEINRTNER -

FE W R K
AAREEFMNE B HEHAEAR
HHE  A—REFHEFENHL
RSB RTRETT - BRI
A1-6{AA - EURRL TS -

REREAE - BRERERS 0
T

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
20176 B30H 2016912 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RREX) (TE%)
Within 3 months 31E A AR 3,471,507,513.70 745,736,681.61
3 to 6 months 3E A =6EA 225,415,770.61 157,688,734.51
6 months to 1 year S EEENE:E 282,757,234.30 176,066,775.12
1 to 2 years 165825 39,526,827.79 50,083,401.42
2 to 3 years 2FEFE3F 29,276,340.21 10,998,096.14
Over 3 years 3FLA E 5,238,969.18 3,683,150.03

4,053,722,655.79 1,144,256,838.83
B MR R

Less: provision for bad debt in

respect of accounts receivable 200,902,995.55 59,650,280.52

3,852,819,660.24 1,084,606,558.31
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017F6H30H (A ET)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /A &) 3= % B % # £ 0H H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3. BEWERM(E)
Changes in provision for bad debt for accounts receivable are EUEBRFRBREENE ST -

presented as follows:

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6H30H 2016912 831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&%)
Opening balance B, FEXHE 59,650,280.52 35,230,830.42
Provision for the period/ year AHFEHR 141,292,315.02 24,419,450.10
Decrease during the period/ year: NEFR A

Write-off & g (39,599.99) =

Closing balance B FEREAEE 200,902,995.55 59,650,280.52

30 June 2017
201796 H30H

Gross carrying Provision
(Unaudited) amount  Proportion for bad debt  Percentage
(RRER) k| 4] BIRER =T 12 b 4l
(%) (%)

Individually significant items EEIE & 88 X

for which provision for I B8 1B ET 4
bad debt is recognized AR
separately

ltems for which provision %= AR
for bad debt is recognized  #H& FHRERR
by groups with distinctive A
credit risk characteristic 4,047,720,037.95 194,900,377.71

Not individually significant ~ BEJE & %8 8 T~
items for which provision EABEEIR
for bad debt is recognized ~ FHiREIR M
separately 6,002,617.84 . 6,002,617.84

4,053,722,655.79 200,902,995.55
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)

3.

Accounts receivable (Continued)
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T2 ) BB B R I H Rk

(%)
3. BUWERMR(ER)

31 December 2016
20165%12A31H

Gross carrying Provision
(Audited) amount Proportion for bad debt Percentage
(BEZ) G| il AR ST LA
(%) (%)
Individually significant items ~ EBEIE & REE A
for which provision for bad NIAEREE
debt is recognized separately R - - - -
ltems for which provision 1z AR RS E
for bad debt is recognized HAEFHRER
by groups with distinctive i}
credit risk characteristics 1,144,256,838.83 100.00 59,650,280.52 5.21
Not individually significant BHIRSREHEDT
items for which provision EABEIR
for bad debt is recognized SRR ERE
separately - - - -
1,144,256,838.83 100.00 59,650,280.52 5.21

The Company’s accounts receivable for which bad debts are

provided for using aging analysis are presented as follows:

(Unaudited)

(RIEER)

Within 1 year 1E R
1-2 years 1524
2-3 years 2E 34
3-4 years 3-44F
4-5 years 4-5%
Over 5 years S5E

Gross carrying

amount

=8

3,977,520,430.80
39,376,727.79
29,216,940.21
1,605,939.15

4,047,720,037.95

ARBRAKE DRI R ER
B MR FRIE R AT

30 June 2017
201796 H30H

Proportion
L il
(%)

98.27
0.97
0.72
0.04

Provision
for bad debt

Percentage
FHR LBl
(%)

186,043,304.37
3,280,935.44
4,773,168.33
802,969.57

4.68
8.33
16.34
50.00

194,900,377.71
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)
3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

1 ‘ﬁﬂﬁ)igﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ H kR
i<}

FEW AR X (4R)

31 December 2016
2016912 831H

Gross carrying Provision

(Audited) amount Proportion for bad debt Percentage
(&) TR ¢l EIREE FHEELL DI
(%) (%)

Within 1 year 1F A 1,079,492,191.24 94.34 50,212,635.64 4.65
1-2 years 18224 50,083,401.42 4.38 3,834,807.24 7.66
2-3 years 2E3F 10,998,096.14 0.96 2,001,937.61 18.20
3-4 years 3E44F 164,500.00 0.01 82,250.00 50.00
Over 4 years 4F A E 3,518,650.03 0.31 3,518,650.03 100.00
1,144,256,838.83 100.00 59,650,280.52 5.21

As at 30 June 2017, the top five balances in respect of accounts
receivable had a total closing balance of RMB2,480,149,107.77 (31
December 2016: RMB846,384,667.82), accounting for 61.18%
(31 December 2016: 73.97%) of the total of closing balance of

accounts receivable. The closing balance in respect of bad debt
provided for the top five amounted to RMB124,007,455.39 (31
December 2016: RMB46,059,178.14).

As at 30 June 2017, no accounts receivable (31 December 2016:

Nil) was pledged for securing bank borrowings of the Company.

M2017F6 A30H © B AEH
BUREFNEBARBREETAARE
2,480,149,107.77 7t ( 2016 F 12
A31H : AR®846,384,667.82
L) MR RGRE S G E
Bt 2 61.18% (20166 12 A 31
H :73.97% ) ' %Al A & i EE
ROZEREEHRBERARE
124,007,455.397T (2016412 A 31
H: AR#46,059,178.147T) °

201756 A30H - ARQFHEREIR
BRFN(2016F12A31H + &)EHHA
RIS IRITERNER
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
4. Other receivables
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(%)

T2 ) BB B R I H Rk

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:

4.

Within 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years
Over 3 years

1F LA
15824
2E3F
3FE F

Less: Provision for bad debts
in respect of other receivables

B B R W IR AR E

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables

are as follows:

Opening balance B FHE

Provision for the period/year NERFEHR

Decrease during the period/year: NE R
Reversal g

Closing balance B FRHBE

Individually significant items for ~~ EESBEAYL 2B
which provision for bad debt s SRR ER
recognized separately

Items for which provision forbad ~ RERERELAA
debt is recognized by groups with  FHEZERERE
distinctive credit risk characteristic

Not individually significant items for ~ EBSEHREX
which provision for bad debt is EEEHREE
recognized separately Ef

30 June 2017
201756A30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Provision for
bad debt
BRER

Gross carrying
amount

]

Proportion
Lo fl
(%)

1,025,582,611.65 24,016,457.21

480,000.00

480,000.00

1,026,062,611.65 24,496,451.21

Percentage
RIS
(%)

1,000,891,232.73

1,026,062,611.65

1,001,566,154.38

H fth & WK
EA R AT

30 June 2017

31 December 2016

2017%6H30H 2016512 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

1,490,409,553.36
2,325,674.54 -

22,845,704.38 22,855,052.76

1,513,264,606.12

24,496,457.27 24,200,665.63

1,489,063,940.49

Hip U SIERERNESINT ¢

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

20176 A30H 20164 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&ER) (')

24,200,665.63

37,186,694.85
295,791.64 -

= (12,986,029.22)

24,496,457.27 24,200,665.63

31 December 2016

20165124318
(Audited)
(#8%%)
Gross carrying Provision for
amount  Proportion bad debt  Percentage
| sl BRER  AHRUA
(%) (%)
1,513,264,606.12 100.00 24,200,665.63 1.60
1,513,264,606.12 100.00 24,200,665.63
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)

4. Other receivables (Continued)

The Company’s other receivables for which bad debts are provided

for using aging analysis are presented as follow:

Within 1 year [EPL
1-2 years 182%
2-3 years 1E3F
3-4 years 354F
45 years 4E5F
Over 5 years SENE
Total As

Gross carrying
amount

£

1,000,891,232.73
2,325,674.54

900.00
22,364,804.38

1,025,582,611.65

30 June 2017
2017%6A30A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Proportion
tfl
(%)

97.59
023

0.00

Other receivables are categorized by nature are as follows:

Provision for
bad debt
BRER

1,302,081.71
343,851.18

720.00
22,364,804.38

24,016,457.21

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

1 %\zgigﬁﬁﬁiﬁiéiﬁ H kR
4. EAREWR (&)

Percentage
RIS
(%)

0.13
15.00

Advance to subsidiaries

Corporate lending and payment
on behalf

Employee advance

Others

FREEBR

Eikn

Hit

EEEERRANR

RRARIRARKER D

IRt AR

HE A UGB RN T

31 December 2016
20165124318

(Audited)
(#2%)
Gross carrying Provision for
amount  Proportion baddebt  Percentage
8 ] BRERE  GHRUA
(%) (%)
1,490,409,553.36 98.49 1,345,792.87 0.09
900.00 0.00 720.00 80.00
22,854,152.76 1.51 22,854,152.76 100.00
1,513,264,606.12 10000 24,200,665.63 1.60
Hih B FIRME SN T ¢

30 June 2017
201756 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

31 December 2016
201612 A31H
(Audited)
(gER)

985,537,931.06

16,001,555.36
3,137,391.04
21,385,734.19

1,466,779,138.01

22,242,510.21
7,473,186.37
16,769,771.53

1,026,062,611.65

1,513,264,606.12
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
Other receivables (Continued)

As at 30 June 2017, the top 5 other receivables are presented as

4,

follows:

(Unaudited)

(REER)

Weichai Power (Weifang)
Casting Co., Ltd.
B N (M) B3R

ARAF

Hangzhou Hongyuan

Machinery Manufacturing

Co., Ltd.

M BB R A

Xinjiang Machinery Equipment
Import & Export Co., Ltd.
R MREELOBRAR

Zhuzhou Torch Machinery
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
TR A B M 2L

AREERA

Employee advance

wRE

Closing balance

MR

979,296,976.21

9,203,387.08

6,350,399.53

6,240,954.85

3,137,391.04

1,004,229,108.71

Percentage of

total other
receivables
fhE At
[LEN 3]
A E
01

(%)

95.44
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4

Nature

Advance to
subsidiaries
FAREER

Corporate
lending and
payment
on behalf

LEEERK
KA

Corporate

lending and

payment

on behalf
LEEERK

KA
Advance to

subsidiaries
FAREEX

Employee
advance

ik

T %\ﬁ; ERM B HRRIEH iR

)

HEWR(E)
MN2017FE6A300 » HihfEl &5
RIREBWT :

Closing balance of
bad debts

provision

iRk

Within 1 year
15 5R

Over 5 years 9,203,387.08

SENRE

Over 5 years 6,350,399.53

SENRE

Over 5 years 6,240,954.85

SEME

Within 1 year 156,869.55

15 LA

21,951,611.01
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)
XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 32 2 B % it 2 6 H 51 B
Statements (Continued)
4. Other receivables (Continued) =N A AE D
As at 31 December 2016, the top 5 other receivables are presented R2016412 8318 « Hi el 4
as follows: WA LT -
Percentage of Closing balance of
total other bad debts
(Audited) Closing balance receivables Age provision
A
FEU TR ERTE
CHES BRERE
(f&z=t) FRHE )adfl! frife FREE
(%)
Weichai Power (Weifang) 1,456,237,698.72 96.23 Within 1 year =
Casting Co., Ltd. 1ELR
HEEE) ) () B8
BRAF
Hangzhou Hongyuan 9,203,387.08 0.61 Over 5 years 9,203,387.08
Machinery S E
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
TN R 2 )
Xinjiang Machinery 6,350,399.53 042 Over 5 years 6,350,399.53
Equipment Import SEE
& Export Co., Ltd.
MERRREELD
ARAE
Zhuzhou Torch Machinery 6,240,954.85 0.41 Over 5 years 6,240,954.85
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. SENE
RN A B BE
AREMERA
Dongfeng Motor Company 2,922,000.00 0.19 Within 1 year 146,100.00
Limited Equipment TFEAR
Manufactory
REAEERAE
RIBEUER
1,480,954,440.18 97.86 21,940,841.46
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /A &) 3= % B % # £ 0H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (7
5. Inventories 5. F&

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6A30H 2016F12A318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEHK) (BF%)
Gross carrying Provision for Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount  decline in value amount amount decline in value amount
RERE BEEE REEE RERE BEEE REEE
Raw materials FHH 390,589,373.58 4,629,463.39 385,959,910.19 317,018,219.46 1,151,913.34 315,866,306.12
Finished goods ERfH 919,627,107.86 33,179,797.64 CRIEyERPPAY  1,352,682,003.87 35,795,952.09  1,316,886,051.78
OEM materials EHEMINE 12,072,309.09 12,072,309.09 13,003,580.94 - 13,003,580.94
Materials in transit EEME 9,541,745.57 9,541,745.57 7,407,241.70 - 7,407,241.70
Self-made semi-finished BRLERREER
goods and work in progress 45,879,796.26 123,157.55 45,756,638.71 94,456,498.14 - 94,456,498.14
Turnover materials FEM# - - - 958,082.44 - 958,082.44
1,377,710,332.36 37,932,418.58  1,339,777,913.78 | ERNERRYEAVIEE) 36,947,865.43  1,748,577,761.12
The changes in provision for decline in value of inventories are as FTEREERZSHOT -
follows:
January to June 2017 20174 1-6 H

Decrease during the period

FEEY
Opening Charge during Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period Reversal Write-off balance
(REEK) LERIE S RHHR e L b BRH
Raw materials BiH 1,151,913.34 3,477,550.05 - - 4,629,463.39
Self-made semi-finished ~ EZ¥MAREER - 123,157.55 - - 123,157.55
goods and work in
progress
Finished goods Efm 35,795,952.08 - (2,616,154.44) 33,179,797.64
36,947,865.42 3,600,707.60 (2,616,154.44) 37,932,418.58
2016 20164
Decrease during the year
RERD
Charge during Closing
(Audited) Opening balance the year Reversal Write-off balance
(8E%) B2 REGE £0 &3 ERY
Raw materials EE 2,918,947.50 287,580.94 = (2,054,615.10) 1,151,913.34
Finished goods ERm 36,415.42 38,228,568.83 - (2,469,032.17) 35,795,952.08
2,955,362.92 38,516,149.77 - (4,523,647.27) 36,947,865.42
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RS ik R B 5 (48
201746 H30H (A RHET)
XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +# /&) 3= B % # £ H H 5
Statements (Continued) (%)
6. Available-for-sale financial assets 6. AHHEELRMEE
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6A30H 20165128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEK) (B5%)
Gross carrying Provision for Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount impairment amount amount impairment amount
RESE HEER FEEE REHE FfEEE REEE
Available-for-sale equity EHERETIE
instruments
At fair value BAREENE 227,200,000.00 227,200,000.00 247,200,000.00 - 247,200,000.00
At cost BRAGE 152,748,025.00  (121,068,025.00) 31,680,000.00 152,748,025.00 (121,068,025.00) 31,680,000.00
379,948,025.00  (121,068,025.00)  258,880,000.00 399,948,025.00 (121,068,025.00) 278,880,000.00
Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value: KMAREBEEFENTHREESHE
=
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
201756 A30H 2016512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEX) (fE®|HZ)
Cost of equity instruments BETEKAK 194,000,000.00 194,000,000.00
Fair value changes accrued to other 2Tt AR MR A WK
comprehensive income NEBEED 33,200,000.00 53,200,000.00
Fair value ANRBE 227,200,000.00

247,200,000.00
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6. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets at cost:

30 June 2017

(Unaudited)
(®B%H)

Foton Heavy-duty Machinery Co,, Ltd.

Zhuzhou Gear Company Limited
Easter Life Insurance Co, Ltd.

New Century Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.

RAEVBRARD
BRAR
HERRNERLT
RIABRBERLA
it eBEg
BRAR

Opening
balance

H6E

30,000,000.00
1,680,000.00
60,000,000.00

61,068,025.00

152,748,025.00

31 December 2016

(Gross carrying amount

Increase

during

the period
Am

REGE

Decrease  Adjustment for

during exchange
differences

EXZHHE

the period
RS

Closing Opening
balance

BGE

balance

HRBE

30,000,000.00 =
1,680,000.00 -
60,000,000.00  60,000,000.00

61,068,025.00  61,068,025.00

152,748,025.00  121,068,025.00

T ﬁgﬂ)f%ﬁi%‘%ﬁ%lﬁ H

IHEESRMEE (&)
DRA RN AT HEESBARE -

201796 A30H

Provision for impairment

REEE

Increase
during
the period
e

201612 A31H

Decrease
during
the period
L)

Closing
balance

BRHE

60,000,000.00

61,068,025.00

121,068,025.00

Percentage of
shareholding
RIEH

(%)

Cash dividend
for the
period

AHREAA

(Gross carrying amount Provision for impairment
BEAE HEER
Increase Decrease  Adjustment for Increase Decrease Cash dividend
Opening during during the exchange Closing Opening during the during the Closing ~ Percentage of for the
(Audited) balance the period period differences balance balance period period balance shareholding period
(£3%) Eik)E A TRy  EXZESE BRBE HgE TEEN THRY BReE RRLE  FEREUH
(%)
Foton Heawy-duty Machinery Co, Ltd. ~ BREREHKH
BRAR 30,000,000.00 - - - 30,000,000.00 - - - - 4.66 -
Zhuzhou Gear Company Limited KHESRHERAT  1,680,000.00 - - - 1,680,000.00 - - - - 245 -
Eastern Life Insurence Co, Lid. RAABRBERLA  60,000,000.00 - - - 60,000,000.00  60,000,000.00 - - 60,000,000.00 750 -
New Century Finance Leasing Co,, Ltd, ~ ¥tH24 BEE
BRAR 61,068,025.00 - - - 61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00 - - 61,068,025.00 1.2 -

152,748,025.00

152,748,025.00 121,068,025.00

121,068,025.00

251
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 114 &) = % i % # R 16 H 51

Statements (Continued)

7. Long-term equity investments

»

Non-listed investment under cost method
Non-listed investment under equity
method

7. REBRERE
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
201786 A30H 2016512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
JEETIRE K AE 10,939,261,153.11 10,539,261,153.11
JE LR EERA

659,350,842.13 612,503,306.14

Less: Provision for impairment of
long-term equity investment

o REREREREER

11,598,611,995.24 11,151,764,459.25

11,598,611,995.24

11,151,764,459.25

As at 30 June 2017, the breakdown of long-term equity investments

under cost method was as follows:

(Unaudited)

(REER)

Weichal Power (Hong Kong) EEHN (R BRER
International Development Co,, Ltd. B2

Shaani Heavy-duty Motor Co, td ~ RAEXSEFRAR

Shaanii Fast Gear Co, Ltd. REZTRERERERAR

Weichai (Chongaing) Automotive % (EF ) iEARAT
Co,, Ltd.

Thuzhou Gear o, Ltd W EREREELRA

Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting 448071 (47 B
Co., Ltd. BRAR

Weichai Power (Shanghai) By LE)RREE
Technology Development Co,, ltd. ~ BRAR

Weichai Power (Bejing) International #4871 (3t %) B & B
Resource Investment Co., Ltd. RENT

Weichai America Corp. Weichai America Corp.

Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co,, Ltd. — BRABAER

BREEAR

Weichai (Weifang) Medium-duty b 210 plabibgi):
Diesel Engine Co, Ltd. BRAR

Weichai Power (Chongging) #5892 RTLR
Western Development Co., Ltd. ARAA

Weichai (Weifang) After-sales BE(E5 )RR RE
Market Service Co,, Ltd. ARAR

Weichal Power (Qingzhou) Drive #5280 (EN)BERE
Control Technology Co,, Ltd. BRAR

Opening
balance

68

2,087,009,782.12

1,992,116,000.85
1,082,558,680.59
1,627,410,000.00

532,334,743.21
460,150,000.00

490,000,000.00

300,000,000.00

290,338,047.28
245,574,858.40

2471247543

240,000,000.00

162,831,780.81

150,000,000.00

MN2017FE6 308 » RAE R B #
ERMANT

Changes during the period
428

Distribution of
cash dividend

HASRA

Increase in  Closing carrying Closing provision
for impairment

amount

BAREEE AREERR

investments

BNRE

Other decrease

Hfpd

Other increase

HfbEm

2,087,069,782.12
1,992,116,000.85

- 1,082,558,680.59
337,320,000.00 1,964,730,000.00

532,334,743.21
460,150,000.00

490,000,000.00
300,000,000.00 99,600.03

290,338,047.28
245,574,858.40
2411247543 66,877,954.35
62,680,000.00  302,680,000.00
162,831,780.81 147,473,925.17

150,000,000.00
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Statements (Continued) (%)
7. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 7. RERERE(E)
As at 30 June 2017, the breakdown of long-term equity investments W2017FE6 308 » RAE R B #E
under cost method was as follows: (Continued) ERMBIT - (&)
Changes during the period
2548
Opening Increase in -~ Closing carrying Closing provision  Distribution of
(Unaudited) balance  Otherincrease  Other decrease investments amount  forimpairment  cash dividend
(REEH) HI8E AfbsEm HtbHD ERE HAREEE BANERE  BRAERA
Zhuzhou Torch Machinery TR R EE 130,898,993.14 130,898,993.14
Manufacturing Co,, Ltd. BREFAT
Weichai Power (Weifang) BUH N (85 BRE 122,000,000.00 122,000,000.00 10,938,132.06
Reconstruction Co,, Ltd. BRAA
Weichai Power Freshen Air EEYNERRIRE 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00 80,146,540.11
Technology Co, Ltd. BRAT
Weichai Power (Weifang) Equipment 443077 (%37 ) & 3t 76,000,000.00 76,000,000.00
Senvice Co, Ltd. RBERLA
Weichai Poweer Hycraulic EZENE TR OGN 5000000000 50,000,000.00 1,230,865.73
Technology Co,, Ltd.
Other subsidiaries which are not ERAEAMEDFAR 155,265,791.28 155,265,791.28 2,097,78337

individually significant

10,539,261,153.11 400,000,000.00 10,939,261,153.11 308,866,800.82

As at 30 June 2017, breakdown of long-term equity investments MR201756A308 - #EmERIIRE
under equity method was as follows: RERBWAT
Increase in Gains and losses Closing
investments under equity Closing provision for
(Unaudited) Opening balance  during the period method carrying amount impairment
B&ET
(REEH) BIBE AHEMRE BERE HAREEE HAREER
Shandong Heavy Industry WRETEEBH 267,764,440.23 19,815,639.50 287,580,079.73
Group Finance Co., Ltd. BRARF
Shanzhong Finance Leasing  IWEBEREERAA 203,873,730.24 17,608,695.65 5,117,381.21 226,599,807.10
Co., Ltd.
Other associates which are not EBETEKK) 140,865,135.67 4,950,000.00 (644,180.37) 145,170,955.30
individually significant EfmELE

612,503,306.14 22,558,695.65 24,288,840.34 659,350,842.13

253
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)

7. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the breakdown of long-term equity

S5 i R WA (A

2017464308 (A RET)
ThAd EEMHEREEE R
(%)

7. REBRERE(E)
M2016912A318 » KAEREK

investments under cost method was as follows: AT
Changes during the year
Closing
Opening Other Other Increase in Closing ~provisionfor ~ Distribution of
(Audited) balance increases decreases investment ~ carrying amount impaiment ~ cash dividend
(#5R) E4E EfsEm At s EMEE  EABEEE FREBEE  BHBSRA
Weichai Power (Hong Kong) SeEN(FR)EREE 208706978012 - - - 2,087,069,782.12 - -
International Development BRAE
(o, Ltd.
Shaanxi Heawy-duty Motor Co, Ltd.  RAER FEERAE 1992,116,000.85 - - - 1992,116,000.85 - 21,930,000.00
Shaanii Fast Gear Co, Ltd. REZTSEREREANT 108255868059 - - - 1,082,558,680.59 - 19587504672
Weichai (Chongging) Automotive 4 (E8 ) T ER AR 1,027,410,000.00 - - 600,000,00000  1,627410,000.00 - -
(o, Ltd,
Thuzhou Gear Co, Lid. FHERERERLA 532,334,743.21 - - - 5333474321 - -
Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting 53071 (135) 55 460,150,000.00 - - - 460,150,000.00 = =
Co, L. BRAR
Weichai Power (Shangha) HEYN(LR)NERE 340,000,000.00 - - 150,000,000.00 490,000,000.00 - -
Technology Development BRAE
(o, Ltd.
Weichai Power (Befing) International  #48 ) (# 7 ) EIEE & R 300,000,000.00 - - - 300,000,000.00 - -
Resource Investment Co,, Ltd. RERT
Weichal America Corp. Weichai America Corp. 262,811,997.28 - - 2752605000  290,338,047.28 - -
Thuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co, Ltd. B A TR 245574,858.40 - - - 557485840 - 2633198579
BREAAT
Weichai (Weifang) Medum-duty 52 57) R T S - - - MATIATSA MATIATSA3 - -
Diesel Engine Co, Ltd. BRAA
Weichal Power (Chongging) Western 4301 £ ) Ei %R 240,000,00000 = = - 24000000000 = =
Development Co, Ltd. BRAA
Weichal (Weifang) After-sales HE(ERTRRE 10141023834 6142154247 - - 162,831,780.81 - 80,951,24045
Market Senice Co, Ltd. BRAA
Weichai Power (Qingzhou) Drive 4871 () EHEefi 150,000,000.00 = = - 150,000,000.00 = =
Control Technology Co, Ltd. BRAF
Thuzhou Torch Machinery A B 130,898.993.14 - - - 13089899314 - -
Manufacturing Co, Ltd. EREfAT
Weichai Power (Weffang) B () BRE 122,000,000.00 - - - 122,00000000 - BTN8T
Reconstruction Co,, Ltd. BRAT
Weichai Power Freshen Al BB NERF MR 100,000,000.00 - - - 100,000,000.00 - 13972218463
Technology Co, Ltd. BRAA
Weichal Power (Weifang) Equipment %48/ (#57) £BRERE  76,000000.00 - - - 7600000000 = -
Senice Co, L. BRAH
Weichai Power Hydraulic Technology - 48 /7 KRR ARAF 50,000,000.00 - - - 50,000,00000 - 0776012
(o, Ltd.
Shandong Synergy Ol Co,, Ltd. LEEEERERAT 50,715,383.36 - (50,715,38336) - - - 125,735,09036
Other subsidiaries which are not EEABANAMT AR 153,223,150.39 - (10,706,159.11)  12,748800.00  155,265,791.28 - 4151388161
individually significant
950427382768 6142154247 (61,42154247) 1,034,987,32543  10,539,261,153.11 - 65450191055
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
7.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)
As at 31 December 2016, the breakdown of long-term equity

(%)

Interim Report 2017 FHEAZRE

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201746 30 (A E#T)

T2 ) BB B R I H Rk

7. RERERE(E)
R2016F12A31H @ R ERBHK

investments under equity method was as follows: BN EBRANT
Changes during the year
REE
Gains and Closing
Additional losses under Dedlaration of Closing provision for
(Audited) during the year the equity method cash dividend  carrying amount impairment
BRAT
(E5H) REHE REEE  EEReRN  ExEEEE  ERREER
Associates BELE
Shandong Heawy ndustry Group ~~ IWRET£MEKARAT 23746886487 - 3029557536 - 26776444023 -
Finance Co., Ltd.
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co, Ltd.  |UEBEREERAT 195,598,201.11 - 827552913 - 20387373024 -
Other associates which are not EEREANEMBECE 83,511,686.03 59.849.257.80  (2,495,808.16) - 14086513567 -
individually significant
516,578,752.01 59,849.257.80 3607529633 - 612,503,306.14 -
Investment property 8. REMEME
Subsequent measurement under the cost model: FAKARAETRETNE
January to June 2017 20174 1-6 H

(Unaudited)

(RBER)
Gross carrying amount RE
Opening balance HeREE
Transfer from construction in FETRREA
progress
Closing balance HIREhEE
Accumulated depreciation and B3t 7 8 1 # 8%
amortization
Opening balance Hi¥EReE
Provision it
Closing balance HIR AR
Carrying amount IREEE
Closing HR
Opening Hi4

Houses
and buildings
EEREEY

1,444,699,623.72

8,622,367.15

1,453,321,990.87

426,302,344.42
36,581,911.12

462,884,255.54

990,437,735.33

1,018,397,279.30

Land use rights
T AR

168,919,324.98

3,340,904.66

172,260,229.64

20,562,578.97
1,674,703.68

22,237,282.65

150,022,946.99

148,356,746.01

Total

2t

1,613,618,948.70

11,963,271.81

1,625,582,220.51

446,864,923.39
38,256,614.80

485,121,538.19

1,140,460,682.32

1,166,754,025.31
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Statements (Continued) (%)

8. Investment property (Continued) 8. REMEHE(E)
Subsequent measurement under the cost model: HKARAERETERETZ -
(Continued) (&)

2016 20164
(Audited) Houses and buildings Land use rights Total
(&%) FEEREEY TR A BEF
Gross carrying amount RE
Opening balance FHEE 1,418,955,971.19 100,766,676.00 1,519,722,647.19
Directly acquired BEEBA - 68,152,648.98 68,152,648.98
Transfer from construction in EETREA
progress 42,262,453.21 - 42,262,453.21
Other transfer-out Hpi (16,518,800.68) - (16,518,800.68)
Closing balance FRHBE 1,444,699,623.72 168,919,324.98 1,613,618,948.70
Accumulated depreciation and RIENEE
amortization
Opening balance FHHE 362,947,235.20 13,410,745.44 376,357,980.64
Provision sHE 71,808,489.22 7,151,833.53 78,960,322.75
Other transfer-out Hpp#i (8,453,380.00) = (8,453,380.00)
Closing balance FRHE 426,302,344.42 20,562,578.97 446,864,923.39
Carrying amount IREEE
Closing FR 1,018,397,279.30 148,356,746.01 1,166,754,025.31
Opening F) 1,056,008,735.99 87,355,930.56 1,143,364,666.55
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Statements (Continued) (%)
9. Fixed assets 9. EEEE
January to June 2017 2017 1-6 H
Housesand ~ Machinery and Electronic
(Unaudited) buildings equipment equipment Vehicles Others
(REEY) EEEREY BERE ETRME BhRfk Al

Gross carrying amount BB
Opening balance BBE 1,845,031,843.08 2,740,811,911.13  795,520,159.77  153,258,531.08  783,166,113.91 6,317,788,558.97
Addition BE 645,350.91 3,645,369.14 - 44,561.72 4,335,281.77
Transfer from construction in - EE T2 A

progress 143,817,439.63 244,028 863.67 24,659,793.95 220,918.60 143,655.69  412,870,671.54
Disposal or retirement REARE (2,247,281.00) (2,944,241.22) (4,487,334.73) (2,587,998.16)  (12,266,855.11)

Closing balance HRHE 1,988,849,282.71  2,983,238,844.71  820,881,081.64  148,992,114.95  780,766,333.16 6,722,727,657.17

Accumulated depreciation B3t478
Opening balance % E 493,359,170.57 1,570,991,815.04  589,305547.03  124,436,293.38  553,971,247.27 3,332,064,073.29
Provision HE S 5347835637  94,254,87358  33483797.03 442666835  39,818,181.75  225,461,877.08
Disposal or retirement REXBE (2,178,794.60)  (2.813,246.19)  (4,035819.57)  (2,496,931.76)  (11,524,792.12)

Closing balance HRHE 546,837,526.94 1,663,067,894.02  619,976,097.87  124,827,142.16  591,292,497.26 3,546,001,158.25

Provision for impairment B %%

Opening balance % = - =
Provision TR 5.396,068.53 483,963.70 5880,032.23
Closing balance HRHE 5,396,068.53 483,963.70 5,880,032.23
Carrying amount REEE

Closing J:iFR 1,442,011,755.77  1,314,774,882.16  200,904,983.77 24,164,972.79  188,989,872.20 3,170,846,466.69

Opening ) 1,351,672,672.51 1,169,820,09.09  206,214,612.74  28,822,237.70 ~ 229,194,866.64 2,985,724,485.68
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Statements (Continued) (%)
9. Fixed assets (Continued) 9. BEIEEE(HE)
2016 20164
Machinery and Electronic
(Audited) equipment equipment Vehicles Others Total
(EE7) mERE ETHRE BH% Bt Eh
Gross carrying amount  RfE
Opening balance FNHE 1,628,358,002.76  2,397,681,195.55  628,594,406.07  137,83744790  767,231,291.44 5559,702,343.72
Addition BE 1,074,422 51 11,614,906.55 453,035.17 165.00 13,142,529.23
Transfer from investment REEEMEEA
property - - - - 16,518,800.68
Transfer from constructionin - £ T8 A
progress 200,155,039.64  379,611,225.49  159,946,554.43 16,155,219.86 31,964,763.76  787,832,803.18
Disposal and retirement LERRE - (37,554,932.42) (4,635,707.28) (1,187,171.85)  (16,030,106.29)  (59,407,917.84)
Closing balance FRHBE 1,845,031,843.08 2,740,811,911.13  795520,159.77  153,258531.08  783,166,113.91 6,317,788,558.97
Accumulated depreciation Zit i &
Opening balance EBE 408,813,248.82  1,386,152,224.08  474,149,804.82  111,021,536.83  535,270,801.98  2,915,407,616.53
Provision SR 220,357,721.91  119,646,208.88 14,531,811.10 33,158,161.91  463,786,445.55
Transfer from investment REGEHEEA
property - - - - 8,453,380.00
Write-off 254 (35,518,130.95) (4,490,466.67) (1,117,054.55)  (14,457,716.62)  (55,583,368.79)
Closing balance FRBE 493,359,170.57  1,570,991,815.04 ~ 589,305,547.03  124,436,293.38  553,971,247.27  3,332,064,073.29
Carrying amount REEE
Closing R 1,351,672,672.51 1,169,820,096.09  206,214,612.74 28822,231.70  229,194,806.64  2,985,724,485.68
Opening )] 1,219,544,753.94  1,011,528,971.47  154,444,601.25 26,815911.07  231,960,489.46  2,644,294,727.19

As at 30 June 2017, houses and buildings for which the Company

had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying amount of

RMB598,663,714.22 (31 December 2016: RMB610,850,600.36).

M2017F6 4308 » AQF HAE
SEMEINEERZEVEEREMEAR
A R #598,663,714.22 7L (2016 F
12A31H : AR®610,850,600.36

JC) °



Interim Report 2017 FHAsksE 259

B 5 2 I R (48)
2017664308 (A B¥T)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 11~ 2 & 3 B B % 3 % 386 H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
10. Intangible assets 10. B EE
January to June 2017 2017 1-6 H

Opening Disposal or
(Unaudited) balance Addition Closing balance
(RBEX) RIE | BE BAARE
Gross carrying amount ~ BERE
Technology know-how E-v=g53( 218,365,759.46 - 218,365,759.46
Trademark rights PEIE (s R 124,448,000.00 - 124,448,000.00
Land use rights 3 {5 4 477,081,992.67 34,790,817.20 511,872,809.87
Software s 16,429,455.27 = 16,429,455.27
836,325,207.40 34,790,817.20 871,116,024.60
Opening
balance Provision Closing balance
RIE | st HMAE
Less: Accumulated Ao REtE
amortization
Technology know-how EvEs 218,238,844.89 29,287.98 218,268,132.87
Trademark rights P IE{E 15,555,996.00 - 15,555,996.00
Land use rights =+ 3 {F PR 4 57,099,484.23 5,102,290.29 62,201,774.52
Software s 16,319,768.66 59,829.06 16,379,597.72
307,214,093.78 5,191,407.33 312,405,501.11
Opening
balance Closing balance
O BAARH
Carrying amount REEE
Technology know-how  HA& i 126,914.57 97,626.59
Trademark rights P IE (s PR 108,892,004.00 108,892,004.00
Land use rights 3 {5 A 4 419,982,508.44 449,671,035.35
Software i 109,686.61 49,857.55

529,111,113.62

558,710,523.49
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

PR 5 i I R (4)
201746 308 (A E#T)

Tho 2 ) BRI B ORI H kR

Statements (Continued) (%)
10. Intangible assets (Continued) 10. M EE (&)
2016 20164
Opening Disposal or
(Audited) balance Acquisition retirement Closing balance
(gE”) FME BE R B SR FRE
Gross carrying amount of ~ EERE
asset
Technology know-how HEERM 218,365,759.46 - - 218,365,759.46
Trademark rights PRI {5 F A 124,448,000.00 - - 124,448,000.00
Land use rights T A 260,497,899.05  216,584,093.62 - 477,081,992.67
Software S 16,429,455.27 - - 16,429,455.27
619,741,113.78 216,584,093.62 - 836,325,207.40

Opening Disposal or
balance Provision retirement Closing balance
FMH iR R B SRR FRY
Less: Accumulated o R
amortization
Technology know-how BEERM 218,180,268.95 58,575.94 - 218,238,844.89
Trademark rights PEiEF A 15,555,996.00 - - 15,555,996.00
Land use rights T fE g 39,589,505.84 17,509,978.39 - 57,099,484.23
Software s 16,200,110.54 119,658.12 - 16,319,768.66
289,525,881.33 17,688,212.45 - 307,214,093.78
Opening
balance Closing balance
FME FRE
Carrying amount RERE
Technology know-how BAERM 185,490.51 126,914.57
Trademark rights PR 108,892,004.00 108,892,004.00
Land use rights T35 A4 220,908,393.21 419,982,508.44
Software B 229,344.73 109,686.61

330,215,232.45

529,111,113.62




Interim Report 2017 FAsks 261

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 3= % B % # % 0H H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (48)
11. Payroll payable 11. BEATE T
January to June 2017 20174 1-6 H

Opening Increase during  Decrease during

(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REEX) BOBE A2 KER D ARG
Short-term remuneration 2% 551,338,341.30  724,751,949.42  (591,173,197.80)  684,917,092.92
Post-employment benefits (Defined B8 14 18 7

contribution plan) (RERTF:TE) 7,824,005.77 62,734,028.67 (62,628,691.81) 7,929,342.63
Severance benefits Portion payable &R 87

within one year —ERINHED 29,296,994.00 6,039,513.46 (4,819,143.80) 30,517,363.66

588,459,341.07 793,525,491.55 (658,621,033.41) 723,363,799.21
2016 20164
Opening Increase during Decrease during

(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(F&EZ) FORE REEM KERD FRBE
Short-term remuneration ki EAil 437,166,732.53  1,042,385,145.95 (928,213,537.18) 551,338,341.30
Post-employment benefits (Defined BEREEN

contribution plan) (RERF:E) 8,118,912.99 129,017,662.10 (129,312,569.32) 7,824,005.77
Severance benefits Portion payable BREF

within one year —FRZAHED 26,456,460.69 51,151,425.23 (48,310,891.92) 29,296,994.00

471,742,106.21  1,222,554,233.28  (1,105,836,998.42) 588,459,341.07




262 \Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #SeE HIRD AR AT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48

30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (AR #oT)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)

11. Payroll payable (Continued) 1. BB ITEHM(E)

Short-term remuneration is as follows: EEE MO T
January to June 2017 20174 1-6 H

Opening Increase during  Decrease during

(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) BARE R XHHD HRRE
Salaries, bonuses, allowancesand T4 « ##%

subsidies ER A 490,682,929.35 613,841,731.27 (489,355,963.37) 615,168,697.25
Staff welfare BIEANE 571,111.45 16,738,284.34 (16,820,857.23) 488,538.56
Social security HERBE 2,562,938.01 39,997,111.04  (39,613,365.85) 2,946,683.20
Housing funds FELES 8,022,152.12 27,285,180.24 (27,413,619.32) 7,893,713.04
Union running costs and employee T & BMET

education costs YEKRE 49,499,210.37 24,998,957.01 (16,078,706.51) 58,419,460.87
Other short-term remuneration H 55 Hi R - 1,890,685.52 (1,890,685.52) -

551,338,341.30 724,751,949.42 (591,173,197.80) 684,917,092.92
2016 20164
Increase during Decrease during

(Audited) Opening balance the year the year Closing balance
(&ER) FHE RELEM KERD FRHE
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and I% %%

subsidies B 383,180,986.54  834,989,088.52  (727,487,145.71)  490,682,929.35
Staff welfare BIENE 465,455.30 38,189,270.38 (38,083,614.23) 571,111.45
Social security HeRBE 2,755,038.77 77,856,500.95 (78,048,601.71) 2,562,938.01
Housing funds FEAES 6,746,296.10 56,521,592.12 (55,245,736.10) 8,022,152.12
Union running costs and employee TeRBANBT

education costs HERE 44,018,955.82 34,828,693.98 (29,348,439.43) 49,499,210.37

437,166,732.53

1,042,385,145.95

(928,213,537.18)

551,338,341.30
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 3= % B % # % 0H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)

1. BB ITHM(E)
BRAEAN (REIREHEMT -

11. Payroll payable (Continued)

Post-employment benefit (defined contribution plan) is as follows:

January to June 2017 20174 1-6 H

Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(RBEX) HAYIERER ZH 8 R D HRERER
Basic pension insurance ERBEZRR 4,732,358.09  42,489,100.34  (42,489,100.34)  4,732,358.09
Unemployment insurance RERBRE - 1,630,541.12  (1,630,541.12) =
Corporate contribution to rEFRHE
pension fund 3,091,647.68  18,614,387.21  (18,509,050.35) 3,196,984.54
7,824,005.77 62,734,028.67  (62,628,691.81) 7,929,342.63
2016 20164
Increase during  Decrease during
(Audited) Opening balance the year the year  Closing balance
(gE2) FHIE REEN RERD FRHE
Basic pension insurance EABZRE 4,732,358.09  85,918,664.68  (85,918,664.68) 4,732,358.09
Unemployment insurance RERRE - 4,611,833.81 (4,611,833.81) -
Corporate contribution to TEFESHE
pension fund 3,386,554.90 38,487,163.61 (38,782,070.83) 3,091,647.68
8,118,912.99  129,017,662.10 (129,312,569.32) 7,824,005.77
12. Taxes payable 12. EXBE
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6H30H 201612 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (gER)
Value-added tax EER 1,496,985.12 162,246,069.48
Corporate income tax RGN 428,802,264.93 285,439,392.25
Individual income tax BN 12,522,507.60 18,352,813.91
Property tax BER 7,145,433.94 5,626,850.84
Stamp duty ENFER 442,918.00 7,139,337.84
Land use tax TR AR 5,561,614.51 5,884,658.84
City construction tax BB 106,591.73 11,361,237.78
Educational surtax BB 76,136.95 8,115,169.87
Others Hiw = 1,550,894.73

456,154,452.78

505,716,425.54
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &

Statements (Continued)
13. Other current liabilities

fad
K

Product quality assurance deposit EmEER

14. Deferred income

Land-related government grant B 1 #8 B8 &9 BT 478 B
Special assistance fund for R&D projects FHZIE B HIEFHBHE &%
Industry revitalization and technical EZRAMFNEEES

renovation special fund

As at 30 June 2017, the liability items related to government grant

are as follows:

Addition
Opening during
(Unaudited) balance the period

(REEH) BO28 AR

Land-related government grant ETHRENIERED 321,818,646.68  10,000,000.00

Special funds for industry revitalizaton ~ EZREARKEELES 66,927,847.36 8,504,566.87
and technological renovation
Special assistance fund for R&D projects  HEBEZEHHNES S 48,585,229.00

437,331,723.04 18,594,566.87

(%)

13. HttRBAE

30 June 2017
2017%6H30H
(Unaudited)

(REFER)

31 December 2016
2016%F12A31H
(Audited)
(§&ER)

1,146,407,589.87

725,109,205.14

14. EE W =R

30 June 2017
201766 A30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

31 December 2016
201612 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

326,888,991.24
48,585,229.00

74,957,414.21

321,818,646.68
48,585,229.00

66,927,847.36

450,431,634.45

437,331,723.04

M®2017%F6H30H
BEEBWOT

Taken to other
income during
the period
RHEA
Hftls

4,929,655.44

565,000.02

5,494,655.46

Closing
balance

HREGE

326,888,991.24

74,957,414.21

48,585,229.00

450,431,634.45

3 R R B Y

Related to
assetsfincome
6yl

Related to assets

SRR AR
Related to assets
Related to income
il gagiil
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)
XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 3= % B % # % 0H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
14. Deferred income (Continued) 14. FEEW R (&)
As at 31 December 2016, the liability items related to government R2016512 8318 » KRBT B
grant are as follows: WEEEBEEWMT
Taken to non-
Opening Addition  operating income Closing Related to
(Audited) balance  duringtheyear  during the year halance assetsfincome
REFA HEE/
(&5%) EfeE REME EEMIA EXRHE WsiEE
Land-related government grant B RBHRRED 285,462,657.32  45833,742.00 947775264 321,818,646.68 Related to assets
BN
Special funds for industry revitalizationand ~ EERENEHZELES 9,257,84740  58,800,000.00 1,130,000.04  66,927,847.36 Related to assets
technological renovation HEREHE
Special assistance fund for R&D projects MEEEEERNELS 2947390000 3822416100  19,112,832.00  48,585,229.00 Related to income
Flleatil: !
324,194,404.72  142,857,903.00 29,720,584.68  437,331,723.04
15. Revenue and cost of sales 15. EEWARRA
January-June 2017 January-June 2016
2017%1-6 R 2016%1-6 7
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
A Revenue Cost
ON B WA YA
Principal operations TEER AP RE EFE G R 8, 453,764,738.26 6,566,560,081.69
Other revenue Hi %% 720,507,166.82 607,260,694.61 382,205,150.28 347,982,729.22
18,346,175,915.73  13,982,037,504.80 8,835,969,888.54 6,914,542,810.91

Revenue is listed as follows:

BRWATIRAOT

January-June 2017 January-June 2016

2017%1-68 20164 1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEZR) (REEZ)

Motors B 17,251,326,111.41 8,272,824,083.06
Automotive components REE M 370,538,598.82 175,238,711.38
Sale of raw materials REHE S 298,934,910.46 140,376,336.63
Leasing of fixed assets LHEEEE 52,601,736.77 42,423,786.57
Others Hh 372,774,558.27 205,106,970.90

18,346,175,915.73

8,835,969,888.54
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
16. Investment income

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
201746 308 (A E#T)

Tho 2 ) BRI B ORI H kR

(%)
16. REW =

Gain on long-term equity investments A E A% & ) = B AR 12
under the cost method & W

Gain on long-term equity investments I EAZ B KR BRI RE
under the equity method ®E W=

Investment income during the period in  #F A A HHESREE
IR EVS BV & e

which available-for-sale financial
assets were held

17. Expenses by nature
The supplemental information of the Group’s cost of sales,
distribution and selling expenses, general and administrative

expenses which are categorized by nature is as follows:

Materials used FERBME

Movement of inventories of finished EXRNMEERGTEEED
goods and work in progress

Staff remuneration B T 37

Depreciation and amortization expenses  #7 & & F# 55 &

Rental He
Others HAh

January-June 2017
2017%1-68
(Unaudited)

(RBER)

308,866,800.82

24,288,840.34

2,080,000.00

335,235,641.16

January-June 2016
20164 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REgEZ)

3,324,794.33

18,250,618.86

21,575,413.19

17. BEREMESE

ARBEXERAN - HEEBR  BEE
REBUEESBENBRERDT :

January-June 2017
201751-6 8
(Unaudited)

(REER)

12,435,613,715.11

481,631,597.89
793,525,491.55
270,155,397.21
7,577,826.31
1,744,536,080.79

15,733,040,108.86

January-June 2016
20164 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

4,646,947,067.16

(145,124,570.47)
485,658,033.43
276,737,619.93

13,788,778.05
2,693,951,016.36

7,971,957,944 .46
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30 June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20176 H30H (A RE#oT)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 3= % B % # % 0H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)

18. MEHEH

18. Income tax expenses

January-June 2017

January-June 2016

Current tax expenses

Deferred tax expenses

EHMEHER
BEEFSTHER

The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is

listed as follows:

Total profit

Tax at statutory tax rate
Effect of preferential tax rate
Adjustments to current tax of

previous periods

DR

BREBRERFAENREA
FREBURENTE
HUARBEE BT AR

Gain and losses attributable to associates 55 B A M & MBS

Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax incentive on eligible expenditures

Effect of unrecognised deductible

temporary differences

IR A
ARIENEE R
HeabBsEENZH
2B EE
%ﬁwm7ﬁmﬁhﬁ
ERNTE

ot
i3

Tax expense at the Company’s effective

tax rate

BARRERBERAEN
FriSHi & A

20175 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RE&HFER)

673,375,670.32
(334,653,634.98)

338,722,035.34

2016 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

172,834,914.89
(60,369,716.56)

112,465,198.33

PRSTLE A B2 7 B AR BE 1O B & 51 R 4D

™

January-June 2017

2017%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

2,705,786,251.35

676,446,562.84
(270,578,625.13)

(2,840,163.47)
(3,643,326.05)
(46,642,020.12)
2,288,434.58

(16,609,798.75)

300,971.44

338,722,035.34

January-June 2016

20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

842,644,564.80

210,661,141.20
(84,264,456.48)

(519,258.42)
(2,737,592.83)
(498,719.15)
1,318,124.99

(11,494,040.98)

112,465,198.33
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)
19. Supplement to cash flow statement

RS i 26 BT 5 (48

201746 308 (A E#T)

Th 2 A] B R R IE H RERE
(74)

Net profit

Add: Impairment loss of assets

Increase in special reserve

Depreciation of fixed assets and
investment properties

Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization of long-term deferred
expenses

Gains on disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other
long-term assets

Finance expenses

Investment income

Increase in deferred tax assets

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in operating receivables

Increase in operating payables

e ZAIE

m: EERERK
BIR R IE N
BEEEER

BEMFEMENE
B EEHH
REGFHE R

REBTEE EBWEE
FE M & HE Ef W

MHEM
BB W
BB HEERNE N
TR (Em)
A IR B R IE AN
R IR B RV 0

Net cash flow from operating activities

REEHELNRESREFE

January-June 2017

20175 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RE&HFER)

2,367,064,216.01

148,452,692.05
5,454,017.54

263,718,491.88
5,191,407.33

1,245,498.00

(1,151,456.74)
(14,196.77)
(335,235,641.16)
(334,653,634.98)
407,815,294.19
(6,938,624,130.76)
5,402,255,682.20

991,518,238.79

19. RERERBERESR

January-June 2016
2016%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgEER)

730,179,366.47

42,349,364.45
3,639,876.36

260,667,101.32
14,717,629.09

1,245,498.00

(6,744,474.25)
40,734,723.97
(21,575,413.19)
(60,369,716.56)
(119,930,371.29)
(3,906,824,231.92)
2,300,892,389.97

(721,018,257.58)
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 3= % B % # % 0H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)

20. Cash and cash equivalents 20. RERREEEY

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
20176 B30H 2016%12831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREX) (REZ)
Cash Be
Incl: Cash at bank Hod : EFHES 169,839.72 260,232.34
Bank deposit on demand ATRERE AR Z Y
RITER 9,862,223,166.66 9,744,015,449.37
Closing balance of cash and cash B/ FRESRES
equivalents at end of period/year HEEYE 9,862,393,006.38 9,744,275,681.71
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
2017%6 A30H 2016912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (BE=R)
Closing balance of cash and cash B/ FREEELHE
equivalents 9,896,208,187.58 9,759,458,242.20
Less: Balance of restricted cash and cash & : 1 F 5 2[R # &9
equivalents B ESHE 33,815,181.20 15,182,560.49
Closing balance of cash and cash B/ FRE2RES

equivalents at end of period/year L EYEREE 9,862,393,006.38 9,744,275,681.71
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1.

Schedule of Extraordinary Profit and Loss

(Unaudited)
(REBER)

R e
iR

201746 308 (A E#T)

Gains or losses from disposal of non-current assets, including
the offset portion of impairment provision for such assets

Government grants charged in profit or loss for the current
period, except for those closely related to the ordinary
operation and gained constantly at a fixed amount or
quantity according to certain standard based on state
policies

Profit and loss from entrusted investment or management of
assets

Profit and loss on the changes in fair value generated from
financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading
and investment income received from disposal of financial
assets held for trading, financial liabilities held for trading

and available-for-sale financial assets, other than effective

hedging business relating to ordinary operating business of

the Company
Reversal of impairment provision of receivables tested
individually

Non-operating income and expenses other than the above

FRBEERERT  BESFR
BEREEFENTHDD

AARHBERENBTHB(ERES
REXBEYEE  FEEX
BERRE BB —EREERNL
EERBEZZNBTHEIRIN

ERMBARESEREENIELS

BRRARIERGEXEHHBOE N
EMRERBI  HEXZER
MEE XFHUCHEBBEEEN
ARBEEZPEGZ  UREER
ZUETHEE RXHMTHEBE
MAHHESREERGHRE
Yoz

B EITRER B A TR R E
o

B Lt & IR 2 SNy Eo = IR

items I
Tax effect Fris i B 8
Effect on minority interests LR RIER T EH

The Group recognized extraordinary profit and loss items in accordance
with the provisions in Explanatory Announcement on Information

Disclosure for Companies Offering their Securities to the Public No. 1 —

Extraordinary Items (CSRC Announcement [2008] No. 43).

)M RERT ©

AEBEY L FHIRRTA R OERR
RBETEZFNRREERERBERESE
B EERS

1~ JEASH P 4H 25 W AR

Amount in

January to June 2017

201751-6 8 £5

(5,032,604.91)

39,869,770.84

25,718,490.60

155,950,147.36

2,871,792.52

60,438,407.00
279,816,003.41
(77,399,354.03)

(91,534,519.58)

110,882,129.80

HEIEN

YEE S N%E[2008]43
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WH s ¥ 3=
iR &R ()
201746 30 (A E#T)

2. Return on Net Assets (“RONA”) and 2 - B&EEWSEME RIS

Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)
January to June 2017

(Unaudited)
(RBER)

Net profit attributable to the ) NGRS ]

Company’s ordinary shareholders % 5 A 75 F) B

Net profit attributable to the MBRFELEFEMEERE
Company’s ordinary shareholders EERAREBR

after extraordinary profit and loss A% 52 9% 514

201751-6 B

Weighted

average RONA

hnE ¥ 19

FEERSE
(%) Diluted
W

January to June 2016 20165 1-6 A
Weighted
average RONA EPS
Jn#E 715
FEER@E T
(Unaudited)
(Restated) (%) Basic Diluted
(REBEZ)
(&) N e
Net profit attributable to the BEBRARTER
Company’s ordinary shareholders % B8 9% ) 3.32 0.13 0.13
Net profit attributable to the MR I B Em R
Company's ordinary shareholders (2B A 7 & @A
after extraordinary profit and loss % =R A9 5 B 2.82 0.11 0.11

The Company holds no potential ordinary shares that are significantly

dilutive.

The Group presents RONA and EPS in accordance with Compilation Rules
No. 9 for Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the

Public — Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings

per Share (Revised in 2010) of the CSRC.

AEBESAHEBLEELEBR -

AREE T E E N E T NE RS &R
KRPEEES(AFAETESFNARES
BERBMRANESR FEEREXNER
W ETE R EE)(2010FEFT)RE -



272

Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #4E HIRHD AR A A

Other Information

Directors’” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 30 June 2017, the interests and short position (if any) of the directors,
the chief executive and the supervisors in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

oAt &R

o S B Ay M A B Bk
Y HE B
RoZ—tFAA=1H EF BREEASR
RESRARARKEREE(EERESRY
B 1E 01 ([ % RS D1 ) S XV ER) BORRAS 4B
MO RESD  RAREESRBEENS
352 AR TARBNBRMARE - B
BN ATEBRITESRSNEETA(EE
TR BECME AL T REBB AR R
B (A MT

Percentage of

the issued
Number of Number of share capital
Name of Director Capacity “A" shares held “H" shares held of the Company
HAEARE
EEpE =27 FEAREE FEHRE R BITRAEOLE
Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 29,421,298 (Note 1) - 0.74%
Bk EnEA A (PRFEET)
Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 6,842,162 (Note 1) - 0.17%
3R AR EnEA A (PRFEET)
Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 6,842,162 (Note 1) - 0.17%
wEHE EnEA A (PRFEET)
Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 6,842,162 (Note 1) - 0.17%
BRAOE EnEA A (PRFEET)
Yuan Hongming Beneficial owner 220 - 0.000006%
KRR EnEAA
Interest held by spouse 220 - 0.000006%
B H 2w
Yan Jianbo Beneficial owner 11,202 - 0.0003%
BR ZE 41 EnlEEA
Percentage of
the issued
Number of Number of share capital
Name of Supervisor Capacity "A" shares held "H" shares held of the Company
HAEARE
o 27 FEAREE FrEHRE R BITRAE DL
Lu Wenwu Beneficial owner 300,000 - 0.008%
BXE EmEA A



Other Information (Continued)

Directors’” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. The
domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi-
denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for and paid up in
Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became “A” shares of the Company
upon the “A” share listing of the Company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

2. All the shareholding interests listed in the above table are “long” position.

3. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 3,998,619,278 issued shares
of the Company as at 30 June 2017 (comprising 3,027,099,278 “A" shares and
971,520,000 “H" shares).

Interests in the shares of associated corporations
of the Company

Name of associated

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest
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HoAt R (2)

o3 MR R By M HE B By
Y RE 2 (7))

BiEE

1. ZEBRNZARRRRANER - NERAA QA Z
TEOEEER - UARKIIE SREBAR®1.00
T UARBERBREBRIARI AR - ZER
MRARBABRERINESFRSH ETERKBAR
Rl Z AR »

2. ERATSINA RS BITAE -
3. BEEDLEITREARTR =T —LF XA
=+ H #3,998,619,278 R B & 1T (&

3,027,099,2788 A% }2971,520,000/8 H% ) 5t & 15
ﬁ °

TP 7S 7 ) AH B 325 1 M oy ) R i

Approximate

Class and percentage
number of interest in the
securities entire issued
interested share capital
or deemed of associated

to be interested corporations

BFEEERE G EEEE 2 A

BAFEREREN EBRITRAEAN

EEpE HEEEER EHEME BEEERREA EREBNES

Gordon Riske (Note) KION Group AG Beneficial owner 227,350 ordinary shares 0.1925%
(P &E) EmEAA P 78 P

Interest held by spouse 3,000 ordinary shares 0.0025%

mEBR AN ER

Note: Gordon Riske, a non-executive Director, was the beneficial owner of 227,350 shares in

KION Group AG and he was also deemed to be interested in 3,000 shares in KION Group
AG which were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Benita Riske.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, none of the Directors, the chief
executive nor the supervisors had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to
the Model Code.

P & SR X

BMizE : JE ¥ 7 & = Gordon Riske A& KION Group AG HJ
227350 BERSEE A - WHEAREET
Benita Riske Z = & # % A /93,000 & KION Group
AGRI A A -

B EXFREEN  RZBE—tF R A=+H -
HMEBEEE ZSTRAEREZTRARERIEE
fAREEE D - AR REFTEERE
& 5 N BB (6 55 352 15 4R E 78 RE 8k 1A A% 16 191 T
AFENBSLMANERIORE - HBRBEEST
AIEAMERRARINERIORE -
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Other Information (Continued)

HoAt E R (2)

. . . 2y Y N
Details of Changes in Share Capital and 2<% 8 A 3= 2 % o 5 1% 0
Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings
() Changes in share capital () BEEHER
Changes in share capital (as at 30 June 2017) AR ESHFERNR(BE_E—HF X
A=t+AH)
Before the movement Increase/decrease in the movement (+, -) After the movement
FREEH FREEER (+-) LYE Lk
Percentage  New shares (Capitalisation Percentage
No. of shares (%) issued  Bonus issue of reserve Others Sub-total ~ No. of shares (%)
48 HA(%) BHR 2R MREER i Nt HE HAI(%)
I Restricted dirculating shares ERERHRD 7643515 21.70% - - - (6434) (643) 867637081 2170%
1. State-owned shares ZHR - - - - - - - - -
2. State-owned legal person shares BEEABR 821,265,504 2054% - - - - - 821,265,504 2054%
3. Shares held by other domestic entities ERERR 46,378,011 1.16% - - - (6,434) (6,434) 46,371,577 1.16%
including: Shares held by domestic non-state-owned Zf : ERIEAHE AR - - - - - - - - -
legal persons
Shares held by domestic natura persons BRERAER 46378011 116% - - - (6434) (643) 46371577 116%
4. Shares held by foreign entities NERIE - - - - - - - - -
including: Shares held by overseas legal persons e < A AR - - - - - - - = =
Shares held by overseas natural persons BBRAER - - - - - - - - -
I Nonestricted circulating shares EREAMERR 3,130975,763 7830% - - - 6434 6434 3130982197 7830%
1. RMB ordinary shares NREELRER 2,159,455,763 54.00% - - - 6,434 6,434 2,159462,197 54.00%
2. Domestic isted foreign shares M EHNER - - - - - = = = =
3. Overseaslisted foreign shares B LitovER 971,520,000 2430% - - - - - 971520000 24.30%
4. Others H - - - - - - - - -
Il Total number of shares Rires 3,998,619.278 100% - - - - - 3998619278 100%



Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial

Shareholders” Shareholdings (Continued)

(1) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as
at 30 June 2017)

The number of shareholders is
156,137 among which 155,852 are

Total number of Shareholders
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HoAt R (2)

Ji& A 58 Bh A = B RE R RE B TE L
(%)
(I FERREFERER(R=F—*
£XA=1+H)
BREH #156,137F « EFARKE
155,852 » HARPARE 2855 -

shareholders of “A" shares and 285

are shareholders of “H" shares.

Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders

AT 108 IR FF IR B R

Approximate
percentage of Number of Number of
sharesheld  Total number of restriced  shares pledged
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder (%) shares held shares held or frozen
BRENEAL BRERE ERGRER
BRER BE#E (%) Bhay L Ri#E
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 24.22% 968,525,028 - N/A
BATAEERBABRAA MERR A
Weichai Group Holdings Limited State-owned legal person 16.83% 672,952,800 672,952,800 -
ERERERER AT BAEA
Weifang Investment Group Company Limited State-owned legal person 3.71% 148,312,704 148,312,704 -
ESTRESEARAF BAEA
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited Domestic non-state-owned legal person 2.40% 95,880,128 - -
PEESERRABRAF BRFEEEEA
[VM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H Overseas legal person 1.86% 74,540,000 - -
BFIVMR T AR HERAF BINEA
Central Huijin Assets Management Company Limited ~ State-owned legal person 1.36% 54,246,400 - -
hARESEEEREREMLAT BAEA
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Domestic non-state-owned legal person 0.81% 32,374,980 - -
Company Limited
WREPETELERNERAR BRFEEEEA
Tan Xuguang Domestic natural person 0.74% 29,421,298 22,065,973 -
Bl BREARA
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited Overseas legal person 0.69% 27,543,703 - -
BRTAEEERAA BINEA
ICBCCS Fund - ICBC - Asset Management for Others 0.61% 24,449,815 - -
Designated Customers
IBmEES - IHRT-REXFPEEER Bt

275
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth R} (48)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial it A< % 8 A 3 B B 3 5 B 1% Ot

Shareholders” Shareholdings (Continued) (%)

(I) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as (II) TERFEFERIBER(RA=-=—+
at 30 June 2017) (Continued) FXA=+H) (&)
Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted shareholders AT 104 SR & R IR FFAR 1B

Number of
the non-restricted

Name of shareholder shares held Types of shares

REAR RFEEREKRTROBE ROESR

HKSCC Nominees Limited 968,525,028 Overseas listed foreign shares

ERRREAREBEABRAA BN ETAINE IR

China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 95,880,128 RMB ordinary shares

FRES BB ERAA ARKEER

IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H 74,540,000 RMB ordinary shares

H VM EL T St A B BR A A AR L m K

Central Huijin Assets Management Company Limited 54,246,400 RMB ordinary shares

FRESCEEEEARETAA AR LR

Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited 32,374,980 RMB ordinary shares

WRECERELEROERAA AR LK

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited 27,543,703 RMB ordinary shares

EEPRBERRAT] AR LB

ICBCCS Fund — ICBC — Asset Management for Designated Customers 24,449,815 RMB ordinary shares

IRnEEL - IHRT-HEEFEEER AR EBR

Shenzhen Chuangxin Investment Group Co., Ltd 23,444,461 RMB ordinary shares

RINTRIFIREEEFRA A AR LB

Zhuzhou State-owned Assets Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. 21,228,582 RMB ordinary shares

HNmEEEEREEREEER A A AR EBRK

China Life Insurance Company Limited — Bonus payment — 17,954,546 RMB ordinary shares

Personal bonus payment — 005L — FH002 Shen ARBEBR

FEASRBIRMDERAR — 24 — @A D4 —005L-FHO002 )%

Note: B3

1. It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship among the top ten 1. ARARRMEM+BBRRREMRT+ B ER S GG
shareholders and the other top ten non-restricted shareholders or whether there is any REZEREEEEAHBER ANEZEER—
acting in concert relationship among them. BATEIAL ©

2. No earmarked repurchase transaction has been conducted by the top ten shareholders 2. NEIRTERELRA T EEREEE L ERKRERL
and the top ten non-restricted shareholders of the Company during the reporting period. HEARNRETHOEELRLS -



Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange) shows that as at 30 June 2017, the following persons (other than the
directors, chief executive and supervisors) had the following interests and the

short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

oAt &R (44

FEBR

RRARRECEF R EGEAE3361F)FENT
BERREBLM(BEMEEHIAMBRNF )
BR N -_ZT—EFARNA=+TH " TIHAL(E
2 RREEABREFHINEARRRND R
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)

HEENTHEE TIRERER(INE)

Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital Percentage of
Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising total issued
Name Capacity position Ashares  only A shares Hshares  only H shares share capital
RARRAK fEHERRA LRESE
4 &t e/ %R AR#E BAt B E] [ZJ::1 BYEM
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long 672,952,800 2.23% - - 16.83%
ETRERERAA ERERA 78
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation Long 672,952,800 22.23% - - 16.83%
WRETEEERAA (K1) BREEERE e
Brandes Investment Partners, LP (Note 2) Investment manager Long - - 78,578,612 16.18% 3.93%
(Mz2) REER e
Lazard Asset Management LLC Investment manager Long - - 245,891,812 2531% 6.15%
REAR e
Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio (Note 3) Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 1.42%
W) BEER i
Barclays PLC (Note 2) Person having a Security interest in shares ~ Long - - 525,552 0.11% 0.03%
(F3E2) HRHBERZERNA e
Interest of corporation controlled by Long - - 25,453,050 5.24% 1.21%
the substantial shareholders
NERHEH AR ER fie
25,978,602 5.35% 1.30%
Interest of corporation controlled by Short - - 24,102,475 4.96% 1.21%
the substantial shareholders
ARSI AR we
Morgan Stanley Interest of corporation controlled by Long - - 49,335,508 5.08% 1.23%
the substantial shareholders
ARSI AR e
Interest of corporation controlled by Short - - 42,078,545 433% 1.05%
the substantial shareholders
NERAEH MBS we
BlackRock, Inc. (Note 5) Interest of corporation controlled by Long - - 182,232,585 9.38% 2.28%
(H3ks) the substantial shareholders
NERAEH MBS fie
Interest of corporation controlled by Short - - 22,000 0.00% 0.00%
the substantial shareholders
NERAEH A ERR He
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Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Shandong Province (“Shandong SASAC"), held the
entire capital of Weichai Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Weifang Diesel
Engine Works).

The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 20 August 2015 as there is no disclosure of interest obligation
under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings for a substantial
shareholder.

The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 17 August 2012 and 20 August 2015 as there is no disclosure of
interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings
for a substantial shareholder.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 3,998,619,278 issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2017 (comprising 3,027,099,278 “A" shares and
971,520,000 “H" shares).

The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above by
the relevant substantial shareholder has adjusted the Company’s bonus share issuance on
21 July 2017.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other

relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2017.

Update of Directors” and Supervisors’ Biographical
Details

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the changes in the biographical

details of the directors and supervisors of the Company since the issue of

the Company’s 2016 Annual Report and/or the issue of the Company’s

announcements dated 8 June 2017 and 12 June 2017 are set out below:

Mr. Yuan Hongming was appointed as an Executive President of the
Company on 5 September 2017.

Mr. Yan Jianbo was appointed as an Executive President of the Company
on 5 September 2017.
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Other Information (Continued)

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group's operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
At no time during the Period was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of the
Company

During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
five independent non-executive Directors of the Company. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Wang Gongyong, an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Wang has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules for the purpose of this appointment. During the Period, the Audit
Committee discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial
results and internal control matters of the Company. In accordance with the
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period.
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Other Information (Continued)

Compliance With Corporate Governance Code
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

Throughout the Period, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan"”), and that
certain directors of the Company did not attend the Company’s annual general
meeting and extraordinary general meeting held during the Period due to other
essential business engagements, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the

Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The Company
considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and implementation
of the Company’s strategies which will enable the Group to grasp business
opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers that through the
supervision of its board and its independent non-executive Directors, there is

adequate balance of power and authority in place.

Compliance with the Model Code

During the Period, the Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the

required standard set out in the Model Code for the Period.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained

the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period were approved by
the Board on 30 August 2017.

Publication of the Interim Report on the
Websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company

The 2017 interim report will be despatched to the shareholders as well as made
available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk

and the Company’s website at www.weichaipower.com in due course.
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WEICHAI POWER CO..LTD.

@%ﬁgﬁinm&iﬁﬁuazﬁl

#o
7 E
B &
AR 75 2 A%
E7EHM
@ u

Address

Tel

Fax

P.C.

Service hotline
E-mail
Website

DILRBHE T S HR T E R R B RS R 1975 F
: +86-536-8197777 (#4#k)

. +86-536-8231074

1 261061

: 800 860 3066

. weichai@weichai.com

. http://www.weichaipower.com

: Section A 197, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province
1 +86-536-8197777 (Gen)

: +86-536-8231074

: 261061

: 800 860 3066

: weichai@weichai.com

: http://www.weichaipower.com
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